
 
 

Public Service Announcement 
 
In order to maintain the safety of County residents, the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners Meeting scheduled for 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 20, 2021, will be 
conducted electronically. The Board Packet, including the agenda, is available on the 
County’s website at: 
 

 http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/boardpacket.aspx  
 

The public may access this meeting by  
 

Calling:  +1 929 205 6099 and entering the following: 
 

Meeting ID: 833 4983 6399 
Password: 12345 

     OR 
 

Clicking the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83349836399?pwd=M0dXWHhEVlV5QTN0UGNnK0VRVnhFZz09 
 
The County is making every effort to ensure that the public is able to, not only listen to the 
meeting, but also to participate in the public comment portion.  You may submit public 
comments by email to:  public.comments@watgov.org or by mail to: 
 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, NC  28607 

 

Public comments received by 5:00 P.M. on Monday, April 19, 2021, will be available to view 
by the time of the meeting (April 20, 2021, at 5:30 P.M.) on the County’s website at:  
http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/boardpacket.aspx  
 
A recording of this meeting will be available by 5:00 P.M. on Wednesday, April 21, 2021, on 
the County’s website at: 
http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/boardpacket.aspx  

http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/boardpacket.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83349836399?pwd=M0dXWHhEVlV5QTN0UGNnK0VRVnhFZz09
mailto:public.comments@watgov.org
http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/boardpacket.aspx
http://www.wataugacounty.org/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/boardpacket.aspx


  
 
 
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, APRIL 20, 2021 
5:30 P.M. 

ELECTRONIC MEETING ORIGINATING FROM THE 
WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

COMMISSIONERS BOARD ROOM 
 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

April 6, 2021, Regular Meeting  
April 6, 2021, Closed Session 

 1 

 3 APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 20, 2021, AGENDA  9 
5:35 4 CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE MS. JENNIFER GREENE 11 
5:40 5 PROPOSED PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE MR. JOE FURMAN 13 
5:45 6 SHERIFF’S OFFICE PATROL VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 

REQUEST 
MAJOR KELLY REDMON 353 

5:50 7 TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
363 
365 

5:55 8 BID AWARD REQUEST FOR TRANSFER STATION IMPROVEMENTS MR. REX BUCK 383 
6:00 9 COMMUNICATION TOWER REPAIR MR. WILL HOLT 405 

6:05 10 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Boards and Commissions 
B. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
431 
439 

6:10 11 PUBLIC COMMENT WRITTEN SUBMISSION 440 
6:15 12 BREAK  440 
6:20 13 CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 440 

6:30 14 ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
April 6, 2021, Regular Meeting  
April 6, 2021, Closed Session 
 
 
 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, APRIL 6, 2021 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
April 6, 2021, at 5:30 P.M. remotely with the meeting originating in the Community Room located 
in the Watauga County Community Recreation Center, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
Chairman Welch called the remote electronic meeting to order at 5:35 P.M.  The following were 
present: 
 

PRESENT:  John Welch, Chairman 
Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman 
Carrington Pertalion, Commissioner 
Charlie Wallin, Commissioner 
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner 
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney 
Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
Commissioner Wallin opened with a prayer and Commissioner Turnbow led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the March 16, 2021, regular meeting 
and closed session minutes. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the 
March 16, 2021, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the 
March 16, 2021, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the April 6, 2021, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add a proposed contract with Appalachian Architecture for 
architectural services at the Water Street/Ginn parking area. 

DRAFT 
042021 BCC Meeting

2



 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the April 6, 2021, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
Mr. Joe Furman stated that the Board had previously directed the Planning and Inspections 
Department to begin work on bringing the County’s development ordinances into compliance with 
the new North Carolina General Statute (NCGS) Chapter 160D.  The Planning Board voted on 
February 15, 2021, to recommend the proposed Planning and Development Ordinance to the Board 
of Commissioners for consideration and scheduling of the public hearing required for adoption. 
 
No changes were proposed to any of the ordinances being combined into the Planning and 
Development Ordinance other than those prompted by NCGS 160D.  However, there were some 
choices to be made as dictated by 160D.  The proposed changes were included in the draft of the 
proposed ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to call the public hearing to 
order at 5:42 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
There was no public comment; however, written public comments would be accepted in regards 
to the public hearing through Wednesday, April 7, 2021. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to close the public hearing 
at 5:43 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Chairman Welch tabled action on the proposed Planning and Development Ordinance until the 
April 20, 2021, Board meeting to allow time for public comments to be received by the deadline 
of Wednesday, April 7, 2021.  
 
[Clerk’s Note:  No public comments were received by the deadline of Wednesday, April 7, 2021.] 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE  
Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, provided an update on the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19).  The report was for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 

042021 BCC Meeting

3



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES MATTERS 
A. Proposed Scheduled Replacement of Servers 

 

Mr. Drew Eggers, IT Director, requested to purchase two Dell servers.  The servers would replace 
two aging servers that were a critical part of the County’s infrastructure.  The price, from 
Marketplace Solutions, Inc., was $11,992 for each server for a total cost of $23,984.  Mr. Eggers 
stated that adequate funds were available to cover the expenditure. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to accept Marketplace 
Solutions, Inc. quote in the amount of $23,984 as presented by Mr. Eggers. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Proposed Email Server Upgrade 

 

Mr. Drew Eggers requested to purchase an upgrade for email server software due to support being 
limited for the current system.  The proposed upgrade to Microsoft Exchange 2019 was needed to 
stay up to date and ensure compatibility.  The total cost for the software license and licensing of 
275 users was $18,213.38.  Support for the new system would remain in effect until October 2025.  
Mr. Eggers stated that adequate funds were available to cover the expense. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the purchase to 
upgrade the email server software to Microsoft Exchange 2019 in the amount of $18,213.38 as 
presented by Mr. Eggers. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

FINANCE MATTERS  

A. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) Budget Amendment 
 

Ms. Misty Watson, Finance Director, presented a revised Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
(JCPC) FY 2020-21 Funding Allocation form.  Crossnore School was not able to utilize funds 
totaling $10,710 and administrative funds totaling $752.  The unutilized funds had to meet certain 
criteria to be spent.  The Council recommended $5,731 be allocated to both Watauga Youth 
Network (WYN) Youth Resource Center and Mountain Alliance.  A 30% match was required for 
the administrative funds in the amount of $226.  The match would be allocated from the 
administrative contingency fund. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the Juvenile 
Crime Prevention Council funding allocation of $10,710 from Crossnore School and $752 from 
administrative funds with $5,731 to Watauga Youth Network (WYN) and $5,731 to Mountain 
Alliance.  
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

042021 BCC Meeting

4



 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the 30% match 
required for administrative funds in regards to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council reallocation 
of funds.  
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

 

Ms. Misty Watson presented the audit contract for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021, with C. 
Randolph CPA, PLLC firm in the amount of $46,500.  This was the second year of the three-year 
proposal with no additional increase. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the letter of 
engagement and audit contract with C. Randolph CPA, PLLC in the amount $46,500. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Discussion of Minimum Housing Committee 

 

County Manager Geouque stated that, per Board direction, staff provided information to the Board 
regarding minimum housing.  At the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat, the Board requested staff to 
gather information on minimum housing for a future discussion on the topic and the potential of 
forming a committee. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow suggested the County Manager and two Board members review the 
information in a Zoom meeting and bring recommendations back to the full Board of 
Commissioners.  Vice-Chairman Kennedy stated that he was willing to be a part of the Committee.  
Commissioner Pertalion stated that there were State funds for minimum housing.  Chairman Welch 
stated that other rural counties had ordinances regulating minimum housing that could be pulled 
as reference. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that staff could acquire the rural ordinances for review by all 
Commissioners and then the Board could decide who should serve on the proposed committee.  
Chairman Welch agreed that was a good idea.  Commissioner Turnbow asked that County 
Manager Geouque and Planning and Inspections Director, Mr. Joe Furman, get the information so 
that himself or Vice-Chairman Kennedy, and Commissioner Pertalion could meet with them and 
review the information and give a report to the Board. 
 

B. Proposed Appalachian Architecture, PA, Contract for Water Street/Ginn Lot Parking 
 

County Manager Geouque presented a proposed contract from Appalachian Architecture, PA, as 
prepared by Mr. Bill Dixon, for architectural and engineering (which would be provided by 

042021 BCC Meeting

5



Municipal Engineering) fees to study three parking options for the Watauga County Waters Street 
and Ginn parking areas.  The three design options were presented as follows: 
 

1. Water Street Surface Parking lot- Develop plan option(s) to maximize surface parking on 
the Water Street lot. Maintain existing (or provide new) stairs to access the upper Queen 
Street lot. Queen Street parking lot to remain unchanged. 
 

2. New two-level parking deck on Water Street Lot. Develop plan option(s) to maximize 
surface parking on the Water Street lot with a new parking deck structure above that 
connects to and extends existing upper parking lot on Queen Street. Provide pedestrian 
connection (stairs) between the two levels but NO vehicular connection between the levels. 
 

3. New two-level connected parking deck end to end. Develop plan option(s) to remove the 
existing retaining wall, excavate the existing Queen Street lot to Water Street elevation and 
create a new two-level connected parking deck structure end to end on the combined 
properties. Access to the lower-level surface parking would be from Water Street. Access 
to the upper level parking deck would be from Queen Street. 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that all options would meet Town of Boone codes for storm 
drainage requirements, etc. 
 
The proposed cost for the study of the three options was $16,700 and included conceptual designs 
and civil engineering (provided by Municipal Engineering) for all three options. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the contract 
with Appalachian Architect, PA, to study the three proposed parking options for the County’s 
Water Street and Ginn lot parking areas. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Announcements 

 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• High Country Senior Games 2021 were scheduled from May to July in 2021.  More 
information was available at Parks and Recreation. 

 

• A Ribbon Cutting Ceremony would be held for the new Community Recreation Center on 
April 23, 2021, at 1:30 P.M. 

 

• The Community Recreation Center was scheduled to open on Monday, April 26, 2021. 
 

Chairman Welch announced that the North Carolina Department of Transportation’s (NCDOT) 
Litter Sweep program would be ongoing from April 10-24, 2021.  Vice-Chairman Kennedy also 
encouraged citizens to join the NCDOT’s Adopt-A-Highway program. 

042021 BCC Meeting

6



AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to add Boards & 
Commissions to the agenda for consideration of a Watauga County Planning Board appointment. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy nominated Ms. Allison Jennings to serve as his district representative on 
the Watauga County Planning Board to replace Mr. Dennis Scanlin who was no longer available 
to serve.  Ms. Jennings’ appointment would run concurrent with Vice-Chairman Kennedy’s term. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to waive the second reading 
and appoint Ms. Allison Jennings to serve as Vice-Chairman Kennedy’s district representative on 
the Watauga County Planning Board with her appointment to run concurrent with Vice-Chairman 
Kennedy’s term. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:45 P.M., Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Chairman Welch stated that there would be no action after closed session. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to resume the open 
meeting at 8:03 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

7



ADJOURN 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
8:03 P.M. 

 
VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
John Welch, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

042021 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 20, 2021, AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, will provide an update on the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19). 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PROPOSED PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Board directed the Planning and Inspections Department to begin work on bringing the 
County’s development ordinances into compliance with the new NC General Statute Chapter 
160D.  The Planning Board voted on February 15, 2021 to recommend the Planning and 
Development Ordinance to the Board of Commissioners for consideration and scheduling of the 
public hearing required for adoption.  The staff did not propose changes to any of the ordinances 
being combined into the Planning and Development Ordinance other than those prompted by 
NCGS 160D. There are some choices to be made dictated by 160D; those are highlighted in yellow 
in the document and discussed in Mr. Furman’s memo. Planning Board action on each is indicated 
in red.  A public hearing was conducted with no public comment received.  
 
The Board may adopt the proposed changes as presented, request additional information or 
meetings, or table the decision until a future meeting.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
 
   
  

042021 BCC Meeting

13



 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
 
126 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite 201  Boone, NC 28607 Phone (828) 265-8043 
 TTY 1-800-735-2962 
 Voice 1-800-735-8262  
 or 711 
 FAX (828) 265-8080 

 
 

Memorandum 

Date: February 23, 2021 

To: County Manager, Board of Commissioners 

From: Joe Furman  

RE: Proposed Planning & Development Ordinance 

About a year ago, the Planning and Inspection Department staff began work to bring the 
County’s development ordinances into compliance with the new NC General Statute Chapter 
160D. This Chapter is the result of a five (5) year process initiated by the NC Bar Association, 
aided by the UNC School of Government and others. Chapter 160D is the first major 
recodification and modernization of city and county development regulations since 1905.  It 
combines and standardizes the statutes enabling county and municipal development regulations, 
and replaces Chapter 153A, Article 18 (counties) and Chapter 160A, Article 19 (municipalities) 
which were repealed effective January 1, 2021. The provisions of Chapter 160D are effective 
now (have been since June, 2020), but local governments have until July 1, 2021 to bring their 
regulations into compliance. This blog https://canons.sog.unc.edu/chapter-160d-deadlines-and-
transitions/ reviews the General Assembly’s actions. This checklist provided by the UNC School 
of Government describes the actions that must be taken as well as ones that are optional: 
https://www.sog.unc.edu/sites/www.sog.unc.edu/files/160D%20Checklist%20Aug%2020%20up
date.pdf.    And here is a Q&A by the School of Government: 
https://www.sog.unc.edu/sites/www.sog.unc.edu/files/160D%20Q%26A%20updated%20Aug%2
020.pdf.  
 
Rather than amend sixteen (16) distinct development ordinances, the staff proposed to combine 
them into one (1) ordinance, and beyond that, to create a County Code of Ordinances within 
which the development ordinance will reside. The Planning Board voted on 2/15/21 to 
recommend the Planning and Development Ordinance to the Board of Commissioners for 
consideration and scheduling of the public hearing required for adoption. The creation of the 
Code of Ordinances would occur after said adoption, and does not require a public hearing, as it 
is simply an organizational process. The proposed ordinance is attached, and it includes some 
pages (first 3 pages following the cover sheet) that describe its organization and the organization 
of the proposed Code of Ordinances.  
 
 
 
 
 

Department of 
Planning & Inspections 

042021 BCC Meeting

14

https://canons.sog.unc.edu/chapter-160d-deadlines-and-transitions/
https://canons.sog.unc.edu/chapter-160d-deadlines-and-transitions/
https://www.sog.unc.edu/sites/www.sog.unc.edu/files/160D%20Checklist%20Aug%2020%20update.pdf
https://www.sog.unc.edu/sites/www.sog.unc.edu/files/160D%20Checklist%20Aug%2020%20update.pdf
https://www.sog.unc.edu/sites/www.sog.unc.edu/files/160D%20Q%26A%20updated%20Aug%2020.pdf
https://www.sog.unc.edu/sites/www.sog.unc.edu/files/160D%20Q%26A%20updated%20Aug%2020.pdf


The staff did not propose any changes to any of the ordinances being combined into the Planning 
and Development Ordinance other than those prompted by NCGS 160D. There are some choices 
to be made dictated by 160D; those are highlighted in yellow in the document and discussed 
below. Planning Board action on each is indicated in red. 
 

• Chapter 1, effective date. TBD. 
• Chapter 5, amount of civil penalties. The statute requires the County to set by ordinance 

the $ amount of civil penalties. Currently our ordinances have varying amounts, or no 
amount at all. Staff proposed to standardize the amount to $100, which is typical in 
ordinances elsewhere. An option would be $50, which is the amount of criminal 
penalties for misdemeanors in the statutes. PB approved $100. 

• Chapter 5, definition of site-specific development plan for vested rights purposes. The 
County must define what “counts” as such a plan; staff proposed any plan/plat requiring 
Planning Board or Board of Adjustment approval is such a plan, upon request of the 
applicant. PB approved staff recommendation. 

• Chapter 10, Foscoe Grandfather conditional zoning industrial district. Currently the 
Foscoe Grandfather Zoning Ordinance includes a two-step process for industrial uses. 
First, a property must be rezoned to industrial (legislative decision ultimately made by 
the Board of Commissioners). Second, since there is no list of permitted uses in that 
district, the Board of Adjustment must grant a conditional use permit (quasi-judicial 
decision). NCGS 160D prohibits this process and replaces it with conditional zoning, 
which is a legislative decision made by the Board of Commissioners. The proposed 
ordinance includes that, and also a list of permitted uses. PB approved staff 
recommendation. Related to the above, NCGS 160D eliminates the term conditional use 
permit, and replaces it with the term special use permit. The proposed ordinance 
incorporates that throughout. 

• Chapter 13, duration of High Impact Land Use permit. It is currently two (2) years, can 
remain as such, or can revert to NCGS 160D default one (1) year. PB approved default 
one (1) year. 

• Chapter 20, appeal of Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission decisions. NCGS 
160D provides the option of appeal to the Board of Adjustment or directly to Superior 
Court. The current historic district ordinance provides for appeal to the Board of 
Adjustment; staff proposed that be changed to Superior Court. The reason for the 
recommendation is that the appeal is in the nature of certiorari (the appeal board/judge 
reviews the record only), and the Board of Adjustment is not used to operating that 
way, whereas the Superior Court is. PB approved staff recommendation. 

 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

15



Watauga County

Code of Ordinances

042021 BCC Meeting

16



i 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Title I  Planning & Development 

Title II  Emergency Management 

Title III  Solid Waste, Junk, & Nuisances 

Title IV  Animals 

Title V  Tax 

Title VI  Miscellaneous 

Title VII  Fee Schedules 

 

 

Format: 

Code 

   Titles 

      Chapters 

         Articles 

            Sections 

 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

17



ii 

 

Code of Ordinances Contents 

Planning and Development Ordinance 

Emergency Management 

• Emergency Management Ordinance 

• Hazardous Waste Ordinance 

• Hazardous Materials Emergencies 

• State of Emergency Ordinance? 

• Hazardous Recreation Parks Ordinance 

• Road Names Ordinance 

• 911 Surcharge Ordinance 

• Structure Addressing Ordinance 

 

Solid Waste, Junk, and Nuisances 

 

• Junked and Abandoned Vehicles Ordinance 

• Junkyard Ordinance 

• Solid Waste Ordinance 

• Littering Ordinance 

• Container Site Ordinance 

• Septic Tank Sewage Disposal Ordinance 

• Noise Ordinance 

 

Animals 

 

• Animal Control Ordinance 

• Wild and Dangerous Animals Ordinance 

 

Tax 

 

• Dog License Ordinance 

• Annual Registration of Mobile Homes, etc. Ordinance 

• Land Records Management Ordinance 

• Gross Receipts Retail rental of Vehicles Ordinance 

• Occupancy Tax Ordinance 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

18



iii 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

• Ambulance Ordinance 

• Cable Television Ordinance 

• Hospital Parking Ordinance 

• Parking Lot Ordinance 

• Parking Lot Penalty Schedule 

• Personnel Ordinance 

• Farmland Preservation Ordinance 

• Solicitation Ordinance 

• Carnivals Ordinance 

• Beer and Wine Consumption Ordinance 

• BCC Structure Ordinance 

• Air Rifle Ordinance 

• Smoking in County Buildings Ordinance 

 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

19



iv 

 

Title I Planning and Development Ordinance 

CHAPTER 1  AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION ................................... 1 

Article I  Title of Ordinance ....................................................................................... 1 

Article II  Authority and Purposes .............................................................................. 1 

Article III  Jurisdiction .............................................................................................. 1 

Article IV  Effective Date .......................................................................................... 1 

Article V  Relationship to Existing Ordinances.............................................................. 1 

Article VI  Fees ....................................................................................................... 1 

CHAPTER 2  PLANNING BOARD; PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS 

DEPARTMENT .................................................................................... 2 

Article I  Planning Board Established; Duties ............................................................... 2 

Article II  Planning Board Membership and Vacancies ................................................... 2 

Article III  Department of Planning and Inspections ..................................................... 3 

Article IV  Ordinance Administrator ............................................................................ 4 

CHAPTER 3    BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT .............................................. 5 

Article I  Establishment of Board ............................................................................... 5 

Article II  Duties of the Board ................................................................................... 5 

Article III  Administration ......................................................................................... 6 

Section 1. Administrative Materials. .................................................................... 6 

Section 2.  Presentation of Evidence. .................................................................. 6 

Section 3. Appearance of Official New Issues. ...................................................... 7 

Section 4. Decisions. ........................................................................................ 7 

Section 5. Appeals in Nature of Certiorari. ........................................................... 7 

Section 6. Standing. ......................................................................................... 8 

Section 7. Judicial Review. ................................................................................ 8 

Article IV  Notice of Hearing ..................................................................................... 8 

Article V   Voting ..................................................................................................... 9 

Article VI   Variances ............................................................................................. 10 

Article VII   Appeals ............................................................................................... 10 

Section 1.  Designated Board. .......................................................................... 10 

Section 2.  Standing. ...................................................................................... 11 

Section 3.  Time to Appeal. ............................................................................. 11 

Section 4.  Record of Decision. ......................................................................... 11 

Section 5.  Stays. ........................................................................................... 11 

Section 6.  Alternative Dispute Resolution. ........................................................ 12 

042021 BCC Meeting

20



v 

 

Section 7.  No Estoppel. .................................................................................. 12 

Article VIII  Special Use Permits .............................................................................. 12 

Article IX  Appeals of Board Actions ......................................................................... 14 

CHAPTER 4   PROCEDURE FOR ADOPTING, AMENDING, OR 

REPEALING DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. .................................... 15 

Article I  Hearing with Published Notice .................................................................... 15 

Article II  Notice of Hearing on Proposed Zoning Map Amendments ............................. 15 

Article III  Citizen Comments .................................................................................. 16 

Article IV  Amendments ......................................................................................... 16 

Article V  Down-Zoning .......................................................................................... 16 

Article VI  Plan Consistency .................................................................................... 17 

Article VII  Statement of Board of Commissioners ..................................................... 17 

CHAPTER 5     MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ................................. 19 

Article I  Conflict with Other Laws ........................................................................... 19 

Article II  Notices of Violation.................................................................................. 19 

Article III  Stop Work Orders .................................................................................. 19 

Article IV  Remedies .............................................................................................. 20 

Article V  Penalties ................................................................................................ 20 

Article VI  Additional Remedies and Penalties for Soil Erosion and Sedimentation .......... 21 

Article VII  Severability Clause ................................................................................ 21 

Article VIII  Development Approvals ........................................................................ 21 

Article IX  Duration of Development Approval ........................................................... 21 

Article X  Inspections ............................................................................................. 22 

Article XI  Revocation of Development Approvals....................................................... 22 

Article XII  Development approvals run with the land ................................................. 22 

Article XIII  Minor modifications .............................................................................. 23 

Article XIV  Conditional Districts .............................................................................. 23 

Article XV  Determinations ...................................................................................... 23 

Article XVI   Optional posting of signs by owner ........................................................ 24 

Article XVII  Word Interpretation ............................................................................. 24 

CHAPTER 6   STATUTORY PROVISIONS ........................................... 25 

CHAPTER 7   DEFINITIONS ............................................................. 36 

CHAPTER 8  CONTROL OF SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION .... 77 

Article I  Title ........................................................................................................ 77 

042021 BCC Meeting

21



vi 

 

Article II  Purpose ................................................................................................. 77 

Article III  Scope and Exclusions ............................................................................. 77 

Section 1.  Geographical Scope of Regulated Land-Disturbing Activity. .................. 77 

Section 2.  Exclusions from Regulated Land-Disturbing Activity. ........................... 77 

Section 3.  Plan Approval Requirement for Land-Disturbing Activity. ..................... 79 

Section 4.  Protection of Property. .................................................................... 79 

Section 5.  Plan Approval Exceptions. ............................................................... 79 

Article IV  Mandatory Standards for Land-Disturbing Activity ...................................... 79 

Section 1.  Buffer Zone ................................................................................... 79 

Section 2.  Graded Slopes and Fills. .................................................................. 80 

Section 3.  Fill Material. .................................................................................. 80 

Section 4.  Ground Cover. ............................................................................... 81 

Section 5.  Prior Plan Approval. ........................................................................ 81 

Article V  Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans .................................................... 81 

Section 1.  Plan Submission. ............................................................................ 81 

Section 2.  Financial Responsibility and Ownership. ............................................ 82 

Section 3.  Environmental Policy Act Document. ................................................. 82 

Section 4.  Content......................................................................................... 83 

Section 5.  Soil and Water Conservation District Comments. ................................ 83 

Section 6.  Timeline for Decisions on Plans. ....................................................... 83 

Section 7.  Approval. ...................................................................................... 83 

Section 8.  Disapproval for Content. ................................................................. 84 

Section 9.  Other Disapprovals. ........................................................................ 84 

Section 10.  Transfer of Plan. ........................................................................... 85 

Section 11.  Notice of Activity Initiation. ............................................................ 86 

Section 12.  Preconstruction Conference. .......................................................... 86 

Section 13.  Display of Plan Approval. ............................................................... 86 

Section 14.  Required Revisions. ...................................................................... 86 

Section 15.  Amendment to a Plan. ................................................................... 86 

Section 16.  Failure to File a Plan. .................................................................... 87 

Section 17.  Self-Inspections. .......................................................................... 87 

Article VI  Basic Control Objectives .......................................................................... 89 

Section 1.  Identify Critical Areas. .................................................................... 89 

Section 2.  Limit Time of Exposure. .................................................................. 89 

Section 3.  Limit Exposed Areas. ...................................................................... 90 

Section 4.  Control Surface Water. ................................................................... 90 

Section 5.  Control Sedimentation. ................................................................... 90 

042021 BCC Meeting

22



vii 

 

Section 6.  Manage Storm Water Runoff. ........................................................... 90 

Article VII  Design and Performance Standards ......................................................... 90 

Section 1.  Non-High Quality Water Zones. ........................................................ 90 

Section 2.  HQW Zones. .................................................................................. 90 

Article VIII  Storm Water Outlet Protection ............................................................... 91 

Section 1.  Intent. .......................................................................................... 91 

Section 2.  Performance standard. .................................................................... 92 

Section 3.  Acceptable Management Measures. .................................................. 93 

Section 4.  Exceptions..................................................................................... 93 

Article IX  Borrow and Waste Areas ......................................................................... 93 

Article X  Access and Haul Roads ............................................................................. 94 

Article XI  Operations in Lakes or Natural Watercourses ............................................. 94 

Article XII  Responsibility for Maintenance ................................................................ 94 

Article XIII  Additional Measures ............................................................................. 94 

Article XIV  Existing Uncovered Areas ...................................................................... 95 

Section 1.  Applicability ................................................................................... 95 

Section 2.  Written Notice................................................................................ 95 

Section 3.  Right to Require Plan. ..................................................................... 95 

Section 4.  Future Planned Reservoir. ............................................................... 95 

Article XV  Fees ..................................................................................................... 95 

Article XVI  Plan Appeals ........................................................................................ 96 

Section 1.  Disapprovals .................................................................................. 96 

Section 2.  Other Disapprovals ......................................................................... 96 

Article XVII  Inspections and Investigations .............................................................. 96 

Section 1.  Inspection. .................................................................................... 96 

Section 2.  Willful Resistance, Delay or Obstruction. ........................................... 97 

Section 3.  Notice of Violation. ......................................................................... 97 

Section 4.  Investigation. ................................................................................ 97 

Section 5.  Statements and Reports. ................................................................. 97 

Article XVIII  Stop Orders ....................................................................................... 97 

Article XIX  Revocation of Grading Permits ............................................................... 98 

Article XX  Building Permits .................................................................................... 98 

Article XXI  Security Required ................................................................................. 98 

Article XXII  Penalties ............................................................................................ 99 

Section 1.  Civil Penalties. ............................................................................... 99 

Section 2.  Criminal Penalties......................................................................... 100 

042021 BCC Meeting

23



viii 

 

Article XXIII  Injunctive Relief ............................................................................... 101 

Section 1.  Violation of Local Program. ............................................................ 101 

Section 2.  Abatement of Violation. ................................................................. 101 

Article XXIV  Restoration After Non-Compliance ...................................................... 101 

Article XXV  Effective Date ................................................................................... 101 

CHAPTER 9  FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ................................... 102 

Article I  Statutory Authorizations, Findings of Fact, Purpose, & Objectives ................. 102 

Section 1. Statutory Authorization. ................................................................. 102 

Section 2. Findings of Fact. ........................................................................... 102 

Section 3. Statement of Purpose. ................................................................... 102 

Section 4. Objectives. ................................................................................... 103 

Article II  General Provisions................................................................................. 103 

Section 1.  Lands To Which This Ordinance Applies. .......................................... 103 

Section 2.  Basis For Establishing The Special Flood Hazard Areas. ..................... 103 

Section 3.  Establishment Of Floodplain Development Permit. ............................ 104 

Section 4. Compliance. ................................................................................. 104 

Section 5. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions. ............................................... 104 

Section 6. Interpretation. .............................................................................. 104 

Section 7. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability. ................................................. 104 

Article III  Administration ..................................................................................... 105 

Section 1. Designation of Floodplain Administrator. .......................................... 105 

Section 2. Floodplain Development Application, Permit and Certification 

Requirements. ............................................................................................. 105 

Section 3. Duties and Responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator. ................ 109 

Section 4.  Corrective Procedures. .................................................................. 112 

Section 5.  Variance Procedures. .................................................................... 113 

Article IV  Provisions For Flood Hazard Reduction .................................................... 116 

Section 1.  General Standards. ...................................................................... 116 

Section 2.  Specific Standards. ....................................................................... 117 

Section 3.  Reserved. .................................................................................... 121 

Section 4.  Standards For Floodplains Without Established Base Flood Elevations. 122 

Section 5.  Standards For Riverine Floodplains With Base Flood Elevations But 

Without Established Floodways or Non-Encroachment Areas. ............................. 123 

Section 6.  Floodways and Non-Encroachment Areas. ....................................... 123 

Article V  Legal Status Provisions .......................................................................... 124 

Section 1.  Effect on Rights and Liabilities Under the Existing Flood Damage 

Prevention Ordinance.................................................................................... 124 

042021 BCC Meeting

24



ix 

 

CHAPTER 10  FOSCOE GRANDFATHER ZONING ............................. 125 

Article I  Purpose, Authority and Jurisdiction ........................................................... 125 

Section 1.  Purpose. ..................................................................................... 125 

Section 2.  Authority. .................................................................................... 125 

Section 3.  Jurisdiction. ................................................................................. 125 

Article II General Provisions ................................................................................. 125 

Section 1.  Application. ................................................................................. 125 

Section 2.  New Uses or Construction. ............................................................ 126 

Section 3.  Conforming Uses. ......................................................................... 126 

Section 4.  Nonconforming Uses. .................................................................... 126 

Section 5.  Open Space Requirements. ........................................................... 127 

Section 6.  Reduction of Lot and Yard Areas Prohibited. .................................... 127 

Section 7.  Projections into Public Rights-of-way. ............................................. 127 

Section 8.  Interpretation of District Boundaries. .............................................. 128 

Article III  Official Zoning Map .............................................................................. 128 

Section 1.  Zoning Map. ................................................................................ 128 

Article IV Administration and Enforcement .............................................................. 128 

Section 1.  Administration and Enforcement. ................................................... 128 

Section 2.  Permit Process. ............................................................................ 129 

Section 3.  Right of Appeal. ........................................................................... 130 

Article V  District Regulations ................................................................................ 130 

Section 1.  Rural District. .............................................................................. 130 

Section 2.  Rural/Residential District. .............................................................. 132 

Section 3.  Highway District. .......................................................................... 133 

Section 4.  Light Industrial Conditional Zoning District. ..................................... 135 

Section 5.  Accessory Uses. ........................................................................... 136 

Article VI  Site Plan Review .................................................................................. 138 

Section 1.  Sign Regulations .......................................................................... 138 

Section 2.  Buffer Areas ................................................................................ 138 

Section 3.  Parking Standards ........................................................................ 140 

Section 4.  Yard Requirements – Highway and Industrial Districts ...................... 141 

Section 5.  Driveway Connections ................................................................... 141 

Section 6.  Drainage, Erosion Control, Storm Water Management ....................... 142 

Section 7.  Stream Protection, Flood Plain Protection ........................................ 142 

CHAPTER 11    INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF ELECTRONIC 

ACCESS GATES FOR GATED COMMUNITIES ................................... 144 

Article I  Authority and Purpose ............................................................................ 144 

042021 BCC Meeting

25



x 

 

Article II  Requirements ....................................................................................... 144 

Article III  Gate Development Specifics .................................................................. 144 

Article IV  Application and Approval Process ........................................................... 145 

Article V  Maintenance ......................................................................................... 146 

Article VI  Modifications........................................................................................ 146 

CHAPTER 12   HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES ........................................ 147 

Article I  Regulation of Height of Structures ............................................................ 147 

Article II  Permits ................................................................................................ 148 

CHAPTER 13  HIGH IMPACT LAND USES ....................................... 149 

Article I  Introduction .......................................................................................... 149 

Section 1  General Purpose. ........................................................................... 149 

Section 2  Legal Authority. ............................................................................ 149 

Section 3  Territorial Coverage. ...................................................................... 149 

Article II  Regulated Land Uses ............................................................................. 149 

Section 1  Regulated Uses. ............................................................................ 149 

Section 2.  Regulations and Standards Imposed. .............................................. 150 

Article III  Pre-Existing High Impact Land Uses ....................................................... 154 

Section 1.  Grandfathering of Pre-existing High Impact Land Uses. ..................... 154 

Section 2.  New High Impact Land Uses Regulated. .......................................... 155 

Section 3. Pre-existing Regulated Land Uses. ................................................... 156 

Article IV  Permit Required ................................................................................... 156 

Section 1.  Permitting Process. ....................................................................... 156 

Section 2. Permit Expiration. ......................................................................... 156 

Section 3. High Impact Land Use Occupancy Permit. ........................................ 157 

CHAPTER 14    MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS .............................. 158 

Article I Authority and Purpose ............................................................................. 158 

Article II  Health Department Review ..................................................................... 158 

Article III Preliminary Site Plan Submission ............................................................ 158 

Section 1  Preliminary Site Plan Specifications. ................................................ 158 

Article IV Park Development Standards .................................................................. 159 

Article V Individual Manufactured Homes Within a Park ............................................ 160 

Article VI  Applicability to Existing Manufactured Home Parks ................................... 160 

Article VII  Registration ........................................................................................ 160 

CHAPTER 15    SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESSES ....................... 161 

Article I  Purpose and Findings .............................................................................. 163 

042021 BCC Meeting

26



xi 

 

Section 1.  Purpose. ..................................................................................... 163 

Section 2.  Findings. ..................................................................................... 163 

Article II  Classification ........................................................................................ 165 

Article III  License Required .................................................................................. 166 

Section 1.  Unlawful Operation and Employment Without License ....................... 166 

Section 2.  Application. ................................................................................. 166 

Section 3.  Qualified Applicant. ...................................................................... 166 

Section 4.  Signatures. .................................................................................. 166 

Section 5.  Application Contents. .................................................................... 167 

Section 6.  Employee Application. ................................................................... 169 

Section 7.  Additional Requirements. .............................................................. 169 

Article IV Issuance of License ............................................................................... 170 

Section 1.  Investigation. .............................................................................. 170 

Section 2.  Annual Renewal. .......................................................................... 170 

Section 3.  Approval/Denial. .......................................................................... 171 

Section 4.  Posted License. ............................................................................ 171 

Section 5.  Timeline for Review. ..................................................................... 172 

Section 6.  License Classification. ................................................................... 172 

Article V  Fees .................................................................................................... 172 

Article VI  Inspection ........................................................................................... 172 

Article VII  Expiration of License ............................................................................ 173 

Article VIII  Suspension ....................................................................................... 173 

Article IX Revocation ........................................................................................... 173 

Section 1. Previous Suspension ...................................................................... 173 

Section 2.  Evidence. .................................................................................... 174 

Section 3.  Length of Revocation. ................................................................... 174 

Section 4.  Judicial Review. ........................................................................... 174 

Article X Transfer of License ................................................................................. 174 

Article XI  Location of Sexually Oriented Businesses ................................................ 175 

Section 1.  Residential Structures. .................................................................. 175 

Section 2.  Non-Residential Structures. ........................................................... 175 

Section 3.  Proximity to Existing Sexually Oriented Business. ............................. 175 

Section 4.  Highway. ..................................................................................... 176 

Section 5.  Existing Sexually Oriented Business ................................................ 176 

Section 6.  Measurement to Property Line. ...................................................... 176 

Section 7.  Measurement to Structure. ............................................................ 176 

Section 8.  Applicably to Other Ordinances. ..................................................... 176 

042021 BCC Meeting

27



xii 

 

Article XII  Additional Regulations For Adult Motels .................................................. 177 

Section 1.  Adult Motel. ................................................................................. 177 

Section 2.  Penalties. .................................................................................... 177 

Section 3.  Word Interpretation. ..................................................................... 177 

Article XIII  Regulation Pertaining To Exhibition of Sexually Explicit Films, Videos or Live 

Entertainment..................................................................................................... 177 

Section 1.  Requirements. ............................................................................. 177 

Section 2.  Maintenance. ............................................................................... 179 

Section 3.  Penalties. .................................................................................... 179 

Article XIV  Additional Regulations ......................................................................... 179 

Section 1.  For Escort Agencies. ..................................................................... 179 

Section 2.  For Nude Model Studios. ............................................................... 179 

Section 3.  Concerning Public Nudity. .............................................................. 180 

Article XVII  Prohibition Against Youth in a Sexually Oriented Business ...................... 180 

Article XVIII  Prohibition Of Sale or Consumption of Alcohol ...................................... 180 

Article XIX  Exterior Portions of Sexually Oriented Businesses ................................... 180 

Section 1. Visibility. ...................................................................................... 180 

Section 2.  Exterior Appearance. .................................................................... 181 

Section 3.  Parking ....................................................................................... 181 

Section 4.  Lighting. ..................................................................................... 181 

Section 5.  Buffering. .................................................................................... 181 

Section 6.  Maintenance ................................................................................ 182 

Section 7.  Penalties. .................................................................................... 182 

Article XX Signage ............................................................................................... 182 

Article XXI  Hours of Operation ............................................................................. 182 

Article XXII Exemptions ....................................................................................... 183 

Article XXIII  Injunction ....................................................................................... 183 

CHAPTER 16    SIGNS .................................................................... 184 

Article I  Purpose and Legislative Intent ................................................................. 184 

Article II  Measurement Standards ........................................................................ 185 

Section 1.  Determining Sign Area and Dimensions. .......................................... 185 

Section 2.  Determining Sign Height. .............................................................. 186 

Section 3.  Determining Building Frontages and Frontage Lengths. ..................... 186 

Section 4 .   Length of Building Frontage. ........................................................ 186 

Article III  Signs Permitted ................................................................................... 187 

Section 1.  Residential Subdivisions ................................................................ 187 

042021 BCC Meeting

28



xiii 

 

Section 2.  Unzoned Commercial Areas. .......................................................... 187 

Article IV  Development Standards ........................................................................ 187 

Section 1.  Wall Signs. .................................................................................. 187 

Section 2.  Freestanding signs. ...................................................................... 188 

Section 3.  Electronic Message Center/Changeable Copy Signs. .......................... 188 

Section 4.  Instructional signs. ....................................................................... 189 

Section 5.  Window Signs. ............................................................................. 189 

Section 6.  Temporary Signs. ......................................................................... 189 

Section 7.  Highway Signs. ............................................................................ 190 

Article V  Non-Conforming Signs ........................................................................... 191 

Section 1.  General Provisions. ....................................................................... 191 

Article VI  Sign Review Procedures. ....................................................................... 191 

Article VII  Supplemental Considerations ................................................................ 192 

Section 1.  Construction Standards. ................................................................ 192 

Section 2.  Maintenance. ............................................................................... 192 

Section 3.  Exempt from these Regulations. ..................................................... 193 

Section 4.  Prohibited Signs. .......................................................................... 193 

Article VIII  Jurisdiction ........................................................................................ 194 

CHAPTER 17  STRUCTURES LOCATED ON LAND ADJACENT TO 

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE LAND ................................................... 195 

Article I – Regulation of Location of Structures ........................................................ 195 

Article II – Permit ................................................................................................ 195 

Article III – Jurisdiction and Effective Date ............................................................. 195 

CHAPTER 18  SUBDIVISION AND MULTI-UNIT STRUCTURES ........ 196 

Article I  Title ...................................................................................................... 196 

Article II Authority and Enactment Clause .............................................................. 196 

Article III  Jurisdiction and Purpose ....................................................................... 196 

Section 1.  Jurisdiction .................................................................................. 196 

Section 2.  Purpose ...................................................................................... 196 

Article IV  Planning Board Review and Legal Status Provisions .................................. 197 

Section 1.  Planning Board Review and Approval. ............................................. 197 

Section 2.  Exemptions. ................................................................................ 197 

Section 3.  Building Permits. .......................................................................... 197 

Section 4.  Recording of Plats. ....................................................................... 198 

Section 5.  Duty of Register of Deeds. ............................................................. 198 

Section 6.  Relationship to Effective Changes in the Chapter. ............................. 198 

042021 BCC Meeting

29



xiv 

 

Article V  Procedures For Review and Approval of Subdivisions .................................. 199 

Section 1.  Plat Required on Any Subdivision of Land. ....................................... 199 

Section 2.  Submission of Preliminary Plat. ...................................................... 199 

Section 3.  Specifications for Preliminary Plat. .................................................. 200 

Section 4.  Minor Subdivisions. ...................................................................... 201 

Section 5.  Phased Developments. .................................................................. 203 

Section 6.  Submission of Final Plat. ............................................................... 203 

Section 7.  Approval of Final Plat. ................................................................... 208 

Section 8.  Advisory Opinion. ......................................................................... 208 

Article VI  General Requirements and Minimum Standards of Design ......................... 209 

Section 1.  General Requirements. ................................................................. 209 

Section 2.  Design Standards for Streets. ........................................................ 213 

Section 3.  Design Standards for Lots. ............................................................ 218 

Section 4.  Design Standards for Easements. ................................................... 222 

Article VII  Planned Unit Development ................................................................... 222 

Section 1.  Definition. ................................................................................... 222 

Section 2.  Purpose. ..................................................................................... 222 

Section 3.  Affordable Housing PUD. ............................................................... 227 

Article VIII  Installation of Permanent Reference Points and Improvements ................ 229 

Section 1.  Permanent Reference Points. ......................................................... 229 

Section 2.  Installation of Improvements. ........................................................ 230 

Section 3.  Deferment of Improvements. ......................................................... 230 

ARTICLE IX - Regulation Of Multi-Unit Structures .................................................... 231 

Section 1.  Definition. ................................................................................... 231 

Section 2.  Purpose. ..................................................................................... 231 

Section 3.  Application of Article. .................................................................... 231 

Section 4.  Standards of Design. .................................................................... 231 

Section 5.  Submission of Site Plans. .............................................................. 233 

Section 6.  Inspections. ................................................................................. 234 

Section 7.  Building Permits. .......................................................................... 234 

Appendix A  Guide For Sub-Division Development In Watauga County ....................... 235 

Appendix B  Guidelines For Developing Erosion and Sediment Control Plans ............... 236 

Appendix C  Erosion and Sedimentation Plan Checklist ............................................. 241 

Appendix D Ownership/Financial Responsibility Form ............................................... 242 

Appendix E  Preliminary Plat Checklist ................................................................... 244 

Appendix F  Final Plat Checklist ............................................................................. 246 

042021 BCC Meeting

30



xv 

 

Appendix G  Subdivision Specifications Checklist ..................................................... 248 

Appendix H  Method of Defining Slope ................................................................... 249 

Appendix I  Minor Bridge Maintenance Checklist ...................................................... 251 

Appendix J  Buffering and Screening ...................................................................... 254 

Appendix K  Fire Apparatus Access Roads ............................................................... 256 

Appendix L  Affordable Workforce Housing Policy .................................................... 257 

Appendix M  Developer Authorization Form ............................................................ 259 

CHAPTER 19  REGULATION OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 

SUBDIVISIONS ............................................................................. 260 

Article I  Authority and Enactment Clause .............................................................. 260 

Article II  Jurisdiction and Purpose ........................................................................ 260 

Section 1.  Jurisdiction. ................................................................................. 260 

Section 2.  Purpose. ..................................................................................... 260 

Section 3.  Permits. ...................................................................................... 260 

Article III  Planning Board Review ......................................................................... 261 

Article IV  Procedures For Review And Approval Of Subdivisions ................................ 261 

Section 1.  Submission of Preliminary Plan to Planning Board. ............................ 261 

Section 2.  What the Preliminary Plat Shall Show. ............................................ 262 

Section 3.  Submission of Final Plat to Planning Board. ..................................... 263 

Section 4.  What the Final Plat Shall Show. ...................................................... 263 

Section 5.  Approval of Final Plat by Planning Board and Recording Thereof. ........ 264 

Section 6.  The Following Certificates Shall Be Shown On The Final Plat. ............. 264 

Section 7.  Appeal by Developer. .................................................................... 265 

Section 8.  Feasibility Plan. ............................................................................ 265 

Section 9.  Minor Subdivisions. ...................................................................... 265 

Article V  Environmental, Open Space and Access Requirements ............................... 266 

Section 1.  Environmental, Open Space and Access Requirements. ..................... 266 

Section 2.  Miscellaneous Requirements. ......................................................... 268 

Article VI  Effective Date. ..................................................................................... 268 

CHAPTER 20  VALLE CRUCIS HISTORIC DISTRICT ........................ 269 

Article I  General Provisions .................................................................................. 269 

Section 1.  Purposes. .................................................................................... 269 

Section 2.  Legislative Authority. .................................................................... 269 

Article II Historic District and Historic Preservation Commission ................................ 270 

Section 1.  Historic District Established. .......................................................... 270 

Section 2.  Application of Regulations. ............................................................ 270 

042021 BCC Meeting

31



xvi 

 

Section 3.   Exemption of Bonafide Farms and Public Schools. ........................... 270 

Section 4.  Area, Height and Placement Standards. .......................................... 270 

Section 5.  Performance Standards. ................................................................ 271 

Section 6.  Historic Preservation Commission. .................................................. 274 

Section 7.  Commission Powers. ..................................................................... 275 

Section 8.  Certificate of Appropriateness. ....................................................... 277 

Article III  Nonconformities................................................................................... 282 

Section 1.  Classification. .............................................................................. 282 

Section 2.  Repair, Reconstruction, Expansion, Reinstatement. .......................... 283 

Section 3.  Nonconforming Lots...................................................................... 283 

Article IV  Public Buildings .................................................................................... 283 

Chapter 21  Watershed Protection (Winkler’s Creek, Howards Creek, 

Norris Branch, Flat Top Branch, South Fork New River, and Pond 

Creek) .......................................................................................... 284 

Article I  Authority and General Regulations ........................................................... 284 

Section 1.  Authority and Enactment. .............................................................. 284 

Section 2. Jurisdiction. .................................................................................. 284 

Section 3.  Exceptions to Applicability. ............................................................ 284 

Section 4. Applicability to Agricultural Uses. .................................................... 285 

Article II  Subdivision Regulations ......................................................................... 285 

Section 1.  General Provisions. ....................................................................... 285 

Article III  Development Regulations ..................................................................... 287 

Section 1.  Establishment of Watershed Areas. ................................................ 287 

Section 2.  Watershed Areas Described. .......................................................... 287 

Section 3.  Cluster Development. ................................................................... 292 

Section 4.  Buffer Areas Required. .................................................................. 292 

Section 5.  Rules Governing the Interpretation of Watershed Area Boundaries. .... 293 

Section 6.  Application of Regulations. ............................................................ 293 

Section 7.  Existing Development. .................................................................. 294 

Section 8.  Watershed Protection Permit. ........................................................ 294 

Section 9.  Building Permit Required. .............................................................. 295 

Section 10.  Watershed Protection Occupancy Permit. ....................................... 295 

Article IV  Public Health Regulations ...................................................................... 296 

Section 1.  Public Health, in general. .............................................................. 296 

Section 2.  Abatement. ................................................................................. 296 

Article V  Administration, Enforcement and Appeals ................................................. 296 

Section 1.  Watershed Administrator and Duties thereof. ................................... 296 

042021 BCC Meeting

32



xvii 

 

Article VI  Appearance Standards .......................................................................... 297 

Section 1. Buffer Areas. ................................................................................ 297 

Section 2.  Location and Buffering of Parking. .................................................. 299 

Article VII  Changes and Amendments to the Watershed Protection Regulations .......... 299 

Article VIII Variances ........................................................................................... 299 

CHAPTER 22  WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS ......................................... 301 

Article I  Authority and Purpose. ......................................................................... 301 

Article II  Findings. .......................................................................................... 301 

Article III  Small Wind Energy Systems. .............................................................. 301 

Section 1.  Wind Turbine Height. .................................................................... 301 

Section 2.  Setback. ..................................................................................... 301 

Section  3. Building Permit Requirements. ....................................................... 302 

Section 4. Compliance with FAA Regulations. ................................................... 302 

Section 5.  Utility Notification. ........................................................................ 302 

Section 6.  Appearance. ................................................................................ 302 

Section 7.  Removal of Defective or Abandoned Wind Energy Systems. ............... 302 

Article IV Large Wind Energy Systems ............................................................... 303 

Section 1.  Permit Application. ....................................................................... 303 

Section 2.  Special Use Permit Required. ......................................................... 306 

CHAPTER 23  WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS ......................... 307 

Article I Purpose and Legislative Intent .................................................................. 307 

Article II  Approvals Required for Wireless Facilities and Wireless Support Structures .. 307 

Section 1.  Administrative Review and Approval. .............................................. 307 

Section 2.  Board Review and Approval. .......................................................... 308 

Section 3.  Exempt from Review and Approval. ................................................ 308 

Article III  Administrative Review and Approval Process ........................................... 309 

Section 1.  Content of Application Package for New Sites................................... 309 

Section 2.  Content of Application Package for Other Sites/Facilities. .................. 309 

Section 3.  Fees. .......................................................................................... 310 

Section 4.  Procedure and Timing. .................................................................. 310 

Article IV  Special Use Permit Process. ................................................................... 311 

Section 1.  Special Use Permit. ...................................................................... 311 

Section 2.  Content of Special Use Permit Application Package. .......................... 312 

Section 3.  Fees. .......................................................................................... 312 

Section 4.  Procedure and Timing. .................................................................. 312 

Article V  General Standards and Design Requirements. ........................................... 313 

042021 BCC Meeting

33



xviii 

 

Section 1.  Design. ....................................................................................... 313 

Section 2.  Setbacks. .................................................................................... 314 

Section 3.  Height. ....................................................................................... 314 

Section 4.  Aesthetics. .................................................................................. 314 

Section 5.  Accessory Equipment. ................................................................... 315 

Section 6.  Fencing. ...................................................................................... 315 

Section 7.  Landscaping. ............................................................................... 315 

Article VI Miscellaneous Provisions. ....................................................................... 315 

Section 1.  Abandonment and Removal. .......................................................... 315 

Section 2.  Multiple Uses on a Single Parcel or Lot. ........................................... 316 

Article VII Wireless Facilities and Wireless Support Structures in Existence on the Date of 

Adoption of this Ordinance. .................................................................................. 316 

Section 1.  Existing Wireless Facilities. ............................................................ 316 

Section 2.  Activities at Non-Conforming Wireless Support Structures. ................ 316 

Article VIII  Jurisdiction ........................................................................................ 317 

Article IX  National Park Service Review ................................................................. 317 

Article X  Valle Crucis Historic District .................................................................... 317 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

34



1 

 

CHAPTER 1  AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION 
 

Article I  Title of Ordinance 

This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the Watauga County 

Planning and Development Ordinance. 

Article II  Authority and Purposes 

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority contained in the North 

Carolina Constitution and General Statutes, and is in fact a compilation of 

existing individual ordinances, amended as required by SL 2019-111, SL 

2020-25, and NCGS 160D. Specific authorities and purposes for each 

chapter are stated therein. 

Article III  Jurisdiction 

This ordinance shall be effective throughout unincorporated Watauga outside 

of the jurisdictions of the municipalities; for regulations adopted under the 

authority of N.C.G.S. 160D, said municipal jurisdictions shall include 

extraterritorial jurisdictions, if any. 

Article IV  Effective Date 

This ordinance shall take effect January 1, 2021.  

Article V  Relationship to Existing Ordinances 

To the extent that the provisions of this ordinance are the same in substance 

as the provisions they replace in previously adopted County ordinances, they 

shall be considered as continuations thereof and not new enactments unless 

otherwise specifically provided, as stated above in Article II.  

Article VI  Fees 

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160D-402(d), reasonable fees for support, 

administration, and implementation of programs authorized by the General 

Statutes are established and amended from time-to-time by the Board of 

County Commissioners of Watauga County.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

35



2 

 

CHAPTER 2  PLANNING BOARD; PLANNING AND 
INSPECTIONS DEPARTMENT 

 

Article I  Planning Board Established; Duties 

The Watauga County Planning Board is established pursuant to North 

Carolina General Statute 160D-301. The Board shall have the following 

powers and duties: 

(A) To prepare, review, maintain, monitor, and periodically update and 

recommend to Board of Commissioners a comprehensive plan, and 

such other plans as deemed appropriate, and conduct ongoing 

related research, data collection, mapping, and analysis.  

(B) To facilitate and coordinate citizen engagement and participation in 

the planning process. 

(C) To develop and recommend policies, ordinances, development 

regulations, administrative procedures, and other means for 

carrying out plans in a coordinated and efficient manner.  

(D) To advise the Board of Commissioners concerning the 

implementation of plans, including, but not limited to, review and 

comment on all zoning text and map amendments as required by 

G.S. 160D-604.  

(E) To exercise any functions in the administration and enforcement of 

various means for carrying out plans that the Board of 

Commissioners may direct.  

(F) To provide a preliminary forum for review of quasi-judicial 

decisions, provided that no part of the forum or recommendation 

may be used as a basis for the deciding board.  

(G) To perform any other related duties that the Board of 

Commissioners may direct. 

Article II  Planning Board Membership and Vacancies 

The Planning Board shall consist of seven (7) members; five (5) appointed 

by the Board of County Commissioners on a district basis and two (2) 

appointed at-large with no residency requirements. Upon taking office after 

a general election, each County Commissioner shall nominate, subject to the 

approval of a majority of the Board of County Commissioners, one (1) 

person from his/her district. Two (2) at-large members shall be nominated 

and approved by the entire Board of County Commissioners. No more than 

042021 BCC Meeting

36



3 

 

three (3) members at one time shall be from the same profession or 

occupation. 

The terms of the appointees representing districts shall be concurrent with 

the terms of the County Commissioners elected to represent the districts. 

At-large appointees’ terms shall be four (4) years, staggered. Planning Board 

members may be reappointed upon expiration of terms, and shall serve at 

the pleasure of the Board of Commissioners. 

Vacancies occurring for reasons other than expiration of terms shall be filled 

as they occur for the period of the unexpired term. Faithful attendance at 

the meetings of the Planning Board is considered a prerequisite for the 

maintenance of membership on the Planning Board. Failure to attend three 

(3) consecutive regular meetings of the Planning Board without good cause 

shall terminate the membership of any appointee to the Planning Board. 

Article III  Department of Planning and Inspections 

The Department of Planning and Inspections is established pursuant to North 

Carolina General Statute 160D-401. The staff may consist of a director, 

administrators, inspectors, enforcement officers, planners, technicians, and 

other staff necessary to fulfill the duties of the Department. 

Duties assigned to staff include, but are not limited to, drafting and 

implementing plans and development regulations to be adopted pursuant to 

NCGS 160D and 153A; determining whether applications for development 

approvals are complete; receiving and processing applications for 

development approvals; providing notices of applications and hearings; 

making decisions and determinations regarding development regulation 

implementation; determining whether applications for development 

approvals meet applicable standards as established by law and local 

ordinance; enforcing the North Carolina Building and Residential Codes 

(pursuant to NCGS 160D-1102); conducting inspections; issuing or denying 

certificates of compliance or occupancy; enforcing development regulations, 

including issuing notices of violation, orders to correct violations, and 

recommending bringing judicial actions against actual or threatened 

violations; keeping adequate records; and any other actions that may be 

required in order adequately to enforce the laws and development 

regulations under their jurisdiction. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

37



4 

 

Article IV  Ordinance Administrator 

The “Ordinance Administrator” is the Planning & Inspections Director or 

his/her subordinate officials designated by him/her. The title may be used 

interchangeably with: watershed administrator, floodplain administrator, 

county official, administrator, zoning official, planning staff, Department of 

Planning & Inspections, Office of Planning & Inspections, the County. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

38



5 

 

CHAPTER 3    BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 

Article I  Establishment of Board 
Board of Adjustment members shall be appointed by the Board of 

Commissioners and shall consist of five (5) regular members and any 
alternate members (if any) that the Board of Commissioners shall designate. 

Appointments shall be for three (3) years. If practicable, the Board of 

Commissioners shall appoint at least one member from each zoned and 
watershed area in the County. 
 

Article II  Duties of the Board 

The board shall hear and decide all matters upon which it is required to pass 

under any statute or development regulation adopted pursuant to NCGS 
153A-121 or NCGS 160D, with the exception that the Watauga County 

Planning Board shall perform the duties of the Board of Adjustment 
pertaining to Chapter 18 Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures, and shall 

comply with all of the procedures and process applicable to the Board of 
Adjustment in making quasi-judicial decisions. 

 
(A) Hear and decide appeals from and review any order, requirement, 

decision, or determination made by the Department of Planning & 
Inspections in the performance of official duties. 

(B) Hear and decide appeals for variances.  Nothing in this Section shall 
be construed to authorize the Board to permit a use in a district 

where that use in not a permitted use. 
(C) Hear and decide upon applications for special use permits. 

(D) Subpoenas. – The board making a quasi-judicial decision under this 

Chapter through the chair or, in the chair's absence, anyone acting 
as chair may subpoena witnesses and compel the production of 

evidence. To request issuance of a subpoena, the applicant, the 
County, and any person with standing under G.S. 160D-1402(c) 

may make a written request G.S. 160D-406 Page 2 to the chair 
explaining why it is necessary for certain witnesses or evidence to 

be compelled. The chair shall issue requested subpoenas he or she 
determines to be relevant, reasonable in nature and scope, and not 

oppressive. The chair shall rule on any motion to quash or modify a 
subpoena. Decisions regarding subpoenas made by the chair may 

be immediately appealed to the full board. If a person fails or 
refuses to obey a subpoena issued pursuant to this subsection, the 

board or the party seeking the subpoena may apply to the General 
Court of Justice for an order requiring that its subpoena be obeyed, 

and the court shall have jurisdiction to issue these orders after 

notice to all proper parties. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

39



6 

 

Article III  Administration 
The Board shall adopt rules of procedures and regulations for the conduct of 

its affairs. 
 

All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public.  The Board shall keep 
a record of its meetings, including the vote of each member on every 

question, a complete summary of the evidence submitted to it, documents 
submitted to it and all official actions.   

 
The Board Chair or any member acting as Chair and Board Clerk are 

authorized to administer oaths to any witnesses in any matter coming before 
the Board. Any person who, while under oath during a proceeding before the 

Board of Adjustment willfully swears falsely is guilty of a Class 1 
misdemeanor. 

 

Applications for special use permits, variances, and appeal of decisions of 
the Department of Planning & Inspections shall be filed with the Clerk to the 

Board of Adjustment, as agent for the Board, on forms provided by the 
Clerk. 

Section 1. Administrative Materials. 

The administrator or staff to the board shall transmit to the board all 

applications, reports, and written materials relevant to the matter being 
considered. The administrative materials may be distributed to the members 

of the board prior to the hearing if at the same time they are distributed to 
the board a copy is also provided to the appellant or applicant and to the 

landowner if that person is not the appellant or applicant. The administrative 
materials shall become a part of the hearing record. The administrative 

materials may be provided in written or electronic form. Objections to 
inclusion or exclusion of administrative materials may be made before or 

during the hearing. Rulings on unresolved objections shall be made by the 

board chair at the hearing; such ruling may be appealed to the full board. 

Section 2.  Presentation of Evidence. 

The applicant, the local government, and any person who would have 
standing to appeal the decision under G.S. 160D-1402(c) shall have the 

right to participate as a party at the evidentiary hearing. Other witnesses 
may present competent, material, and substantial evidence that is not 

repetitive as allowed by the board. Objections regarding jurisdictional and 
evidentiary issues, including, but not limited to, the timeliness of an appeal 

or the standing of a party, may be made to the board. The board chair shall 
rule on any objections, and the chair's rulings may be appealed to the full 

board. These rulings are also subject to judicial review pursuant to G.S. 

042021 BCC Meeting

40



7 

 

160D-1402. Objections based on jurisdictional issues may be raised for the 
first time on judicial review. 

Section 3. Appearance of Official New Issues. 

The official who made the decision or the person currently occupying that 

position, if the decision maker is no longer employed by the local 
government, shall be present at the evidentiary hearing as a witness. The 

appellant shall not be limited at the hearing to matters stated in a notice of 
appeal. If any party or the local government would be unduly prejudiced by 

the presentation of matters not presented in the notice of appeal, the board 
shall continue the hearing. 

Section 4. Decisions. 

The board shall determine contested facts and make its decision within a 

reasonable time. When hearing an appeal, the board may reverse or affirm, 
wholly or partly, or may modify the decision appealed from and shall make 

any order, requirement, decision, or determination that ought to be made. 

The board shall have all the powers of the official who made the decision. 
Every quasi-judicial decision shall be based upon competent, material, and 

substantial evidence in the record. Each quasi-judicial decision shall be 
reduced to writing, reflect the board's determination of contested facts and 

their application to the applicable standards, and be approved by the board 
and signed by the chair or other duly authorized member of the board. A 

quasi-judicial decision is effective upon filing the written decision with the 
clerk to the board or such other office or official as the development 

regulation specifies. The decision of the board shall be delivered within a 
reasonable time by personal delivery, electronic mail, or first-class mail to 

the applicant, landowner, and any person who has submitted a written 
request for a copy prior to the date the decision becomes effective. The 

person required to provide notice shall certify to the local government that 
proper notice has been made, and the certificate shall be deemed conclusive 

in the absence of fraud. 

Section 5. Appeals in Nature of Certiorari.  

When hearing an appeal pursuant to G.S. 160D-947(e) or any other appeal 

in the nature of certiorari, the hearing shall be based on the record below, 
and the scope of review shall be as provided in G.S. 160D-1402(j). 

042021 BCC Meeting

41



8 

 

Section 6. Standing.   

A petition may be filed under this Chapter only by a petitioner who has 

standing to challenge the decision being appealed. The following persons 
shall have standing to file a petition under this Chapter:  

(A) Any person possessing any of the following criteria: 
(1) An ownership interest in the property that is the subject of 

the decision being appealed, a leasehold interest in the 
property that is the subject of the decision being appealed, or 

an interest created by easement, restriction, or covenant in 
the property that is the subject of the decision being 

appealed.  
(2) An option or contract to purchase the property that is the 

subject of the decision being appealed.   
(3) An applicant before the decision-making board whose decision 

is being appealed. 

(B) Any other person who will suffer special damages as the result of 
the decision being appealed. 

(C) An incorporated or unincorporated association to which owners or 
lessees of property in a designated area belong by virtue of their 

owning or leasing property in that area, or an association otherwise 
organized to protect and foster the interest of the particular 

neighborhood or local area, so long as at least one of the members 
of the association would have standing as an individual to challenge 

the decision being appealed, and the association was not created in 
response to the particular development or issue that is the subject 

of the appeal.  

Section 7. Judicial Review. 

Every quasi-judicial decision shall be subject to review by the superior court 

by proceedings in the nature of certiorari pursuant to G.S. 160D-1402. 

Appeals shall be filed within the times specified in G.S. 160D-1405(d). 

(2019-111, s. 2.4.) 

Article IV  Notice of Hearing 

 
(A) Notice of evidentiary hearings conducted pursuant to this Chapter 

shall be mailed to the person or entity whose appeal, application, or 
request is the subject of the hearing; to the owner of the property 

that is the subject of the hearing if the owner did not initiate the 

hearing; to the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel of 
land that is the subject of the hearing; and to any other persons 

entitled to receive notice as provided by the local development 

042021 BCC Meeting

42



9 

 

regulation. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the local 
government may rely on the county tax listing to determine owners 

of property entitled to mailed notice. The notice must be deposited 
in the mail at least 10 days, but not more than 25 days, prior to the 

date of the hearing. Within that same time period, the local 
government shall also prominently post a notice of the hearing on 

the site that is the subject of the hearing or on an adjacent street 
or highway right-of-way. The board may continue an evidentiary 

hearing that has been convened without further advertisement. If 
an evidentiary hearing is set for a given date and a quorum of the 

board is not then present, the hearing shall be continued until the 
next regular board meeting without further advertisement. 

(B) Additional notice for evidentiary hearings conducted under Chapter 
13, High Impact Land Uses is required as follows. Notice shall be 

posted on the subject parcel and mailed to all owners of property 

abutting and within 500 feet of the subject parcel twenty five (25) 
days in advance of the hearing. In addition, notice shall be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area sixty 
(60) days and again two (2) weeks in advance of the hearing, and 

an announcement of the hearing shall be placed on the County’s 
web site sixty (60) days in advance of the hearing, and remain 

there continuously until the hearing. 
 

Article V   Voting 
 

(A) The concurring vote of four-fifths of the board shall be necessary to 
grant a variance. A majority of the members shall be required to 

decide any other quasi-judicial matter or to determine an appeal 
made in the nature of certiorari. For the purposes of this 

subsection, vacant positions on the board and members who are 
disqualified from voting on a quasi-judicial matter shall not be 

considered members of the board for calculation of the requisite 
majority if there are no qualified alternates available to take the 

place of such members.  
(B) A member of any board exercising quasi-judicial functions pursuant 

to this Chapter shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial 
matter in a manner that would violate affected persons' 

constitutional rights to an impartial decision maker. Impermissible 
violations of due process include, but are not limited to, a member 

having a fixed opinion prior to hearing the matter that is not 

susceptible to change, undisclosed ex parte communications, a 
close familial, business, or other associational relationship with an 

affected person, or a financial interest in the outcome of the matter. 

042021 BCC Meeting

43



10 

 

If an objection is raised to a member's participation and that 
member does not recuse himself or herself, the remaining members 

shall by majority vote rule on the objection.  
 

Article VI   Variances 
 

A variance may only be allowed by the Board in cases involving unnecessary 
hardships when competent, material, and substantial evidence in the record 

supports all of the following findings:  
(A) Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the 

ordinance. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the 
absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the 

property.  
(B) The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the 

property, such as location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting 

from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general 

public, may not be the basis for granting a variance. A variance 
may be granted when necessary and appropriate to make a 

reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing Act for a 
person with a disability. 

(C) The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or 
the property owner. The act of purchasing property with knowledge 

that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance 
shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. 

(D) The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and 
intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured and 

substantial justice is achieved.  
 

No change in permitted uses may be authorized by variance. 

 
The Board may impose appropriate conditions upon the granting of any 

variance, provided that the conditions are reasonably related to the 
variance. 

 
Article VII   Appeals 

Section 1.  Designated Board.  

Except as provided in N.C.G.S 160D-1403.1, appeals of administrative 

decisions made by the staff under this Chapter shall be made to the board of 
adjustment unless a different board is provided or authorized otherwise by 

statute or an ordinance adopted pursuant to this Chapter. If this function of 
the board of adjustment is assigned to any other board pursuant to G.S. 

042021 BCC Meeting

44



11 

 

160D-302(b), that board shall comply with all of the procedures and 
processes applicable to a board of adjustment hearing appeals. Appeal of a 

decision made pursuant to an erosion and sedimentation control regulation, 
a storm water control regulation, or a provision of the housing code shall not 

be made to the board of adjustment unless required by a County ordinance 
or code provision. 

Section 2.  Standing.  

Any person who has standing under G.S. 160D-1402(c) or the County may 

appeal an administrative decision to the board. An appeal is taken by filing a 
notice of appeal with the clerk or such other local government official as 

designated by regulation. The notice of appeal shall state the grounds for the 
appeal.  

Section 3.  Time to Appeal. 

The owner or other party shall have 30 days from receipt of the written 

notice of the determination within which to file an appeal. Any other person 

with standing to appeal has 30 days from receipt from any source of actual 
or constructive notice of the determination within which to file an appeal. In 

the absence of evidence to the contrary, notice given pursuant to G.S. 
160D-403(b) by first-class mail is deemed received on the third business 

day following deposit of the notice for mailing with the United States Postal 
Service. 

Section 4.  Record of Decision. 

The official who made the decision shall transmit to the board all documents 

and exhibits constituting the record upon which the decision appealed from 
is taken. The official shall also provide a copy of the record to the appellant 

and to the owner of the property that is the subject of the appeal if the 
appellant is not the owner.  

Section 5.  Stays. 

An appeal of a notice of violation or other enforcement order stays 

enforcement of the action appealed from including any accumulation of 

fines, during the pendency of the appeal to the board of adjustment and any 
subsequent appeal in accordance with G.S. 160D-1402 or during the 

pendency of any civil proceeding authorized by law, or appeals therefrom, 
unless the official who made the decision certifies to the board after notice of 

appeal has been filed that, because of the facts stated in an affidavit, a stay 
would cause imminent peril to life or property or, because the violation is 

transitory in nature, a stay would seriously interfere with enforcement of the 

042021 BCC Meeting

45



12 

 

development regulation. In that case, enforcement proceedings shall not be 
stayed except by a restraining order, which may be granted by a court. If 

enforcement proceedings are not stayed, the appellant may file with the 
official a request for an expedited hearing of the appeal, and the board shall 

meet to hear the appeal within 15 days after such a request is filed. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, appeals of decisions 

granting a development approval or otherwise affirming that a proposed use 
of property is consistent with the development regulation does not stay the 

further review of an application for development approvals to use such 
property; in these situations, the appellant or local government may request 

and the board may grant a stay of a final decision of development approval 
applications, including building permits affected by the issue being appealed. 

Section 6.  Alternative Dispute Resolution. 

The parties to an appeal that has been made under this section may agree 

to mediation or other forms of alternative dispute resolution. The 

development regulation may set standards and procedures to facilitate and 
manage such voluntary alternative dispute resolution. (2019-111, s. 2.4.) 

Section 7.  No Estoppel. 

N.C.G.S. 160D-1403.2, limiting a local government’s use of the defense of 

estoppel, applies to proceedings under this Section. 
 

Article VIII  Special Use Permits 
 

(A) An application for a special use permit shall be submitted to the 
Board of Adjustment by filing a copy of the application with the 

Clerk to the Board. 
(B) Subject to subsection (C), the Board of Adjustment shall issue the 

requested permit unless it concludes, based upon the information 
submitted at the hearing, that:  

(1) The requested permit is not within its jurisdiction according to 

the district regulations pertaining to uses, or  
(2) The application is incomplete, or  

(3) If completed as proposed in the application, the development 
will not comply with one or more requirements of the subject 

regulation. 
(C) Even if the Board finds that the application complies with all other 

provisions of this chapter, it may still deny the permit if it 
concludes, based upon the information submitted at the hearing, 

that if completed as proposed, the development, more probably 
than not: 

(1) Will materially endanger the public health or safety, or  

042021 BCC Meeting

46



13 

 

(2) Will substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property, or 

(3) Will not be in harmony with the area in which it is to be 
located, or 

(4) Will not be in general conformity with the land-use plan, 
thoroughfare plan, or other plan officially adopted by the 

Board of Commissioners. 
(D) The Board shall consider whether the application is complete. If the 

Board concludes that the application is incomplete and the applicant 
refuses to provide the necessary information, the application shall 

be denied. A motion to this effect shall specify either the particular 
type of information lacking or the particular requirement with 

respect to which the application if incomplete. A motion to this 
effect, concurred in by a majority of the Board, shall constitute the 

Board’s finding on this issue. If a motion to this effect is not made 

and concurred in by a majority of members, this shall be taken as 
an affirmative finding by the Board that the application is complete.  

(E) The Board shall consider whether the application complies with all 
of the applicable requirements of the subject regulation. If a motion 

to this effect passes by a majority of members, the Board need not 
make further findings concerning such requirements. If such a 

motion fails to receive the majority vote or is not made, then a 
motion shall be made that the application be found not in 

compliance with one or more requirements of the ordinance. Such a 
motion shall specify the particular requirements the application fails 

to meet. A separate vote may be taken with respect to each 
requirement not met by the application. It shall be conclusively 

presumed that the application complies with all requirements not 
found by the Board to be unsatisfied through this process. As 

provided in subsection (C) if the Board concludes that the 

application fails to meet one or more of the requirements of this 
section, the application shall be denied.  

(F) If the Board concludes that all such requirements are met, it shall 
issue the permit unless it adopts a motion to deny the application 

for one or more of the reasons set forth in subsection (C). Such 
motion shall propose specific findings, based upon the evidence 

submitted, justifying such a conclusion and is carried by a simple 
majority vote.   

(G) Subject to subsection (H), in granting a special use permit, the 
Board of Adjustment may attach to the permit such reasonable 

requirements in addition to those specified in this chapter as will 
ensure that the development in its proposed location: 

(1) Will not endanger the public health or safety, 
(2) Will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property, 

042021 BCC Meeting

47



14 

 

(3) Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located, and 
(4) Will be in conformity with the land-use plan, thoroughfare 

plan, or other plan officially adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners. 

(H) The board may not attach additional conditions that modify or alter 
the specific requirements set forth in this ordinance unless the 

development in question presents extraordinary circumstances that 
justify the variation from the specified requirements.  

The board may not impose conditions that the County does not 
otherwise have statutory authority to impose unless agreed to in 

writing by the applicant. 
(I) Without limiting the foregoing, the board may attach to a permit a 

condition limiting the permit to a specified duration.  
(J) All additional conditions or requirements shall be entered on the 

permit, and consented to in writing by the applicant. 

(K) All additional conditions or requirements authorized by this Section 
are enforceable in the same manner and to the same extent as any 

other applicable requirements of the subject Ordinance.  
(L) A vote may be taken on application conditions or requirements 

before consideration of whether the permit should be denied for any 
of the reasons set forth in Subsections (B) or (C).  

 

Article IX  Appeals of Board Actions 

Every decision of the Board shall be subject to review at the instance of any 
aggrieved party by the Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of 

certiorari.  The appeal to Superior Court must be filed within 30 days of the 
filing by the Board Clerk of the decision in the office of the Department of 

Planning & Inspections or the delivery of the notice required in Article III, 
Section 4, whichever is later. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

48



15 

 

CHAPTER 4   PROCEDURE FOR ADOPTING, AMENDING, OR 
REPEALING DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. 

 

Article I  Hearing with Published Notice 

Before adopting, amending, or repealing any development regulation 

authorized by NCGS 160D, the Board of Commissioners shall hold a 

legislative hearing. A notice of the hearing shall be given once a week for 

two successive calendar weeks in a newspaper having general circulation in 

the area. The notice shall be published the first time not less than 10 days 

nor more than 25 days before the date scheduled for the hearing. In 

computing such period, the day of publication is not to be included but the 

day of the hearing shall be included. 

Article II  Notice of Hearing on Proposed Zoning Map Amendments 

(A) Mailed Notice. –The owners of affected parcels of land and the 

owners of all parcels of land abutting that parcel of land shall be 

mailed a notice of the hearing on a proposed zoning map 

amendment by first-class mail at the last addresses listed for such 

owners on the county tax abstracts. For the purpose of this section, 

properties are "abutting" even if separated by a street, railroad, or 

other transportation corridor. This notice must be deposited in the 

mail at least 10 but not more than 25 days prior to the date of the 

hearing.  

(B) Optional Notice for Large-Scale Zoning Map Amendments. – The 

first-class mail notice required under subsection (A) of this section 

is not required if the zoning map amendment proposes to change 

the zoning designation of more than 50 properties, owned by at 

least 50 different property owners, and the ordinance administrator 

elects to use the expanded published notice provided for in this 

subsection. In this instance, a local government may elect to make 

the mailed notice provided for in subsection (A) of this section or, 

as an alternative, elect to publish notice of the hearing as required 

by G.S. 160D-601, provided that each advertisement shall not be 

less than one-half of a newspaper page in size. The advertisement 

is only effective only for property owners who reside in the area of 

general circulation of the newspaper that publishes the notice. 

Property owners who reside outside of the newspaper circulation 

042021 BCC Meeting

49



16 

 

area, according to the address listed on the most recent property 

tax listing for the affected property, shall be notified according to 

the provisions of subsection (A) of this section.  

(C) Posted Notice. – When a zoning map amendment is proposed, the 

County shall prominently post a notice of the hearing on the site 

proposed for the amendment or on an adjacent public street or 

highway right-of-way. The notice shall be posted within the same 

time period specified for mailed notices of the hearing. When 

multiple parcels are included within a proposed zoning map 

amendment, a posting on each individual parcel is not required but 

the County shall post sufficient notices to provide reasonable notice 

to interested persons. 

Article III  Citizen Comments  

If any resident or property owner submits a written statement regarding a 
proposed amendment, modification, or repeal to a development regulation, 

including a text or map amendment, that has been properly initiated as 
provided in N.C.G.S. 160D-601, to the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

at least two business days prior to the proposed vote on such change, the 

Clerk to the Board shall deliver such written statement to the Board.  

Article IV  Amendments 

Subsequent to initial adoption of a development regulation, all proposed 

amendments to the regulation or map shall be submitted to the Planning 

Board for review and comment. If no written report is received from the 

Planning Board within 30 days of referral of the amendment to that board, 

the Board of Commissioners may act on the amendment without the 

Planning Board report. The Board of Commissioners is not bound by the 

recommendations, if any, of the Planning Board. Proposed amendments to 

the zoning regulations or maps for the Foscoe Grandfather Community and 

Valle Crucis Historic District shall be submitted to the Community Councils, if 

active, for those communities respectively, under the same conditions as 

referral to the Planning Board. 

Article V  Down-Zoning 

No amendment to zoning regulations or a zoning map that down-zones 

property shall be initiated nor shall it be enforceable without the written 

consent of all property owners whose property is the subject of the down-

zoning amendment, unless the down-zoning amendment is initiated by the 

042021 BCC Meeting

50



17 

 

county. For purposes of this section, "down-zoning" means a zoning 

ordinance that affects an area of land in one of the following ways: 

(A) By decreasing the development density of the land to be less dense 

than was allowed under its previous usage.  

(B) By reducing the permitted uses of the land that are specified in a 

zoning ordinance or land development regulation to fewer uses than 

were allowed under its previous usage.  

Article VI  Plan Consistency 

When conducting a review of proposed zoning text or map amendments 

pursuant to this section, the Planning Board shall advise and comment on 

whether the proposed action is consistent with any comprehensive plan that 

has been adopted and any other officially adopted plan that is applicable. 

The Planning Board shall provide a written recommendation to the Board of 

Commissioners that addresses plan consistency and other matters as 

deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a comment by the Planning 

Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the comprehensive 

plan shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 

amendment by the Board of Commissioners. If a zoning map amendment 

qualifies as a "large-scale rezoning" under G.S. 160D-602(b), the Planning 

Board statement describing plan consistency may address the overall 

rezoning and describe how the analysis and policies in the relevant adopted 

plans were considered in the recommendation made. 

Article VII  Statement of Board of Commissioners 
 

(A) Plan Consistency. – When adopting or rejecting any zoning text or 

map amendment, the Board of Commissioners shall approve a brief 

statement describing whether its action is consistent or inconsistent 

with an adopted comprehensive plan. The requirement for a plan 

consistency statement may also be met by a clear indication in the 

minutes of the Board that at the time of action on the amendment 

the Board was aware of and considered the Planning Board's (and 

Community Council’s if applicable) recommendations and any 

relevant portions of an adopted comprehensive plan. If a zoning 

map amendment is adopted and the action was deemed 

inconsistent with the adopted plan, the zoning amendment shall 

have the effect of also amending any future land-use map in the 

042021 BCC Meeting

51



18 

 

approved plan, and no additional request or application for a plan 

amendment shall be required. A plan amendment and a zoning 

amendment may be considered concurrently. The plan consistency 

statement is not subject to judicial review. If a zoning map 

amendment qualifies as a "large-scale rezoning" under G.S. 160D-

602(b), the Board of Commissioners’ statement describing plan 

consistency may address the overall rezoning and describe how the 

analysis and policies in the relevant adopted plans were considered 

in the action taken.  

(B) Additional Reasonableness Statement for Rezonings. – When 

adopting or rejecting any petition for a zoning map amendment, a 

statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning 

shall be approved by the Board of Commissioners. This statement 

of reasonableness may consider, among other factors, (i) the size, 

physical conditions, and other attributes of the area proposed to be 

rezoned, (ii) the benefits and detriments to the landowners, the 

neighbors, and the surrounding community, (iii) the relationship 

between the current actual and permissible development on the 

tract and adjoining areas and the development that would be 

permissible under the proposed amendment; (iv) why the action 

taken is in the public interest; and (v) any changed conditions 

warranting the amendment. If a zoning map amendment qualifies 

as a "large-scale rezoning" under G.S. 160D-602(b), the Board’s 

statement on reasonableness may address the overall rezoning.  

(C) Single Statement Permissible. – The statement of reasonableness 

and the plan consistency statement required by this section may be 

approved as a single statement. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

52



19 

 

CHAPTER 5     MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Article I  Conflict with Other Laws 

Wherever the regulations made under authority of any chapter of this 

ordinance require a greater width or size or yards, or courts, or require a 
lower height of building or less number of stories, or require a greater 

percentage of lots to be left unoccupied or impose other higher standards 

than that required in any other chapter, the more restrictive provisions shall 
govern.   

Article II  Notices of Violation 

When the Ordinance Administrator determines work or activity has been 

undertaken in violation of a development regulation adopted pursuant to this 
ordinance or other local development regulation or any State law delegated 

to Watauga County for enforcement purposes in lieu of the State including 
but not limited to the NC Building and Residential Codes (NCGS 160D, Article 

11), or in violation of the terms of a development approval, a written notice 
of violation may be issued. The notice of violation shall be delivered to the 

holder of the development approval and to the landowner of the property 
involved, if the landowner is not the holder of the development approval, by 

personal delivery, electronic delivery, or first-class mail and may be provided 
by similar means to the occupant of the property or the person undertaking 

the work or activity. The notice of violation may be posted on the property. 

The person providing the notice of violation shall certify to the local 
government that the notice was provided, and the certificate shall be 

deemed conclusive in the absence of fraud. Except as provided by G.S. 
160D-1123 or G.S. 160D-1206 or otherwise provided by law, a notice of 

violation may be appealed to the board of adjustment pursuant to G.S. 
160D-405.  

Article III  Stop Work Orders 

Whenever any work or activity subject to regulation pursuant to this 

ordinance or other applicable local development regulation or any State law 
delegated to the County for enforcement purposes in lieu of the State is 

undertaken in substantial violation of any State or local law, or in a manner 
that endangers life or property, staff may order the specific part of the work 

or activity that is in violation or presents such a hazard to be immediately 
stopped. The order shall be in writing, directed to the person doing the work 

or activity, and shall state the specific work or activity to be stopped, the 

reasons therefor, and the conditions under which the work or activity may 
be resumed. A copy of the order shall be delivered to the holder of the 

development approval and to the owner of the property involved (if that 
person is not the holder of the development approval) by personal delivery, 

042021 BCC Meeting

53



20 

 

electronic delivery, or first-class mail. The person or persons delivering the 
stop work order shall certify to the local government that the order was 

delivered and that certificate shall be deemed conclusive in the absence of 
fraud. Except as provided by G.S. 160D-1112 and G.S. 160D-1208, a stop 

work order may be appealed pursuant to G.S. 160D-405. No further work or 
activity shall take place in violation of a stop work order pending a ruling on 

the appeal. Violation of a stop work order shall constitute a Class 1 
misdemeanor.  

Article IV  Remedies 

Subject to the provisions of the development regulation, any development 

regulation adopted pursuant to authority conferred by N.C.G.S. 153A-121 or 
N.C.G.S. 160D, or any State law delegated to the County for enforcement 

purposes in lieu of the State may be enforced by any remedy provided by 
N.C.G.S. 160A-175 or N.C.G.S. 153A-123. If a building or structure is 

erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, repaired, converted, or 

maintained, or any building, structure, or land is used or developed in 
violation of any development regulation or other regulation made under 

authority of the cited statutes, the County, in addition to other remedies, 
may institute any appropriate action or proceedings to prevent the unlawful 

erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair, conversion, 
maintenance, use, or development; to restrain, correct or abate the 

violation; to prevent occupancy of the building, structure, or land; or to 
prevent any illegal act, conduct, business, or use in or about the premises.  

 
Article V  Penalties 

Any person, firm or corporation who violates any provision of any article of 
this ordinance, or NCGS 160D, Article 11; or who shall violate or fail to 

comply with any order made there under; or who shall continue to work 
upon any structure after having received written notice from the Ordinance 

Administrator or Building Inspector to cease work, shall, upon conviction, be 

guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed fifty 
($50.00) dollars, or imprisonment not to exceed thirty days.  Each day such 

violation shall be permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  
Notice of violation shall be sufficient if directed to the owner, the agent of 

the owner, or the contractor and left as his known place of residence or 
place of business.  In lieu of or in addition to the criminal penalties outlined 

above, a person violating this ordinance may be subject to a civil penalty, 
under N.C.G.S. 153A-123(c), in the discretion of the Board of County 

Commissioners, not to exceed $100.00.  No penalty shall be assessed prior 
to notice to the violator.  For every day a violator is in violation of this 

ordinance, it may be considered a separate offense.  If the violator does not 

042021 BCC Meeting

54



21 

 

pay such penalty within 30 days of notification of its assessment by written 
citation it may be recovered by the County in a civil action in the nature of a 

dept.  The violator may contest said penalty in the court of appropriate 
jurisdiction. 

 
Article VI  Additional Remedies and Penalties for Soil Erosion and 

Sedimentation 

Additional remedies and penalties are set forth in Chapter 8, Soil Erosion and 

Sedimentation Control for violations of that chapter. 
 

Article VII  Severability Clause 

Should any section or provisions of this code be declared by the courts to be 

unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of this 
code as a whole, or any part thereof other than the part so declared to be 

unconstitutional or invalid 

 
Article VIII  Development Approvals 

To the extent consistent with the scope of regulatory authority granted by 
this ordinance, no person shall commence or proceed with development 

without first securing any required development approval from the County. A 
development approval shall be in writing and may contain a provision that 

the development shall comply with all applicable State and local laws. The 
County may issue development approvals in print or electronic form. Any 

development approval issued exclusively in electronic form shall be 
protected from further editing once issued. Applications for development 

approvals may be made by the landowner, a lessee or person holding an 
option or contract to purchase or lease land, or an authorized agent of the 

landowner. An easement holder may also apply for development approval for 
such development as is authorized by the easement. 

 

Article IX  Duration of Development Approval 

Unless a different period is specified by this ordinance or other specific 

applicable law, including for a development agreement, or a local ordinance, 
a development approval issued pursuant to this ordinance expires one year 

after the date of issuance if the work authorized by the development 
approval has not been substantially commenced. Local development 

regulations may provide for development approvals of shorter duration for 
temporary land uses, special events, temporary signs, and similar 

development. Nothing in this subsection limits any vested rights secured 
under N.C.G.S. 160D-108 or 108.1. To secure such vested rights, an 

applicant may request approval of a site-specific development plan for any 

042021 BCC Meeting

55



22 

 

project that is to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Board or Board 
of Adjustment. 

Article X  Inspections 

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160D-403(e) the Ordinance Administrator may inspect 

work undertaken pursuant to a development approval to assure that the 
work is being done in accordance with applicable State and local laws and of 

the terms of the approval. In exercising this power, staff are authorized to 
enter any premises within the jurisdiction of the County at all reasonable 

hours for the purposes of inspection or other enforcement action, upon 
presentation of proper credentials; provided, however, that the appropriate 

consent has been given for inspection of areas not open to the public or that 
an appropriate inspection warrant has been secured. Pursuant to N.C.G.S 

160D-402(b), the Ordinance Administrator may inspect premises at all 
reasonable hours for which ordinance violations are suspected, upon 

presentation of proper credentials. 

 
Article XI  Revocation of Development Approvals 

In addition to initiation of enforcement actions under N.C.G.S. 160D-404, 
development approvals may be revoked by the County by notifying the 

holder in writing stating the reason for the revocation. The County shall 
follow the same development review and approval process required for 

issuance of the development approval, including any required notice or 
hearing, in the review and approval of any revocation of that approval. 

Development approvals shall be revoked for any substantial departure from 
the approved application, plans, or specifications; for refusal or failure to 

comply with the requirements of any applicable local development regulation 
or any State law delegated to the County for enforcement purposes in lieu of 

the State; or for false statements or misrepresentations made in securing 
the approval. Any development approval mistakenly issued in violation of an 

applicable State or local law may also be revoked. The revocation of a 

development approval by a staff member may be appealed pursuant to G.S. 
160D-405. If an appeal is filed regarding a development regulation adopted 

by the County pursuant to N.C.G.S 153A-121 or N.C.G.S 160D, the 
provisions of G.S. 160D-405(e) regarding stays apply. 

 
Article XII  Development approvals run with the land 

Unless provided otherwise by law, all rights, privileges, benefits, burdens, 
and obligations created by development approvals made pursuant to this 

ordinance attach to and run with the land. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

56



23 

 

Article XIII  Minor modifications 

Modifications of special use permits and conditional zoning that may be 

reviewed and approved by the Ordinance Administrator. Such modifications 
include changes to: building locations, landscaping, parking locations, 

grading, storm water, lighting, road/street names, development names, 
provided no violation or waiver of ordinance provisions is approved. Minor 

modifications shall not include change of use (except in mix of residential 
types), increase in development density, set back encroachments, or 

reduction of road/street right-of-way. 
 

Article XIV  Conditional Districts 

Property may be placed in a conditional district only in response to a petition 

by all owners of the property to be included. Specific conditions may be 
proposed by the petitioner or the local government or its agencies, but only 

those conditions mutually approved by the local government and the 

petitioner may be incorporated into the zoning regulations. Conditions and 
site-specific standards imposed in a conditional district shall be limited to 

those that address the conformance of the development and use of the site 
to local government ordinances, plans adopted pursuant to G.S. 160D-501, 

or the impacts reasonably expected to be generated by the development or 
use of the site. The zoning regulation may provide that defined minor 

modifications in conditional district standards that do not involve a change in 
uses permitted or the density of overall development permitted may be 

reviewed and approved administratively. Any other modification of the 
conditions and standards in a conditional district shall follow the same 

process for approval as are applicable to zoning map amendments. If 
multiple parcels of land are subject to a conditional zoning, the owners of 

individual parcels may apply for modification of the conditions so long as the 
modification would not result in other properties failing to meet the terms of 

the conditions. Any modifications approved shall only be applicable to those 

properties whose owners petition for the modification. The applicant’s 
written consent is required for conditions not authorized by otherwise 

applicable law, including, without limitation, taxes, impact fees, building 
design elements within the scope of N.C.G.S 160D-702, driveway-related 

improvements in excess of those allowed in N.C.G.S. 136-18(29), or other 
unauthorized limitations on the development or use of land. 

 
Article XV  Determinations 

The officer making the determination shall give written notice to the owner 
of the property that is the subject of the determination and to the party who 

sought the determination, if different from the owner. The written notice 

042021 BCC Meeting

57



24 

 

shall be delivered by personal delivery, electronic mail, or by first-class mail. 
The notice shall be delivered to the last address listed for the owner of the 

affected property on the county tax abstract and to the address provided in 
the application or request for a determination if the party seeking the 

determination is different from the owner.  
 

Article XVI   Optional posting of signs by owner 

It is conclusively presumed that all persons with standing to appeal have 

constructive notice of the determination from the date a sign providing 
notice that a determination has been made is prominently posted on the 

property that is the subject of the determination, provided the sign remains 
on the property for at least 10 days. The sign shall contain the words 

"Zoning Decision" or "Subdivision Decision" or similar language for other 
determinations in letters at least 6 inches high and shall identify the means 

to contact a local government staff member for information about the 

determination. Posting of signs is not the only form of constructive notice. 
Any such posting is the responsibility of the landowner, applicant, or person 

who sought the determination. Verification of the posting shall be provided 
to the staff member responsible for the determination. Posting of signs shall 

not be required by the Ordinance Administrator. 
 

Article XVII  Word Interpretation 

For the purpose of this ordinance, certain words shall be interpreted as 

follows:  

Words in the present tense include the future tense.  

Words used in the singular number include the plural, and words used in the 
plural number include the singular, unless the natural construction of the 

wording indicates otherwise. 
The word "person" includes a firm, association, corporation, trust, and 

company as well as an individual.  
The word "structure" shall include the word "building." 

The word "lot" shall include the words, "plot," "parcel," or "tract." 
The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory.  

The word "will" is always mandatory and not merely directory. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

58



25 

 

CHAPTER 6   STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

The following provisions are found in the North Carolina General Statutes 

and are adopted by reference and incorporated in this code as currently set 

forth and as amended in the future. Copies of the current versions are 

included here for ease of review. 

Permit Choice and Vested Rights: NCGS 160D-108 & 108.1 

Conflicts of Interest: NCGS 160D-109 

Split Jurisdiction: NCGS 160D-203 

Agricultural Uses: NCGS 160D-903 

 

§ 160D-108.  Permit choice and vested rights. 

(a)      Findings. - The General Assembly recognizes that local 
government approval of development typically follows significant investment 

in site evaluation, planning, development costs, consultant fees, and related 
expenses. The General Assembly finds that it is necessary and desirable to 

provide for the establishment of certain vested rights in order to ensure 
reasonable certainty, stability, and fairness in the development regulation 

process, to secure the reasonable expectations of landowners, and to foster 
cooperation between the public and private sectors in land-use planning and 

development regulation. The provisions of this section and G.S. 160D-108.1 

strike an appropriate balance between private expectations and the public 
interest. 

(b)        Permit Choice. - If a land development regulation is amended 
between the time a development permit application was submitted and a 

development permit decision is made or if a land development regulation is 
amended after a development permit decision has been challenged and 

found to be wrongfully denied or illegal, G.S. 143-755 applies. 
(c)        Vested Rights. - Amendments in land development regulations 

are not applicable or enforceable without the written consent of the owner 
with regard to any of the following: 

(1)    Buildings or uses of buildings or land for which a development 
permit application has been submitted and subsequently 

issued in accordance with G.S. 143-755. 
(2)   Subdivisions of land for which a development permit 

application authorizing the subdivision has been submitted 

and subsequently issued in accordance with G.S. 143-755. 
(3)   A site-specific vesting plan pursuant to G.S. 160D-108.1. 

042021 BCC Meeting

59



26 

 

(4)    A multi-phased development pursuant to subsection (f) of this 
section. 

(5)   A vested right established by the terms of a development 
agreement authorized by Article 10 of this Chapter. 

The establishment of a vested right under any subdivision of this 
subsection does not preclude vesting under one or more other subdivisions 

of this subsection or vesting by application of common law principles. A 
vested right, once established as provided for in this section or by common 

law, precludes any action by a local government that would change, alter, 
impair, prevent, diminish, or otherwise delay the development or use of the 

property allowed by the applicable land development regulation or 
regulations, except where a change in State or federal law mandating local 

government enforcement occurs after the development application is 
submitted that has a fundamental and retroactive effect on the development 

or use. 

(d)       Duration of Vesting. - Upon issuance of a development permit, 
the statutory vesting granted by subsection (c) of this section for a 

development project is effective upon filing of the application in accordance 
with G.S. 143-755, for so long as the permit remains valid pursuant to law. 

Unless otherwise specified by this section or other statute, local development 
permits expire one year after issuance unless work authorized by the permit 

has substantially commenced. A local land development regulation may 
provide for a longer permit expiration period. For the purposes of this 

section, a permit is issued either in the ordinary course of business of the 
applicable governmental agency or by the applicable governmental agency 

as a court directive. 
Except where a longer vesting period is provided by statute or land 

development regulation, the statutory vesting granted by this section, once 
established, expires for an uncompleted development project if development 

work is intentionally and voluntarily discontinued for a period of not less 

than 24 consecutive months, and the statutory vesting period granted by 
this section for a nonconforming use of property expires if the use is 

intentionally and voluntarily discontinued for a period of not less than 24 
consecutive months. The 24-month discontinuance period is automatically 

tolled during the pendency of any board of adjustment proceeding or civil 
action in a State or federal trial or appellate court regarding the validity of a 

development permit, the use of the property, or the existence of the 
statutory vesting period granted by this section. The 24-month 

discontinuance period is also tolled during the pendency of any litigation 
involving the development project or property that is the subject of the 

vesting. 
(e)        Multiple Permits for Development Project. - Subject to subsection 

(d) of this section, where multiple local development permits are required to 
complete a development project, the development permit applicant may 

042021 BCC Meeting

60



27 

 

choose the version of each of the local land development regulations 
applicable to the project upon submittal of the application for the initial 

development permit. This provision is applicable only for those subsequent 
development permit applications filed within 18 months of the date following 

the approval of an initial permit. For purposes of the vesting protections of 
this subsection, an erosion and sedimentation control permit or a sign permit 

is not an initial development permit. 
(f)        Multi-Phased Development. - A multi-phased development is 

vested for the entire development with the land development regulations 
then in place at the time a site plan approval is granted for the initial phase 

of the multi-phased development. A right which has been vested as provided 
for in this subsection remains vested for a period of seven years from the 

time a site plan approval is granted for the initial phase of the multi-phased 
development. 

(g)        Continuing Review. - Following issuance of a development 

permit, a local government may make subsequent inspections and reviews 
to ensure compliance with the applicable land development regulations in 

effect at the time of the original application. 
(h)        Process to Claim Vested Right. - A person claiming a statutory or 

common law vested right may submit information to substantiate that claim 
to the zoning administrator or other officer designated by a land 

development regulation, who shall make an initial determination as to the 
existence of the vested right. The decision of the zoning administrator or 

officer may be appealed under G.S. 160D-405. On appeal, the existence of a 
vested right shall be reviewed de novo. In lieu of seeking such a 

determination or pursuing an appeal under G.S. 160D-405, a person 
claiming a vested right may bring an original civil action as provided by 

G.S. 160D-1403.1. 
(i)         Miscellaneous Provisions. - The vested rights granted by this 

section run with the land except for the use of land for outdoor advertising 

governed by G.S. 136-131.1 and G.S. 136-131.2 in which case the rights 
granted by this section run with the owner of a permit issued by the North 

Carolina Department of Transportation. Nothing in this section precludes 
judicial determination, based on common law principles or other statutory 

provisions, that a vested right exists in a particular case or that a 
compensable taking has occurred. Except as expressly provided in this 

section, nothing in this section shall be construed to alter the existing 
common law. 

(j)   [Definitions. -] As used in this section, the following definitions 
apply: 

(1)    Development. - As defined in G.S. 143-755(e)(1). 
(2)    Development permit. - As defined in G.S. 143-755(e)(2). 

(3)   Land development regulation. - As defined in G.S. 143-
755(e)(3). 

042021 BCC Meeting

61



28 

 

(4)  Multi-phased development. - A development containing 25 
acres or more that is both of the following: 

a.     Submitted for development permit approval to occur in 
more than one phase. 

b.     Subject to a master development plan with committed 
elements showing the type and intensity of use of each 

phase.  (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-
25, ss. 5(a), 50(b), 51(a), (b), (d).) 

 
§ 160D-108.1.  Vested rights - site-specific vesting plans. 

(a)        Site-Specific Vesting Plan. - A site-specific vesting plan consists 
of a plan submitted to a local government in which the applicant requests 

vesting pursuant to this section, describing with reasonable certainty on the 
plan the type and intensity of use for a specific parcel or parcels of property. 

The plan may be in the form of, but not be limited to, any of the following 

plans or approvals: a planned unit development plan, a subdivision plat, a 
preliminary or general development plan, a special use permit, a conditional 

district zoning plan, or any other land-use approval designation as may be 
utilized by a local government. Unless otherwise expressly provided by the 

local government, the plan shall include the approximate boundaries of the 
site; significant topographical and other natural features affecting 

development of the site; the approximate location on the site of the 
proposed buildings, structures, and other improvements; the approximate 

dimensions, including height, of the proposed buildings and other structures; 
and the approximate location of all existing and proposed infrastructure on 

the site, including water, sewer, roads, and pedestrian walkways. What 
constitutes a site-specific vesting plan under this section that would trigger a 

vested right shall be finally determined by the local government pursuant to 
a development regulation, and the document that triggers the vesting shall 

be so identified at the time of its approval. A variance does not constitute a 

site-specific vesting plan, and approval of a site-specific vesting plan with 
the condition that a variance be obtained does not confer a vested right 

unless and until the necessary variance is obtained. If a sketch plan or other 
document fails to describe with reasonable certainty the type and intensity 

of use for a specified parcel or parcels of property, it may not constitute a 
site-specific vesting plan. 

(b)        Establishment of Vested Right. - A vested right is established 
with respect to any property upon the valid approval, or conditional 

approval, of a site-specific vesting plan as provided in this section. Such a 
vested right confers upon the landowner the right to undertake and 

complete the development and use of the property under the terms and 
conditions of the site-specific vesting plan, including any amendments 

thereto. 

042021 BCC Meeting

62



29 

 

(c)        Approval and Amendment of Plans. - If a site-specific vesting 
plan is based on an approval required by a local development regulation, the 

local government shall provide whatever notice and hearing is required for 
that underlying approval. A duration of the underlying approval that is less 

than two years does not affect the duration of the site-specific vesting plan 
established under this section. If the site-specific vesting plan is not based 

on such an approval, a legislative hearing with notice as required by 
G.S. 160D-602 shall be held. 

A local government may approve a site-specific vesting plan upon any 
terms and conditions that may reasonably be necessary to protect the public 

health, safety, and welfare. Conditional approval results in a vested right, 
although failure to abide by the terms and conditions of the approval will 

result in a forfeiture of vested rights. A local government shall not require a 
landowner to waive the landowner's vested rights as a condition of 

developmental approval. A site-specific vesting plan is deemed approved 

upon the effective date of the local government's decision approving the plan 
or another date determined by the governing board upon approval. An 

approved site-specific vesting plan and its conditions may be amended with 
the approval of the owner and the local government as follows: any 

substantial modification must be reviewed and approved in the same 
manner as the original approval; minor modifications may be approved by 

staff, if such are defined and authorized by local regulation. 
(d)       Continuing Review. - Following approval or conditional approval of 

a site-specific vesting plan, a local government may make subsequent 
reviews and require subsequent approvals by the local government to 

ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the original approval, 
provided that these reviews and approvals are not inconsistent with the 

original approval. The local government may, pursuant to G.S. 160D-403(f), 
revoke the original approval for failure to comply with applicable terms and 

conditions of the original approval or the applicable local development 

regulations. 
(e)        Duration and Termination of Vested Right. - 

(1)    A vested right for a site-specific vesting plan remains vested 
for a period of two years. This vesting shall not be extended 

by any amendments or modifications to a site-specific vesting 
plan unless expressly provided by the local government. 

(2)  Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision (1) of this 
subsection, a local government may provide for rights to be 

vested for a period exceeding two years but not exceeding 
five years where warranted in light of all relevant 

circumstances, including, but not limited to, the size and 
phasing of development, the level of investment, the need for 

the development, economic cycles, and market conditions or 
other considerations. These determinations are in the sound 

042021 BCC Meeting

63



30 

 

discretion of the local government and shall be made 
following the process specified for the particular form of a 

site-specific vesting plan involved in accordance with 
subsection (a) of this section. 

(3)  Upon issuance of a building permit, the provisions of 
G.S. 160D-1111 and G.S. 160D-1115 apply, except that a 

permit does not expire and shall not be revoked because of 
the running of time while a vested right under this section is 

outstanding. 
(4)    A right vested as provided in this section terminates at the 

end of the applicable vesting period with respect to buildings 
and uses for which no valid building permit applications have 

been filed. 
(f)        Subsequent Changes Prohibited; Exceptions. - 

(1)   A vested right, once established as provided for in this section, 

precludes any zoning action by a local government which 
would change, alter, impair, prevent, diminish, or otherwise 

delay the development or use of the property as set forth in 
an approved site-specific vesting plan, except under one or 

more of the following conditions: 
a.   With the written consent of the affected landowner. 

b.   Upon findings, by ordinance after notice and an 
evidentiary hearing, that natural or man-made hazards 

on or in the immediate vicinity of the property, if 
uncorrected, would pose a serious threat to the public 

health, safety, and welfare if the project were to 
proceed as contemplated in the site-specific vesting 

plan. 
c.   To the extent that the affected landowner receives 

compensation for all costs, expenses, and other losses 

incurred by the landowner, including, but not limited to, 
all fees paid in consideration of financing, and all 

architectural, planning, marketing, legal, and other 
consulting fees incurred after approval by the local 

government, together with interest as provided under 
G.S. 160D-106. Compensation shall not include any 

diminution in the value of the property which is caused 
by the action. 

d.   Upon findings, by ordinance after notice and an 
evidentiary hearing, that the landowner or the 

landowner's representative intentionally supplied 
inaccurate information or made material 

misrepresentations that made a difference in the 

042021 BCC Meeting

64



31 

 

approval by the local government of the site-specific 
vesting plan or the phased development plan. 

e.    Upon the enactment or promulgation of a State or 
federal law or regulation that precludes development as 

contemplated in the site-specific vesting plan or the 
phased development plan, in which case the local 

government may modify the affected provisions, upon a 
finding that the change in State or federal law has a 

fundamental effect on the plan, by ordinance after 
notice and an evidentiary hearing. 

(2)    The establishment of a vested right under this section does 
not preclude the application of overlay zoning or other 

development regulations which impose additional 
requirements but do not affect the allowable type or intensity 

of use, or ordinances or regulations which are general in 

nature and are applicable to all property subject to 
development regulation by a local government, including, but 

not limited to, building, fire, plumbing, electrical, and 
mechanical codes. Otherwise applicable new regulations 

become effective with respect to property which is subject to 
a site-specific vesting plan upon the expiration or termination 

of the vesting rights period provided for in this section. 
(3)  Notwithstanding any provision of this section, the 

establishment of a vested right does not preclude, change, or 
impair the authority of a local government to adopt and 

enforce development regulations governing nonconforming 
situations or uses. 

(g)        Miscellaneous Provisions. - 
(1)    A vested right obtained under this section is not a personal 

right, but attaches to and runs with the applicable property. 

After approval of a site-specific vesting plan, all successors to 
the original landowner are entitled to exercise these rights. 

(2)    Nothing in this section precludes judicial determination, based 
on common law principles or other statutory provisions, that a 

vested right exists in a particular case or that a compensable 
taking has occurred. Except as expressly provided in this 

section, nothing in this section shall be construed to alter the 
existing common law. 

(3)    In the event a local government fails to adopt a development 
regulation setting forth what constitutes a site-specific vesting 

plan triggering a vested right, a landowner may establish a 
vested right with respect to property upon the approval of a 

zoning permit, or otherwise may seek appropriate relief from 

042021 BCC Meeting

65



32 

 

the Superior Court Division of the General Court of 
Justice.  (2020-25, ss. 5(b), 50(b).) 

 

 § 160D-109.  Conflicts of interest. 

(a)        Governing Board. - A governing board member shall not vote on 
any legislative decision regarding a development regulation adopted 

pursuant to this Chapter where the outcome of the matter being considered 
is reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable 

financial impact on the member. A governing board member shall not vote 

on any zoning amendment if the landowner of the property subject to a 
rezoning petition or the applicant for a text amendment is a person with 

whom the member has a close familial, business, or other associational 
relationship. 

(b)        Appointed Boards. - Members of appointed boards shall not vote 
on any advisory or legislative decision regarding a development regulation 

adopted pursuant to this Chapter where the outcome of the matter being 
considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily 

identifiable financial impact on the member. An appointed board member 
shall not vote on any zoning amendment if the landowner of the property 

subject to a rezoning petition or the applicant for a text amendment is a 
person with whom the member has a close familial, business, or other 

associational relationship. 
(c)        Administrative Staff. - No staff member shall make a final 

decision on an administrative decision required by this Chapter if the 

outcome of that decision would have a direct, substantial, and readily 
identifiable financial impact on the staff member or if the applicant or other 

person subject to that decision is a person with whom the staff member has 
a close familial, business, or other associational relationship. If a staff 

member has a conflict of interest under this section, the decision shall be 
assigned to the supervisor of the staff person or such other staff person as 

may be designated by the development regulation or other ordinance. 
No staff member shall be financially interested or employed by a business 

that is financially interested in a development subject to regulation under 
this Chapter unless the staff member is the owner of the land or building 

involved. No staff member or other individual or an employee of a company 
contracting with a local government to provide staff support shall engage in 

any work that is inconsistent with his or her duties or with the interest of the 
local government, as determined by the local government. 

(d)       Quasi-Judicial Decisions. - A member of any board exercising 

quasi-judicial functions pursuant to this Chapter shall not participate in or 
vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would violate affected 

persons' constitutional rights to an impartial decision maker. Impermissible 
violations of due process include, but are not limited to, a member having a 

042021 BCC Meeting

66



33 

 

fixed opinion prior to hearing the matter that is not susceptible to change, 
undisclosed ex parte communications, a close familial, business, or other 

associational relationship with an affected person, or a financial interest in 
the outcome of the matter. 

(e)        Resolution of Objection. - If an objection is raised to a board 
member's participation at or prior to the hearing or vote on a particular 

matter and that member does not recuse himself or herself, the remaining 
members of the board shall by majority vote rule on the objection. 

(f)        Familial Relationship. - For purposes of this section, a "close 
familial relationship" means a spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, 

grandparent, or grandchild. The term includes the step, half, and in-law 
relationships.  (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), 

(d).) 

 

§ 160D-203.  Split jurisdiction. 
If a parcel of land lies within the planning and development regulation 

jurisdiction of more than one local government, for the purposes of this 
Chapter, the local governments may, by mutual agreement pursuant to 

Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes and with the written 
consent of the landowner, assign exclusive planning and development 

regulation jurisdiction under this Chapter for the entire parcel to any one of 
those local governments. Such a mutual agreement shall only be applicable 

to development regulations and shall not affect taxation or other 
nonregulatory matters. The mutual agreement shall be evidenced by a 

resolution formally adopted by each governing board and recorded with the 
register of deeds in the county where the property is located within 14 days 

of the adoption of the last required resolution.  (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 
4.33(a); 2020-25, s. 51(a), (b), (d).) 

 

§ 160D-903.  Agricultural uses. 

(a)        Bona Fide Farming Exempt From County Zoning. - County zoning 
regulations may not affect property used for bona fide farm purposes; 

provided, however, that this section does not limit zoning regulation with 
respect to the use of farm property for nonfarm purposes. Except as 

provided in G.S. 106-743.4 for farms that are subject to a conservation 
agreement under G.S. 106-743.2, bona fide farm purposes include the 

production and activities relating or incidental to the production of crops, 
grains, fruits, vegetables, ornamental and flowering plants, dairy, livestock, 

poultry, and all other forms of agriculture, as defined in G.S. 106-581.1. 
Activities incident to the farm include existing or new residences constructed 

to the applicable residential building code situated on the farm occupied by 

the owner, lessee, or operator of the farm and other buildings or structures 

042021 BCC Meeting

67



34 

 

sheltering or supporting the farm use and operation. For purposes of this 
section, "when performed on the farm" in G.S. 106-581.1(6) includes the 

farm within the jurisdiction of the county and any other farm owned or 
leased to or from others by the bona fide farm operator, no matter where 

located. For purposes of this section, the production of a nonfarm product 
that the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services recognizes as a 

"Goodness Grows in North Carolina" product that is produced on a farm 
subject to a conservation agreement under G.S. 106-743.2 is a bona fide 

farm purpose. For purposes of determining whether a property is being used 
for bona fide farm purposes, any of the following is sufficient evidence that 

the property is being used for bona fide farm purposes: 
(1)  A farm sales tax exemption certificate issued by the 

Department of Revenue. 
(2)    A copy of the property tax listing showing that the property is 

eligible for participation in the present-use value program 

pursuant to G.S. 105-277.3. 
(3)    A copy of the farm owner's or operator's Schedule F from the 

owner's or operator's most recent federal income tax return. 
(4)   A forest management plan. 

A building or structure that is used for agritourism is a bona fide farm 
purpose if the building or structure is located on a property that (i) is owned 

by a person who holds a qualifying farm sales tax exemption certificate from 
the Department of Revenue pursuant to G.S. 105-164.13E(a) or (ii) is 

enrolled in the present-use value program pursuant to G.S. 105-277.3. 
Failure to maintain the requirements of this subsection for a period of three 

years after the date the building or structure was originally classified as a 
bona fide farm purpose pursuant to this subsection subjects the building or 

structure to applicable zoning and development regulation ordinances 
adopted by a county pursuant to G.S. 160D-702 in effect on the date the 

property no longer meets the requirements of this subsection. For purposes 

of this section, "agritourism" means any activity carried out on a farm or 
ranch that allows members of the general public, for recreational, 

entertainment, or educational purposes, to view or enjoy rural activities, 
including farming, ranching, historic, cultural, harvest-your-own activities, 

hunting, fishing, equestrian activities, or natural activities and attractions. A 
building or structure used for agritourism includes any building or structure 

used for public or private events, including, but not limited to, weddings, 
receptions, meetings, demonstrations of farm activities, meals, and other 

events that are taking place on the farm because of its farm or rural setting. 
(b)        County Zoning of Residential Uses on Large Lots in Agricultural 

Districts. - A county zoning regulation shall not prohibit single-family 
detached residential uses constructed in accordance with the North Carolina 

State Building Code on lots greater than 10 acres in size and in zoning 
districts where more than fifty percent (50%) of the land is in use for 

042021 BCC Meeting

68



35 

 

agricultural or silvicultural purposes, except that this restriction does not 
apply to commercial or industrial districts where a broad variety of 

commercial or industrial uses are permissible. A zoning regulation shall not 
require that a lot greater than 10 acres in size have frontage on a public 

road or county-approved private road or be served by public water or sewer 
lines in order to be developed for single-family residential purposes. 

(c)        Agricultural Areas in Municipal Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. - 
Property that is located in a city's extraterritorial planning and development 

regulation jurisdiction and that is used for bona fide farm purposes is 
exempt from the city's zoning regulation to the same extent bona fide 

farming activities are exempt from county zoning pursuant to this section. 
As used in this subsection, "property" means a single tract of property or an 

identifiable portion of a single tract. Property that ceases to be used for bona 
fide farm purposes becomes subject to exercise of the city's extraterritorial 

planning and development regulation jurisdiction under this Chapter. For 

purposes of complying with State or federal law, property that is exempt 
from municipal zoning pursuant to this subsection is subject to the county's 

floodplain regulation or all floodplain regulation provisions of the county's 
unified development ordinance. 

(d)       Accessory Farm Buildings. - A city may provide in its zoning 
regulation that an accessory building of a "bona fide farm" has the same 

exemption from the building code as it would have under county zoning. 
(e)        City Regulations in Voluntary Agricultural Districts. - A city may 

amend the development regulations applicable within its planning and 
development regulation jurisdiction to provide flexibility to farming 

operations that are located within a city or county, voluntary agricultural 
district, or enhanced voluntary agricultural district adopted under Article 61 

of Chapter 106 of the General Statutes. Amendments to applicable 
development regulations may include provisions regarding on-farm sales, 

pick-your-own operations, road signs, agritourism, and other activities 

incident to farming.  (2019-111, s. 2.4; 2020-3, s. 4.33(a); 2020-25, ss. 22, 
51(a), (b), (d); 2020-74, s. 20.) 

  

 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

69



36 

 

CHAPTER 7   DEFINITIONS 
 

(1) Abandoned Sign - A sign which for a period of at least 180 
consecutive days or longer no longer advertises or identifies a legal 

business establishment, product or activity. 
(2) Abandonment – Cessation of use of a wireless support structure for 

wireless telecommunications activity for at least the minimum 

period of time specified under this ordinance.  
(3) Accelerated Erosion - means any increase over the rate of natural 

erosion as a result of land-disturbing activity. 
(4) Accessory Equipment - Any equipment serving or being used in 

conjunction with a wireless facility or wireless support structure. 
The term includes utility or transmission equipment, power 

supplies, generators, batteries, cables, equipment buildings, 
cabinets and storage sheds, shelters or similar structures.  

(5) Accessory Structure (Appurtenant Structure, Accessory Building) 
- means a structure located on the same parcel of property as 

the principal structure and the use of which is incidental to the 
use of the principle structures. Garages, carports and storage 

sheds are common urban accessory structures. Pole barns hay 
sheds and the like quality as accessory structures on farms and 

may or may not be located on the same parcel as the farm 

dwelling or shop building.  
(6) Accessory Use - See Chapter 10, Article V, Section 5. 

(7) Act - means the North Carolina Sedimentation Pollution Control Act 
of 1973 and all rules and orders adopted pursuant to it. 

(8) Addition (to an existing building) - means an extension or 
increase in the floor area or height of a building or structure.  

(9) Adequate Erosion Control Measure, Structure, or Device - means 
one which controls the soil material within the land area under 

responsible control of the person conducting the land-disturbing 
activity. 

(10) Administrative Approval – Approval that the Administrator or 
designee is authorized to grant after administrative review. 

(11) Administrative Decision – Decisions made in the implementation, 
administration, or enforcement of development regulations that in 

involve the determination of facts and the application of objective 

standards set forth in this Chapter or local government 
development regulations.  These are sometimes referred to as 

ministerial decisions or administrative determinations. 
(12) Administrative Hearing – A proceeding to gather facts needed to 

make an administrative decision. 

042021 BCC Meeting

70



37 

 

(13) Administrative Review – Non-discretionary evaluation of an 
application by the Administrator or designee.  The process is not 

subject to a public hearing.   
(14) Administrator - The person or persons assigned by the Board of 

Commissioners to enforce this ordinance. Aka, Ordinance 
Administrator, County Official, Zoning Administrator, Watershed 

Administrator, Planning Staff, etc. 
(15) Adult Arcade - means any place to which the public is permitted or 

invited wherein coin-operated, slug-operated, or for any form of 
consideration, or electronically, electrically, or mechanically controlled 

still or motion picture machines, projectors, video or laser disc 
players, or other image-producing devices are maintained to show 

images to five or fewer persons per machine at any one time, and 
where the images so displayed are distinguished or characterized by 

the depicting or describing of "specified sexual activities" or "specified 

anatomical areas." 
(16) Adult Bookstore - means a bookstore: 

(a) which receives a majority of its gross income during any 
calendar month from the sale or rental of publications 

(including books, magazines, other periodicals, videotapes, 
compact discs, other photographic, electronic, magnetic, 

digital, or other imaging medium)which are distinguished or 
characterized by their emphasis on matter depicting, 

describing, or relating to specified sexual activities or specified 
anatomical areas, as defined in this section; or  

(b) having as a preponderance (either in terms of the weight and 
importance of the material or in terms of greater volume of 

materials) of its publications (including books, magazines, 
other periodicals, videotapes, compact discs, other 

photographic, electronic, magnetic, digital, or other imaging 

medium) which are distinguished or characterized by their 
emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or relating to 

specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas, as 
defined in this section.  A commercial establishment may have 

other principal business purposes that do not involve the 
offering for sale or rental of material depicting or describing 

"specified sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas" and 
still be categorized as ADULT BOOKSTORE, ADULT NOVELTY 

STORE, or ADULT VIDEO STORE.  Such other business 
purposes will not serve to exempt such commercial 

establishments from being categorized as an ADULT 
BOOKSTORE, ADULT NOVELTY STORE, or ADULT VIDEO STORE 

so long as one of its principal business purposes is the offering 
for sale or rental for consideration the specified materials which 

042021 BCC Meeting

71



38 

 

are characterized by the depiction or description of "specified 
sexual activities" or "specified anatomical areas." 

(17) Adult Cabaret - means a nightclub, bar, restaurant, or similar 
commercial establishment which regularly features: 

(a) persons who appear in a state of nudity or semi-nude; or  
(b) live performances which are characterized by the exposure of 

"specified anatomical areas" or by "specified sexual activities"; 
or  

(c) films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other 
photographic reproductions which are characterized by the 

depiction or description of "specified sexual activities" or 
"specified anatomical areas." 

(18) Adult Establishment - means an adult bookstore, adult motion, 
picture theatre, adult mini motion picture theatre, adult live 

entertainment business, or massage business as defined in this 

section.  
(19) Adult Live Entertainment - means any performance of or involving 

the actual presence of real people which exhibits specified sexual 
activities or specified anatomical areas, as defined in this section. 

(20) Adult Live Entertainment Business – means any establishment or 
business wherein adult live entertainment is shown for observation by 

patrons. 
(21) Adult Mini Motion Picture Theatre -  means an enclosed building with 

viewing booths designed to hold patrons which is used for presenting 
motion pictures, a preponderance of which are distinguished or 

characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or 
relating to specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas as 

defined in this section, for observation by patrons therein. 
(22) Adult Motel - means a hotel, motel or similar commercial 

establishment which:  

(a) offers accommodations to the public for any form of 
consideration; provides patrons with closed-circuit television 

transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or 
other photographic reproductions which are characterized by 

the depiction or description of "specified sexual activities" or 
"specified anatomical areas"; and has a sign visible from the 

public right of way which advertises the availability of this adult 
type of photographic reproductions; or  

(b) offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time that is less 
than ten (10) hours; or 

(c) allows a tenant or occupant of a sleeping room to sub-rent the 
room for a period of time that is less than ten (10) hours. 

(23) Adult Motion Picture Theatre - Means enclosed adult building or 
premises used for presenting motion pictures, a preponderance of 

042021 BCC Meeting

72



39 

 

which are distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on matter 
depicting, describing, or relating to specified sexual activities or 

specified anatomical areas, as defined in this section, for observation 
by patrons therein.  “Adult motion picture theatre” does not include 

any adult mini motion picture theatre as defined in this section. 
(24) Adult Theatre - means a theatre, concert hall, auditorium, or similar 

commercial establishment which regularly features persons who 
appear in a state of nudity or semi-nude, or live performances which 

are characterized by the exposure of "specified anatomical areas" or 
by "specified sexual activities." 

(25) Affiliate – means a person that directly, or indirectly through one or 
more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common 

control of another person. 

(26) Agricultural Farm – A bona fide farm whose primary purpose is the 

production of agricultural products including but not limited to 

crops, fruits, Christmas trees, vegetables, ornamental or flowering 

plants, dairy, livestock, poultry, and all other forms of agricultural 

products having a domestic or foreign market. 

(27) Agricultural Use - The use of waters for stock watering, irrigation, 

and other farm purposes. 

(28) Alteration - Any change in copy, color, size or shape, which changes 
appearance of a sign, or a change in position, location, construction 

or supporting structure of a sign, except that a copy change on a 
sign is not an alteration. 

(29) Animated Sign - A sign which has any visible moving part, flashing 
or osculating lights, visible mechanical movement of any 

description, or other apparent visible movement achieved by any 

means that move, change, flash, osculate or visibly alters in 
appearance in a manner that is not permitted by these regulations. 

(30) Antenna - Communications equipment that transmits, receives 
or transmits and receives electromagnetic radio signals used in 

the provision of all types of wireless communications services.  
(31) Appeal - means a request for a review of the Ordinance 

Administrator’s interpretation of any provision of this ordinance.  
(32) Area of Sign - Refer to measurement standards in Chapter 16 

Article II Section 1. 
(33) Area of Special Flood Hazard” see “Special Flood Hazard Area 

(SFHA)”.  
(34) Art - An aesthetic physical item or artistic creation.  

(35) Asphalt Plant – A facility utilizing equipment that blends, dries, 

heats and mixes aggregates with asphalt cement to produce hot 

mix asphalt (HMA), including batch and drum plants.  

042021 BCC Meeting

73



40 

 

(36) Assisted Living Facility – Any group housing and services program 

for two or more unrelated adults, however named, that makes 

available, at a minimum, one meal a day and housekeeping 

services and provides personal care services directly or through a 

formal written agreement with one or more NC licensed home care 

or hospice agencies.  

(37) Attraction or Reader Board - Any sign having changeable copy for 

the purpose of advertising events, sales, services or products 
provided on the site.  

(38) Automobile Graveyard – An outdoor establishment which is used for 

storing, keeping, processing, buying or selling more than five (5) 

wrecked, abandoned, scrapped, ruined or dismantled motor 

vehicles or motor vehicle parts.    

(39) Awning Sign - Any permanent sign painted on or attached to or 
supported by an awning. 

(40) Awning - A shelter extending from the exterior wall of a building 
and composed of non-rigid materials except for the supporting 

framework. 
(41) Balloon Sign - A temporary lighter-than-air gas-filled balloon, 

tethered in a fixed location that has a sign with a message on its 
surface or attached in any manner to the balloon. 

(42) Banner Sign A temporary, lightweight sign that contains a 

message which is attached or imprinted on a flexible surface that 
deforms under light pressure and that is typically constricted of 

non-durable materials, including, but not limited to, cardboard, 
cloth and/or plastic. 

(43) Base Flood Elevation (BFE) - means a determination of the water 
surface elevations of the base flood as published in the Flood 

Insurance Study. When the BFE has not been provided in a 
“Special Flood Hazard Area”, it may be obtained from 

engineering studies available from a Federal, State, or other 
source using FEMA approved engineering methodologies. This 

elevation, when combined with the “Freeboard”, establishes the 
“Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation”.  

(44) Base Flood - means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year.  

(45) Base Station - A station at a specific site authorized to 

communicate with mobile stations, generally consisting of radio 
transceivers, antennas, coaxial cables, power supplies and other 

associated electronics.  
(46) Basement - means any area of the building having its floor 

subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.  

042021 BCC Meeting

74



41 

 

(47) Being Conducted - means a land-disturbing activity has been 
initiated and permanent stabilization of the site has not been 

completed. 
(48) Best Management Practices (BMP) - A structural or nonstructural 

management-based practice used singularly or in combination to 
reduce nonpoint source inputs to receiving waters in order to 

achieve water quality protection goals. 
(49) Bona Fide Farm Purposes – Agricultural activities as set forth in 

G.S. 160D-903. 
(50) Boarding House - A residential use consisting of at least one 

dwelling unit together with more than two rooms that are rented or 
are designed or intended to be rented but which rooms, individually 

or collectively, do not constitute separate dwelling units.  A rooming 
house or boarding house is distinguished form a tourist home in 

that the former is designed to be occupied by longer-term residents 

(at least month-to-month tenants) as opposed to overnight or 
weekly guests. 

(51) Borrow - means fill material which is required for on-site 
construction and is obtained from other locations. 

(52) Buffer Zone - means the strip of land adjacent to a lake or natural 
watercourse. 

(53) Buffer - An area of natural or planted vegetation through which 
stormwater runoff flows in a diffuse manner so that the runoff does 

not become channelized and which provides for infiltration of the 
runoff and filtering of pollutants. The buffer is measured landward 

from the normal pool elevation of impounded structures and from 
the bank of each side of streams or rivers.  

(54) Building -  Any structure having a roof supported by columns or by 
walls, and intended for shelter, housing or enclosure of persons, 

animals or property. The connection of two buildings by means of 

an open porch, breezeway, passageway, carport or other structure, 
with or without a roof, shall not be deemed to make them one 

building. 
(55) Building Identification Sign - A permanent sign containing the name 

or address of a building and may include hours of operation and 
emergency information, such sign being located on the same site as 

the structure. 
(56) Building Lines - Lines tangent to the exterior surface of a building 

and parallel to front, side and rear property lines. 
(57) Building Setback Line (Minimum) - A line parallel with the property 

line designating an area bordering the property lines on which no 
building shall be placed. 

042021 BCC Meeting

75



42 

 

(58) Building, Accessory - A minor building that is located on the same 
lot as a principal building and that is used incidentally to a principal 

building or that houses an accessory use. 
(59) Building, Principal - The primary building on a lot or a building that 

house a principal use. 
(60) Built-upon area - Built-upon areas shall include that portion of a 

development project that is covered by impervious or partially 
impervious cover including buildings, pavement, gravel roads, 

recreation facilities (e.g. tennis courts), etc.  (Note: Wooden slatted 
decks and the water area of a swimming pool are considered 

pervious). 
(61) Canopy - A freestanding permanent roof-like shelter not attached to 

or requiring support from an adjacent structure. 
(62) Canopy Sign - Any permanent sign attached to or constructed 

underneath a canopy. These signs are below a projecting structure 

which extends over the pedestrian walkway which effectively 
prevents the wall signs for being visible to the pedestrian walking 

under the canopy. See Also Projecting Sign. 
(63) Carrier on Wheels or Cell on Wheels (COW) - A portable self-

contained wireless facility that can be moved to a location and set 
up to provide wireless services on a temporary or emergency basis. 

A COW is normally vehicle-mounted and contains a telescoping 
boom as the antenna support structure.  

(64) Cement Mixing Facility – A facility utilizing equipment that 

combines materials including but not limited to sand, water, 

aggregate, ash, and cement to form concrete, including ready 

mix and central mix plants. 

(65) Certified Local Government (CLG) Program - Certified Local 

Government (CLG) Programs arc approved by the US 

Department of the Interior in cooperation with the North 

Carolina Department of Cultural Resources through the State 

Historic Preservation Officer as having met the requirements of 

the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended in 

1980.  

(66) Certify - Whenever this chapter requires that some agency certify 

the existence of some fact or circumstance to the county, the 
county may require that such certification be made in any manner 

that provides reasonable assurance of the accuracy of the 
certification.  By way of illustration, and without limiting the 

foregoing, the county may accept certification by telephone from 
some agency when the circumstances warrant it, or the county may 

042021 BCC Meeting

76



43 

 

require that the certification be in the form of a letter or other 
document. 

(67) Chemical – An element, chemical compound, a mixture of elements 

or compounds or both. 

(68) Chemical Manufacturing – A facility involved in the production, 

synthesis, formation, processing, refining, manufacturing, and/or 

distribution of chemical products in bulk. 

(69) Chemical Storage Facilities – A facility used for the storage of 

chemical compounds in bulk. 

(70) Child Care Facility – Includes child care centers, family child care 

homes, and any other child care arrangement not excluded by 

NCGS §110-86(2), that provides child care, regardless of the time 

of day, wherever operated, and whether or not operated for profit. 

(a) A child care center is an arrangement where, at any one time, 

there are three or more preschool-age children or nine or 

more school-age children receiving child care.  

(b) A family child care home is a child care arrangement located 

in a residence where, at any one time, more than two 

children, but less than nine children, receive child care.    

(71) Chip Mill – A mechanized facility that grinds whole logs into wood 

chips for paper, particle board and other products and is capable of 

producing at least 250,000 tons annually. 

(72) Cluster Development - The grouping of buildings in order to 

conserve land resources and provide for innovation in the design of 

the project. This term includes non-residential development as well 

as single-family residential subdivisions and multi- family 

developments that do not involve the subdivision of land. 

(73) Coastal Counties - means the following counties: Beaufort, Bertie, 
Brunswick, Camden, Carteret, Chowan, Craven, Currituck, Dare, 

Gates, Hertford, Hyde, New Hanover, Onslow, Pamlico, Pasquotank, 
Pender, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington. 

(74) Collocation - The placement or installation of wireless facilities on 
existing structures, including electrical transmission towers, water 

towers, buildings and other structures capable of structurally 
supporting the attachment of wireless facilities in compliance with 

applicable codes.  
(75) Combination Use - A use consisting of a combination on one lot of 

two or more principal uses.  When two or more separately owned or 

separately operated enterprises occupy the same lot, and all such 

042021 BCC Meeting

77



44 

 

enterprises fall within the same principal use classification, this shall 
not constitute a combination use. 

(76) Commercial – Used for an occupation, employment, or enterprise 

that is carried on for profit by the owner, lessee, or licensee. 

(77) Commercial or Industrial Area (re: wireless telecommunications 

regulations) – A parcel of land on which commercial or industry 

activity is actually conducted and the area along the highway 

extending outward 800 feet from and beyond such activity.  

(78) Commission - means the North Carolina Sedimentation Control 

Commission. 
(79) Completion of Construction or Development - means that no further 

land-disturbing activity is required on a phase of a project except 
that which is necessary for establishing a permanent ground cover. 

(80) Composting Facility - A facility in which only stumps, limbs, leaves, 
grass and untreated wood collected from land clearing or 

landscaping operations is deposited. 
(81) Concealed Wireless Facility - Any wireless facility that is integrated 

as an architectural feature of an existing structure or any new 

wireless support structure designed to camouflage or conceal the 
presence of antennas or towers so that the purpose of the facility or 

wireless support structure is not readily apparent to a casual 
observer.  

(82) Conditional Zoning – A legislative zoning map amendment with site-
specific conditions incorporated into the zoning map amendment. 

(83) Construction Sign - A temporary sign identifying the persons, firms 
or business directly connected with a construction project. 

(84) Convenience Store - A one-story, retail store containing less than 
2,000 square feet of gross floor area that is designed and stocked 

to sell primarily food, beverages, and other household supplies to 
customers who purchase only a relatively few items (in contrast to 

a “supermarket”).  It is designed to attract and depends upon a 
large volume of stop-and-go traffic.  Illustrative examples of 

convenience stores are those operated by the “Fast Fare”, “7-11” 

and “Pantry” chains. 
(85) Critical Area - The area adjacent to a water supply intake or 

reservoir where risk associated with pollution is greater than from 
the remaining portions of the watershed. The critical area is defined 

as extending either one-half mile from the normal pool elevation of 
the reservoir in which the intake is located or to the ridge line of the 

watershed (whichever comes first); or one- half mile upstream from 
the intake located directly in the stream or river (run-of-the-river), 

or the ridge line of the watershed (whichever comes first). Since 
WS-I watersheds are essentially undeveloped, establishment of a 

042021 BCC Meeting

78



45 

 

critical area is not required. Local governments may extend the 
critical area as needed. Major landmarks such as highways or 

property lines may be used to delineate the outer boundary of the 
critical area if these landmarks are immediately adjacent to the 

appropriate outer boundary of one-half mile. 
(86) Cul-de-sac - A short subdivision street having but one end open to 

traffic and the other end being permanently terminated and a 
vehicular turn-around provided. 

(87) Department – when used alone means the North Carolina 
Department of Environmental Quality. 

(88) Determination – A written, final, and binding order, requirement, or 
determination regarding an administrative decision. 

(89) Developer - A person, including a governmental agency or 
redevelopment authority, who undertakes any development and 

who is the landowner of the property to be developed or who has 

been authorized by the landowner to undertake development on 
that property. 

(90) Development – Unless the context clearly indicated otherwise, 
the term means any of the following: 

(a) The construction, erection, alteration, enlargement, 
renovation, substantial repair, movement to another site, 

or demolition of any structure. 
(b) The excavation, grading, filing, clearing or alteration of 

land. 
(c) The subdivision of land as defined in G.S. 160D-802. 

(d) The initiation or substantial change in the use of land or 
the intensity of us of land. 

The definition does not alter the scope of regulatory authority 
granted by this Chapter. 

(91) Development Approval – An administrative or quasi-judicial 

approval made pursuant to this Chapter that is written and that is 
required prior to commencing development or undertaking a 

specific activity, project, or development proposal.  Development 
approvals include, but are not limited to, zoning permits, site plan 

approvals, special use permits, variances, and certificates of 
appropriateness.  The term also includes all other regulatory 

approvals required by regulations adopted pursuant to this Chapter, 
including plat approvals, permits issued, development agreements 

entered into, and building permits issued. 
(92) Development regulation – A unified development ordinance, zoning 

regulation, subdivision regulation, erosion and sedimentation 
control regulation, floodplain or flood damage prevention 

regulation, mountain ridge protection regulation, stormwater 
control regulation, wireless telecommunication facility regulation, 

042021 BCC Meeting

79



46 

 

historic preservation or landmark regulation, housing code, State 
Building Code enforcement, or any other regulation adopted 

pursuant to NCGS160D, or a local act or charter that regulates land 
use or development. 

(93) Digital Billboard - A highway sign utilizing electronic image displays 
that present multiple static advertisements on a rotating basis.  

(94) Dimensional Nonconformity - A nonconforming situation that occurs 
when the height, size, or minimum floor space of a structure or the 

relationship between an existing building or buildings and other 
buildings or lot lines does not conform to the regulations applicable 

to the district in which the property is located. 
(95) Directional Sign - A temporary sign, not exceeding 4 square feet, 

used as a navigational aid to direct motorists to specific 
destination(s) for a single purpose or event open to the public.  

(96) Director - means the Director of the Division of Energy Mineral and 

Land Resources of the Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources. 

(97) Discharge Point - means that point at which storm water runoff 
leaves a tract of land. 

(98) Discharging Landfill - A facility with liners, monitoring equipment 
and other measures to detect and/or prevent leachate from 

entering the environment and in which the leachate is treated on 
site and discharged to a receiving stream. 

(99) Disposal - means, as defined in NCGS 130A-290(a)(6), the 
discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking, or 

placing of any solid waste into or on any land or water so that 
the solid waste or any constituent part of the solid waste may 

enter the environment or be emitted into the air or discharged 
into any waters, including groundwater.  

(100) District - means the Watauga County Soil and Water 

Conservation District created pursuant to Chapter 139, North 
Carolina General Statutes. 

(101) Double Frontage Lot - A continuous (through) lot which borders 
two or more streets. 

(102) Dwelling– Any building, structure, manufactured home, or 

mobile home, or part thereof, used and occupied for human 

habitation or intended to be so used and includes any outhouses 

and appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed therewith.  

For the purposes of Article 12 of NCGS 106D, the term does not 

include any manufactured home, mobile home, or recreational 

vehicle, if used solely for a seasonal vacation purpose. 

042021 BCC Meeting

80



47 

 

(103) EASEMENT - A strip of land designated by the property owner for 

a specified purpose and use by the public, a corporation, or 

persons. 

(104) Educational Facility – Elementary schools, secondary schools, 

community colleges, colleges, and universities, including support 

facilities such as administration for all of the preceding. Also 

includes any property owned or operated by those facilities used for 

educational, vocational or athletic purposes. 

(105) Electrical Transmission Tower - An electrical transmission 

structure used to support high voltage overhead power lines. The 

term shall not include any utility pole.  

(106) Electricity Generating Facility - A stand-alone plant, not ancillary 

to another land use which generates electricity to be distributed to 

consumers including but not limited to fossil fuel burning facilities 

and solar power farms. This definition shall not include electricity 

produced on an agricultural farm or residence whose use is limited 

to on-site consumption which only sells electricity to a public utility 

incidental to the on-site use. 

(107) Electronic Message Center/Changeable Copy Sign - A 

permanent sign or portion thereof on which the copy or symbols 
change either automatically through electrical or electronic 

means (for example, time and temperature units), or manually 
through placement of letters or symbols on a panel mounted in 

or on a track system. 
(108) Elevated Building - means a non-basement building which has 

its lowest elevated floor raised above ground level by foundation 

walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or columns.  
(109) Eligible Facilities Request – A request for modification of an 

existing wireless tower or base station that involves collocation 
of new transmission equipment or replacement of transmission 

equipment but does not include a substantial modification.  
(110) Employee - means a person who performs any service on the 

premises of a sexually oriented business on a full-time, part-time or 
contract basis, whether or not the person is denominated an 

employee, independent contractor, agent or otherwise and whether 
or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation by 

the operator of said business.  Also included are all persons who 
participate for consideration or possibility of a prize in any contests, 

performances, or exhibitions sponsored by or allowed at a sexually 
oriented business or occurring upon the premises of the sexual 

oriented business.  Employee does not include a person exclusively 

042021 BCC Meeting

81



48 

 

on the premises for repair or maintenance of the premises or 
equipment on the premises, or for the delivery of goods to the 

premises. 
(111) Encroachment - means the advance or infringement of uses, 

fill, excavation, buildings, structures or development into a 
floodplain, which may impede or alter the flow capacity of a 

floodplain.  
(112) Energy Dissipator - means a structure or a shaped channel 

section with mechanical armoring placed at the outlet of pipes or 
conduits to receive and break down the energy from high velocity 

flow. 
(113) Equipment Compound - An area surrounding or near the base of 

a wireless support structure within which are located wireless 
facilities.  

(114) Erosion - means the wearing away of land surfaces by the action 

of wind, water, gravity, or any combination thereof. 
(115) Escort - means a person who, for consideration, agrees or offers 

to act as a companion, guide, or date for another person, or who 
agrees or offers to privately model lingerie or to privately perform a 

striptease for another person. 
(116) Escort Agency means a person or business association who 

furnishes, offers to furnish, or advertises to furnish escorts as one of 
its primary business purposes for a fee, tip, or other consideration. 

(117) Establishment - means and includes any of the following: 
(a) the opening or commencement of any sexually oriented 

business as a new business; 
(b) the conversion of an existing business, whether or not a 

sexually oriented business, to any sexually oriented business; 
(c) the additions of any sexually oriented business to any other 

existing sexually oriented business; or   

(d) the relocation of any sexually oriented business. 
(118) Evidentiary Hearing – A hearing to gather competent, 

material, and substantial evidence in order to make findings for 
a quasi-judicial decision required by a development regulation 

adopted under this Chapter. 
(119) Existing Development - Those projects that are built or those 

projects that at a minimum have established a vested right 
under North Carolina zoning law as of the effective date of this 

ordinance based on at least one of the following criteria:   
substantial expenditures of resources (time, labor, money) 

based on a good faith reliance upon having received a valid local 
government approval to proceed with the project, or  having an 

outstanding valid building permit as authorized by the General 
Statutes (G.S. 160D-108, 108.1), or (3)  having an approved 

042021 BCC Meeting

82



49 

 

site specific or phased development plan as authorized by the 
General  Statutes (G.S. 160D-108,108.1). 

(120) Existing Lot (Lot of Record) - A lot which is part of a 
subdivision, a plat of which has been recorded in the Office of 

the Register of Deeds prior to the adoption of this ordinance, or 
a lot described by metes and bounds, the description of which 

has been so recorded prior to the adoption of this ordinance.  
(121) Existing Manufactured Home Park or Manufactured Home 

Subdivision -means a manufactured home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on 

which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a 
minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, 

and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) was 
completed before the initial effective date of the floodplain 

management regulations adopted by the community.  

(122) Existing Structure - A wireless support structure, erected 
prior to the application for an eligible facilities request, 

collocation or substantial modification under this ordinance that 
is capable of supporting the attachment of wireless facilities. The 

term includes but is not limited to, electrical transmission 
towers, buildings and water towers. The term shall not include 

any utility pole.  

(123) Explosives Manufacturing – Manufacturing of a chemical 

compound, mixture, or device the primary or common purpose of 

which is to function by explosion. This term includes but is not 

limited to dynamite, black powder, pellet powder, initiating 

explosives, detonators, safety fuses, squibs, detonating cord, 

igniting cord, igniters, and display fireworks, but does not include 

hand-loaded small arms ammunition. 

(124) Fall Zone - The area in which a wireless support structure may 

be expected to fall in the event of a structural failure as measured 

by engineering standards.  

(125) Family - One or more persons occupying a single dwelling unit, 

provided that unless all members are related by blood or marriage 

or adoption, no such family shall contain over five persons, but 

further provided that domestic servants employed or living on the 

premises may be housed on the premises without being counted as 

a family or families. 

(126) Farmer’s Market - A retail establishment primarily engaged in 

the sale of fresh fruits, vegetables and similar perishable goods. 

(127) Flea Market - Buildings or open areas in which booths or sales 
areas are provided for rent by various unrelated individuals to sell a 

042021 BCC Meeting

83



50 

 

variety of merchandise.  This does not include yards sales, 
rummage sales, or farmer’s markets. 

(128) Flood Insurance - means the insurance coverage provided 
under the National Flood Insurance Program.  

(129) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) - means an official map of a 
community, issued by the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency, on which both the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the 
risk premium zones applicable to the community arc delineated.  

(130) Flood Insurance Study (FIS) - means an examination, 
evaluation, and determination of flood hazards, corresponding 

water surface elevations (if appropriate), flood hazard risk 
zones, and other flood data in a community issued by the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency. The Flood Insurance 
Study report includes Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and 

Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps (FBFMs), if published. 

(131) Flood Prone Area - see “Floodplain”  
(132) Flood Zone - means a geographical area shown on a Flood 

Hazard Boundary Map or Flood Insurance Rate Map that reflects 
the severity or type of flooding in the area.  

(133) Flood or Flooding - means a general and temporary condition 
of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas 

from: (1) the overflow of inland or tidal waters: and/or (2) the 
unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from 

any source.  
(134) Floodplain - Any land area susceptible to be inundated by water 

from the base flood.  As used in this ordinance, the term refers to 
that area designed as subject to flooding from the base flood (100-

year flood) on the “Flood Boundary and Floodway Map” prepared by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, a copy of 

which is on file in the planning department. 

(135) Floodplain Administrator - is the individual appointed to 
administer and enforce the floodplain management regulations.  

(136) Floodplain Development Permit - means any type of permit 
that is required in conformance with the provisions of this 

ordinance, prior to the commencement of any development 
activity.  

(137) Floodplain Management - means the operation of an overall 
program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing 

flood damage and preserving and enhancing, where possible, 
natural resources in the floodplain, including, but not limited to, 

emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodplain 
management regulations, and open space plans.  

(138) Floodplain Management Regulations - means this ordinance 
and other zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building 

042021 BCC Meeting

84



51 

 

codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances, and other 
applications of police power. This term describes Federal, State 

or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide 
standards for preventing and reducing flood loss and damage.  

(139) Floodproofing - means any combination of structural and 
nonstructural additions, changes, or adjustments to structures 

which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or 
improved real property, water and sanitation facilities, 

structures, and their contents.  
(140) Floodway - The channel of a river or other watercourse and the 

adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the 
base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface 

elevation more than one foot.  As used in this chapter, the term 
refers to that area designated as a floodway on the “Flood 

Boundary and Floodway Map” prepared by the U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development, a copy of which is on file in the 
planning department. 

(141) Footcandle - A measure of illumination on a surface that is one 
foot from a uniform source of light of one candle and equal to one 

lumen per square foot. 
(142) Freeboard - means the height added to the Base Flood 

Elevation (BFE) to account for the many unknown factors that 
could contribute to flood heights greater than the height 

calculated for a selected size flood and floodway conditions, such 
as wave action, blockage of bridge openings, and the 

hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed. The Base 
Flood Elevation (BFE) plus the freeboard establishes the 

“Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation”.  
(143) Freestanding Sign - Any permanent sign which is affixed in or 

upon the ground, supported by one or more structural members, 

with air space between the ground and the sign face.  
(144) Functionality Dependent Facility - means a facility which 

cannot be used for its intended purpose unless it is located in 
close proximity to water, limited to a docking or port facility 

necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, 
shipbuilding, or ship repair. The term does not include long-term 

storage, manufacture, sales, or service facilities.  
(145) Gated Community - A development that is enclosed within a 

geographical area by restrictive gates.  
(146) Gate - A crossbar, door, or other obstructive device which is 

utilized for the purpose of restricting, controlling, or obstructing 
entry or exit by motor vehicles or pedestrians to or from a private 

roadway.  

042021 BCC Meeting

85



52 

 

(147) Governmental Sign - A sign erected and maintained pursuant to 
and in discharge of any governmental functions, or required by law, 

ordinance or other governmental regulation. 
(148) Grade - The level of the site at the property line located at the 

closest distance to the sign. 
(149) Ground Cover - means any natural vegetative growth or other 

material which renders the soil surface stable against accelerated 
erosion. 

(150) Halfway House - A home for not more than nine person who 
have demonstrated a tendency toward alcoholism, drug abuse, 

mental illness, or antisocial or criminal conduct, together with not 
more than two person providing supervision and other services to 

such persons, the eleven of whom live together as a single 
housekeeping unit. 

(151) Handicapped or Inform Home - A residence within a single 

dwelling unit for at least six but not more than nine persons who 
are physically or mentally handicapped or inform, together with not 

more than two persons providing care or assistance to such person, 
all living together as a single housekeeping unit.  Person residing in 

such homes, including the aged and disabled, principally need 
residential care rather than medical treatment. 

(152) Hazardous Material - Any substance listed as such in: SARA 
Section 302, Extremely Hazardous Substances, CERCLA Hazardous 

Substances, or Section 311 of CWA (oil and hazardous substances). 
(153) Hazardous Waste Management Facility - means, as defined in 

NCGS 13OA, Article 9, a facility for the collection, storage, 
processing, treatment, recycling, recovery, or disposal of 

hazardous waste.  
(154) Height of Sign - Refer to measurement standards in Chapter 16 

Article II Section 2. 

(155) High Impact Land Use – For the purposes of this ordinance, 

means any and all of the Category 1, Category 2, and Category 3 

uses listed in Chapter 13.  

(156) High Quality Water (HQW) Zones –means, for the Coastal 
Counties, areas within 575 feet of High Quality Waters; and for the 

remainder of the state, areas within one mile and draining to 
HQW’s. 

(157) High Quality Waters - means those classified as such in 15A 
NCAC 2B.0101(e) (5) - General Procedures, which is incorporated 

herein by reference to include further amendments pursuant to G.S. 

150B-14(c). 
(158) Highest Adjacent Grade (HAG) - means the highest natural 

elevation of the ground surface.  

042021 BCC Meeting

86



53 

 

(159) Highway Sign - A sign directing attention to a business, 
commodity, service or entertainment which is conducted, sold or 

offered on premises other than the premises upon which the sign is 
located. 

(160) Historic Structure - means any structure that is:  
(a) listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places 

(a listing maintained by the US Department of Interior) or 
preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as 

meeting the requirements for individual listing on the 
National Register;   

(b) certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of 
Interior as contributing to the historical significance of a 

registered historic district or a district preliminarily 
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered 

historic district; 

(c) individually listed on a local inventory of historic landmarks 
in communities with a “Certified Local Government (CLG) 

Program”; or  
(d) certified as contributing to the historical significance of a 

historic district designated by the County. 
(161) Holiday Decorations - Signs or displays including lighting which 

are a nonpermanent installation celebrating national, state, and 
local holidays or holiday seasons. 

(162) Home Occupation - An accessory use of a dwelling unit for 
gainful employment which: is clearly incidental and subordinate to 

the use of the dwelling unit; is carried on within or from accessory 
buildings from the main dwelling unit and does not alter or change 

the exterior character or appearances of the dwelling; is located in 
a residential district; is created and operated as a sole 

proprietorship. 

(163) Illegal Sign - Any sign placed without proper approval or permits 
as required by this Ordinance at the time of sign placement. Illegal 

sign shall also mean any sign placed contrary to the terms or time 
limits of any permit and any nonconforming sign which has not 

been brought into compliance with any applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

(164) Illuminated Sign - A permanent sign for which an artificial source 
of light is used in order to make readable the sign’s message, 

including internally and externally lighted signs and reflectorized, 
glowing or radiating signs. 

(165) Immediate Family – A person’s parents, spouse, children, and 

siblings, including the parent’s spouse. Includes step children and 

adopted children and their spouses.  

042021 BCC Meeting

87



54 

 

(166) Impervious Surface - Any material that substantially reduces or 
prevents the infiltration of stormwater into previously undeveloped 

land. 

(167) Industrial – Use engaged in the manufacturing, and basic 

processing of materials or products predominantly from extracted 

or raw materials, or previously prepared materials, including 

processing, fabrication, assembly, treatment, packaging, storage, 

sales, and distribution of such products. 

(168) Industrial Development (Re: watershed regulations only) - Any 
non-residential development that requires an NPDES permit for an 

industrial discharge and/or requires the use or storage of any 

hazardous material for the purpose of manufacturing, assembling, 
finishing, cleaning or developing any product or commodity. 

(169) Ingress/Egress - The point where vehicles or pedestrians enter 
and exit a development.  

(170) Instructional Signs - A permanent sign clearly intended for 
instructional purposes, as determined by the Administrator, shall 

not be included in the permitted sum of the sign area of 
identification wall signs, provided such sign is not larger than 

necessary to serve the intended instructional purpose, and such 
sign is not in a location, nor includes design characteristics, that 

constitute or serve the purposes of an identification sign. 

(171) Junk/Scrap Yards – An outdoor establishment primarily engaged 

in the collection, sorting, outdoor storage and/or distribution of 

recyclable scrap and waste materials including automobiles, cans, 

steel containers, cast iron, appliances, construction materials, and 

other ferrous metals.  

(172) Kennel - A commercial operation that: (i) provides food and 

shelter and care of animals for purposes not primarily related to 
medical care (a kennel may or may not be run by or associated with 

a veterinarian), or (ii) engages in the breeding of animals for sale. 
(173) Key Box - A secure, tamperproof device with a lock operable only 

by a fire department, police department, or emergency services 
department master key, and containing building entry keys and 

other such devices that may be required for access in an  emergency.  
(174) Lake or Natural Watercourse – means any stream, river, brook, 

swamp, sound, bay, creek, run, branch, canal, waterway, estuary, 

and any reservoir, lake or pond, natural or impounded in which 
sediment may be moved or carried in suspension, and which could 

be damaged by accumulation of sediment. 
(175) Land-disturbing Activity - means any use of the land by any 

person in residential, industrial, education, institutional, or 

042021 BCC Meeting

88



55 

 

commercial development, highway and road construction and 
maintenance that results in a change in the natural cover or 

topography and that may cause or contribute to sedimentation. 
(176) Landfill - A facility for the disposal of solid waste on land in a 

sanitary manner in accordance with Chapter 130A Article 9 of the 
N.C. General Statutes.  For the purpose of this ordinance this term 

does not include composting facilities. 
(177) Landowner or Owner – The holder of the title in fee simple.  

Absent evidence to the contrary, the County may rely on the county 
tax records to determine who is a landowner.  The landowner may 

authorize a person holding a valid option, lease, or contract to 
purchase to act as his or her agent or representative for the 

purpose of making applications for development approvals. 

(178) Large Wind Energy System - A wind energy conversion system 

consisting of one or more wind turbine(s), a tower(s), and 

associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated 

capacity of more than 20 kW. 

(179) Legislative Decision – The adoption, amendment, or repeal of a 

regulation under this Title or applicable local act.  The term also 

includes the decision to approve, amend, or rescind a development 

agreement consistent with the provisions of Article 1- of NCGS 

160D. 

(180) Legislative Hearing – A Hearing to solicit public comment on a 

proposed legislative decision. 

(181) Length of Frontage - The measurement purposes, the length of 
any primary or secondary frontage as defined in Chapter 16 Article 

II Section 3, shall be the sum of all wall lengths parallel, or nearly 
parallel, to such frontage, excluding any such wall length 

determined by the Administrator or Planning Commission as clearly 

unrelated to the frontage criteria.  For buildings with two or more 
frontages, the length and allowable sign area shall be calculated 

separately for each such frontage.  The building frontage for a 
building unit shall be measured from the centerline of the party 

walls defining the building unit. 
(182) Licensee - means a person in whose name a license to operate a 

sexually oriented business has been issued, as well as the individual 
listed as an applicant on the application for a license; and in the case 

of an employee, a person in whose name a license has been issued 
authorizing employment in a sexually oriented business. 

(183) Local Government - means any county, incorporated village, 
town or city, or any combination of counties, incorporated villages, 

towns, and cities, acting through a joint program pursuant to the 

042021 BCC Meeting

89



56 

 

provisions of the Act. 
(184) Logo, Logogram, or Logotype - An emblem, letter, character, 

pictograph, trademark, or symbol used to represent any firm, 
organization, entity, or product. 

(185) Lot - A parcel of land occupied or capable of being occupied by a 
building or group of buildings devoted to a common use, together 

with the customary accessories and open spaces belonging to the 
same. 

(186) Lot Area - The total area circumscribed by the boundaries of a 
lot, except that: (i) when the legal instrument creating a lot 

shows the boundary of the lot extending into public street right-
of-way, then the lot boundary for purposes of computing the lot 

area shall be street right-of-way line, or if the right-of-way line 
cannot be determined, a line running parallel to and 30 feet from 

the center of the traveled portion of the street, and (ii) in a 

residential district, when a private road that served more than 
three dwelling units is located along any lot boundary, then the 

lot boundary for purposes of computing the lot area shall be 
inside boundary of the traveled portion of that road. 

(187) Lowest Adjacent Grade (LAG) - means the elevation of the 
ground, sidewalk or patio slab immediately next to the building, 

or deck support, after completion of the building.  
(188) Lowest Floor - means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed 

area (including basement). An unfinished or flood resistant 
enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access. 

or limited storage in an area other than a basement area is not 
considered a building’s lowest floor, provided that such an 

enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of 
the applicable non-elevation design requirements of this 

ordinance.  

(189) Major Mountain Ridge – A ridge with an elevation higher than 
3000 feet above mean sea level and an elevation 500 feet or 

more above the elevation of an adjacent valley floor including all 
land within 100 feet below the elevation of any portion of such 

line or surface along the crest.  
(190) Major Variance (re: watershed regulations) - A variance that 

results in any one or more of the following:  
(a) the complete waiver of a management requirement; or   

(b) the relaxation, by a factor of more than ten (10) percent, 
of any management requirement that takes the form of a 

numerical standard. 
(191) Manufactured Home or Mobile Home – A structure as defined 

in NCGS 143-145(7) 

042021 BCC Meeting

90



57 

 

(192) Manufactured Home Park - means the rental of any site or 
tract of land upon which three (3) or more manufactured homes 

occupied for dwelling or sleeping purposes are located. Leases of 
a term longer than ten (10) years shall be constructed as a sale 

of property.  In determining the term of proposed lease, periods 
that may add to the original term by options to renew or extend 

shall be included.  Any sale of land within the manufactured 
home park shall comply with the Watauga County Ordinance to 

Govern Subdivision and Multi-unit Structures.  For purposes of 
this ordinance, the term "mobile home" may be substituted for 

"manufactured home."   
(193) Market Value” means the building value, not including the 

land value and that of any accessory structures or other 
improvements on the lot.  Market value may be established by 

independent certified appraisal; replacement cost depreciated for 

age of building and quality of construction (Actual Cash Value); 
or adjusted tax assessed values.  

(194) Marquee - A permanent roof-like shelter extending from part or 
all of a building face and constructed of some durable material 

which may or may not project over a public right-of-way. 
(195) Marquee Sign - A permanent sign painted on or attached to or 

supported by a marquee.  
(196) Massage - means the manipulation of body muscular tissue by 

rubbing, stroking, kneading, or tapping, by hand or mechanical 
device. 

(197) Massage Business - means any establishment or business wherein 
massage is practiced, including establishments commonly known as 

health clubs, physical culture studios, massage studios, or massage 
parlors. 

(198) Mean Sea Level - means, for purposes of this ordinance, the 

National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) as corrected in 1929, 
the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) as corrected in 1988, 

or other vertical control datum used as a reference for 
establishing varying elevations within the floodplain, to which 

Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) shown on a FIRM are referenced. 
Refer to each FIRM panel to determine datum used.  

(199) Minor Variance (re: watershed regulations) - A variance that 
does not qualify as a major variance. 

(200) Modifications - Any structural changes from the original 
configuration (new or existing), change from manual to electric, 

change of electronic control operation or alterations requiring a 
permit. 

(201) Modular Home - A dwelling unit constructed to accordance with 
the standards as set forth in the state building code applicable to 

042021 BCC Meeting

91



58 

 

site-built homes and composed of components substantially 
assembled in a manufacturing plant and transported to the building 

site for final assembly on permanent foundation.  Among other 
possibilities, a modular home may consist of two sections 

transported to the site in a manner similar to a mobile home 
(except that the modular home meets the county building code 

applicable to site built homes), or a series of panels or room 
sections transported on a truck or erected or joined together on the 

site. 
(202) Monopole – A single, freestanding pole-type structure supporting 

one or more antennas. For the purposes of this Ordinance, a 
monopole is not a tower or a utility pole.  

(203) Motor Sports Facility – A facility, track or course open to the 

general public or accessed by more than five (5) simultaneous 

riders outside of the owner’s immediate family upon which motor 

sports racing, racing practice or motor sports related activity is 

conducted and may include paved or dirt tracks, spectator 

seating/standing areas, concession areas, restrooms, parking 

facilities, and broadcast platforms or booths. 

(204) Multi-Family Development - Three or more dwelling units 

intended for residential occupancy contained within one building or 
a Planned Unit Development. 

(205) Mural - A picture on an exterior surface of a structure. A mural is 
a sign only if it is related by language, logo, or pictorial depiction to 

the advertisement of any product or service or the identification of 
any business. 

(206) Natural Erosion - means the wearing away of the earth’s surface 

by water, wind, or other natural agents under natural 
environmental conditions undisturbed by man. 

(207) Neon Sign - A sign with tubing that is internally illuminated by 
neon or other electrically charged gas.  

(208) New Construction - means structures for which the “start of 
construction” commenced on or after the effective date of the 

initial floodplain management regulations and includes any 
subsequent improvements to such structures.  

(209) Nonconforming lot of record - A lot described by a plat or a deed 
that was recorded prior to the effective date of local regulations (or 

their amendments) that does not meet the minimum lot-size or 
other development requirements of these rules. 

(210) Nonconforming Sign - A sign which was validly installed under 
laws or ordinances in effect at the time of its installation, but which 

is in conflict with the current provisions of this Ordinance. 

042021 BCC Meeting

92



59 

 

(211) Nonconforming Situation - A situation that occurs when, on the 
effective date of this chapter, any existing lot or structure or use of 

an existing lot or structure does not conform to one or more of the 
regulations applicable to the district in which the lot or structure is 

located.  Among other possibilities, a non-conforming situation may 
arise because a lot does not meet minimum acreage requirements, 

because structures exceed maximum height limitations, because 
the relationship between existing buildings and the land (in such 

matters as density and setback requirements) is not in conformity 
with this chapter, or because land or buildings are used for 

purposes made unlawful by this chapter. 
(212) Nonconforming Use - A nonconforming situation that occurs 

when property is used for a purpose or in a manner unlawful by the 
use regulations applicable to the district in which the property is 

located.  (For example, a commercial office building in a residential 

district may be a nonconforming use).  The term also refers to the 
activity that constitutes the use made of the property.  (For 

example, all activity associated with operating a retail clothing store 
in a residentially zoned area constitutes a nonconforming use). 

(213) Non-Encroachment Area - means the channel of a river or 
other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be 

reserved in order to discharge the base flood without 
cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than 

one (1) foot as designated in the Flood Insurance Study report.  
(214) Non-residential Development - All development other than 

residential development, agriculture and silviculture. 
(215) Nude Model Studio - means any place where a person who 

appears semi-nude, in a state of nudity, or who displays "specified 
anatomical areas"  and is provided to be observed, sketched, drawn, 

painted, sculptured, photographed, or similarly depicted by other 

persons who pay money or any form of consideration.  Nude Model 
Studio shall not include a proprietary school licensed by the State of 

North Carolina or a college, junior college or university supported 
entirely or in part by public taxation; a private college or university 

which maintains and operates educational programs in which credits 
are transferable to a college, junior college, or university supported 

entirely or partly by taxation; or in a structure: (a) that has no sign 
visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that 

indicates a nude or semi-nude person is available for viewing; and 
(b) where in order to participate in a class a student must enroll at 

least three days in advance of the class; and (c)where no more than 
one nude or semi-nude model is on the premises at any one time. 

(216) Nudity or a State of Nudity - means the showing of the human 
male or female genitals, pubic area, vulva, anus, anal cleft or 

042021 BCC Meeting

93



60 

 

cleavage with less than a fully opaque covering, the showing of the 
female breast with less than a fully opaque covering of any part of 

the nipple, or the showing of the covered male genitals in a 
discernibly turgid state. 

(217) Nursing Home – A facility, however named, which is advertised, 

announced, or maintained for the express or implied purpose of 

providing nursing or convalescent care for three or more persons 

unrelated to the operator. 

(218) Official Maps or Plans - Any maps or plans officially adopted by 

the County Commissioners as a guide to the development of the 

County. 

(219) Off-Premises Sign - Any sign normally used for promoting an 

interest other than that of a business, individual, products, or 
service available on the premises where the sign is located. 

(220) On-Premises Sign - Any sign used for promoting a business, 
individual, product or service available on the premises where the 

sign is located. 

(221) Ordinance Administrator – The Watauga County Department of 

Planning and Inspections.   

(222) Ordinary Maintenance - Ensuring that wireless facilities and 

wireless support structures are kept in good operating condition. 

Ordinary maintenance includes inspections, testing and 

modifications that maintain functional capacity and structural 

integrity; for example, the strengthening of a wireless support 

structure's foundation or of the wireless support structure itself. 

Ordinary maintenance includes replacing antennas of a similar size, 

weight, shape and color and accessory equipment within an existing 

equipment compound and relocating the antennas to different 

height levels on an existing monopole or tower upon which they are 

currently located. Ordinary maintenance does not include 

substantial modifications.  

(223) Parent – means an affiliate that directly, or indirectly through 
one or more intermediaries, controls another person. 

(224) Parking Space - A portion of the vehicle accommodation area set 
aside for the parking of one vehicle. 

(225) Person - means any individual, partnership, firm, association, 

joint venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate, 
commission, board, public or private institution, utility, cooperative, 

interstate body, or other legal entity. 
(226) Person Conducting land-Disturbing Activity - means any person 

who may be held responsible for violation unless expressly provided 

042021 BCC Meeting

94



61 

 

otherwise by this Ordinance, the Act, or any order adopted 
pursuant to this Ordinance or the Act. 

(227) Person Responsible for the Violation - means:  
(a) the developer or other person who has or holds himself out as 

having financial or operation control over the land-disturbing 
activity; or 

(b) the landowner or person in possession or control of the land 
that has directly or indirectly allowed the land-disturbing 

activity, or benefited from it or failed to comply with a duty 
imposed by any provision of this Ordinance, the Act, or any 

order adopted pursuant to this Ordinance or the Act. 
(228) Phase of Grading - means one of two types of grading: rough or 

fine. 
(229) Planned Unit Development (PUD) - The planned unit 

development is a permitted use designed to provide for 

developments incorporating a single type or a variety of related 
uses which are planned and developed as a unit. Such development 

may consist of individual lots or common building sites. Common 
land must be an element of the plan related to affecting the long-

term value of the entire development. 
(230) Planning Board – Any board or commission established pursuant 

to NCGS 160D-301. 
(231) Plat - A map or plan of a parcel of land which is to be, or has 

been, subdivided. 
(232) Post-FIRM - means construction or other development for 

which the “start of construction” occurred on or after the 
effective date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map.  

(233) Pre-FIRM - means construction or other development for 
which the “start of construction” occurred before the effective 

date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map.  

(234) Primary and Secondary Frontage - The frontage of any building 
or site shall include the elevation(s) facing a public street, facing a 

primary parking area for the building or tenants, or containing the 
public entrance(s) to the building or building units.  For multi-

tenant buildings, the portion of such building that is owned, or 
leased by a single tenant, shall be considered a building unit. The 

primary frontage shall be considered the portion of any frontage 
containing the primary public entrance(s) to the building or building 

units. The secondary frontage shall include frontages containing 
secondary public entrances to the building or building units, and all 

walls facing a public street or primary parking area not designated 
as the primary frontage.  

(235) Principally Above Ground - means that at least 51% of the 
actual cash value of the structure is above ground.  

042021 BCC Meeting

95



62 

 

(236) Private Driveway - A roadway serving three (3) or fewer lots, 
building sites or other divisions of land and not intended to be 

public ingress or egress. 
(237) Private Streets - Internal streets that are not owned or 

maintained by North Carolina Department of Transportation and that 
are owned and maintained by an entity responsible for upkeep and 

maintenance, such as a homeowners association, community group, 
property management company, or similar organization.  

(238) Processing – Any technique designed to change the physical, 

chemical, or biological character or composition of any material so 

as to render it safe for transport; amenable to recovery, storage or 

recycling; safe for disposal; or reduced in volume or concentration. 

(239) Projecting Sign - A permanent sign which projects from and is 
supported by a wall or parapet of a building with the display surface 

of the sign in a plane perpendicular to or approximately 
perpendicular to the wall. See also Canopy sign. 

(240) Propane – A heavy flammable gaseous alkane C3H8, found in 

crude petroleum and natural gas, also known as LP Gas. 

(241) Propane, Gasoline or Fuel Oil Bulk Storage Facilities – A facility 

whose primary purpose is the storage, distribution, mixing or 

transfer of flammable or combustible liquids or gases received by or 

transferred by tank vessel, pipelines, tank car, piping, or portable 

tank or container.  This definition shall not include filling stations 

used solely for distribution to individual consumers.  

(242) Protected Area - The area adjoining and upstream of the critical 

area of WS-IV watersheds. The boundaries of the protected area 

are defined as within five miles of and draining to the normal pool 

elevation of the reservoir or to the ridgeline of the watershed; or 

within 10 miles upstream and draining to the intake located directly 

in the stream or river or to the ridgeline of the watershed. 

(243) Public Outdoor Recreation Area – A tract of land owned by a 

government agency or a non-profit community group intended 

for use for active or passive recreation. This does not include 

similarly owned land intended for conservation.   

(244) Public Safety and/or Nuisance - means anything which is 

injurious to the safety or health of an entire community or 

neighborhood, or any considerable number of persons, or 

unlawfully obstructs the free passage or use, in the customary 

manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay, stream, canal, or 

basin.  

042021 BCC Meeting

96



63 

 

(245) Quarry/Stone Crusher – A place from which dimension stone, 

rock, construction aggregate, riprap, sand, gravel, or slate is 

excavated from the ground and/or processed for use. 

(246) Quasi-judicial Decision – A decision involving the finding of facts 

regarding a specific application of a development regulation and 

that requires the exercise of discretion when applying the standards 

of the regulation.  The term includes, but is not limited to, decisions 

involving variances, special use permits, certificate of 

appropriateness, and appeals of administrative determinations.  

Decisions on the approval of subdivision plats and site plans are 

quasi-judicial in nature if the regulation authorizes a decision-

making board to approve or deny the application based not only 

upon whether the application complies with the specific 

requirements set forth in the regulation, but also on whether the 

application complies with one or more generally stated standards 

requiring a discretionary decision on the findings to be made by the 

decision-making board. 

(247) Recovered Material – A material that has known recycling 

potential, can be feasibly recycled, and has been diverted or 

removed from the solid waste stream for sale, use, or reuse. 

(248) Recreational Vehicle (RV) - means a vehicle, which is: 

(a) built on a single chassis; 

(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest 

horizontal projection; 

(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a 

light duty truck; and 

(d) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, 

but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, 

travel, or seasonal use.  

(249) Recycling Facility – A building or structure used for the indoor 

collection, separation, storage and/or processing of recovered 

materials including non-ferrous metals and may include a time-

limited outdoor material collection area. It does not include a 

thrift store, antique or secondhand store. 

(250) Reference Level - is the top of the lowest floor for structures 

within Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Zone Al-A30, 

AE, A, A99 or AO.  

042021 BCC Meeting

97

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dimension_stone
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rock_(geology)
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Construction_aggregate
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Riprap
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sand
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gravel
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Slate


64 

 

(251) Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation - means the “Base 

Flood Elevation” plus the “Freeboard”. In “Special Flood Hazard 

Areas” where Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) have been 

determined, this elevation shall be the BFE plus one (1) foot of 

freeboard. In “Special Flood Hazard Areas” where no BFE has 

been established, this elevation shall be at least two (2) feet 

above the highest adjacent grade.  

(252) Religious Facility – A facility operated by religious 

organizations for worship, religious activity or instruction, and 

related accessory uses on the same site including living quarters 

and/or child care operations. Solo cemeteries are excluded. 

(253) Remedy a Violation - means to bring the structure or other 

development into compliance with State and community 

floodplain management regulations, or, if this is not possible, to 

reduce the impacts of its noncompliance. Ways that impacts may 

be reduced include protecting the structure or other affected 

development from flood damages, implementing the 

enforcement provisions of the ordinance or otherwise deterring 

future similar violations, or reducing Federal financial exposure 

with regard to the structure or other development.  

(254) Replacement Pole – Pole of equal proportions and of equal 

height or such other height that would not constitute a 

substantial modification to an existing structure in order to 

support wireless facilities or to accommodate collocation. 

Requires removal of the wireless support structure it replaces.  

(255) Replacement Value – The cost to restore a structure to its 

previously existing condition as computed by an appraisal which has 

been conducted by an appraiser holding a North Carolina State 

Certified General Real Estate Appraisal License and conducted in 

compliance with generally accepted practices within the appraisal 

community. 

(256) Residence, Duplex - A two-family residential use in which the 

dwelling units share a common wall (including without limitation the 
wall of an attached garage or porch) and in which each dwelling 

unit has living space on the ground floor and a separate, ground 
floor entrance. 

(257) Residence, Multi-Family - A residential use consisting of a 
building containing three or more dwelling units.  For purposes of 

this definition, a building includes all dwelling units that are 

042021 BCC Meeting

98



65 

 

enclosed within that building or attached to it by a common floor or 
wall (even the wall of an attached garage or porch). 

(258) Residence, Single-Family Detached - A residential use consisting 
of a single detached building containing one dwelling unit and 

located on a lot or tract. 
(259) Residence, Two-Family - A residential use consisting of a building 

containing two dwelling units.  If two dwellings units share a 
common wall, even the wall of an attached garage or porch, the 

dwelling units shall be considered to be located in one building. 
(260) Residential Development - Buildings for residence such as 

attached and detached single-family dwellings, apartment 
complexes, condominiums, townhouses, cottages, etc., and their 

associated outbuildings such as garages, storage buildings, 
gazebos, etc., and customary home occupations. 

(261) Residential Subdivisions - A collection of land parcels designated 

and platted (mapped) exclusively for residential development. 
(262) Revolving or Rotating Sign - An Animated Sign. 

(263) Right of Way - A strip of land designated by the owner or other 
authority or acquired by other over which other person may legally 

pass, and on which may be constructed a road or utilities. 
(264) Riverine - means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river 

(including tributaries), stream, brook, etc.  
(265) Road, County Standard, Private - A road constructed and 

dedicated in accordance with provisions as set forth in Chapter 18 
Article VI, Section 2, with provisions for private maintenance. 

(266) Road, State Standard, Public - A dedicated and accepted public 
right-of-way for vehicular traffic on which is constructed a road 

which meets the specifications of North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, (See Chapter 18 Article VI, Section 2). 

(267) Road - All private ways used to provide motor vehicle access to 

(i) two or more lots or (ii) two or more distinct areas or buildings in 
unsubdivided developments. 

(268) Roof Sign - Any sign erected upon a roof, parapet, or roof-
mounted equipment structure and extending above a roof, parapet, 

or roof-mounted equipment structure of a building or structure. 
(269) Rummage Sales - A sale by a non-profit organization where 

individual members bring personal property to be sold in order to 
raise funds for the organization. 

(270) Salvage Yard - means any non-residential property used for 
the storage, collection, and/or recycling of any type of 

equipment, and including but not limited to vehicles, appliances 
and related machinery.  

(271) Sediment - means solid particulate matter, both mineral and 
organic, that has been or is being transported by water, air, 

042021 BCC Meeting

99



66 

 

gravity, or ice from its site of origin. 
(272) Sedimentation - means the process by which sediment resulting 

from accelerated erosion has been or is being transported off the 
site of the land-disturbing activity or into a lake or natural 

watercourse. 
(273) Semi-Nude or in a Semi-Nude Condition - means the showing of 

the female breast below a horizontal line across the top of the areola 
at its highest point or the showing of the male or female buttocks.  

This definition shall include the entire lower portion of the human 
female breast, but shall not include any portion of the cleavage of the 

human female breast, exhibited by a dress, blouse, skirt, leotard, 
bathing suit, or other wearing apparel provided the areola is not 

exposed in whole or in part. 
(274) Sewage Treatment Systems – 

(a) Individual Systems. Sewage treatment and disposal systems 

designed to serve a single connection utilizing the soil for the 
subsurface disposal of partially treated or treated sewage 

effluent. Individual systems with a design capacity of less 
than 3,000 gallons per day will be designed and approved by 

the Appalachian District Health Department. Individual 
systems with a design capacity of 3,000 gallons per day or 

more will be designed by a professional engineer and 
approved by the designated state agency or the Appalachian 

District Health Department, whichever is applicable. 
Individual systems may be shared upon approval of the 

appropriate agency.    
(b) Non-Discharge Systems. Sewage treatment and disposal 

systems designed to serve multiple connections utilizing the 
soil for the subsurface disposal of partially treated or treated 

sewage effluent. Non-Discharge systems will be approved by 

the designated state agency.    
(c) NPDES Systems. Sewage treatment and disposal systems 

designed to serve multiple connections discharging into 
surface waters of the state and subject to the National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit 
program. NPDES systems include those that are  owned and 

operated by the County, a municipality, a sanitary district, a 
property owners association, utility company and any 

connections thereto. NPDES Systems will be approved by the 
designated state agency.   

(275) Sexual Encounter Center - means a business or commercial 
enterprise that, as one of its principal business purposes, offers for 

any form of consideration:  
(a) physical contact in the form of wrestling or tumbling between 

042021 BCC Meeting

100



67 

 

persons of the opposite sex; or  
(b) activities between male and female persons and/or persons of 

the same sex when one or more of the persons is in a state of 
nudity or semi-nude. 

(276) Sexually Oriented Business - means an adult arcade, adult 
bookstore, adult novelty store, adult video store, adult cabaret, adult 

motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, escort agency, 
nude model studio, or sexual encounter center. 

(277) Sexually Oriented Devices - means without limitation any artificial 
or simulated specified anatomical area or other device or 

paraphernalia that is designed principally for specified sexual 
activities but shall not mean any contraceptive device. 

(278) Sign - Any name, figure, character, outline, display, 
announcement, or device, or structure supporting the same, or any 

other device of similar nature designed to attract attention 

outdoors, and shall include all parts, portions, units, and materials 
composing the same, together with the frame, background, and 

supports or anchoring thereof. A sign shall not include any 
architectural or landscape features that may also attract attention. 

(279) Sign Face - An exterior display surface of a sign including 
nonstructural trim exclusive of the supporting structure. 

(280) Sign Permit - A permit issued by the land-use administrator that 
authorizes the recipient to erect, move, enlarge, or substantially 

alter a sign. 
(281) Siltation - means sediment resulting from accelerated erosion 

which is settleable or removable by properly designed, constructed, 
and maintained control measures; and which has been transported 

from its point of origin within the site of a land-disturbing activity; 
and which has been deposited, or is in suspension in water. 

(282) Site - All the contiguous ground area legally assembled into one 

development location or individual lot defined as a permanent 
parcel (lot of record), multiple lots of record, or a portion of a lot of 

record. 
(283) Site Plan - A scaled drawing and supporting text showing the 

relationship between lot lines and the existing or proposed uses, 
buildings, or structures on the lot. The site plan may include site-

specific details such as building areas, building height and floor 
area, setbacks from lot lines and street rights-of-way, intensities, 

densities, utility lines and locations, parking, access points, roads, 
and stormwater control facilities that are depicted to show 

compliance with all legally required development regulations that 
are applicable to the project and the site plan review. A site plan 

approval based solely upon application of objective standards is an 
administrative decision and a site plan approval based in whole or 

042021 BCC Meeting

101



68 

 

in part upon the application of standards involving judgment and 
discretion is a quasi-judicial decision. A site plan may also be 

approved as part of a conditional zoning decision. 

(284) Small Wind Energy System - A wind energy conversion 

system consisting of a single wind turbine, a tower, and 

associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated 

capacity of not more than 20 kW. Multiple systems located on 

agricultural farms as defined in the Watauga County High Impact 

Land Use Ordinance are also considered small wind energy 

systems even if the aggregate kW exceeds 20, provided the 

primary intent is to generate power to reduce on-site 

consumption. 

(285) Solid Waste Disposal Facility - means any facility involved in 

the disposal of solid waste, as defined in NCGS 130A-

290(a)(35). 

(286) Solid Waste Disposal Site - means, as defined in NCGS 130A-

290(a)(36), any place at which solid wastes are disposed of by 

incineration, sanitary landfill, or any other method.  

(287) Special Event Sign - A temporary sign advertising or pertaining 
to any annual or seasonal event of interest to, open to, or available 

to, the general public. 
(288) Special Events - Circuses, fairs, carnivals, festivals, or other 

types of special events that (i) run for longer than one day but not 
longer than two weeks, (ii)are intended to or likely to attract 

substantial crowds, and (iii) are unlike the customary or usual 
activities generally associated with the property where the special 

event is to be located. 
(289) Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) - means the land in the 

floodplain subject to a one percent (1%) or greater chance of 
being flooded in any given year. as determined in Article 3, 

Section B of this ordinance. 

(290) Special Use Permit - A permit issued to authorize 
development or land uses in a particular zoning district upon 

presentation of competent, material, and substantial evidence 
establishing compliance with one or more general standards 

requiring that judgment and discretion be exercised as well as 
compliance with specific standards. The term includes permits 

previously referred to as conditional use permits or special 
exceptions.  

(291) Specified Anatomical Areas - means less than completely and 
opaquely covered: human genitals, pubic region, buttock, or female 

breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola; or 

042021 BCC Meeting

102



69 

 

human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely 
and opaquely covered. 

(292) Specified Criminal Activity - means any of the following offenses: 
(a) prostitution or promotion of prostitution; dissemination of 

obscenity; sale, distribution or display of harmful material to a 
minor; sexual performance by a child; possession or 

distribution of child pornography; public lewdness; indecent 
exposure; indecency with a child; engaging in organized 

criminal activity; sexual assault; molestation of a child; 
gambling; or distribution of a controlled substance; or any 

similar offenses to those described above under the criminal or 
penal code of other states or countries;  

(b) for which:  
(1) less than two years have elapsed since the date of 

conviction or the date of release from confinement 

imposed for the conviction, whichever is the later date, if 
the conviction is of a misdemeanor offense;   

(2) less than five years have elapsed since the date of 
conviction or the date of release from confinement for 

the conviction, whichever is the later date, if the 
conviction is of a felony offense; or  

(3) less than five years have elapsed since the date of the 
last conviction or the date of release from confinement 

for the last conviction, whichever is the later date, if the 
convictions are of two or more misdemeanor offenses or 

combination of misdemeanor offenses occurring within 
any 24-month period.  

(c) The fact that a conviction is being appealed shall have no effect 
on the disqualification of the applicant or a person residing with 

the applicant. 

(293) Specified Sexual Activities - means human genitals in a state of 
sexual stimulation or arousal; acts of human masturbation, sexual 

intercourse or sodomy; or fondling or other erotic touching of human 
genitals, pubic regions, buttocks, or female breasts. 

(294) Stable - A building in which horses or other livestock are kept for 
commercial use including boarding, hire, and sell. 

(295) Start of Construction - includes substantial improvement, and 
means the date the building permit was issued provided the 

actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 
addition placement, or other improvement was within 180 days 

of the permit date. The actual start means either the first 
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, 

such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, 
the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of 

042021 BCC Meeting

103



70 

 

excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a 
foundation.   Permanent construction does not include land 

preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it 
include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it 

include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or 
foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it 

include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, 
such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not 

part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the 
actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, 

ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or 
not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the 

building.  
(296) Storm Drainage Facilities - means the system of inlets, conduits, 

channels, ditches and appurtenances which serve to collect and 

convey storm water through and from a given drainage area. 
(297) Storm Water Runoff - means the surface flow of water resulting 

from precipitation in any form and occurring immediately after 
rainfall or melting. 

(298) Storm water collection system - Any conduit, pipe, channel, curb 
or gutter for the primary purpose of transporting (not treating) 

runoff. A storm water collection system does not include vegetated 
swales, swales stabilized with armoring and/or alternative methods 

where natural topography prevents the use of vegetated swales 
(subject to case-by-case review, curb outlet systems or pipes used 

to carry drainage underneath built-upon surfaces that are 
associated with development controlled by the provisions of 15A 

NCAC 2H. 1003 (c)(1). 
(299) Structure - means a walled and roofed building, a 

manufactured home, or a gas, liquid or liquefied gas storage 

tank that is principally above ground.  
(300) Subdivider - Any person, firm, or corporation who subdivides or 

develops any land deemed to be a subdivision. 
(301) Subdivision - A "subdivision" shall include all divisions of a tract 

of land into two or more lots, building sites, (including buildings 
constructed for rental purposes) or other divisions when any one or 

more of those divisions are created for the purpose whether 
immediate or future, of sale or building development, and shall 

include all divisions of land involving the dedication of a new street 
or a change in existing streets; provided, however, that the 

following shall not be included within this definition nor be subject 
to the regulations prescribed by this ordinance:  

(a) The combination or recombination of portions of previously 
platted lots where the total number of lots is not increased 

042021 BCC Meeting

104



71 

 

and the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards of 
the county as shown in this ordinance, and documented with 

a recorded plat or a map attached to recorded deed(s). 
(b) The division of land into parcels greater than (10) acres 

where no street right-of-way dedication is involved.   
(c) The public acquisition by purchase of strips of land for the 

widening or opening of streets.   
(d) The division of a tract in single ownership whose entire area is 

no greater than two (2) acres into not more than three (3) 
lots, where no street right-of-way dedication is involved, and 

where the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards 
of the county as shown in this ordinance. 

(e) The division of land solely among members of the same 
family, which shall include all lineal descendants or ancestors 

plus brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, fathers-in-law, mothers-

in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, nieces, nephews and 
stepchildren by any method of transfer except where the 

parties contemplate development for resale, and where the 
resultant lots are equal to or exceed the standards of the 

county as shown in this ordinance.   
(f) The division of land by court ordered/approved division 

except where the parties contemplate development for resale. 
(302) Subsidiary – means an affiliate that is directly, or indirectly 

through one or more intermediaries, controlled by another person. 
(303) Substantial Damage - means damage of any origin sustained 

by a structure during any one-year period whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would 

equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the structure 
before the damage occurred, See definition of “substantial 

improvement”.  

(304) Substantial Enlargement of a Sexually Oriented Business - means 
the increase in floor areas occupied by the business by more than 

twenty-five percent (25%), as the floor areas exist on the date this 
ordinance takes effect. 

(305) Substantial Improvement - means any combination of 
repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 

improvement of a structure, taking place during any one-year 
period for which the cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 

market value of the structure before the “start of construction” 
of the improvement. This term includes structures which have 

incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of the actual repair 
work performed. The term does not, however, include either:  

(a) any correction of existing violations of State or community 
health, sanitary. or safety code specifications which have 

042021 BCC Meeting

105



72 

 

been identified by the community code enforcement official 
and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 

conditions; or 
(b) any alteration of a historic structure, provided that the 

alteration will not preclude the structure’s continued 
designation as a historic structure. 

(306) Substantial Modification - The mounting of a proposed wireless 
facility or wireless facilities on a wireless support structure that 

substantially changes the physical dimensions of the support 
structure. A mounting is presumed to be a substantial modification 

if it meets any one or more of the following criteria: 
(a) increases the existing vertical height of the wireless support 

structure by  
(1) more than ten percent (10%), or  

(2) the height of one additional antenna array with 

separation from the nearest existing antenna not to 
exceed twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater; 

(b) adds an appurtenance to the body of a wireless support 
structure that protrudes horizontally from the edge of the 

wireless support structure more than twenty (20) feet, or 
more than the width of the wireless support structure at the 

level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater (except where 
necessary to shelter the antenna from inclement weather or 

to connect the antenna to the tower via cable);  
(c) increases the square footage of the existing equipment 

compound by more than 2,500 square feet.  
(307) Temporary Emergency, Construction, or Repair Residence - A 

residence (which may be a mobile home) that is:  
(a) located on the same lot as a residence made uninhabitable by 

fire, flood, or other natural disaster and occupied by the 

person displaced by such disaster, or  
(b) located on the same lot as a residence that is under 

construction or undergoing substantial repairs or 
reconstruction and occupied by the person intending to live in 

such permanent residence when the work is completed, or  
(c) located on a nonresidential construction site and occupied by 

persons having construction or security responsibilities over 
such construction site. 

(308) Temporary Sign - A sign utilized for a limited time which is not 
permanently anchored or secured to a building or the ground and 

may be easily moved from one location to another. Examples 
include air-activated motion signs, balloon signs, banner signs, yard 

signs, feather flag signs, portable message center signs, snipe 
signs, and sidewalk signs. 

042021 BCC Meeting

106



73 

 

(309) Ten-Year Storm - means the storm water runoff resulting from 
precipitation of an intensity expected to be equaled or exceeded, on 

the average, once in ten years, and of a duration which will produce 
the maximum peak rate of runoff for the watershed of interest 

under average antecedent wetness conditions. 
(310) Tower - A lattice-type structure, guyed or freestanding, that 

supports one or more antennas.  
(311) Tract, erosion control regulations - means all contiguous land 

and bodies of water being disturbed or to be disturbed as a unit, 
regardless of ownership. 

(312) Tract - A lot. The term tract is used interchangeably with the 
term lot, particularly in the context of subdivisions, where one 

“tract” is subdivided into several “lots.” 
(313) Transfer of Ownership or Control of a Sexually Oriented Business - 

means and includes any of the following:  

(a) the sale, lease, or sublease of the business;   
(b) the transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest 

in the business, whether by sale, exchange, or similar means; 
or  

(c) the establishment of a trust, gift, or other similar legal device 
which transfers the ownership or control of the business, 

except for transfer by bequest or other operation of law upon 
the death of the person possessing the ownership or control. 

(314) Travel Trailer - A structure that (i) is intended to be transported 
over the streets and highways (either as a motor vehicle or 

attached to or hauled by a motor vehicle) and (ii) is designed for 
temporary use as sleeping quarters but that does not satisfy one or 

more of the definitional criteria of a mobile home. 
(315) Twenty-five Year Storm - means the storm water runoff resulting 

from precipitation of an intensity expected to be equaled or 

exceeded on the average, once in 25 years, and of a duration which 
will produce the maximum peak rate of runoff for the watershed of 

interest under average antecedent wetness conditions. 
(316) Uncovered - means the removal of ground cover from, on, or 

above the soil surface. 
(317) Undertaken - means the initiating of any activity, or phase of 

activity, which results or will result in a change in the ground cover 
or topography of a tract of land. 

(318) Unit - A structure or portion of a structure which is a single, 
habitable dwelling or single place of business. 

(319) Unzoned Commercial Area - A site outside of municipal and 
county zoning jurisdiction which is within 660 feet of the nearest 

edge of the primary highway right of way and is actually used for 
commercial or industrial purposes.  

042021 BCC Meeting

107



74 

 

(320) Use - The activity or function that actually takes place or is 
intended to take place on a lot. 

(321) Utility Facilities - Any above-ground structures or facilities (other 
than  buildings, unless such buildings are used as storage incidental 

to operation of such structures or facilities) owned by a 
governmental entity, a nonprofit organization, a corporation, or any 

entity defined as a public utility for any purpose by the appropriate 
provision of state law and used in connection with the production, 

generation, transmission, delivery, collection, or storage of water, 
sewage, solid waste, electricity, gas, oil or electronic signals.  

Excepted from this definition are utility lines and supporting 
structures. 

(322) Utility Pole - A structure owned and/or operated by a public 
utility, municipality, electric membership corporation or rural 

electric cooperative that is designed specifically for and used to 

carry lines, cables, or wires for telephone, cable television, or 
electricity, or to provide lighting.  

(323) Variance - is a grant of relief from the requirements of this 
ordinance.  

(324) Vehicle Sign - A sign permanently or temporarily attached to or 
placed on a vehicle or trailer. 

(325) Velocity - means the average velocity of flow through the cross 
section of the main channel at the peak flow of the storm of 

interest.   The cross section of the main channel shall be that area 
defined by the geometry of the channel plus the area of flow below 

the flood height defined by vertical lines at the main channel banks.  
Overload flows are not to be included for the purpose of computing 

velocity of flow. 
(326) Vested Right - The right to undertake and complete the 

development and use of property under the terms and conditions of 

an approval secured as specified in G.S. 160D-108 or under 
common law. 

(327) Visible - Capable of being seen without visual aid by a person of 

normal acuity. 

(328) Wall Sign - A sign permanently attached to or painted on the 

wall of a building or structure in a plane parallel or approximately 
parallel to the plane of said wall. 

(329) Waste - means surplus materials resulting from on-site land-
disturbing activities and being disposed of at other locations. 

(330) Water Supply Systems – 
(a) Individual Systems.  A well, spring, stream or other source 

used to supply a single connection.  

042021 BCC Meeting

108



75 

 

(b) Community Systems.  A water system serving two (2) or 
more connections and not qualifying as a public water 

supply (PWS) under North Carolina regulations.   
(c) Public Systems.  A water system owned and/or operated by 

the county, any municipality, water district, property 
owner's association, or utility company that qualifies as a 

public water supply (PWS) under North Carolina regulations. 
(331) Water Surface Elevation (WSE) - means the height, in relation 

to mean sea level, of floods of various magnitudes and 
frequencies in the floodplains of riverine areas.  

(332) Water Tower - A water storage tank, or a standpipe or an 
elevated tank situated on a support structure, originally 

constructed for use as a reservoir or facility to store or deliver 
water. 

(333) Watercourse - means a lake, river, creek, stream, wash, 

channel or other topographic feature on or over which waters 
flow at least periodically. Watercourse includes specifically 

designated areas in which substantial flood damage may occur.  
(334) Wholesale Sales - On-premises sales of goods primarily to 

customers engaged in the business of reselling the goods. 

(335) Wind Turbine Height - The height above grade to the tip of the 

turbine blade when it reaches its highest elevation. 

(336) Window Sign - A sign viewable through and/or affixed in any 
manner to a window or exterior glass door such that it is intended 

to be viewable from the exterior (beyond the sidewalk immediately 
adjacent to the window), including signs located inside a building 

but visible primarily from the  outside of the building.  
(337) Window, Area of - The area of a single window includes all of the 

window panes in an area that is separated by mullions, muntins, or 
other dividers which are less than 3 inches wide. 

(338) Wireless Facility or Wireless Facilities - The set of equipment and 

network components, exclusive of the underlying wireless support 
structure, including, but not limited to, antennas, accessory 

equipment, transmitters, receivers, base stations, power supplies, 
cabling and associated equipment necessary to provide wireless 

telecommunications services.  
(339) Wireless Support Structure - A freestanding structure, such as a 

monopole or tower, designed to support wireless facilities. This 
definition does not include utility poles.  

(340) Wooded Area - An area if contiguous wooded vegetation where 
trees are at a density of at least one six-inch or greater caliper tree 

per 325 square feet of land and where the branches and leaves 
form a contiguous canopy. 

042021 BCC Meeting

109



76 

 

(341) Working Days - Days the Watauga County Administrative offices 
are open for business.  

(342) Yard Sales - An occasional sale (no more than two (2) in a 
twelve (12) month period) held for the purpose of disposing of 

personal property.  The term yard sale shall include attic sales, 
garage sales and patio sales. 

(343) Yard Setback - A required open space on a lot adjoining a lot 
line, containing only landscaping or other uses. (front)  A yard 

extending along the full width of a front line between side lot lines 
and from the front line to the front building line in depth, and the 

face of the building which is paralleled to a public road. (rear) A 
yard extending across the full width of the lot and lying between 

the rear lot line and the nearest line of the building. (side) A yard 
lying between the side line of the lot and nearest line of the building 

and extending from the front yard to the rear yard, or in the 

absence of either of such front or rear yards, to the front or rear lot 
lines. 

(344) Zoning Map Amendment or Rezoning - An amendment to a 
zoning regulation for the purpose of changing the zoning district 

that is applied to a specified property or properties. The term also 
includes (i) the initial application of zoning when land is added to 

the territorial jurisdiction of a local government that has previously 
adopted zoning regulations and (ii) the application of an overlay 

zoning district or a conditional zoning district. The term does not 
include (i) the initial adoption of a zoning map by a local 

government, (ii) the repeal of a zoning map and readoption of a 
new zoning map for the entire planning and development regulation 

jurisdiction, or (iii) updating the zoning map to incorporate 
amendments to the names of zoning districts made by zoning text 

amendments where there are no changes in the boundaries of the 

zoning district or land uses permitted in the district. 
(345) Zoning Permit - A permit issued by the zoning officer that 

authorizes the recipient to make use of property in accordance with 
the requirements of this ordinance. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

110



77 

 

CHAPTER 8  CONTROL OF SOIL EROSION AND 
SEDIMENTATION 

These regulations are enacted under the delegation of authority by the NC 

Sedimentation Control Commission, and pursuant to N.C.G.S. 113A, Article 

4, and consist of the model ordinance developed by the Commission, 

including local additions. 

Article I  Title 

This chapter may be cited as the Watauga County Soil Erosion and 

Sedimentation Control Ordinance. 

Article II  Purpose 

This chapter is adopted for the purposes of: 

(A) regulating certain land-disturbing activity to control accelerated 

erosion and sedimentation in order to prevent the pollution of water 

and other damage to lakes, watercourses, and other public and 

private property by sedimentation; and 

(B) establishing procedures through which these purposes can be 

fulfilled. 

Article III  Scope and Exclusions 

Section 1.  Geographical Scope of Regulated Land-Disturbing 

Activity.  

This chapter shall apply to land-disturbing activity within the territorial 

jurisdiction of the County and as allowed by agreement between local 

governments, the extent of annexation or other appropriate legal instrument 

or law. 

Section 2.  Exclusions from Regulated Land-Disturbing Activity. 

Notwithstanding the general applicability of this chapter to all land-disturbing 

activity, this chapter shall not apply to the following types of land-disturbing 

activity: 

(A) Activities, including the production and activities relating or 

incidental to the production of crops, grains, fruits, vegetables, 

ornamental and flowering plants, dairy, livestock, poultry, and all 

other forms of agriculture undertaken on agricultural land for the 

042021 BCC Meeting

111

https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByChapter/Chapter_113a.html
https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByChapter/Chapter_113a.html


78 

 

production of plants and animals useful to man, including, but not 

limited to: 

(1) forage and sod crops, grain and feed crops, tobacco, cotton, 

and peanuts. 

(2) dairy animals and dairy products. 

(3) poultry and poultry products. 

(4) livestock, including beef cattle, llamas, sheep, swine, horses, 

ponies, mules, and goats. 

(5) bees and apiary products. 

(6) fur producing animals.   

(7) mulch, ornamental plants, and other horticultural products. 

For purposes of this section, "mulch" means substances 

composed primarily of plant remains or mixtures of such 

substances. 

(B) An Activity undertaken on forestland for the production and 

harvesting of timber and timber products and conducted in 

accordance with standards defined by the Forest Practice Guidelines 

Related to Water Quality (Best Management Practices), as adopted 

by the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer 

Services.  If land-disturbing activity undertaken on forestland for 

the production and harvesting of timber and timber products is not 

conducted in accordance with standards defined by the Forest 

Practice Guidelines Related to Water Quality, the provisions of this 

ordinance shall apply to such activity and any related land-

disturbing activity on the tract. 

(C) An activity for which a permit is required under the Mining Act of 

1971, Article 7 of Chapter 74 of the N.C. General Statutes. 

(D) A land-disturbing activity over which the State has exclusive 

regulatory jurisdiction as provided in N.C.G.S. 113A-56(a). 

(E) An activity which is essential to protect human life during an 
emergency. 

(F) Activities undertaken to restore the wetland functions of converted 
wetlands to provide compensatory mitigation to offset impacts 

permitted under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. 
(G) Activities undertaken pursuant to Natural Resources Conservation 

Service standards to restore the wetlands functions of converted 
wetlands as defined in Title 7 Code of Federal Regulations § 12.2 

042021 BCC Meeting

112



79 

 

Section 3.  Plan Approval Requirement for Land-Disturbing Activity. 

No person shall undertake any land-disturbing activity subject to this 

ordinance without first obtaining an erosion and sedimentation control 

plan (hereinafter “Plan”) approval therefor from the County. 

Section 4.  Protection of Property. 

Persons conducting land-disturbing activity shall take all reasonable 

measures to protect all public and private property from damage caused by 

such activity. 

Section 5.  Plan Approval Exceptions. 

Notwithstanding the general requirement to obtain a Plan approval prior to 

undertaking land-disturbing activity, a Plan approval shall not be required for 

land-disturbing activity that does not exceed 21,780 square feet in surface 

area.  In determining the area, lands under one or diverse ownership being 

developed as a unit will be aggregated.   

Article IV  Mandatory Standards for Land-Disturbing Activity 

No land-disturbing activity subject to the control of this chapter shall be 

undertaken except in accordance with the following mandatory standards: 

Section 1.  Buffer Zone 

(A) Standard Buffer.  No land-disturbing activity during periods of 

construction or improvement to land shall be permitted in proximity 

to a lake or natural watercourse unless a buffer zone is provided 
along the margin of the watercourse of sufficient width to confine 

visible siltation within the twenty-five percent (25%) of the buffer 
zone nearest the land-disturbing activity. 

(1) Projects On, Over or Under Water.  This subdivision shall not 
apply to a land-disturbing activity in connection with the 

construction of facilities to be located on, over, or under a 
lake or natural watercourse. 

(2) Buffer Measurement.  Unless otherwise provided, the width of 
a buffer zone is measured horizontally from the edge of the 

water to the nearest edge of the disturbed area, with the 25 
percent of the strip nearer the land-disturbing activity 

containing natural or artificial means of confining visible 
siltation. 

(B) Trout Buffer.  Waters that have been classified as trout waters by 

042021 BCC Meeting

113



80 

 

the Environmental Management Commission shall have an 
undisturbed buffer zone 25 feet wide or of sufficient width to 

confine visible siltation within the twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
buffer zone nearest the land-disturbing activity, whichever is 

greater.  Provided, however, that the Commission may approve 
plans which include land-disturbing activity along trout waters when 

the duration of said disturbance would be temporary and the extent 
of said disturbance would be minimal. 

(1) Projects On, Over or Under Water.  This subdivision shall not 
apply to a land-disturbing activity in connection with the 

construction of facilities to be located on, over, or under a 
lake or natural watercourse. 

(2) Trout Buffer Measurement.  The 25-foot minimum width for 
an undisturbed buffer zone adjacent to designated trout 

waters shall be measured horizontally from the top of the 

bank to the nearest edge of the disturbed area. 
(3) Limit on Land Disturbance.  Where a temporary and minimal 

disturbance has been permitted as an exception to the trout 
buffer, land-disturbing activities in the buffer zone adjacent to 

designated trout waters shall be limited to a maximum of ten 
percent (10%) of the total length of the buffer zone within the 

tract to be disturbed such that there is not more than 100 
linear feet of disturbance in each 1000 linear feet of buffer 

zone.  Larger areas may be disturbed with the written 
approval of the Director. 

(4) Limit on Temperature Fluctuations.  No land-disturbing 
activity shall be undertaken within a buffer zone adjacent to 

designated trout waters that will cause adverse temperature 
fluctuations in the trout waters, as set forth in 15 NCAC 

2B.0211 “Fresh surface Water Classification and Standards.” 

Section 2.  Graded Slopes and Fills. 

The angle for graded slopes and fills shall be no greater than the angle that 

can be retained by vegetative cover or other adequate erosion control 
devices or structures.  In any event, slopes left exposed will, within 21 

calendar days of completion of any phase of grading, be planted or 
otherwise provided with temporary or permanent ground cover, devices, or 

structures sufficient to restrain erosion. The angle for graded slopes and fills 
must be demonstrated to be stable.  Stable is the condition where the soil 

remains in its original configuration, with or without mechanical constraints. 

Section 3.  Fill Material.   

Unless a permit from the Department’s Division of Waste Management to 

042021 BCC Meeting

114



81 

 

operate a landfill is on file for the official site, acceptable fill material shall be 
free of organic or other degradable materials, masonry, concrete and brick in 

sizes exceeding twelve (12) inches, and any materials which would cause 
the site to be regulated as a landfill by the State of North Carolina. 

Section 4.  Ground Cover.   

Whenever land-disturbing activity that will disturb more than one acre is 

undertaken on a tract, the person conducting the land-disturbing activity 
shall install erosion and sedimentation control devices and practices that are 

sufficient to retain the sediment generated by the land disturbing activity 
within the boundaries of the tract during construction upon and development 

of said tract, and shall plant or otherwise provide a permanent ground cover 
sufficient to restrain erosion after completion of construction or 

development.  Except as provided in Article VII Section 2 (E) of this chapter, 
provisions for a ground cover sufficient to restrain erosion must be 

accomplished within 15 working days or 90 calendar days following 

completion of construction or development, whichever period is shorter. 

Section 5.  Prior Plan Approval.   

No person shall initiate any land-disturbing activity that will disturb more 
than one acre on a tract unless, thirty (30) or more days prior to initiating 

the activity, a Plan for the activity is filed with and approved by the County 
or unless for land-disturbing activity of more than a half acre but less than 

an acre the requirement for such plan had been waived as specified in Article 
V.  The County will attempt to review plans as quickly as possible. The 

initiation of land-disturbing activities shall not be restricted when the plan is 
approved and permit issued in less than 30 days. 

The County shall forward to the Director of the Division of Water Resources a 
copy of each Plan for a land-disturbing activity that involves the utilization of 

ditches for the purpose of de-watering or lowering the water table of the 
tract. 

The land-disturbing activity shall be conducted in accordance with the 

approved erosion and sedimentation control plan. 

 

Article V  Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans 

Section 1.  Plan Submission.   

A Plan shall be prepared for all land-disturbing activities subject to this 

chapter whenever the proposed activity will disturb more than one-half acre 
on a tract.  For land-disturbing activity of a half-acre or more but less than 

one acre, the Watauga County Department of  Planning and Inspection may 

042021 BCC Meeting

115



82 

 

waive the submission of an erosion control plan if, upon site  inspection a 
determination is made that the site does not have the potential to cause 

erosion  or off-site damage. A plan is required for all land-disturbing activity 
of one acre or more.  Three (3) copies of the Plan shall be filed with the 

County; a copy shall be simultaneously submitted to the Watauga County 
Soil and Water Conservation District at least 30 days prior to the 

commencement of the proposed activity. 

Section 2.  Financial Responsibility and Ownership. 

Plans may be disapproved unless accompanied by an authorized statement 
of financial responsibility and ownership.  This statement shall be signed by 

the person financially responsible for the land-disturbing activity or his 
attorney in fact.  The statement shall include the mailing and street 

addresses of the principal place of business of (1) the person financially 
responsible, (2) the owner of the land, and (3) any registered agents.  If the 

person financially responsible is not a resident of North Carolina, a North 

Carolina agent must be designated in the statement for the purpose of 
receiving notice of compliance or non-compliance with the Plan, the Act, this 

ordinance, or rules or orders adopted or issued pursuant to this ordinance.  
Except as provided in sections (2) or (10) of this article, if the applicant is 

not the owner of the land to be disturbed, the draft erosion and 
sedimentation control plan must include the owner's written consent for the 

applicant to submit a draft erosion and sedimentation control plan and to 
conduct the anticipated land-disturbing activity. 

If the applicant is not the owner of the land to be disturbed and the 

anticipated land-disturbing activity involves the construction of utility lines 

for the provision of water, sewer, gas, telecommunications, or electrical 

service, the draft erosion and sedimentation control plan may be submitted 

without the written consent of the owner of the land, so long as the owner of 

the land has been provided prior notice of the project. 

Section 3.  Environmental Policy Act Document. 

Any Plan submitted for a land-disturbing activity for which an environmental 

document is required by the North Carolina Environment Policy Act (G.S. 

113A-1, et seq.) shall be deemed incomplete until a complete environmental 

document is available for review.  The County shall promptly notify the 

person submitting the Plan that the 30-day time limit for review of the Plan 

pursuant to this ordinance shall not begin until a complete environmental 

document is available for review. 

042021 BCC Meeting

116



83 

 

Section 4.  Content.  

The Plan required by this section shall contain architectural or engineering 

drawings, maps, assumptions, calculations, and narrative statements as 
needed to adequately describe the proposed development of the tract and 

the measures planned to comply with the requirements of this ordinance.  
Plan content may vary to meet the needs of specific site requirements.  

Detailed guidelines for Plan preparation may be obtained from the County on 

request. 

Section 5.  Soil and Water Conservation District Comments. 

The District shall review the Plan and submit any comments and 

recommendations to the County within 20 days after the District received 

the Plan, or within any shorter period of time as may be agreed upon by the 

District and the County.  Failure of the District to submit its comments and 

recommendations within 20 days or within any agreed-upon shorter period 

of time shall not delay final action on the Plan. 

Section 6.  Timeline for Decisions on Plans. 

The County will review each complete Plan submitted to them and within 30 

days of receipt thereof will notify the person submitting the Plan that it has 

been approved, approved with modifications, approved with performance 

reservations, or disapproved.  Failure to approve, approve with 

modifications, or disapprove a complete Plan within 30 days of receipt shall 

be deemed approval.  The County will review each revised Plan submitted to 

them and within 15 days of receipt thereof will notify the person submitting 

the Plan that it has been approved, approved with modifications, approved 

with performance reservations, or disapproved.  Failure to approve, approve 

with modifications, or disapprove a revised Plan within 15 days of receipt 

shall be deemed approval. 

Section 7.  Approval. 

The County shall only approve a Plan upon determining that it complies with 

all applicable State and local regulations for erosion and sedimentation 
control.  Approval assumes the applicant’s compliance with the federal and 

state water quality laws, regulations and rules.  The County shall condition 
approval of Plans upon the applicant’s compliance with federal and state 

water quality laws, regulations and rules.  The County may establish an 

expiration date, not to exceed three (3) years, for Plans approved under this 
ordinance. 

042021 BCC Meeting

117



84 

 

Section 8.  Disapproval for Content. 

The County may disapprove a Plan or draft Plan based on its content.  A 

disapproval based upon a Plan’s content must specifically state in writing the 
reasons for disapproval. 

Section 9.  Other Disapprovals. 

The County shall disapprove an erosion and sedimentation control plan if 

implementation of the plan would result in a violation of rules adopted by 

the Environmental Management Commission to protect riparian buffers 

along surface waters. The County may disapprove an erosion and 

sedimentation control plan or disapprove a transfer of a plan under 

section (10) of this a r t i c l e  upon finding that an applicant or a parent, 

subsidiary, or other affiliate of the applicant: 

 

(A) Is conducting or has conducted land-disturbing activity without an 

approved plan, or has received notice of violation of a plan 
previously approved by the Commission or a local government 

pursuant to N.C.G.S. 113A, Article 4 and has not complied with 
the notice within the time specified in the notice. 

(B) Has failed to pay a civil penalty assessed pursuant to said Article 
4 or a local ordinance adopted pursuant to said Article by the time 

the payment is due. 

(C) Has been convicted of a misdemeanor pursuant to N.C.G.S. 
113A-64(b) or any criminal provision of a local ordinance adopted 

pursuant to N.C.G.S. 113A, Article 4. 
(D) Has failed to substantially comply with State rules or local 

ordinances and regulations adopted pursuant to said Article V. 

In the event that an erosion and sedimentation control plan or a transfer of 

a plan is disapproved by the County pursuant to section (9) of this article, 

the local government shall so notify the Director of the Division of Energy, 

Mineral, and Land Resources within 10 days of the disapproval. The 

County shall advise the applicant or the proposed transferee and the 

Director in writing as to the specific reasons that the plan was 

disapproved. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article XVI, the applicant 

may appeal the local government's disapproval of the plan directly to 

the Commission.  

042021 BCC Meeting

118



85 

 

For purposes of this subsection, an applicant's record or the proposed 

transferee's record may be considered for only the two years prior to the 

application date. 

Section 10.  Transfer of Plan. 

The County administering an erosion and sedimentation control program 

may transfer an erosion and sedimentation control plan approved 

pursuant to this section without the consent of the plan holder to a 

successor-owner of the property on which the permitted activity is 

occurring or will occur as provided in this subsection. 

(A) The County may transfer a plan if all of the following conditions 

are met: 

(1) The successor-owner of the property submits to the local 
government a written request for the transfer of the plan 

and an authorized statement of financial responsibility and 
ownership. 

(2) The County finds all of the following: 
(a) The plan holder is one of the following: 

(i.) A natural person who is deceased. 

(ii.) A partnership, limited liability corporation, 

corporation, or any other business 
association that has been dissolved. 

(iii.) A person who has been lawfully and 
finally divested of title to the property on 

which the permitted activity is occurring or 
will occur. 

(iv.) A person who has sold the property on 
which the permitted activity is occurring or 

will occur. 
(b) The successor-owner holds title to the property on 

which the permitted activity is occurring or will occur. 

(c) The successor-owner is the sole claimant of the right to 
engage in the permitted activity. 

(d) There will be no substantial change in the permitted 
activity. 

(B) The plan holder shall comply with all terms and conditions of the 
plan until such time as the plan is transferred. 

(C) The successor-owner shall comply with all terms and conditions of 
the plan once the plan has been transferred. 

(D) Notwithstanding changes to law made after the original issuance of 
the plan, the County may not impose new or different terms and 

042021 BCC Meeting

119



86 

 

conditions in the plan without the prior express consent of the 
successor-owner. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the 

County from requiring a revised plan pursuant to G.S. 113A-
54.1(b). 

Section 11.  Notice of Activity Initiation. 

No person may initiate a land-disturbing activity before notifying the 

agency that issued the Plan approval of the date that land-disturbing 

activity will begin. 

Section 12.  Preconstruction Conference. 

When deemed necessary by the approving authority a preconstruction 

conference may be required. 

Section 13.  Display of Plan Approval. 

A Plan approval issued under this article shall be prominently displayed until 

all construction is complete, all permanent sedimentation and erosion control 
measures are installed, and the site has been stabilized.  A copy of the 

approved plan shall be kept on file at the job site. 

Section 14.  Required Revisions. 

After approving a Plan, if the County either upon review of such Plan or on 

inspection of the job site, determines that a significant risk of accelerated 

erosion or off-site sedimentation exists, the County shall require a revised 

Plan.  Pending the preparation of the revised Plan, work shall cease or shall 

continue under conditions outlined by the appropriate authority. If following 

commencement of a land-disturbing activity pursuant to an approved Plan, 

the County determines that the Plan is inadequate to meet the requirements 

of this ordinance, the County may require any revision of the Plan that is 

necessary to comply with this ordinance. 

Section 15.  Amendment to a Plan. 

Applications for amendment of a Plan in written and/or graphic form may be 

made at any time under the same conditions as the original application.  

Until such time as said amendment is approved by the County, the land-

disturbing activity shall not proceed except in accordance with the Plan as 

originally approved. 

042021 BCC Meeting

120



87 

 

Section 16.  Failure to File a Plan. 

Any person engaged in land-disturbing activity who fails to file a Plan in 

accordance with this chapter, or who conducts a land-disturbing activity 

except in accordance with provisions of an approved Plan shall be deemed in 

violation of this chapter. 

Section 17.  Self-Inspections. 

The landowner, the financially responsible party, or the landowner's or the 

financially responsible party's agent shall perform an inspection of the area 

covered by the plan after each phase of the plan has been completed and 

after establishment of temporary ground cover in accordance with G.S. 

113A-57(2). The person who performs the inspection shall maintain and 

make available a record of the inspection at the site of the land-disturbing 

activity. The record shall set out any significant deviation from the approved 

erosion control plan, identify any measures that may be required to correct 

the deviation, and document the completion of those measures. The record 

shall be maintained until permanent ground cover has been established as 

required by the approved erosion and sedimentation control plan. The 

inspections required by this subsection shall be in addition to inspections 

required by G.S. 113A-61.1. 

Where inspections are required by this section and G.S. 113A-54.1(e), the 

following apply: 

(A) The person who performs the inspection shall make a record of the 

site inspection by documenting the following items: 
(1) all of the erosion and sedimentation control measures, 

practices and devices, as called for in a construction sequence 

consistent with the approved erosion and sedimentation 
control plan, including but not limited to sedimentation 

control basins, sedimentation traps, sedimentation ponds, 
rock dams, temporary diversions,  temporary slope drains, 

rock check dams, sediment fence or barriers, all forms of inlet 
protection, storm drainage facilities, energy dissipaters, and 

stabilization methods of open channels, have initially been 
installed and do not significantly deviate (as defined in 

Section 17 (A)(5) of this Rule) from the locations, dimensions 
and relative elevations shown on the approved erosion and 

sedimentation plan. Such documentation shall be 
accomplished by initialing and dating each measure or 

practice shown on a copy of the approved erosion and 

042021 BCC Meeting

121



88 

 

sedimentation control plan or by completing, dating and 
signing an inspection report that lists each measure, practice 

or device shown on the approved erosion and sedimentation 
control plan. This documentation is required only upon the 

initial installation of the erosion and sedimentation control 
measures, practices and devices as set forth by the approved 

erosion and sedimentation control plan or if the measures, 
practices and devices are modified after initial installation; 

(2) the completion of any phase of grading for all graded slopes 
and fills shown on the approved erosion and sedimentation 

control plan, specifically noting the location and condition of 
the graded slopes and fills. Such documentation shall be 

accomplished by initialing and dating a copy of the approved 
erosion and sedimentation control plan or by completing, 

dating and signing an inspection report; 

(3) the location of temporary or permanent ground cover, and 
that the installation of the ground cover does not significantly 

deviate (as defined in Section 17(A)(5) of this Rule) from the 
approved erosion and sedimentation control plan. Such 

documentation shall be accomplished by initialing and dating 
a copy of the approved erosion and sedimentation control 

plan or by completing, dating and signing an inspection 
report; 

(4) that maintenance and repair requirements for all temporary 
and permanent erosion and sedimentation control measures, 

practices and devices have been performed. Such 
documentation shall be accomplished by completing, dating 

and signing an inspection report (the general storm water 
permit monitoring form may be used to verify the 

maintenance and repair requirements); and 

(5) any significant deviations from the approved erosion and 
sedimentation control plan, corrective actions required to 

correct the deviation and completion of the corrective actions. 
Such documentation shall be accomplished by initialing and 

dating a copy of the approved erosion and sedimentation 
control plan or by completing, dating and signing an 

inspection report. A significant deviation means an omission, 
alteration or relocation of an erosion or sedimentation control 

measure that prevents the measure from performing as 
intended. 

(B) The documentation, whether on a copy of the approved erosion and 
sedimentation control plan or an inspection report, shall include the 

name, address, affiliation, telephone number, and signature of the 
person conducting the inspection and the date of the inspection. 

042021 BCC Meeting

122



89 

 

Any relevant licenses and certifications may also be included. Any 
documentation of inspections that occur on a copy of the approved 

erosion and sedimentation control plan shall occur on a single copy 
of the plan and that plan shall be made available on the site. Any 

inspection reports shall also be made available on the site. 
(C) The inspection shall be performed during or after each of the 

following phases of a plan: 
(1) installation of perimeter erosion and sediment control 

measures; 
(2) clearing and grubbing of existing ground cover; 

(3) completion of any phase of grading of slopes or fills that 
requires provision of temporary or permanent ground cover 

pursuant to G.S. 113A-57(2); 
(4) completion of storm drainage facilities; 

(5) completion of construction or development; and 

(6) quarterly until the establishment of permanent ground cover 
sufficient to restrain erosion or until the financially responsible 

party has conveyed ownership or control of the tract of land 
for which the erosion and sedimentation control plan has been 

approved and the agency that approved the plan has been 
notified. If the financially responsible party has conveyed 

ownership or control of the tract of land for which the erosion 
and sedimentation control plan has been approved, the new 

owner or person in control shall conduct and document 
inspections quarterly until the establishment of permanent 

ground cover sufficient to restrain erosion. 
 

Article VI  Basic Control Objectives 

An erosion and sedimentation control Plan may be disapproved if the Plan 

fails to address the following control objectives: 

Section 1.  Identify Critical Areas. 

On-site areas which are subject to severe erosion, and off-site areas which 

are especially vulnerable to damage from erosion and/or sedimentation, are 

to be identified and receive special attention. 

Section 2.  Limit Time of Exposure. 

All land-disturbing activities are to be planned and conducted to limit 

exposure to the shortest feasible time. 

042021 BCC Meeting

123



90 

 

Section 3.  Limit Exposed Areas. 

All land-disturbing activity is to be planned and conducted to minimize the 

size of the area to be exposed at any one time. 

Section 4.  Control Surface Water. 

Surface water runoff originating upgrade of exposed areas should be 

controlled to reduce erosion and sediment loss during the period of 

exposure. 

Section 5.  Control Sedimentation. 

All land-disturbing activity is to be planned and conducted so as to prevent 

off-site sedimentation damage. 

Section 6.  Manage Storm Water Runoff. 

When the increase in the velocity of storm water runoff resulting from a 

land-disturbing activity is sufficient to cause accelerated erosion of the 

receiving watercourse, a Plan is to include measures to control the velocity 

to the point of discharge so as to minimize accelerated erosion of the site 

and increased sedimentation of the stream. 

Article VII  Design and Performance Standards 

Section 1.  Non-High Quality Water Zones. 

Except as provided in Section 2(B) of this Article, erosion and sedimentation 

control measures, structures, and devices shall be planned, designed, and 

constructed to provide protection from the calculated maximum peak rate of 

runoff from the ten-year storm.  Runoff rates shall be calculated using the 

procedures in the USDA, Soil Conservation Service’s “National Engineering 

Field Manual for Conservation Practices”, or other acceptable calculation 

procedures. 

Section 2.  HQW Zones. 

In High Quality Water (HQW) zones the following design standards shall 

apply: 

(A) Limit on Uncovered Area.  Uncovered areas in HQW zones shall be 
limited at any time to a maximum total area of twenty acres within 

042021 BCC Meeting

124



91 

 

the boundaries of the tract.  Only the portion of the land-disturbing 
activity within a HQW zone shall be governed by this section.  

Larger areas may be uncovered within the boundaries of the tract 
with the written approval of the Director. 

(B) Maximum Peak Rate of Runoff Protection.  Erosion and 
sedimentation control measures, structures, and devices within 

HQW zones shall be planned, designed and constructed to provide 
protection from the runoff of the twenty-five year storm which 

produces the maximum peak rate of runoff as calculated according 
to procedures in the United States Department of Agriculture Soil 

Conservation Service’s “National Engineering Field Manual for 
Conservation Practices” or according to procedures adopted by any 

other agency of this state or the United States or any generally 
recognized organization or association. 

(C) Settling Efficiency.  Sediment basins within HQW zones shall be 

designed and constructed such that the basin will have a settling 
efficiency of at least 70% for the 40 micron (0.04 millimeter) size 

soil particle transported into the basin by the runoff of that two year 
storm which produces the maximum peak rate of runoff as 

calculated according to procedures in the United States Department 
of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service’s “National Engineering 

Field Manual for Conservation Practices” or according to procedures 
adopted by any other agency of this state or the United States or 

any generally recognized organization or association. 
(D) Grade.  Newly constructed open channels in HQW zones shall be 

designed and constructed with side slopes no steeper than two 
horizontal to one vertical if a vegetative cover is used for 

stabilization unless soil conditions permit a steeper slope or where 
the slopes are stabilized by using mechanical devices, structural 

devices or other acceptable ditch liners.  In any event, the angle for 

side slopes shall be sufficient to restrain accelerated erosion. 
(E) Ground Cover.  Ground cover sufficient to restrain erosion must be 

provided for any portion of a land-disturbing activity in a HQW zone 
within 15 working days or 60 calendar days following completion of 

construction or development, whichever period is shorter. 

Article VIII  Storm Water Outlet Protection 

Section 1.  Intent. 

Stream banks and channels downstream from any land disturbing activity 

shall be protected from increased degradation by accelerated erosion caused 

by increased velocity of runoff from the land disturbing activity. 

042021 BCC Meeting

125



92 

 

Section 2.  Performance standard. 

Persons shall conduct land-disturbing activity so that the post construction 

velocity of the 10-year storm runoff in the receiving watercourse to the 

discharge point does not exceed the greater of: 

(A) the velocity established by the Maximum Permissible Velocities 

Table set out within this subsection; or 
(B) the velocity of the ten-year storm runoff in the receiving 

watercourse prior to development. 

If condition (A) or (B) of this Paragraph cannot be met, then the 

receiving watercourse to and including the discharge point shall be 

designed and constructed to withstand the expected velocity 

anywhere the velocity exceeds the “prior to development” velocity 

by 10%. 

Maximum Permissible Velocities Table 

The following is a table for maximum permissible velocity for storm 

water discharges in feet per second (F.P.S.) and meters per second 

(M.P.S.): 

Material F.P.S.  M.P.S. 

    
Fine sand (noncolloidal) 2.5  .8 

Sandy loam (noncolloidal) 2.5  .8 
Silt loam (noncolloidal) 3.0  .9 

Ordinary firm loam 3.5  1.1 

Fine gravel 5.0  1.5 
Stiff clay (very colloidal) 5.0  1.5 

Graded, loam to cobbles 
(noncolloidal) 

5.0  1.5 

Graded, silt to cobbles (Colloidal) 5.5  1.7 
Alluvial silts (noncolloidal) 3.5  1.1 

Alluvial silts (colloidal) 5.0  1.5 
Coarse gravel (noncolloidal) 6.0  1.8 

Cobbles and shingles 5.5  1.7 
Shales and hard pans 6.0  1.8 

Source - Adapted from recommendations by Special Committee on Irrigation 

Research, American Society of Civil Engineers, 1926, for channels with 
straight alignment.  For sinuous channels, multiply allowable velocity by 0.95 

for slightly sinuous, by 0.9 for moderately sinuous channels, and by 0.8 for 

highly sinuous channels. 

042021 BCC Meeting

126



93 

 

Section 3.  Acceptable Management Measures. 

Measures applied alone or in combination to satisfy the intent of this section 

are acceptable if there are no objectionable secondary consequences.  The 

County recognizes that the management of storm water runoff to minimize 

or control downstream channel and bank erosion is a developing technology.  

Innovative techniques and ideas will be considered and may be used when 

shown to have the potential to produce successful results.  Some 

alternatives, while not exhaustive, are to: 

(A) Avoid increases in surface runoff volume and velocity by including 
measures to promote infiltration to compensate for increased runoff 

from areas rendered impervious; 
(B) Avoid increases in storm water discharge velocities by using 

vegetated or roughened swales and waterways in place of closed 
drains and high velocity paved sections: 

(C) Provide energy dissipators at outlets of storm drainage facilities to 
reduce flow velocities to the point of discharge; 

(D) Protect watercourses subject to accelerated erosion by improving 

cross sections and/or providing erosion-resistant lining; and 
(E) Upgrade or replace the receiving device structure, or watercourse 

such that it will receive and conduct the flow to a point where it is 
no longer subject to degradation from the increased rate of flow or 

increased velocity. 

Section 4.  Exceptions. 

This rule shall not apply where it can be demonstrated to the County that 

storm water discharge velocities will not create an erosion problem in the 

receiving watercourse. 

Article IX  Borrow and Waste Areas 

When the person conducting the land-disturbing activity is also the person 

conducting the borrow or waste disposal activity, areas from which borrow 

is obtained and which are not regulated by the provisions of the Mining Act 

of 1971, and waste areas for surplus materials other than landfills regulated 

by the Department’s Division of Waste Management shall be considered as 

part of the land-disturbing activity where the borrow material is being used 

or from which the waste material originated.  When the person conducting 

the land-disturbing activity is not the person obtaining the borrow and/or 

disposing of the waste, these areas shall be considered a separate land-

042021 BCC Meeting

127



94 

 

disturbing activity. 

Article X  Access and Haul Roads 

Temporary access and haul roads, other than public roads, constructed or 

used in connection with any land-disturbing activity shall be considered a 

part of such activity. 

Article XI  Operations in Lakes or Natural Watercourses 

Land disturbing activity in connection with construction in, on, over, or under 

a lake or natural watercourse shall minimize the extent and duration of 

disruption of the stream channel. Where relocation of a stream forms an 

essential part of the proposed activity, the relocation shall minimize 

unnecessary changes in the stream flow characteristics. 

Article XII  Responsibility for Maintenance 

During the development of a site, the person conducting the land-disturbing 

activity shall install and maintain all temporary and permanent erosion and 

sedimentation control measures as required by the approved plan or any 

provision of this Chapter, the Act, or any order adopted pursuant to this 

Chapter or the Act.  After site development, the landowner or person in 

possession or control of the land shall install and/or maintain all necessary 

permanent erosion and sediment control measures, except those measures 

installed within a road or street right-of-way or easement accepted for 

maintenance by a governmental agency. 

Article XIII  Additional Measures 

Whenever the County determines that significant erosion and sedimentation 

is occurring as a result of land-disturbing activity, despite application and 

maintenance of protective practices, the person conducting the land-

disturbing activity will be required to and shall take additional protective 

action. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

128



95 

 

Article XIV  Existing Uncovered Areas 

Section 1.  Applicability 

All uncovered areas existing on the effective date of this ordinance which 

resulted from land-disturbing activity, exceed one acre, are subject to 

continued accelerated erosion, and are causing off-site damage from 

sedimentation, shall be provided with a ground cover or other protective 

measures, structures, or devices sufficient to restrain accelerated erosion 

and control off-site sedimentation. 

Section 2.  Written Notice 

The County shall serve upon the landowner or other person in possession or 

control of the land a written notice to comply with the Act, this ordinance, a 

rule or order adopted or issued pursuant to the Act by the Commission or by 

the County.  The notice to comply shall be sent by registered or certified 

mail, return receipt requested, or other means provided in GS 1A-1, Rule 4.  

The notice will set forth the measures needed to comply and will state the 

time within which such measures must be completed.  In determining the 

measures required and the time allowed for compliance, the authority 

serving notice shall take into consideration the economic feasibility, 

technology, and quantity of work required, and shall set reasonable and 

attainable time limits of compliance. 

Section 3.  Right to Require Plan. 

The County reserves the right to require preparation and approval of a Plan 

in any instance where extensive control measures are required. 

Section 4.  Future Planned Reservoir. 

This rule shall not require ground cover on cleared land forming the future 

basin of a planned reservoir. 

Article XV  Fees 
 

The County may establish a fee schedule for the review and approval of 

plans.  In establishing the fee schedule, the County shall consider the 
administrative and personnel costs incurred for reviewing the plans and for 

related compliance activities. 

042021 BCC Meeting

129



96 

 

Article XVI  Plan Appeals 

Section 1.  Disapprovals 

Except as provided in Section 2 of this Article, the appeal of a disapproval or 

approval with modifications of a plan shall be governed by the following 

provisions: 

(A) The disapproval or modification of any proposed plan by the County 
shall entitle the person submitting the plan to a public hearing if 

such person submits written demand for a hearing within 15 days 
after receipt of written notice of disapproval or modifications. 

(B) A hearing held pursuant to this section shall be conducted by the 

Watauga County Planning Board within thirty (30) days after the 
date of the written appeal or request for a hearing. 

(C) The Planning Board shall make recommendations to the Board of 
Commissioners within seven (7) days after the date of the hearing 

on any plan. 
(D) The Board of Commissioners will render its final decision on any 

plan within five (5) days of receipt of the recommendations from 
the agency conducting the hearing. 

(E) If the Board of Commissioners upholds the disapproval or 
modification of a proposed plan following the hearing, the person 

submitting the plan shall then be entitled to appeal the County’s 
decision to the Commission as provided in G.S. 113A-61(c) and 15A 

NCAC 4B .0118(d) 

Section 2.  Other Disapprovals 

In the event that a plan is disapproved pursuant to Article V Section 9 of this 

Chapter, the applicant may appeal the County’s disapproval of the plan 

directly to the Commission. 

Article XVII  Inspections and Investigations 

Section 1.  Inspection. 

Agents, officials, or other qualified persons authorized by the County will 

periodically inspect land-disturbing activities to ensure compliance with the 

Act, this chapter, or rules or orders adopted or issued pursuant to this 

chapter, and to determine whether the measures required in the Plan are 

effective in controlling erosion and sedimentation resulting from land-

disturbing activity.  Notice of the right to inspect shall be included in the 

certificate of approval of each Plan. 

042021 BCC Meeting

130



97 

 

Section 2.  Willful Resistance, Delay or Obstruction. 

No person shall willfully resist, delay, or obstruct an authorized 

representative, employee, or agent of the County while that person is 

inspecting or attempting to inspect a land-disturbing activity under this 

section. 

Section 3.  Notice of Violation. 

If the County determines that a person engaged in land-disturbing activity 

has failed to comply with the Act, this chapter, or rules, or orders adopted or 

issued pursuant to this chapter, a notice of violation shall be served upon 

that person.  The notice may be served by any means authorized under GS 

1A-1, Rule 4.  The notice shall specify a date by which the person must 

comply with the Act, or this ordinance, or rules, or orders adopted pursuant 

to this chapter, and inform the person of the actions that need to be taken 

to comply with the Act, this chapter, or rules or orders adopted pursuant to 

this chapter.  Any person who fails to comply within the time specified is 

subject to additional civil and criminal penalties for a continuing violation as 

provided in G.S. 113A-64 and this chapter. 

Section 4.  Investigation. 

The County shall have the power to conduct such investigation as it may 

reasonably deem necessary to carry out its duties as prescribed in this 

chapter, and for this purpose to enter at reasonable times upon any 

property, public or private, for the purpose of investigating and inspecting 

the sites of any land-disturbing activity. 

Section 5.  Statements and Reports. 

The County shall also have the power to require written statements, or filing 

of reports under oath, with respect to pertinent questions relating to land-

disturbing activity. 

Article XVIII  Stop Orders   
 

Wherever land-disturbing activity is being undertaken in a manner which is 
in violation of this chapter, the Watauga County Department of Planning and 

Inspection may order the work that is in violation to be immediately 
stopped. The stop order shall be in writing and directed to the person 

responsible for the violation, and shall state the specific work to be stopped, 

042021 BCC Meeting

131



98 

 

the specific reasons for the stoppage, and the conditions under which the 
work may be resumed. Appeals from a stop order shall be made as 

prescribed in Article XVI of this chapter.  Pending the ruling on the appeal, 
no further work may take place in violation of a stop order. Violation of a 

stop order constitutes a misdemeanor.  
In addition, in accordance with N.C.G.S. 160D-404(b), the Watauga County 

Building Inspectors are authorized to issue stop orders for building permits 
where violations of this ordinance are taking place in connection with 

construction authorized by the building permit.  
 

Article XIX  Revocation of Grading Permits  

The Watauga County Department of Planning and Inspections may revoke 

and require the return of any permit by giving written notice to the permit 
holder, stating the reason for the revocation.  Permits shall be revoked for 

any substantial departure from the approved application or plans and 

specifications, for refusal or failure to comply with the requirements of any 
applicable State or local laws or local ordinances or regulations, or for false 

statements or misrepresentations made in securing the permit. A permit 
mistakenly issued in violation of an applicable State or local law or local 

ordinance or regulation also may be revoked.  
 

Article XX  Building Permits  

No permits for any building or structure shall be issued upon any land 

requiring submission of a soil erosion control plan and issuance of a grading 
permit until such plan is submitted and permit issued.  

 
Article XXI  Security Required 

The applicant for a permit may, prior to commencing any land-disturbing  
activity, be required to file with Watauga County an improvement security in 

the form of an escrow account, surety  bond, irrevocable letter of credit, or 

other undertaking satisfactory to the County  Attorney, in an amount 
deemed sufficient by the Watauga County Department of Planning and 

Inspections, to cover all costs of protection or other improvements required 
to establish  protective cover on the site in conformity with this chapter. 

Such security shall remain in force until the improvements are completed in 
accordance with the approved plan and said improvements are finally 

inspected and approved as set out in paragraph below.  
 

Upon completion of the improvements as required by this chapter, written 
notice thereof shall be given by the applicant to the Department of Planning 

and Inspections and the Department shall cause an inspection of the 

042021 BCC Meeting

132



99 

 

improvements to be made and, if approved, shall within 30 days of the date 
of notice authorize in writing the release of the security given provided that 

the improvements have been made in accordance with the approved plan 
and this chapter.  

 
The security shall be forfeited upon violation of this chapter and shall be 

used to establish protective cover on the site.  Any monies in excess of the 
cost of establishing protective cover shall be refunded.  

 
Article XXII  Penalties 

Section 1.  Civil Penalties. 

(A) Civil Penalty for a Violation.  Any person who violates any of the 

provisions of this chapter, or rule or order adopted or issued 
pursuant to this chapter, or who initiates or continues a land-

disturbing activity for which a Plan is required except in accordance 

with the terms, conditions, and provisions of an approved Plan, is 
subject to a civil penalty.  The maximum civil penalty amount that 

the County may assess per violation is five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00).  A civil penalty may be assessed from the date of the 

violation.  Each day of a continuing violation shall constitute a 
separate violation.  When the person has not been assessed any 

civil penalty under this subsection for any previous violation, and 
that person abated continuing environmental damage resulting 

from the violation within 180 days from the date of the notice of 
violation, the maximum cumulative total civil penalty assessed 

under this subsection for all violations associated with the land-
disturbing activity for which the erosion and sedimentation control 

plan is required is twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000).] 
(B) Civil Penalty Assessment Factors.  The governing body of the 

County shall determine the amount of the civil penalty based upon 

the following factors: 
(1) the degree and extent of harm caused by the violation, 

(2) the cost of rectifying the damage,  
(3) the amount of money the violator saved by noncompliance, 

(4) whether the violation was committed willfully, and 
(5) the prior record of the violator in complying of failing to 

comply with this chapter. 
(C) Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment.  The governing body of the 

County shall provide notice of the civil penalty amount and basis for 
assessment to the person assessed.  The notice of assessment shall 

be served by any means authorized under G.S. 1A-1, Rule 4.  A 
notice of assessment by the County shall direct the violator to 

042021 BCC Meeting

133



100 

 

either pay the assessment,  contest the assessment within 30 
days by filing a petition for hearing with the County (as directed 

by procedures within the local ordinances or regulations adopted to 
establish and enforce the erosion and sedimentation control 

program), or file a request with the Sedimentation Control 
Commission for remission of the assessment within 60 days of 

receipt of the notice.  A remission request must be accompanied by 
a waiver of the right to a contested case hearing pursuant to 

Chapter 150B of the North Carolina General Statutes and a 
stipulation of the facts on which the assessment was based.  

(D) Final Decision: The final decision on contested assessments shall be 
made by the Board of Commissioners in accordance with this 

ordinance. 
(E) Appeal of Final Decision.  Appeal from the final decision of the 

Board of Commissioners shall be to the Superior Court of the 

county where the violation occurred.  Such appeals must be made 
within 30 days of the final decision of the Board of Commissioners. 

(F) Collection.  If payment is not received within 60 days after it is due, 
the County may institute a civil action to recover the amount of the 

assessment.  The civil action may be brought in the Superior Court 
of the county where the violation occurred, or the violator’s 

residence or principal place of business is located.  Such civil 
actions must be filed within three (3) years of the date the 

assessment was due.  An assessment that is not contested is due 
when the violator is served with a notice of assessment.  An 

assessment that is contested is due at the conclusion of the 
administrative and judicial review of the assessment.  

(G) Credit of Civil Penalties.  The clear proceeds of civil penalties 
collected by the County under this subsection shall be remitted to 

the Civil Penalty and Forfeiture Fund in accordance with G.S. 115C-

457.2.  Penalties collected by the County may be diminished only 
by the actual costs of collection.  The collection cost percentage to 

be used shall be established and approved by the North Carolina 
Office of State Budget and Management on an annual basis, based 

upon the computation of actual collection costs by each County for 
the prior fiscal year.   

[In any event, the cost percentage shall not exceed twenty percent 

(20%) of penalties collected.]  

Section 2.  Criminal Penalties. 

Any person who knowingly or willfully violates any provision of this chapter, 

or rule or order adopted or issued pursuant to this chapter, or who 

knowingly or willfully initiates or continues a land-disturbing activity for 

042021 BCC Meeting

134



101 

 

which a Plan is required except in accordance with the terms, conditions, 

and provisions of an approved Plan, shall be guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor 

which may include a fine not to exceed $5,000 as provided in G.S. § 113A-

64. 

Article XXIII  Injunctive Relief 

Section 1.  Violation of Local Program. 

Whenever the Board of Commissioners has reasonable cause to believe that 

any person is violating or threatening to violate any ordinance, rule, 

regulation or order adopted or issued by the County or any term, condition, 

or provision of an approved Plan, it may, either before or after the institution 

of any other action or proceeding authorized by this chapter, institute a civil 

action in the name of the County for injunctive relief to restrain the violation 

or threatened violation.  The action shall be brought in the superior court of 

the county in which the violation is occurring or is threatened. 

Section 2.  Abatement of Violation. 

Upon determination by a court that an alleged violation is occurring or is 

threatened, the court shall enter any order or judgment that is necessary to 

abate the violation, to ensure that restoration is performed, or to prevent 

the threatened violation.  The institution of an action for injunctive relief 

under this section shall not relieve any party to the proceedings from any 

civil or criminal penalty prescribed for violations of this chapter. 

Article XXIV  Restoration After Non-Compliance 

The County may require a person who engaged in a land-disturbing activity 

and failed to retain sediment generated by the activity, as required by G.S. 

113A-57 (3), to restore the waters and land affected by the failure so as to 

minimize the detrimental effects of the resulting pollution by sedimentation.  

This authority is in addition to any other civil or criminal penalty or injunctive 

relief authorized under this chapter. 

 

Article XXV  Effective Date 

February 20, 2019 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

135



102 

 

CHAPTER 9  FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION  
 

Article I  Statutory Authorizations, Findings of Fact, Purpose, & 
Objectives 

 

Section 1. Statutory Authorization.  

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of 

Chapter 143; Part 2, Article 9 of Chapter 160D; and Part 121, Article 6 of 
Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes, delegated to local 

governmental units the responsibility to adopt regulations designed to 
promote the public health, safety, and general welfare. Therefore, the 

Board of Commissioners of Watauga County, North Carolina, enacts the 
following:  

Section 2. Findings of Fact.  

(A) The flood prone areas within the jurisdiction of Watauga County 

are subject to periodic inundation which results in loss of life, 
property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and 

governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures of 
flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of 

which adversely affect the public health, safety, and general 
welfare.  

(B) These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of 

obstructions in floodplains causing increases in flood heights and 
velocities and by the occupancy in flood prone areas of uses 

vulnerable to floods or other hazards.   

Section 3. Statement of Purpose.  

(A) It is the purpose of this chapter to promote public health, safety, 
and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses 

due to flood conditions within flood prone areas by provisions 
designed to:   

(B) restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, and 
property due to water or erosion hazards or that result in 

damaging increases in erosion, flood heights or velocities;  
(C) require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities that 

serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time 
of initial construction;  

(D) control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, 

and natural protective barriers, which are involved in the 
accommodation of floodwaters;  

042021 BCC Meeting

136



103 

 

(E) control filling, grading, dredging, and all other development that 
may increase erosion or flood damage; and  

(F) prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will 
unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood 

hazards to other lands.  

Section 4. Objectives.  

(A) The objectives of this chapter are to:  
(B) protect human life, safety, and health;  

(C) minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control 
project;  

(D) minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with 
flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general 

public;  
(E) minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;  

(F) minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and 

gas mains, electric, telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets, 
and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;  

(G) help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use 
and development of flood prone areas; and  

(H) ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a 
Special Flood Hazard Area.  

  
Article II  General Provisions  

Section 1.  Lands To Which This Ordinance Applies. 

This chapter shall apply to all Special Flood Hazard Areas within the 

jurisdiction of Watauga County and within the jurisdiction of any other 
community whose governing body agrees, by resolution, to such 

applicability.   

Section 2.  Basis For Establishing The Special Flood Hazard Areas. 

The Special Flood Hazard Areas are those identified under the 

Cooperating Technical State (CTS) agreement between the State of North 
Carolina and FEMA in its Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and its 

accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), for Watauga County 
most recently officially adopted by FEMA and the State of NC version of 

such maps, which are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of 
this chapter.  The initial Flood Insurance Rate Maps are as follows for the 

jurisdictional areas at the initial date: Watauga County Unincorporated 
Area, dated June 18, 1980.  

042021 BCC Meeting

137



104 

 

Section 3.  Establishment Of Floodplain Development Permit. 

A Floodplain Development Permit shall be required in conformance with 

the provisions of this chapter prior to the commencement of any 
development activities within Special Flood Hazard Areas determined in 

accordance with the provisions of Section B of this Article.  

Section 4. Compliance. 

No structure or land shall hereafter be located, extended, converted, 
altered, or developed in any way without full compliance with the terms 

of this chapter and other applicable regulations.   

Section 5. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions. 

This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing 
easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this chapter 

and another conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent 
restrictions shall prevail.   

Section 6. Interpretation. 

In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions shall 
be:  

(A) considered as minimum requirements; 
(B) liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and  

(C) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted 
under State statutes.   

Section 7. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability. 

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered 

reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and 
engineering consideration. Larger floods can and will occur. Actual flood 

heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This ordinance 
does not imply that land outside the Special Flood Hazard Areas or uses 

permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. 
This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of Watauga County or 

by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from 

reliance on this ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made 
hereunder.  
  

042021 BCC Meeting

138



105 

 

Article III  Administration  

Section 1. Designation of Floodplain Administrator. 

The Director or other authorized staff of the Watauga County Department 
of Planning and Inspections, hereinafter referred to as the “Floodplain 

Administrator”, is hereby appointed to administer and implement the 
provisions of this chapter.   

Section 2. Floodplain Development Application, Permit and 

Certification Requirements. 

(A) Application Requirements. Application for a Floodplain 
Development Permit shall be made to the Floodplain 

Administrator prior to any development activities located within 
Special Flood Hazard Areas. The following items shall be 

presented to the Floodplain Administrator to apply for a 
floodplain development permit:  

(1) A plot plan drawn to scale which shall include, but shall not 

be limited to, the following specific details of the proposed 
floodplain development:  

(a)  the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of 
the area of development/disturbance; existing and 

proposed structures, utility systems, 
grading/pavement areas, fill materials, storage 

areas, drainage facilities, and other development;  
(b) the boundary of the Special Flood Hazard Area as 

delineated on the FIRM or other flood map as 
determined in Article II, Section 2, or a statement 

that the entire lot is within the Special Flood Hazard 
Area;  

(c) flood zone(s) designation of the proposed 
development area as determined on the FIRM or 

other flood map as determined in Article II, Section 

2;  
(d) the boundary of the floodway(s) or non-

encroachment area(s) as determined in Article II, 
Section 2;  

(e) the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) where provided as 
set forth in Article II, Section 2; Article III, Section 

3; or Article IV, Section 4;  
(f) the old and new location of any watercourse that will 

be altered or relocated as a result of proposed 
development; and  

042021 BCC Meeting

139



106 

 

(g) the certification of the plot plan by a registered land 
surveyor or professional engineer as determined to 

be necessary by the Floodplain Administrator.  
(2) Proposed elevation, and method thereof, of all 

development within a Special Flood Hazard Area including 
but not limited to:  

(a) Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the 
proposed reference level (including basement) of all 

structures;  
(b) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any 

non-residential structure in Zone AE or A will be 
floodproofed; and  

(c) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any 
proposed utility systems will be elevated or 

floodproofed.  

(3) If floodproofing, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81 
-65) with supporting data, an operational plan, and an 

inspection and maintenance plan that include, but are not 
limited to, installation, exercise, and maintenance of 

floodproofing measures,  
(4) A Foundation Plan, drawn to scale, which shall include 

details of the proposed foundation system to ensure all 
provisions of this ordinance are met. These details include 

but are not limited to:  
a) The proposed method of elevation, if applicable (i.e., 

fill, solid foundation perimeter wall, solid backfilled 
foundation, open foundation on columns/posts/piers/ 

piles/shear walls); and  
b) Openings to facilitate automatic equalization of 

hydrostatic flood forces on walls in accordance with 

Article IV, Section 2(D)(3) when solid foundation 
perimeter walls are used in Zones A, AE, and A l-30.  

(5) Usage details of any enclosed areas below the lowest floor.  
(6) Plans and/or details for the protection of public utilities and 

facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems 
to be located and constructed to minimize flood damage.  

(7) Certification that all other Local, State and Federal permits 
required prior to floodplain development permit issuance 

have been received.  
(8) Documentation for placement of Recreational Vehicles 

and/or Temporary Structures, when applicable, to ensure 
that the provisions of Article IV, Section 2, (F) and (G) of 

this chapter are met.  

042021 BCC Meeting

140



107 

 

(9) A description of proposed watercourse alteration or 
relocation, when applicable, including an engineering 

report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-
carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to 

properties located both upstream and downstream; and a 
map (if not shown on plot plan) showing the location of the 

proposed watercourse alteration or relocation.  
(B) Permit Requirements. The Floodplain Development Permit shall 

include, but not be limited to:  
(1) A description of the development to be permitted under 

the floodplain development permit.  
(2) The Special Flood Hazard Area determination for the 

proposed development in accordance with available data 
specified in Article II, Section 2.  

(3) The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the 

reference level and all attendant utilities.  
(4) The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the 

protection of all public utilities.  
(5) All certification submittal requirements with timelines.  

(6) A statement that no fill material or other development 
shall encroach into the floodway or non-encroachment 

area of any watercourse, as applicable.  
(7) The flood openings requirements, if in Zones A, AE or Al -

30.  
(8) Limitations of below BFE enclosure uses (if applicable). 

(i.e., parking, building access and limited storage only).  
(C) Certification Requirements.  

(1) Elevation Certificates  
(a) An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) is 

required prior to the actual start of any new 

construction. It shall be the duty of the permit holder 
to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a 

certification of the elevation of the reference level, in 
relation to mean sea level, The Floodplain 

Administrator shall review the certificate data 
submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall 

be corrected by the permit holder prior to the 
beginning of construction. Failure to submit the 

certification or failure to make required corrections 
shall be cause to deny a floodplain development 

permit.  
(b) An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) is 

required after the reference level is established. 
Within seven (7) calendar days of establishment of 

042021 BCC Meeting

141



108 

 

the reference level elevation, it shall be the duty of 
the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain 

Administrator a certification of the elevation of the 
reference level, in relation to mean sea level. Any 

work done within the seven (7) day calendar period 
and prior to submission of the certification shall be at 

the permit holder’s risk. The Floodplain Administrator 
shall review the certificate data submitted. 

Deficiencies detected by such review shall be 
corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior 

to further work being permitted to proceed. Failure 
to submit the certification or failure to make required 

corrections shall be cause to issue a stop-work order 
for the project.  

(c) A final as-built Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-

31) is required after construction is completed and 
prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy 

issuance. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to 
submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification 

of final as-built construction of the elevation of the 
reference level and all attendant utilities. The 

Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate 
data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review 

shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately 
and prior to Certificate of compliance/Occupancy 

issuance.  In some instances, another certification 
may be required to certify corrected as-built 

construction. Failure to submit the certification or 
failure to make required corrections shall be cause to 

withhold the issuance of a Certificate of 

Compliance/Occupancy.  
(2) Floodproofing Certificates. If non-residential floodproofing is 

used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation 
requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-

65), with supporting data, an operational plan, and an 
inspection and maintenance plan are required prior to the 

actual start of any new construction. It shall be the duty of 
the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator 

a certification of the floodproofed design elevation of the 
reference level and all attendant utilities, in relation to 

mean sea level. Floodproofing certification shall be 
prepared by or under the direct  supervision of a 

professional engineer or architect and certified by same. 
The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate 

042021 BCC Meeting

142



109 

 

data, the operational plan, and the inspection and 
maintenance plan. Deficiencies detected by such review 

shall be corrected by the applicant prior to permit 
approval.  Failure to submit the certification or failure to 

make required corrections shall be cause to deny a 
Floodplain Development Permit. Failure to construct in 

accordance with the certified design shall be cause to 
withhold the issuance of a Certificate of 

Compliance/Occupancy.  
(3) If a manufactured home is placed within Zone A, AE, or Al-

3D and the elevation of the chassis is more than 36 inches 
in height above grade, an engineered foundation 

certification is required in accordance with the provisions 
of Article IV, Section 2(C)(2).  

(4) If a watercourse is to be altered or relocated, a description 

of the extent of watercourse alteration or  relocation; a 
professional engineer’s certified report on the effects of the 

proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the 
watercourse and the effects to properties located both 

upstream and downstream; and a map showing the 
location of the proposed watercourse alteration or 

relocation shall all be submitted by the permit applicant 
prior to issuance of a floodplain development permit.  

(5) Certification Exemptions. The following structures, if located 
within Zone A, AE or Al -30, are exempt from the 

elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified 
in items (a) and (b) of this subsection:  

a) Recreational Vehicles meeting requirements of 
Article IV, Section 2(F)(1);  

b) Temporary Structures meeting requirements of 

Article IV, Section 2(G); and  
c) Accessory Structures less than 150 square feet 

meeting requirements of Article IV, Section 
2(H). 

Section 3. Duties and Responsibilities of the Floodplain 

Administrator. 

(A) The Floodplain Administrator shall perform, but not be limited to, 
the following duties:  

(B) Review all floodplain development applications and issue permits 
for all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas 

to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been 
satisfied.  

042021 BCC Meeting

143



110 

 

(C) Review all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard 
Areas to assure that all necessary Local, State and Federal 

permits have been received.  
(D) Notify adjacent communities and the North Carolina Department 

of Crime Control and Public Safety, Division of Emergency 
Management, State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance 

Program prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, 
and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  
(E) Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or 

relocated portion of said watercourse so that the flood-carrying 
capacity is maintained. 

(F) Prevent encroachments into floodways and non-encroachment 
areas unless the certification and flood hazard reduction 

provisions of Article IV, Section 6 are met.  

(G) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the 
reference level (including basement) and all attendant utilities of 

all new and substantially improved structures, in accordance 
with the provisions of Article III, Section 2(C).  

(H) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which 
all new and substantially improved structures and utilities have 

been floodproofed, in accordance with the provisions of Article 
III, Section 2(C).  

(I) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of all 
public utilities in accordance with the provisions of Article III, 

Section 2(C).  
(J) When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, obtain 

certifications from a registered professional engineer or architect 
in accordance with the provisions of Article III, Section 2(C) and 

Article IV, Section 2(B). 

(K) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of 
boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Areas, floodways, or 

non-encroachment areas (for example, where there appears to 
be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field 

conditions), make the necessary interpretation. The person 
contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a 

reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided 
in this article.  

(L) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has not been provided in 
accordance with the provisions of Article II, Section 2, obtain, 

review, and reasonably utilize any BFE data, along with floodway 
data or non-encroachment area data available from a Federal, 

State, or other source, including data developed pursuant to 

042021 BCC Meeting

144



111 

 

Article IV, Section 4(B)(2), in order to administer the provisions 
of this ordinance.  

(M) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided but no 
floodway or non-encroachment area data has been provided in 

accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 2, obtain, 
review, and reasonably utilize any floodway data or non-

encroachment area data available from a Federal, State, or other 
source in order to administer the provisions of this ordinance.  

(N) When the lowest floor and the lowest adjacent grade of a 
structure or the lowest ground elevation of a parcel in a Special 

Flood Hazard Area is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), 
advise the property owner of the option to apply for a Letter of 

Map Amendment (LOMA) from FEMA. Maintain a copy of the 
LOMA issued by FEMA in the floodplain development permit file,  

(O) Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the 

administration of this ordinance and make these records 
available for public inspection, recognizing that such information 

may be subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended.  
(P) Make on-site inspections of work in progress. As the work 

pursuant to a floodplain development permit progresses, the 
Floodplain Administrator shall make as many inspections of the 

work as may be necessary to ensure that the work is being done 
according to the provisions of the local ordinance and the terms 

of the permit. In exercising this power, the Floodplain 
Administrator has a right, upon presentation of proper 

credentials, to enter on any premises within the jurisdiction of 
the community at any reasonable hour for the purposes of 

inspection or other enforcement action.  
(Q) Issue stop-work orders as required. Whenever a building or part 

thereof is being constructed, reconstructed, altered, or repaired 

in violation of this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator may 
order the work to be immediately stopped. The stop-work order 

shall be in writing and directed to the person doing or in charge 
of the work. The stop-work order shall state the specific work to 

be stopped, the specific reason(s) for the stoppage, and the 
condition(s) under which the work may be resumed. Violation of 

a stop-work order constitutes a misdemeanor  
(R) Revoke floodplain development permits as required. The 

Floodplain Administrator may revoke and require the return of 
the floodplain development permit by notifying the permit holder 

in writing stating the reason(s) for the revocation. Permits shall 
be revoked for any substantial departure from the approved 

application, plans, and specifications; for refusal or failure to 
comply with the requirements of State or local laws; or for false 

042021 BCC Meeting

145



112 

 

statements or misrepresentations made in securing the permit. 
Any floodplain development permit mistakenly issued in violation 

of an applicable State or local law may also be revoked.  
(S) Make periodic inspections throughout the Special Flood Hazard 

Areas within the jurisdiction of the community. The Floodplain 
Administrator and each member of his or her inspections 

department shall have a right, upon presentation of proper 
credentials, to enter on any premises within the territorial 

jurisdiction of the department at any reasonable hour for the 
purposes of inspection or other enforcement action.  

(T) Follow through with corrective procedures of Article III, Section 
4.  

(U) Review, provide input, and make recommendations for variance 
requests.  

(V) Maintain a current map repository to include, but not limited to, 

the FIS Report, FIRM and other official flood maps and studies 
adopted in accordance with the provisions of Article II, Section 2 

of this ordinance, including any revisions thereto including 
Letters of Map Change, issued by FEMA. Notify State and FEMA 

of mapping needs.  
(W) Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including Letters 

of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-Fs) and Letters of Map 
Revision (LOMRs).  

Section 4.  Corrective Procedures.  

(A) Violations to be Corrected: When the Floodplain Administrator 

finds violations of applicable State and local laws, it shall be his 
or her duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of the 

violation. The owner or occupant shall immediately remedy each 
of the violations of law cited in such notification.  

(B) Actions in Event of Failure to Take Corrective Action: If the 

owner of a building or property shall fail to take prompt 
corrective action, the Floodplain Administrator shall give the 

owner written notice, by certified or registered mail to the 
owner’s last known address or by personal service, stating:  

(1) that the building or property is in violation of the floodplain 
management regulations;  

(2) that a hearing will be held before the Floodplain 
Administrator at a designated place and time, not later 

than ten (10) days after the date of the notice, at which 
time the owner shall be entitled to be heard in person or 

by counsel and to present arguments and evidence 
pertaining to the matter; and  

042021 BCC Meeting

146



113 

 

(3) that following the hearing, the Floodplain Administrator 
may issue an order to alter, vacate, or demolish the 

building; or to remove fill as applicable.  
(C) Order to Take Corrective Action: If, upon a hearing held 

pursuant to the notice prescribed above, the Floodplain 
Administrator shall find that the building or development is in 

violation of this chapter, he or she shall issue an order in writing 
to the owner, requiring the owner to remedy the violation within 

a specified time period, not less than sixty (60) calendar days, 
nor more than one hundred-eighty (180) calendar days. Where 

the Floodplain Administrator finds that there is imminent danger 
to life or other property, he or she may order that corrective 

action be taken in such lesser period as may be feasible.   
(D) Appeal: Any owner who has received an order to take corrective 

action may appeal the order to the Board of Adjustment by 

giving notice of appeal in writing to the Floodplain Administrator 
and the Clerk to the Board of Adjustment within thirty (30) days 

following issuance of the final binding order. In the absence of 
an appeal, the order of the Floodplain Administrator shall be 

final. The Board of Adjustment shall hear an appeal within a 
reasonable time and may affirm, modify and affirm, or revoke 

the order.  
(E) Failure to Comply with Order: If the owner of a building or 

property fails to comply with an order to take corrective action 
for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with an 

order of the Board of Adjustment following an appeal, the owner 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished at the 

discretion of the court.   

Section 5.  Variance Procedures.  

(A) The Board of Adjustment as established by Watauga County, 

hereinafter referred to as the “appeal board”, shall hear and 
decide requests for variances from the requirements of this 

chapter.  
(B) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the appeal board may 

appeal such decision to the Court, as provided in Chapter 7A of 
the North Carolina General Statutes.  

(C) Variances may be issued for:  
1) the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon the 

determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation 
will not preclude the structure’s continued designation as a 

historic structure and that the  variance is the minimum 

042021 BCC Meeting

147



114 

 

necessary to preserve the historic character and design of 
the structure;  

2) functionally dependent facilities if determined to meet the 
definition as stated in Chapter 7, provided provisions of 

Article III, Section 5(I)(2), (3), and (5) have been 
satisfied, and such facilities are protected by methods that 

minimize flood damages during the base flood and create 
no additional threats to public safety; or  

3) any other type of development, provided it meets the 
requirements of this Section.  

(D) In passing upon variances, the appeal board shall consider all 
technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified 

in other sections of this chapter, and:  
1) the danger that materials may be swept onto other lands 

to the injury of others;  

2) the danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion 
damage;  

3) the susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents 
to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the 

individual owner;  
4) the importance of the services provided by the proposed 

facility to the community;  
5) the necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as 

defined in Chapter 7 as a functionally dependent facility, 
where applicable;  

6) the availability of alternative locations, not subject to 
flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;  

7) the compatibility of the proposed use with existing and 
anticipated development;  

8) the relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive 

plan and floodplain management program for that area;  
9) the safety of access to the property in times of flood for 

ordinary and emergency vehicles;  
10) the expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and 

sediment transport of the floodwaters and the effects of 
wave action, if applicable, expected. at the site; and  

11) the costs of providing governmental services during and 
after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of 

public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical 
and water systems, and streets and bridges.  

(E) A written report addressing each of the above factors shall be 
submitted with the application for a variance.  

(F) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes 
of this chapter, the appeal board may attach such conditions to 

042021 BCC Meeting

148



115 

 

the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the 
purposes and objectives of this chapter.  

(G) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given 
written notice specifying the difference between the Base Flood 

Elevation (BFE) and the elevation to which the structure is to be 
built and that such construction below the BFE increases risks to 

life and property, and that the issuance of a variance to 
construct a structure below the BFE will result in increased 

premium rates for flood insurance up to $25 per $100 of 
insurance coverage. Such notification shall be maintained with a 

record of all variance actions, including justification for their 
issuance.  

(H) The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain the records of all 
appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency and the State of North Carolina 

upon request.  
(I) Conditions for Variances:   

(1) Variances shall not be issued when the variance will make 
the structure in violation of other Federal, State, or local 

laws, regulations, or ordinances.  
(2) Variances shall not be issued within any designated 

floodway or non-encroachment area if the variance would 
result in any increase in flood levels during the base flood 

discharge.  
(3) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that 

the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the 
flood hazard, to afford relief  

(4) Variances shall only be issued prior to development permit 
approval.  

(5) Variances shall only be issued upon:   

(a) a showing of good and sufficient cause;  
(b) a determination that failure to grant the variance 

would result in exceptional hardship; and  
(c) a determination that the granting of a variance will 

not result in increased flood heights, additional 
threats to public safety, or extraordinary public 

expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or 
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing 

local laws or ordinances.  
  

 
 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

149



116 

 

Article IV  Provisions For Flood Hazard Reduction   

Section 1.  General Standards.   

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas the following provisions are required:  
(A) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 

designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent 
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure.  

(B) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 
constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to 

flood damage.  
(C) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be 

constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood 
damages.  

(D) Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning 
equipment, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or 

located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating 

within the components during conditions of flooding to the 
Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation. These include, but are not 

limited to, HVAC equipment, water softener units, bath/kitchen 
fixtures, ductwork, electric/gas meter panels/boxes, utility/cable 

boxes, hot water heaters, and electric outlets/switches.  
(E) All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed 

to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the 
system.  

(F) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be 
designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into 

the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters.  
(G) On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed 

to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during 
flooding.  

(H) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction. or improvements to a 

structure, which is in compliance with the provisions of this 
chapter, shall meet the requirements of “new construction” as 

contained in this chapter.   
(I) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the repair, reconstruction, 

or replacement of a building or structure existing on the effective 
date of this ordinance and located totally or partially within the 

floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream setback, provided 
there is no additional encroachment below the Regulatory Flood 

Protection Elevation in the floodway, non-encroachment area, or 
stream setback, and provided that such repair, reconstruction, 

or replacement meets all of the other requirements of this 
chapter.  

042021 BCC Meeting

150



117 

 

(J) New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste 
management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage 

facilities shall not be permitted. A structure or tank for chemical 
or fuel storage incidental to an allowed use or to the operation of 

a water treatment plant or wastewater treatment facility may be 
located in a Special Flood Hazard Area only if the structure or 

tank is either elevated or flood proofed to at least the Regulatory 
Flood Protection Elevation and certified in accordance with the 

provisions of Article III, Section 2(C).  
(K) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall 

be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.  
(L) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall 

have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, 
and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood 

damage.  

(M) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall 
have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood 

hazards.  
(N) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall 

have received all necessary permits from those governmental 
agencies for which approval is required by Federal or State law, 

including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
Amendments of 1972, 33 IJ~S~C. 1334.  

(O) When a structure is partially located in a Special Flood Hazard 
Area, the entire structure shall meet the requirements for new 

construction and substantial improvements.  
(P) When a structure is located in multiple flood hazard zones or in a 

flood hazard risk zone with multiple base flood elevations, the 
provisions for the more restrictive flood hazard risk zone and the 

highest Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall apply.   

Section 2.  Specific Standards. 

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data 

has been provided, as set forth in Article II, Section 2, or Article IV, 
Section 5, the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of Article 

IV, Section 1, are required:   
(A) Residential Construction. New construction and substantial 

improvement of any residential structure (including 
manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including 

basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood 
Protection Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7 of this Title.  

(B) Non-Residential Construction. New construction and substantial 
improvement of any commercial, industrial, or other non-

042021 BCC Meeting

151



118 

 

residential structure shall have the reference level, including 
basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood 

Protection Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7. Structures located 
in A, AE, and Al -30 Zones may be floodproofed to the 

Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in lieu of elevation 
provided that all areas of the structure, together with attendant 

utility and sanitary facilities, below the Regulatory Flood 
Protection Elevation are watertight with walls substantially 

impermeable to the passage of water, using structural 
components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and 

hydrodynamic loads and the effect of buoyancy. A registered 
professional engineer or architect shall certify that the 

floodproofing standards of this subsection are satisfied. Such 
certification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator as 

set forth in Article III, Section 2(C), along with the operational 

plan and the inspection and maintenance plan.  
(C) Manufactured Homes.  

(1) New and replacement manufactured homes shall be 
elevated so that the reference level of the manufactured 

home is no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection 
Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7.  

(2) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an 
adequately anchored foundation to resist flotation, 

collapse, and lateral movement, either by certified 
engineered foundation system, or in accordance with the 

most current edition of the State of North Carolina 
Regulations for Manufactured Homes adopted by the 

Commissioner of Insurance pursuant to NCGS l43~l43.l5. 
Additionally, when the  elevation would be met by an 

elevation of the chassis thirty-six (36) inches or less above 

the grade at the site, the chassis shall he supported by 
reinforced piers or engineered foundation. When the 

elevation of the chassis is above thirty-six (36) inches in 
height, an engineering certification is required.  

(3) All enclosures or skirting below the lowest floor shall meet 
the requirements of Article IV, Section 2(D).  

(4) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all 
residents of all new, substantially improved or 

substantially damaged manufactured home parks or 
subdivisions located within flood prone areas. This plan 

shall be filed with and approved by the Floodplain 
Administrator and the local Emergency Management 

Coordinator.  

042021 BCC Meeting

152



119 

 

(D) Elevated Buildings. Fully enclosed area of new construction and 
substantially improved structures below the lowest floor:  

(1) shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but 
shall only be used for parking of vehicles, building access, 

or limited storage of maintenance equipment used in 
connection with the premises. Access to the enclosed area 

shall be the minimum necessary to allow for parking of 
vehicles (garage door) or limited storage of maintenance 

equipment (standard exterior door), or entry to the living 
area (stairway or elevator). The interior portion of such 

enclosed area shall not be finished or partitioned into 
separate rooms, except to enclose storage areas;  

(2) shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at 
least to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation; and  

(3) shall include, in Zones A, AE, and Al-30, flood openings to 

automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by 
allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. To meet this 

requirement, the openings must either be certified by a 
professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the 

following minimum design criteria:  
(a) A minimum of two flood openings on different sides 

of each enclosed area subject to flooding;  
(b) The total net area of all flood openings must be at 

least one (1) square inch for each square foot of 
enclosed area subject to flooding;  

(c) If a building has more than one enclosed area, each 
enclosed area must have flood openings to allow 

floodwaters to automatically enter and exit;  
(d) The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no 

higher than one (1) foot above the adjacent grade;  

(e) Flood openings may be equipped with screens, 
louvers, or other coverings or devices. provided they 

permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both 
directions; and  

(f) Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not 
considered enclosures for regulatory purposes, and, 

therefore, do not require flood openings. Masonry or 
wood underpinning, regardless of structural status, is 

considered an enclosure and requires flood openings 
as outlined above.  

(E) Additions/Improvements.  
(1) Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures 

when the addition and/or improvements in combination 

042021 BCC Meeting

153



120 

 

with any interior modifications to the existing structure 
are:  

(a) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or 
improvements must be designed to minimize flood 

damages and must not be any more non-conforming 
than the existing structure.  

(b) a substantial improvement, both the existing 
structure and the addition and/or improvements 

must comply with the standards for new 
construction.  

(2) Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to 
the existing structure other than a standard door in the 

common wall shall require only the addition to comply with 
the standards for new construction.  

(3) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures 

when the addition and/or improvements in combination 
with any interior modifications to the existing structure 

are:  
(a) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or 

improvements only must comply with the standards 
for new construction.  

(b) a substantial improvement, both the existing 
structure and the addition and/or improvements 

must comply with the standards for new 
construction.  

(F) Recreational Vehicles. Recreational vehicles shall either:  
(1) be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully 

licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle 
is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 

system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect 

type utilities, and has no permanently attached additions); 
or  

(2) meet all the requirements for new construction.  
(G) Temporary Non-Residential Structures. Prior to the issuance of a 

floodplain development permit for a temporary structure, the 
applicant must submit to the Floodplain Administrator a plan for 

the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurricane, 
flash flood or other type of flood warning notification. The 

following information shall be submitted in writing to the 
Floodplain Administrator for review and written approval:  

(1) a specified time period for which the temporary use will be 
permitted. Time specified may not exceed three (3) 

months, renewable up to one (1) year;  

042021 BCC Meeting

154



121 

 

(2) the name, address, and phone number of the individual 
responsible for the removal of the temporary structure;  

(3) the time frame prior to the event at which a structure will 
be removed (i.e., minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a 

hurricane or immediately upon flood warning notification);  
(4) a copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with 

the entity responsible for physical removal of the 
structure; and  

(5) designation, accompanied by documentation, of a location 
outside the Special Flood Hazard Area, to which the 

temporary structure will be moved.  
(H) Accessory Structures. When accessory structures (sheds, 

detached garages, etc.) are to be placed within a Special Flood 
Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:   

(1) Accessory structures shall not be used for human 

habitation (including working, sleeping, living, cooking or 
restroom areas);  

(2) Accessory structures shall not he temperature-controlled;  
(3) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood 

damage potential;  
(4) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on 

the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to 
the flow of floodwaters;  

(5) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in 
accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 1(A);  

(6) All service facilities such as electrical shall be installed in 
accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 1(D); 

and  
(7) Flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of 

hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided below Regulatory 

Flood Protection Elevation in conformance with the 
provisions of Article IV, Section 2(D)(3),  

 
An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150 square feet that 

satisfies the criteria outlined above does not require an elevation or 
floodproofing certificate. Elevation or floodproofing certifications are 

required for all other accessory structures in accordance with Article III, 
Section 2(C).   

Section 3.  Reserved. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

155



122 

 

Section 4.  Standards For Floodplains Without Established Base Flood 

Elevations.  

Within the Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Approximate Zone A 
and established in Article II, Section 2, where no Base Flood Elevation 

(BFE) data has been provided by FEMA, the following provisions, in 
addition to the provisions of Article IV, Section 1, shall apply:   

(A) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 
improvements or new development shall be permitted within a 

distance of twenty (20) feet each side from top of bank or five 
times the width of the stream, whichever is greater, unless 

certification with supporting technical data by a registered 
professional engineer is provided demonstrating that such 

encroachments shall not result in any increase in flood levels 
during the occurrence of the base flood discharge.  

(B) The BFE used in determining the Regulatory Flood Protection 

Elevation shall be determined based on the following criteria:   
(1) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available from 

other sources, all new construction and substantial 
improvements within such areas shall also comply with all 

applicable provisions of this ordinance and shall be 
elevated or floodproofed in accordance with standards in 

Article IV, Sections 1 and 2.  
(2) When floodway or non-encroachment data is available 

from a Federal, State, or other source, all new construction 
and substantial improvements within floodway and non-

encroachment areas shall also comply with the 
requirements of Article IV, Sections 2 and 6.  

(3) All subdivision, manufactured home park and other 
development proposals shall provide Base Flood Elevation 

(BFE) data if development is greater than five (5) acres or 

has more than fifty (50) lots/manufactured home sites. 
Such Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data shall be adopted by 

reference in accordance with Article II, Section 2 and 
utilized in implementing this chapter.  

(4) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is not available from 
a Federal, State, or other source as outlined above, the 

reference level shall be elevated or floodproofed 
(nonresidential) to or above the Regulatory Flood 

Protection Elevation, as defined in Chapter 7. All other 
applicable provisions of Article IV, Section 2 shall also 

apply.   

042021 BCC Meeting

156



123 

 

Section 5.  Standards For Riverine Floodplains With Base Flood 
Elevations But Without Established Floodways or Non-Encroachment 

Areas.   

Along rivers and streams where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is 

provided by FEMA or is available from another source but neither 
floodway nor non-encroachment areas are identified for a Special Flood 

Hazard Area on the FIRM or in the FIS report, the following requirements 
shall apply to all development within such areas:   

(A) Standards of Article IV, Sections 1 and 2; and  
(B) Until a regulatory floodway or non-encroachment area is 

designated, no encroachments, including fill, new construction, 
substantial improvements, or other development, shall be 

permitted unless certification with supporting technical data by a 
registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that 

the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when 

combined with all other existing and anticipated development, 
will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood 

more than one (1) foot at any point within the community.   

Section 6.  Floodways and Non-Encroachment Areas. 

Areas designated as floodways or non-encroachment areas are located 
within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article II, Section 2. 

The floodways and non-encroachment areas are extremely hazardous 
areas due to the velocity of floodwaters that have erosion potential and 

carry debris and potential projectiles. The following provisions, in addition 
to standards outlined in Article IV, Sections 1 and 2, shall apply to all 

development within such areas:   
(A) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 

improvements and other developments shall be permitted 
unless:  

(1) it is demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would 

not result in any increase in the flood levels during the 
occurrence of the base flood, based on hydrologic and 

hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard 
engineering practice and presented to the Floodplain 

Administrator prior to issuance of floodplain development 
permit, or  

(2) a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been 
approved by FEMA. A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) must 

also be obtained upon completion of the proposed 
encroachment  

042021 BCC Meeting

157



124 

 

(B) If Article IV, Section 6(A) is satisfied, all development shall 
comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of 

this chapter.  
  

Article V  Legal Status Provisions  

Section 1.  Effect on Rights and Liabilities Under the Existing Flood 

Damage Prevention Ordinance. 

This ordinance in part comes forward by re-enactment of some of the 

provisions of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance enacted April 1, 1987 
as amended, and it is not the intention to repeal but rather to re-enact and 

continue to enforce without interruption of such existing provisions, so that 
all rights and liabilities that have accrued there under are reserved and may 

be enforced. The enactment of this ordinance shall not affect any action, suit 
or proceeding instituted or pending. All provisions of the Flood Damage 

Prevention Ordinance of Watauga County enacted on April 1, 1987, as 

amended, which are not reenacted herein are repealed.  
  

The date of the initial Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance for Watauga 
County is June 10, 1980; said ordinance repealed and replaced April 1, 

1987. Amended December 3, 2009 and February 18, 2014. 
  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

158



125 

 

CHAPTER 10  FOSCOE GRANDFATHER ZONING 

Article I  Purpose, Authority and Jurisdiction 

Section 1.  Purpose.   

The zoning regulations and districts as herein set forth are being adopted in 

accordance with a comprehensive plan and are designed to lessen 

congestion in the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic and other 

dangers; to promote good health and the general welfare; to provide 

adequate light and air, to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue 

concentration of population; and to facilitate the adequate provision of 

transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, and other public 

requirements.  Such regulations are being made with reasonable 

consideration, among other things, to the character of the district and their 

peculiar suitability for particular uses, with a view to conserving the value of 

buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the 

community, and with the goal of preserving the rural environment of the 

Foscoe-Grandfather Community. 

Section 2.  Authority.   

The provisions of this chapter are enacted under authority granted by the 

General Assembly of North Carolina.  (General Statute 160D, Article 7 and 

other pertinent statutes and amendments thereto.) 

Section 3.  Jurisdiction.   

The regulations set forth in this ordinance shall be applicable to all land 

within the boundaries of the Foscoe-Grandfather Community as established 

and amended by the Watauga County Board of County Commissioners. 

Article II General Provisions 

Section 1.  Application.   

The regulations set forth in this chapter shall apply to all land, every building 

and every use of land and/or buildings except bona fide farms as defined in 

N.C.G.S. 160D-903 within the boundaries of the Foscoe-Grandfather 

Community. 

042021 BCC Meeting

159



126 

 

Section 2.  New Uses or Construction.  

After the effective date of these regulations, all new construction and the 

moving, altering and enlarging of existing structures shall conform to the 

use, area and bulk regulations for the district in which it is, or is to be, 

located. 

Section 3.  Conforming Uses.   

After the effective date of these regulations, existing structures, or the use 

of land or structures which conform to the regulations for the district, may 

be continued, provided that any structural alteration or change in use shall 

conform with the regulation herein specified for the district in which it is 

located. 

Section 4.  Nonconforming Uses.   

After the effective date of these regulations, existing structures, or the uses 

of land or structures which would be prohibited under the regulations for the 

district in which it is located (if they existed on the initial adoption date of 

these regulations), shall be considered as nonconforming.  Nonconforming 

structures or uses may be continued provided they conform to the following 

provisions: 

(A) Continuing the Use of Nonconforming Land 
(1) Extensions of Use.  Nonconforming uses of land shall not 

hereafter be enlarged or extended in any way. 

(2) Change of Use.  Any nonconforming use of land may be 
changed to conforming use or with the approval of the Board 

of Adjustment to any use more in character with the uses 
permitted in the district. 

(B) Continuing the Use of Nonconforming Buildings 
(1) Extensions of Use.  Nonconforming buildings and 

nonconforming uses of buildings shall not hereafter be 
enlarged except when such enlargement or extension is in 

compliance with subparagraph (B)(6) below. 
(2) Change of Use.  If no structural alterations or enlargements 

are made, any nonconforming building or use of buildings 
may be changed (with the approval of Board of Adjustment) 

to any use more in character with uses permitted in the 
district.  In permitting such change, the Board of Adjustment 

may require appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

042021 BCC Meeting

160



127 

 

(3) Cessation of Use.  If active operations are discontinued for a 
continuous period of six months with respect to a 

nonconforming use of building, such building or buildings shall 
thereafter be occupied and used only for a conforming use. 

(4) Repair and Alteration.  Normal maintenance and repair in a 
building occupied by a nonconforming use is permitted 

provided it does not extend the nonconforming use. 
(5) Damage or Destruction.  If a building occupied by a 

nonconforming use or a nonconforming building is destroyed 
by any means to an extent of more than 50 percent of its 

replacement cost at time of destruction, such building may 
not be restored for any nonconforming use. 

(6) Nonconforming features of buildings may be extended into 
the yard (setback) which is being violated by the 

nonconforming feature(s).  However, the addition shall not be 

more than fifty (50) percent of the existing gross floor area 
and shall not extend further than the existing building line 

and in no case shall the addition be closer than five (5) feet to 
the property line.  Additional screening shall be required for 

commercial uses if adjacent to residential uses.  Additional 
screening shall be defined as a six (6) foot high opaque fence 

or an evergreen tree a minimum six (6) feet in height planted 
on four (4) foot centers. 

Section 5.  Open Space Requirements.   

No part of a yard, court or other open space provided around any building or 

structure for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this chapter 
shall be included as a part of a yard or other open space required under this 

chapter for another building or structure. 

Section 6.  Reduction of Lot and Yard Areas Prohibited.   

No yard or lot existing at the time of passage of these regulations shall be 

reduced in size or area below the minimum requirements set forth herein.  

Yards and lots created after the effective date of these regulations shall 

meet at least the minimum requirements established by these regulations. 

Section 7.  Projections into Public Rights-of-way.   

No signs or other structures shall project beyond the curb line of any street 

or other public way. 

042021 BCC Meeting

161



128 

 

Section 8.  Interpretation of District Boundaries.   

When uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries or districts as shown 

on the Official Zoning Map, the following rules shall apply: 

(A) Delineation.  District boundary lines indicated as approximately 
following property lines, lot lines, the center line of streets, alleys, 

railroads, easements, other rights-of-way, and creeks, streams, or 

other water channels, shall be constructed to follow such lines. 
(B) Official Zoning Map.  In the absence of specified distances on the 

map, dimensions or distances shall be determined by scaling the 
distance on the Official Zoning Map 

 

Article III  Official Zoning Map 

Section 1.  Zoning Map.   

The boundaries of each zoning district are shown on a map entitled “Foscoe 

Grandfather Community Official Zoning Map” which is hereby made a portion 

of this chapter.  

Article IV Administration and Enforcement 

Section 1.  Administration and Enforcement.   

The Watauga County Department of Planning and Inspections (hereinafter 

referred to as Zoning Official) shall administer and enforce this chapter. 

(A) Violations. If the Zoning Official shall find that any of the provisions 

of this chapter are being violated, s/he shall notify in writing the 
person responsible for such violation, indicating the nature of the 

violation and ordering the action necessary to correct it within ten 
(10) days.  S/he shall order the discontinuance of illegal use of 

land, buildings, or structures; the removal of illegal buildings or 

structures or of addition, alterations, or structural changes thereto; 
the discontinuance of any illegal work being done; and shall take 

any other action authorized by this chapter to insure compliance 
with, or to prevent violation of, its provisions. 

(B) Remedies and Penalties. Chapter 5 of this Title shall apply. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

162



129 

 

Section 2.  Permit Process. 

(A) Zoning Permits.  No building or other structures shall be erected, 

moved, added to, or structurally altered without a zoning permit 
therefore, issued by the Zoning Official.  No building permit shall be 

issued except in conformity with the provisions of this chapter. 
(B) Application for Zoning Permit.  All applications for building permits 

shall be accompanied by plans in duplicate, drawn to scale, showing 
the actual dimensions and shape of the lot to be built upon; the 

exact sizes and locations on the lot of buildings already existing, if 
any; and location and dimensions of the proposed building or 

alteration.  The application shall include such other information as 
lawfully may be required by the Zoning Official including a 

description of all existing or proposed buildings or alterations; 
existing or proposed uses of the buildings and land; the number of 

families, housekeeping units, or rental units the buildings are 

designed to accommodate; conditions existing on the lot; and such 
other matters as may be necessary to determine conformance with, 

and provide for the enforcement of, this chapter. 

One copy of the plans shall be returned to the applicant by the 

Zoning Official after s/he shall have marked such copy either as 

approved or disapproved and attested to the same by his/her 

signature on such copy.  The second copy of these plans, similarly 

marked, shall be retained by the Zoning Official. 

(C) Zoning Permit for New, Altered, or Nonconforming Uses 
(1) It shall be unlawful to use or occupy or to permit the use or 

occupancy of any building or premises, or both, or any part 

thereof which may be hereafter created, erected, changed, 
converted, (or wholly or partly altered or enlarged as to its 

use or structure) until a zoning permit shall have been issued 
therefore by the Zoning Official stating that the proposed use 

of the building or land conforms to the requirements of this 
chapter.  

(2) No permit for the erection, alteration, moving, or repair of 
any building shall be issued until an application has been 

made for a zoning permit in connection therewith.  Such 
zoning permit shall be issued in conformity with the 

provisions of this ordinance upon the satisfactory completion 
of the work. 

(3) A temporary zoning permit may be issued by the Zoning 
Official for a period not to exceed six (6) months during 

alterations or construction for partial occupancy of a building 

pending its completion, or for bazaars, carnivals, and revivals, 

042021 BCC Meeting

163



130 

 

provided that such temporary permit shall require such 
conditions and safeguards as will protect the safety of the 

occupants and the public. 
(4) The Zoning Official shall maintain a record of all zoning 

permits and copies shall be furnished upon request to any 
responsible and interested person. 

(5) The Failure to obtain the necessary zoning permit shall be a 
violation of this chapter and shall be punishable under 

Chapter 5 of this Title. 
(D) Construction and Use to be as Stated on Zoning Permits.  Zoning 

permits issued on the basis of plans and applications approved by 
the Zoning Official authorize only the use, arrangement, and 

construction set forth in such approved plans and applications.  Any 
use, arrangement, or construction at variance with that authorized 

shall be deemed a violation of this chapter, and shall be punishable 

as provided by Chapter 5. 

Section 3.  Right of Appeal.   

If the zoning permit is denied, the applicant may appeal the action of the 

Zoning Official to the Board of Adjustment. 

Article V  District Regulations 

For the purpose of this ordinance, the Foscoe-Grandfather Community is 

hereby divided into four districts: 

  Rural District 

  Rural/Residential District 
 

  Highway District 

  Light Industrial Conditional District 

Section 1.  Rural District.   

The Rural District is established as a district in which the principal use of 

land is for low density residential and agricultural purposes.  The regulations 

of this district are intended to protect the agricultural sections of the 

community from an influx of uses likely to render them undesirable for farms 

and future development; to insure that residential development not having 

access to public water supplies and dependent upon septic tanks for sewage 

disposal will occur at sufficiently low densities to insure a healthful 

042021 BCC Meeting

164



131 

 

environment; and to protect the Watauga River and tributaries from 

degradation. 

(A) Permitted Uses 

(1) Land which is used solely for bona fide farming activities. 
(2) Construction or placement of single or two-family units in 

legally-platted subdivision as permitted; included are 

additions to these units and accessory buildings, provided 
that the principal use remains residential; 

(3) Placement of manufactured housing units in approved 
residential parks or legally platted subdivision: included are 

additions to these units and accessory buildings provided that 
the principal use remains residential; 

(4) Construction or placement of and/or addition to single or two-
family dwelling units or manufactured housing units outside 

legally platted subdivisions or residential parks as permitted, 
provided that the principal use remains residential; 

(5) Conduct of a home occupation in or on the premises of single 
family dwelling where the dwelling is the original use of the 

property; 
(6) Churches and affiliated uses (standards regarding parking, 

driveway access, stormwater control, and buffer areas are 

applicable); 
(7) Installation of sign(s) on a non-residential site (on-premise 

sign) in accordance with the Watauga County Sign 
Regulations.  

(8) Continued use of any land, structure, or development as it 
legally existed and was occupied on the effective date of this 

chapter. 
(B) Special Uses 

(1) Multi-family and clustered dwellings and manufactured home 
parks (also subject to review under the Subdivisions and 

Multi-Unit Structures regulations and the Watauga County 
Manufactured Home Parks regulations respectively); 

(2) Schools, public utility facilities, fire stations, recreational 
facilities (including golf courses, but not including driving 

ranges or miniature courses) and public buildings or facilities. 

(C) Dimensional Requirements 

Minimum required lot area for single and two-family dwellings – 

One (1) acre (43,560 square feet).  Any lot in a residential 

subdivision recorded prior to June 15, 1973, or otherwise made 

exempt from subdivision regulation by official action of Watauga 

County to “grandfather” the development, shall not be subject to 

042021 BCC Meeting

165



132 

 

the lot size or yard requirements of this chapter.  However, in no 

case shall any structures be built closer than five (5) feet to a 

property line.  Setbacks from stream banks required by this chapter 

shall apply to said developments.  Preexisting recorded residential 

lots less than one acre may be used provided that all other 

requirements of the chapter can be met.  In addition to one (1) 

acre minimum lot size, pursuant to High Quality Waters rules set 

forth by NC Division of Environmental Quality, all other land uses 

are subject to a maximum density standard of twelve (12) percent 

impervious surface (built-upon area), or higher density with 

approved storm water controls installed, if an erosion control plan 

due to one (1) acre or more of land-disturbing activity is required. 

Minimum required mean lot width for each dwelling unit – 100 feet. 

Minimum required depth of front yard – 30 feet. 

Minimum required width of any side yard – 15 feet. 

Minimum required depth of rear yard – 15 feet. 

Off-street parking if applicable shall be provided as required in 

Article VI, Section 3 of this chapter. 

Maximum height of structure (not including chimneys, steeples, 

antennas, etc.) – 40 feet, measured from entrance grade, as 

measured under the NC Building Code.  One (1) floor may be below 

entrance grade (basement). 

Section 2.  Rural/Residential District.   

The Rural/Residential District is established as a more restricted, yet similar 

district to the Rural District.  The principal use of land is for low density 

conventional residential structures. 

(A) Permitted Uses 

(1) Construction or placement of single family units in legally-

platted subdivision as permitted; included are additions to 
these units and accessory buildings, provided that the 

principal use remains residential, 
(2) Construction or placement of and/or addition to single family 

dwelling outside legally platted subdivisions as permitted, 
provided that the principal use remains residential; 

042021 BCC Meeting

166



133 

 

(3) Conduct of a home occupation in or on the premises of single 
family dwelling where the dwelling is the original use of the 

property; 
(4) Churches and affiliated uses (standards regarding parking, 

driveway access, stormwater control, and buffer areas are 
applicable); 

(5) Installation of sign(s) on a non-residential site (on-premise 
sign) in accordance with the Watauga County Sign 

regulations.  
(6) Continued use of any land, structure, or development as it 

legally existed and was occupied on the effective date of 
these regulations. 

(B) Special Uses 
(1) multi-family and clustered dwellings (also subject to review 

under the Watauga County Subdivisions and Multi-Unit 

Structures regulations); 
(2) schools, public utility facilities, fire stations, recreational 

facilities (including golf courses, but not including driving 
ranges or miniature courses) and public buildings. 

(3) public utility buildings and facilities if such use is essential for 
the service of the immediate area and provided that: 

(4) all buildings shall be located at least 35 feet from any lot line. 
(5) fences and/or other appropriate safety devices are installed to 

protect the public safety and welfare. 
(6) no vehicles or equipment are stored, maintained or repaired 

on premises 
(7) all structures are in keeping with the residential character of 

the neighborhood. 
(8) adequate landscaping, screening and/or buffering shall be 

provided to insure compatibility with the neighborhood. 

(9) Radio and television transmitting stations and studios 
provided that: 

(10) such facilities shall be housed in structures which are in 
keeping with the character of the residential neighborhood. 

(11) No structure shall be located within 35 feet of any lot line. 
(C) Dimensional Requirements 

Minimum requirements for lot area, yards, parking, and building 

height are as described for the Rural District or as established in 

Article VI. 

Section 3.  Highway District.   

The Highway District is located on the major thoroughfare.  It is intended to 

provide offices, personal services, and retailing of durable and convenience 

042021 BCC Meeting

167



134 

 

goods for the community.  Because the commercial uses are subject to 

public view and are important to the economy, they should have an 

appropriate appearance, ample parking, controlled traffic movement and 

suitable landscaping. 

(A) Permitted Uses 
(1) all uses permitted within the Rural District; 

(2) non-residential uses which are not subject to a special use 

permit as shown below or are prohibited by this chapter, 
except industrial uses which are permitted only in the 

industrial conditional district.  These uses are subject to a site 
plan review and must comply with the standards of Article VI. 

(B) Special Uses 
(1) multi-family and clustered dwellings and manufactured home 

parks as described for the Rural District; 
(2) other uses as described for the Rural District, also hospitals, 

police stations, libraries, circuses, carnivals, fairs, flea 
markets, and temporary uses; 

Standards for Flea Markets 

(a) Site Plan Information:  A site plan, drawn to scale, shall 
be submitted which legibly indicates the following: 

(i.) Boundary survey; 
(ii.) Hours and frequency of operation; 

(iii.) Location and dimensions of individual 
booths and sale areas; 

(iv.) Off-street parking (vendor and customer); 
(v.) Screening, if applicable. 

(b) Off-street parking:  Off-street parking will be required 
at one (1) space per 200 sq. ft. of commercial area 

used for display and sales of two (2) per booth or 
individual display area, whichever is greater.  All 

parking facilities shall be provided with on-site drainage 

in accordance with Article VI, Section 6(C). 
(c) Screening/buffering: shall be provided as specified in 

Article VI. 
(d) Signs:  One (1) freestanding directory sign shall be 

allowed provided such sign does not exceed 50 sq. ft.  
In addition each vendor may have a four (4) square 

foot attached sign. 
(e) Applicant shall submit a written statement setting forth 

the method and frequency of maintenance, repair, 
refuse collection and disposal along with the site plan. 

(3) Combination of residential and non-residential uses; 

042021 BCC Meeting

168



135 

 

(4) Non-residential uses which consist of multiple units, are 
greater than 5000 square feet in size, or are deemed by the 

Zoning Official to be potentially detrimental to the community 
as follows: 

(a) Could materially endanger the public health or safety, 
or 

(b) Could substantially injure the value of adjoining or 
abutting property, or 

(c) May not be in harmony with the area in which it is to be 
located, or 

(d) May not be in general conformity with the land use 
plan, thoroughfare plan, or other plans officially 

adopted by the County. 
(C) Dimensional Requirements 

Minimum required lot area is one-half (1/2) acre.  Preexisting 

recorded lots less than one-half may be used provided all other 

requirements of the ordinance can be met.  However, if an erosion 

control plan is required pursuant to 15NCAC, Chapter 4, the 

minimum lot area for single family dwellings is one (1) acre; all 

other land uses are subject to a maximum density standard of 

twelve (12%) percent impervious surface (built upon area).  Higher 

Density (than 12% built upon area) will be permitted if stormwater 

control systems utilizing wet detention ponds are installed, 

operated, and maintained which control the runoff from all built 

upon areas generated from one inch of rainfall.  Specifications for 

detention ponds shall be established by the NC Division of 

Environmental Quality. (High Quality Waters rules) 

Minimum yard requirements for residential structures shall be as 

established for the Rural District.  Yard requirements for 

nonresidential structures are established in Article VI, Section 4. 

Building Height.  Same as Article V, Section 1(C). 

Off-Street parking, if applicable, shall be provided as required in 

Article VI, Section 3. 

Section 4.  Light Industrial Conditional Zoning District. 

The Industrial District is established as a district in which the principal use of 

land is for industries and certain other land use functions which can be 

operated in a relatively clean and quiet manner, and industries which are not 

042021 BCC Meeting

169



136 

 

obnoxious to adjacent residential or business districts.  The regulations are 

designed to prohibit the use of land for heavy industry which should be 

properly segregated and to prohibit any other use which would substantially 

interfere with the development of industrial establishments in the district. 

(A) Rezoning & Permitted Uses 

Pursuant to Chapter 5, Article XIV, tracts may be zoned Light 

Industrial Conditional District upon petition/application of all of the 

owners of the subject tracts, and approval by the Board of 

Commissioners, for any of the following land uses: 

(1) Manufacturing and/or assembly 
(2) Machine shop/welding 

(3) Furniture repair if paint/refinishing booth is included 
(4) Brewery/distillery/winery 

(5) Commercial warehouses, but not “mini-storage” warehouses, 
which are permitted in the Highway District 

(6) Trucking/distribution terminal 

(7) Building material and lumber storage 
(B) Prohibited Uses 

Uses defined as Category 1 and 2 High Impact Land Uses in 
Chapter 13 of this Title are industrial, and are prohibited. 

(C) Conditional Uses 
All land uses are conditional and must comply with the Site Plan 

Review Standards, as well as any other conditions agreed upon by 
the Board of Commissioners and applicant(s). 

(D) Dimensional Requirements 

Minimum requirements for lot area, yards, parking, and building 

height are as described for the Highway District or as established 

pursuant to Article VI. 

Section 5.  Accessory Uses. 

(A) Sections 1, 2, 3, and 4 of this article describe permitted and special 

uses for each district.  Whenever an activity is conducted in 
conjunction with another principal use and the former use (i) 

constitutes only an incidental or insubstantial part of the total 
activity that takes place on a lot, or (ii) is commonly associated 

with the principal use and integrally related to it, then the former 
use may be regarded as accessory to the principal use and may be 

carried on underneath the umbrella of the permit issued for the 
principal use.  For example, a swimming pool/tennis court complex 

is customarily associated with and integrally related to a residential 

042021 BCC Meeting

170



137 

 

subdivision or multi-family development and would be regarded as 
accessory to such principal uses, even though such facilities, if 

developed apart from a residential development, would require a 
special use permit. 

(B) For purposes of interpreting Subsection A: 
(1) A use may be regarded as incidental or insubstantial if it is 

incidental or insubstantial in and of itself or in relation to the 
principal use, 

(2) To be “commonly associated” with a principal use it is not 
necessary for an accessory use to be connected with such 

principal use more times than not, but only that the 
association of such accessory use with such principal use 

takes place with sufficient frequency that there is common 
acceptance of their relatedness. 

(C) Without limiting the generality of Subsection A and B, the following 

activities, so long as they satisfy the general criteria set forth 
above, are specifically regarded as accessory to residential principal 

uses: 
(1) Offices or studios within an enclosed building and used by an 

occupant of a residence located on the same lot as such 
building to carry on administrative or artistic activities of a 

commercial nature, so long as such activities do not fall within 
the definition of a home occupations. 

(2) Hobbies or recreational activities of non-commercial nature. 
(3) The renting out of one or two rooms within a single-family 

residence (which one or two rooms do not themselves 
constitute a separate dwelling unit) to not more than two 

persons who are not part of the family that resides in the 
single-family dwelling. 

(4) Yard sales or garage sales, so long as such are not conducted 

on the same lot for more than three days (whether 
consecutive or not) during any 90-day period.   

(D) Without limiting the generality of Subsections A and B, the following 
activities shall not be regarded as accessory to a residential 

principal use and are prohibited in residential districts. 
(1) Storage outside of a substantially enclosed structure of any 

motor vehicle that is neither licensed nor operational. 
(2) Parking outside a substantially enclosed structure of more 

than four motor vehicles between the front building line of the 
principal building and the street on any lot used for single or 

two-family residences. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

171



138 

 

Article VI  Site Plan Review 

All non-residential uses are subject to the standards described in this 

section.  Compliance with the standards shall be determined through a site 

plan review by the Zoning Official.  Standards are as follows: 

Section 1.  Sign Regulations 

Placement of signs is regulated by the Watauga County Sign regulations with 

the following exceptions: 

(A) new off-premises signs are prohibited; 
(B) the setbacks for new on-premises signs shall be located beyond the 

right-of-way of Highway 105 and 10 feet from side property lines; 
and 

(C) pre-existing non-conforming on-premises signs shall be permitted 
to remain until the use of the property is changed or the occupancy 

of the use is changed.  Signs must be brought into compliance with 
the ordinances at that time. 

(D) pre-existing off-premise signs shall be permitted to remain in their 

present location, however once moved from that location, the off-
premise sign shall be considered a new off-premise sign. 

(E) off-premise signs shall not be re-established after damage or 
destruction by an act of nature in excess of sixty (60) percent of its 

replacement value at the time of the damage or destruction. 

Section 2.  Buffer Areas 

(A) Buffer areas shall be established in order to create the impression 
of spatial separation between adjacent land uses.  The purpose of 

this separation is to lessen possible adverse effects of land uses 
upon each other and to provide within development planted/green 

areas so as to maintain the rural character of the community.  
Buffer requirements are as follows. 

(B) Where a commercial or multi-family use is proposed adjacent to a 
single family residential use, side and rear yard setback of 30 feet 

shall be observed for buildings, parking, or storage.  This area is to 

be used as a buffer and shall be landscaped as follows.  Buffers 
shall consist of plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees 

spaced no less than thirty (30) feet apart.  Such trees shall be at 
least six to seven (6-7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-

8) feet tall with a one and one half (1-1/2) inch caliper  (trunk 
measured six (6) inches above grade) for deciduous trees at time of 

planting and shall reach a height of no less than twenty (20) feet as 

042021 BCC Meeting

172



139 

 

maturity.  In addition, plantings of low growing shrubs, and/or trees 
shall be placed at ten (10) foot intervals.  Plantings within buffer 

zones shall be staggered unless topography is prohibitive.  No 
planting shall be placed in the road right-of-way.  Lists of 

recommended plantings are available from the Planning and 
Inspections Department. 

(C) Where a commercial or multi-family use is proposed adjacent to a 
commercial or multi-family use side and rear yard setback of 15 

feet shall be observed for buildings, parking, or storage.  This area 
is to be used as a buffer and shall be landscaped as follows.  

Buffers shall consist of plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous 
trees spaced no less than thirty (30) feet apart.  Such trees shall be 

at least six to seven (6-7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight 
(6-8) feet tall with a one and one half (1-1/2) inch caliper for 

deciduous trees at time of planting and shall reach a height of no 

less than twenty (20) feet at maturity.  In addition, permanent 
ground cover such as grasses shall be established. 

(D) Wall, fences, earthen berms, or other natural features may be used 
in combination with or in lieu of planted buffers if approved as part 

of the conditional use permit.  Considerations include but are not 
limited to: 

(1) Any existing significant vegetation within the buffer(s) may be 
preserved and credited towards meeting the standard for the 

required buffer.  Existing fences, berms, and/or walls within 
the buffer(s) may be used to fulfill the standards set forth for 

the buffer providing these elements are healthy and in a 
condition of good repair.  Chain link fencing is not acceptable 

in meeting the performance criteria of this ordinance. 
(2) Installation of supplemental vegetation and/or site features 

may be required at the time of Site Plan review, if existing 

vegetation and/or site features within the buffer do not meet 
or exceed the requirements of this ordinance. 

(E) Open storage areas, exposed machinery and outdoor areas used for 
the storage and collection of rubbish must be visually screened 

from roads and surrounding land uses.  Suitable types of screening 
include opaque wood fences and dense evergreen hedges of six (6) 

feet or more in height.  Where evergreen hedges are proposed, a 
temporary fence should be built to provide screening until the 

evergreens are of sufficient height. 
(F) The recipient of any zoning or conditional-use permit, or his 

successor, shall be responsible for maintaining all common areas, 
improvements, or facilities required by the ordinance or any permit 

issued in accordance with its provisions, except those areas, 
improvements, or facilities with respect to which an offer of 

042021 BCC Meeting

173



140 

 

dedication to the public has been accepted by the appropriate public 
authority.  As illustrations, and without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, this means that private roads and parking areas, water 
and sewer lines, and recreational facilities must be properly 

maintained so that they can be used in the manner intended, and 
required vegetation and trees used for screening, landscaping, or 

shading must be replaced if they die or are destroyed. 

Section 3.  Parking Standards 

All development shall be provided with adequate parking facilities to handle 

the expected number of automobiles for that site.  Spaces shall be provided 

as follows; use classifications for buildings are the same as those definitions 

use in the N.C. Building Code. 

(A) Required Spaces 

(1) Assembly, business, and mercantile buildings shall be 
provided with parking spaces as follows: 

(a) one space per 300 square feet of floor space in 
buildings of under 11,000 square feet; and 

(b) one space per 200 square feet of floor space in 
buildings 11,000 square feet and greater. 

(2) Factory and industrial buildings shall be provided with 1.5 
spaces per three employees, computed on the total 

employment. 

(3) Institutional buildings shall be provided with one space per 
five person identified in the building’s occupant load figures. 

(4) Residential buildings shall be provided with 1.5 spaces per 
bedroom. 

Parking spaces shall be calculated as being 162 square feet 

each, broken down to 9 by 18 feet.  Once the total required 

square footage has been determined as required by (1) 

through (4), developers shall be permitted to increase the 

numbers of spaces by downsizing some for use by smaller 

automobiles.  Total space requirements of (1) through (4) 

shall, however, be met in any case.  Paving is not required, 

unless required by Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures 

regulations.  4” compacted crusher-run or DOT-approved ABC 

stone is adequate. 

(B) Loading/Unloading Space 

Loading/unloading space for non-residential uses shall consist of 

one (1) space at least three hundred (300) square feet in size for 

042021 BCC Meeting

174



141 

 

each five thousand (5000) square feet of gross floor area.  A 

minimum of one (1) loading/unloading space is required, regardless 

of floor area square footage. 

(C) Location and Buffering of Parking 
In order to preserve the rural environment, developers are 

encouraged to place parking and loading/unloading areas at the 
rear or side of buildings.  (“Front” is defined as the face of the 

building which is paralleled to a public road or a county standard 
road as defined in the Watauga County Subdivisions and Multi-Unit 

Structures regulations.  By this definition, buildings on multiple 

public road or county standard road frontage would have multiple 
“front yards”.)  In any event, parking areas which are exposed to a 

public road or county standard road shall include a ten (10) foot 
buffer strip along the front.  At a minimum, such strips shall be 

grassed and/or mulched and shall be planted with low growing 
trees, or shrubs no more than twenty (20) feet apart.  Incentive to 

place parking areas to the side or rear of buildings is provided in 
the form of lessened front yard setback requirements.  (See Article 

VI, Section 4) 

Section 4.  Yard Requirements – Highway and Industrial Districts 

(A) Front Yard (side or rear parking) – 20 feet from edge of road right-
of-way. 

(B) Front Yard (front parking) – 40 feet from edge of right-of-way 
(includes buffer strip). 

(C) Side and rear yards – 30 feet or 15 feet depending upon use of 

adjacent property (see buffer area requirements) 

Section 5.  Driveway Connections 

Driveway access to Highway 105 shall be limited to two (2) per 

development; one (1) is preferred.  Channelization will be required (unless 

waived by Watauga County) as part of driveway and parking lot design so 

that the driveway(s) can be specifically located.  Use of the entire frontage 

as a single driveway connection is prohibited. 

NC DOT “Policy on Street and Driveway Access to North Carolina Highways” 

requires County site plan approval prior to DOT review and approval of 

driveway connection applications.  No building permit, however, shall be 

issued unless DOT has issued a driveway connection permit or has indicated 

in writing that a permit can be issued. 

042021 BCC Meeting

175



142 

 

Section 6.  Drainage, Erosion Control, Storm Water Management 

(A) Natural Drainage.  To the extent practicable, all development shall 

conform to the natural contours of the land and natural and pre-
existing man-made drainage way shall remain undisturbed. 

(B) Erosion Control.  All developments which involve one-half (1/2) 
acre or more of grading (land-disturbing activity) shall comply with 

the requirements of the Watauga County Erosion Control 
regulations.  All developments which involve less than one-half 

(1/2) acre of land-disturbing activity shall take adequate measures 
to prevent sediment from being washed off-site or into waterways 

during construction, and shall restore permanent vegetative ground 
cover within 120 days of the date the site is first disturbed.  This 

120 day period may be extended by Watauga County in the event 
of inclement weather. 

(C) Storm Water Management.  All developments shall be constructed 

and maintained so that adjacent properties are not reasonably 
burdened with surface waters as a result of such developments.  

More specifically: 
(1) No development may be constructed or maintained so that 

such development unreasonable impedes the natural flow of 
water from higher adjacent properties across such 

development, thereby unreasonably causing substantial 
damage to such higher adjacent properties; and 

(2) No development may be constructed or maintained so that 
surface waters from such development are unreasonably 

collected and channeled onto lower adjacent properties at 
such locations or at such volumes as to cause substantial 

damage to such lower adjacent properties. 

Section 7.  Stream Protection, Flood Plain Protection 

(A) Stream Protection.  A minimum vegetative buffer of 50 feet shall be 

maintained between the top of the banks of Watauga River and 
Boone Fork Creek and new built upon areas.  A minimum vegetative 

buffer of 40 feet shall be maintained between the top of the banks 
of Valley Creek, Moody Mill Creek, Spice Bottom Creek and 

tributaries to the five (5) named streams and new built upon areas.  
New developments large enough to warrant an erosion control plan 

pursuant to the Watauga County Erosion Control regulations shall 
also maintain a 25 foot undisturbed area adjacent to the top of the 

banks of designated trout streams and their tributaries as required 
by the N.C. Sedimentation Pollution Control Act of 1973 as 

amended (all of the named streams are designated).  The 

042021 BCC Meeting

176



143 

 

undisturbed area is not required for smaller developments.  
However erosion control measures approved by the Department of 

Planning and Inspections shall be installed and maintained within 
the required buffer until permanent vegetation is established.  The 

Zoning Official shall keep lists/map of stream classifications on file. 
 

The buffers (and undisturbed areas, if applicable) may be 
penetrated by driveways/stream crossings, which are necessary to 

access property.  Under those circumstances, the penetration and 
any land disturbing activity shall be kept to a minimum and 

approved erosion control measures shall be installed and 
maintained.  The requirements for buffers or undisturbed areas 

does not preclude the construction, when necessary, of storm 
drainage facilities such as detention ponds. 

 

Streams are perennial streams as depicted by a solid blue line on 
USGS 7 1/2 minute scale topographic sheets.  Top of stream bank 

is the nearest point at the top of the natural stream channel which 
is the beginning point of an imaginary horizontal line that forms a 

90 degree angle with an imaginary vertical line perpendicular to the 
stream at the low water line.  (see diagram)  Often, it appears that 

streams have multiple banks.  In most cases, the top of the bank 
for purposes of this ordinance will be the bank closest to the water’s 

edge. 
 

Built-upon area means that portion of a development project that is 
covered by impervious or partially impervious cover including 

buildings, pavement, gravel roads, recreation facilities (e.g. tennis 
courts), etc. 

(B) Flood Plain Protection.  In addition to the requirements of stream 

classifications, development adjacent to the Watauga River shall 
comply with the Watauga County Flood Damage Prevention 

regulations.  Dredging or filling activity in or adjacent to the 
Watauga River, Boone Fork Creek, or other wetland areas 

potentially requires a Section 404 permit from the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers.  The Zoning Official shall inform developers of this 

potential.  It is the responsibility of the developer to contact the 
Corps of Engineers. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

177



144 

 

CHAPTER 11    INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF 
ELECTRONIC ACCESS GATES FOR GATED COMMUNITIES 

 

Article I  Authority and Purpose 

These regulations are enacted pursuant to the general police powers granted 

to Watauga County by North Carolina Gen. Stat. §153A-121, N.C. Gen. Stat. 

§160D-1104, and Section 503 of the 2009 North Carolina State Fire 

Prevention Code, as amended periodically.  The purpose of these regulations is 

to establish rules and standards for the installation of electronic access gates 

for gated communities in order to provide for the safe and efficient ingress and 

egress for fire, law enforcement, and other emergency personnel. 

Article II  Requirements  

New and existing, when applicable, gated communities shall comply with the 

following requirements: 

(A) All streets in the gated community must be private streets.  

(B) The location of the gate(s) shall comply with Article III of this 
chapter and the North Carolina State Fire Prevention Code, as 

applicable.  
(C) The gates shall be maintained in working order and inspected as 

needed.   
(D) Gates pre-existing to the adoption of these regulations shall not be 

affected by this chapter provided they are maintained and in working 

order. If such gates are replaced or modified, they shall conform to 
the requirements of Article III, parts C through K, of this chapter and 

the North Carolina State Fire Prevention Code as applicable.  
(E) Applicants shall adhere to Article IV regarding the process for 

obtaining approval for gates.  
 

Article III  Gate Development Specifics 

(A) Entrance gates shall be located a minimum of 40’ from the adjacent 

public road right-of-way to allow for emergency vehicle clearance at 
entry.  

(B) Combined entry and exit ways shall provide a minimum 
unobstructed width of twenty (20) feet. Entry and exit ways 

separated by landscape medians, guard houses, or other 
obstructions shall provide a minimum unobstructed width of twelve 

(12) feet. Entry and exit ways shall have a minimum unobstructed 

vertical clearance of not less than thirteen feet six inches (13’6”). 

042021 BCC Meeting

178



145 

 

(C) It shall be determined if the gates are to be manual or electrical in 
operation. All electrical vehicular  gates shall be provided with access 

control using a Radio Transceiver for public safety and authorized 
users.  This transceiver will allow emergency vehicles to open the 

gate from a mobile or portable radio, and must be pre-approved by 
Watauga County.  

(D) All electrical vehicular gates shall be provided with a fail-open device 
in the event of power failures unless secondary power is provide by 

battery back-up or generator.  During a power failure, the gates will 
open and remain open.  These devices should restore the gate(s) to 

the closed position after the power is restored.  Any residential gated 
communities consisting of three (3) or less dwelling units are not 

subject to this requirement.  
(E) Gates need to be opened for appropriate personnel to enter the 

community during an emergency. A fire service recognized/approved 

dual key activating switch or padlock shall be installed to allow 
emergency personnel access through vehicular gates.  

(F) An approved dual key lock box containing cards, keys, pass codes 
and operating instructions shall be provided at each entrance gate.  

(G) Gates shall be designed so that when fully opened do not obstruct 
the path of travel for vehicles or pedestrians, whether emergency 

and non-emergency. Gates shall remain fully open during an 
emergency event, when activated by responding agency, until reset.  

A ‘Hold Open’ code must be included in design and functioning of the 
gate. 

(H) If there are two or more gates in any single development, all gates 
shall be operated in the same fashion. 

(I) Gate activation shall not be altered or placed out of service without 
prior notification to the Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office, 

Watauga County Planning and Inspections Department and the Local 

Fire Department.  
(J) Each entrance gate shall be provided with an “override” feature to 

allow the gate(s) to remain open so that multiple fire apparatus can 
enter without having to wait for intermittent opening of the gate(s). 

(K) Each entrance gate shall be equipped with a manual override feature 
so as to permit opening during power failures or other emergency. 

 
Article IV  Application and Approval Process 

(A) The applicant shall submit a detailed plan, including but not limited 
to, scaled drawings showing the location of the gates, turn radius, 

dimensions of the gates, pavement, sidewalks, curbs, etc. 
Information such as topography lines, vegetation, site triangles, etc. 

shall also be included with the submittal.  

042021 BCC Meeting

179



146 

 

(B) The applicant shall submit these plans for review by the Planning & 
Inspections Department, who shall forward the plans to the Sheriff’s 

Department, Fire Marshal’s Office, EMS, and Local Fire Department 
for approval. 

(C) The Department of Planning & Inspections shall verify approval by 
the agencies listed in Section B. of the gate plan prior to issuance of 

a permit.   
(D) All property owners shall notify the Watauga County Emergency 

Services Department of any gate access code changes prior to such 
changes taking effect. 

(E) All gated communities applying for a permit to install a gate shall 
acknowledge that if the affected properties gate fails to operate in its 

intended operational capacity, and such failure results in damage to 
the gate or constitutes the responding emergency agency to alter 

normal entrance procedures, the responding agency, mutual aid 

departments and Watauga County shall not be held liable for 
damages incurred. 

Article V  Maintenance 

Gates subject to this chapter shall be kept in their original working order and 

shall be repaired and/or replaced in the event they are disabled and/or 

damaged.  It shall not be the responsibility of the County to maintain these 

gates.  Gates subject to this chapter shall be monitored annually by the Local 

Fire Department and verified by the Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office 

every three (3) years of their operation or as deemed appropriate by the 

Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office.   

Article VI  Modifications 

Any gate (new or existing) altered outside the scope of their original 

installation and/or permitting, will be considered a modification.  Notification 

and plans for modification shall be submitted to the Watauga County Office of 

Planning and Inspections for review and decision upon compliance with this 

chapter. 

 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

180



147 

 

CHAPTER 12   HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County are concerned 

about the health, safety and general welfare of the general public; and  

WHEREAS, the fire departments of Watauga County together with other 

appropriate agencies have stated that structures higher than forty (40) feet 

are hazardous to the people in them in case of fire or other disasters; and  

WHEREAS, the Watauga County Planning Board and Board of Soil and Water 

Conservation have requested the Board of Commissioners of Watauga 

County to exercise its ordinance making power to protect the fragile lands of 

Watauga County in order to promote the general welfare and safety of the 

citizens of Watauga County and the people who might visit the County; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners are authorized to enact ordinances 

for safety and general welfare by North Carolina General Statute 153A-121;  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners have 

enacted the following:  

Article I  Regulation of Height of Structures 

No building or structure intended for dwelling use may be constructed, 

reconstructed, or remodeled with a vertical height of more than 40 feet.  For 

purposes of calculating vertical height, the applicant may elect to use either 

of the following two methods:   

(A) 40 feet measured vertically from the highest point of the roof to the 
highest point of finished grade within 6 feet horizontally of an 

exterior wall, or   
(B) 40 feet measured vertically from the average height of the highest 

roof surface to the “grade plane” as defined in the NC Residential 
Code and NC Building Code.  

Excluded from this ordinance are the following: 

(1) Water, radio, television, or telephone towers or any 
equipment for the transmission of electricity or 

communications, or both. 
(2) Structures which are slender in nature and minor vertical 

projections of a parent building including chimneys, flag 
poles, flues, spires, steeples, belfries, cupolas, antennas, 

poles, wires or windmills, provided that part of the structure 

042021 BCC Meeting

181



148 

 

which is higher than 40 feet is no intended for human 
habitation.   

Article II  Permits 

In the event any person, partnership, or corporation requests a building 

permit for a structure that is in violation of this ordinance the Watauga 

County Planning and Inspections Department shall deny the issuance of a 

building permit.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

182



149 

 

CHAPTER 13  HIGH IMPACT LAND USES 

Article I  Introduction 

Section 1.  General Purpose.   

The following regulations of High Impact Land Uses (HILU) are adopted for 

the purpose of promoting the health, safety and general welfare of the 

citizens of Watauga County, and to promote the peace and dignity of the 

county; the Watauga County Commissioners hereby establish certain criteria 

relating to high impact land uses.  These uses by their very nature produce 

objectionable levels of noise, odors, vibrations, fumes, light, smoke, and 

other impacts upon the lands adjacent to them.  These standards shall allow 

for the placement and growth of such uses, while maintaining the health, 

safety, and general welfare standards of established residential and 

commercial areas in Watauga County. 

Section 2.  Legal Authority.   

These regulations are enacted under the general ordinance authority granted 

to counties by the General Assembly of North Carolina. (General Statutes 

153A-121 et seq., and other pertinent statutes and amendments thereto). 

Section 3.  Territorial Coverage.  

Pursuant to NCGS § 153A-122, this chapter shall apply to all areas of 

unincorporated Watauga County which are not within the extraterritorial 

planning jurisdictions of any municipalities.  All municipalities, their 

respective corporate limits, and extra-territorial jurisdiction shall be 

exempted from the chapter, unless they choose to adopt this chapter or 

some form thereof. This chapter does not apply to Watauga County owned 

and operated solid waste facilities or container sites.  

Article II  Regulated Land Uses 

Section 1.  Regulated Uses.   

This chapter applies to the following High Impact Land Uses:  

(A) Category 1. Asphalt Plants, Cement Mixing Facilities, 

Quarries/Stone Crushers, Chemical Manufacturing, Chemical 
Storage Facilities, Explosives Manufacturing, and Explosives Storage 

042021 BCC Meeting

183



150 

 

Facilities, Chip Mills, and Electricity Generating Facilities (excluding 
Wind and Solar Power Farms), Motor Sports Facilities.  

(B) Category 2. Automotive Graveyards, Propane, Gasoline, or Fuel Oil 
Bulk Storage Facilities, and Junk/Scrap Yards.  

(C) Category 3. Electric Substations, Commercial/Industrial 
Development with aggregate building footprint 50,000 square feet 

or greater, Recycling Facilities, and Solar Power Farms. (Note: Wind 
Power Farms are regulated by separate Watauga County 

Ordinance.) 

Section 2.  Regulations and Standards Imposed. 

(A) Parking Space Requirements. Adequate parking facilities shall be 
provided to accommodate the type and intensity of vehicles likely to 

frequent High Impact Land Uses. Standards for specific land uses 
are as follows: 

(1) Retail uses shall provide a minimum of three (3) spaces per 

1,000 square feet of floor  area for buildings up to 10,000 SF 
in size, and (5) spaces per each 1,000 square feet of floor 

area in excess of 10,000 square feet.   
(2) Overnight accommodations shall provide a minimum of one and 

one-half (1.5) spaces per bedroom. 
(3) Factory, Industrial and Commercial (other than specified in 

(1) and (2) above) uses shall provide one and one-half (1.5) 
spaces per three employees computed on the total 

employment. 
Parking spaces shall be at least nine (9) by eighteen (18) feet. 

Accessible spaces shall be provided in accordance with NC Building 
Code requirements. The Ordinance Administrator may permit 

deviations from the preceding specified standards based upon the 
expected parking needs of the establishment while recognizing the 

desire to limit excess parking area. 

(B) Building Height Limits.  In order to allow for adequate fire 
protection, no building shall exceed a height of forty (40) feet, 

measured as defined by the Watauga County Height of Structures 
regulations. 

(C) Outdoor Lighting Standards.  High Impact Land Uses shall use 
outdoor lighting that does not create a nuisance on adjacent 

property, roadways, or pollute the night sky.  These objectives are 
easily accomplished by choosing good quality, shielded fixtures. 

(1) All parking lot lighting shall use full cutoff lighting fixtures; 

(2) Wall-packs and floodlights shall be either full cutoff design or 

have shields such that they do not put any light above the 

042021 BCC Meeting

184



151 

 

horizon and will be mounted to not shine on roadways and 

neighboring properties. Use of floodlights is discouraged; 

(3) Typical pole-mounted “dusk-to-dawn” security lights shall use 

reflecting “sky caps” instead of clear plastic refractors;  

(4) Building façade lighting shall not shine above the facades; 

and 

(5) For buildings required by the NC Building Code to have plans 
prepared by a design professional, the lighting levels shall be 

determined as defined by the Recommended Practices of the 
Illuminating Engineering Society of North America, or other 

recognized lighting publication. All other buildings comply 
with the requirement by virtue of compliance with (1) through 

(4) of this section. 

(D) Setbacks Required. 

(1) Category 1 & Category 2 High Impact Land Uses shall be set 

back 200 feet from side and rear property lines.  

(2) Category 3 High Impact Land Uses shall be set back 100 feet 

from side and rear property lines.  

(3) Where High Impact Land Uses adjoin each other, the required 

setbacks along common boundary lines for each High Impact 

Use may be reduced as follows: 

(a) Category 1 & Category 2 High Impact Land Uses – 50 

feet; 

(b) Category 3 High Impact Land Uses – 25 feet.  

(4) Category 1 & 2 High Impact Land Uses shall be set back 200 

feet from the edge of travelled area (stone or paved) of all 
public roads, unless spacing requirements (subsection F) 

apply. In no instance shall such setbacks be less than 20 feet 

from any recorded right of way or NCDOT property boundary. 

(5) High Impact Land Uses shall be set back from all perennial 

waters indicated by blue lines on the most recent versions of 
USGS 1:24,000 (7.5 minute) scale topographic maps as 

follows:  

There shall be a 100 foot vegetative buffer (measured from 

the top of the stream bank as indicated below) for all “blue 

line” streams; the 30 feet closest to the top of the stream 

bank being undisturbed and 70 feet managed vegetation. 

042021 BCC Meeting

185



152 

 

Publicly accessible walkways may be allowed within the 

managed vegetation area. 

 
(6) No part of a yard provided around any building or structure 

for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this 
chapter shall be included as a part of a yard required under 

this chapter for any other building or structure. 
(E) Landscape Buffers Required. Each High Impact Land Use shall be 

effectively buffered by landscaping which lessens the visual impact 
of the development at road grade level and from all sides with non-

High Impact Uses in place and increases the buffering of noise and 
particulate matter. Each applicant shall submit a landscape plan 

which describes in detail how the above objectives will be met. The 
Ordinance Administrator may reasonably require adjustments 

and/or alterations to any proposed landscape plan necessary to 
comply with the provisions of this chapter.  

(1) Category 1 & Category 2 Landscape Buffers. All Category 1 & 

Category 2 High Impact Land Uses shall be buffered utilizing 
the following combination of landscape material designed for 

screening effect: 
(a) Deciduous trees – three (3) per 100 lineal feet of 

property boundary line; and 
(b) Evergreen trees – six (6) per 100 lineal feet of property 

boundary line; and 
(c) Shrubs – ten (10) per 100 lineal feet of property 

boundary line.  

042021 BCC Meeting

186



153 

 

(2) Category 3 Landscape Buffers. All Category 3 High Impact 
Land Uses shall be buffered utilizing the following combination 

of landscape material designed for aesthetic effect: 

(a) Deciduous/Evergreen trees – four (4) per 100 lineal feet 

of property boundary line; and 

(b) Shrubs – ten (10) per 100 lineal feet of property 

boundary line.  

Opaque fencing made from conventional material or masonry 

walls and existing healthy trees and shrubs may be used in 

combination with a reduced number of required trees and 

shrubs when landscape buffer objectives are met and plans 

are approved by the Ordinance Administrator.   

(3) Plant material shall be inspected and approved prior to 

planting and must meet the following minimum size 
requirements:   

(a) Deciduous trees shall be a minimum of 6 feet tall with a 
1 ½ -inch caliper measured six inches above grade 

upon planting; 
(b) Evergreen trees shall be a minimum of 6 feet tall upon 

planting; 
(c) Shrubs shall be a minimum of 1 foot tall upon planting.  

(F) Spacing Requirements.    
(1) Category 1 & Category 2 High Impact Land Uses may not be 

established within 1,500 feet of a public or private 
Educational Facility, NC licensed Child Care Facility, NC 

licensed Assisted Living Facility, NC licensed Nursing Home, 

Public Outdoor Recreation Area, or Religious Facility. In order 
to establish required spacing, measurement shall be made in 

a straight line, without regard to intervening structures or 
objects, from the nearest portion of the building, structure, or 

outdoor storage area utilized by Category 1 or 2 Land Uses, 
to the nearest property line of the above-listed facilities.   

(2) Category 1 High Impact Land Uses may not be established 
within 750 feet of a dwelling. In order to establish required 

spacing, measurement shall be made in a straight line, 
without regard to intervening structures or objects, from the 

nearest portion of the building, structure, or outdoor storage 
area utilized by a Category 1 Land Use, to the nearest 

property line of a dwelling.   
(3) Category 1 High Impact Land Uses may not be established 

within 1,500 feet of the right-of-way line of a roadway 

042021 BCC Meeting

187



154 

 

designated by NCDOT as a NC Scenic Byway or within 1,500 
feet of the Blue Ridge Parkway.  

Presence of a city, county or other political subdivision 
boundary shall be irrelevant for purposes of calculating and 

applying the spacing requirements of this Section.  
(G) Driveway Connection Permit Required:  A driveway connection 

permit issued by NC Department of Transportation shall be 
obtained. A Traffic Impact Analysis shall be required from the 

applicant under the following circumstances, unless the Ordinance 
Administrator and NCDOT concur that one is unnecessary: 

(1) The development proposes to have access to any public road 
at a location where sight distance in any direction along the 

road is less than 500 feet; or 
(2) The development proposes access onto a public road that 

does not have a paved width of at least 18 feet; or 

(3) The development proposes access to a public road with 
current NCDOT traffic counts that are 85% of capacity shown 

in the most recent Watauga County Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan and based upon ITE trip generation rates 

is projected to generate 1,500 or more weekday trips; or 
(4) The Ordinance Administrator determines that the proposed 

project will have a potential negative impact on the public 
road system due to the size of the project or existing 

transportation system or determines that there are safety 
concerns with the driveway location and design. If a traffic 

impact analysis is performed and that analysis concludes that 
improvements are required to the transportation system, the 

applicant may be required to complete those improvements in 
connection with the project as a condition of issuing a permit. 

Unless an agreement is executed by the County in which the 

time for the improvement is specified, the improvement shall 
be completed prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

(H) Federal and State Permits: The developer shall obtain all applicable 
Federal and State Permits as a condition of issuance of a HILU 

Special Use Permit. Failure to obtain said permits shall result in 
revocation of the conditional Special Use Permit. 

Article III  Pre-Existing High Impact Land Uses 

Section 1.  Grandfathering of Pre-existing High Impact Land Uses.   

Any High Impact Land Use existing upon the date of adoption of these 

regulations which does not conform to the requirements of These regulations 

may continue so long as the use is not discontinued for more than One 

042021 BCC Meeting

188



155 

 

Hundred Eighty (180) days. In cases where repair or renovation is necessary 

to re-occupy a vacant building, a permit for such construction must be 

obtained within one hundred eighty (180) days of last occupancy and repairs 

must proceed continuously to completion. A High Impact Land Use shall not 

be deemed to be discontinued during such time as the owner or operator 

thereof has temporarily suspended operations solely due to the seasonal 

nature of the business. 

(A) Expansion.  Grandfathered nonconforming High Impact Land Uses 

may be expanded provided the degree of nonconformity is not 
increased. In addition, the expansion shall comply with the 

standards of Article II, and the pre-existing development shall 
comply with the standards of Article II to the extent physically 

practicable as determined by the Ordinance Administrator, and 
upon issuance of a Special Use Permit pursuant to Article IV.  

(B) Reconstruction.  In cases of damage to grandfathered 
nonconforming buildings to the extent of seventy-five percent 

(75%) or less of the replacement value, repairs may be made, 

provided the original building footprint is maintained.  When such 
damage exceeds seventy-five percent (75%) of the replacement 

value, repairs may be made only if the original building footprint is 
maintained and the standards of Article II are met to the extent 

physically practicable as determined by the Ordinance 
Administrator, and upon issuance of a Special Use Permit pursuant 

to Article IV. 

Compliance with a requirement of this chapter is not physically 

practicable if compliance cannot be achieved without adding land to 

the lot where the nonconforming situation is maintained or moving 

a substantial structure that is on a permanent foundation. Mere 

financial hardship caused by the cost of meeting requirements does 

not constitute grounds for finding that compliance is not physically 

practicable. 

Section 2.  New High Impact Land Uses Regulated.  

 After the effective date of this chapter all new High Impact Land Uses as 

well as any pre-existing High Impact Land Uses which are moved, altered or 

enlarged shall conform to the regulations contained in this chapter except as 

set forth in Article III, Section 1. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

189



156 

 

Section 3. Pre-existing Regulated Land Uses.   

After the effective date of this chapter, new permits or approvals for any of 

the protected land uses listed in Article II, Section 2 (F) Spacing 

Requirements shall not have the effect of creating new non-conformities for 

any lawfully existing High Impact Land Use.    

Article IV  Permit Required 

Section 1.  Permitting Process. 

(A) Special Use Permit Required.  No use subject to this chapter shall 
be established, reconstructed or expanded, and no building used or 

occupied without a Special Use Permit having been issued pursuant 
to Chapter 3.  

(B) Applications for Special Use Permits.  All applications for Special Use 
permits shall be accompanied by plans in duplicate, drawn to scale, 

showing the actual dimensions and shape of the lot to be built 
upon; the exact sizes and locations on the lot of any buildings 

already existing; the location and dimensions of the proposed 
building or alteration; and compliance with the standards of Article 

II.  The application shall include such other information as may 
reasonably be required by the Ordinance Administrator, including a 

description of all existing or proposed buildings or alterations; 
existing and proposed uses of the buildings and land; conditions 

existing on the land parcel; and such other matters as may be 

necessary to determine conformance with, and provide for the 
enforcement of, this chapter.   

(C) Administrator to Maintain Permit Records.  The Ordinance 
Administrator shall maintain a record of all Special Use Permits and 

copies shall be furnished upon request to any interested person.  
(D) Building Permit. No permit required under the North Carolina State 

Building Code Shall be issued for any activity for which a HILU 
Special Use Permit is required until the Special Use Permit has been 

issued.  

Section 2. Permit Expiration. 

A HILU Special Use Permit shall expire if a Building Permit or High Impact 

Land Use Occupancy Permit for such use is not obtained by the applicant 

within twelve (12) months from the date of issuance.  

042021 BCC Meeting

190



157 

 

Section 3. High Impact Land Use Occupancy Permit.  

(A) The Ordinance Administrator shall issue a High Impact Land Use 

Occupancy Permit certifying that all requirements of this ordinance 
have been met prior to the occupancy or use of a building hereafter 

erected, altered or moved and/or prior to the change of use of any 
building or land.   

(B) A High Impact Land Use Occupancy Permit, either for the whole or part 
of a building, shall be applied for coincident with the application for a 

Special Use Permit and shall be issued or denied within ten (10) days 
after the construction or structural alterations of the building, provided 

all ordinance requirements are met. 

Should any Federal or State regulation or statute incorporated herein by 

reference or otherwise referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should 

either require or mandate a different procedure or change or impose new, 

different or additional requirements, then, in that event, this chapter shall be 

deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied with 

such new, additional or amended requirements.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

191



158 

 

CHAPTER 14    MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS  
 

Article I Authority and Purpose  

Pursuant to the authority granted to counties in North Carolina General 

Statute 153A-121 and for the purpose of establishing minimum standards 
for the design and construction of manufactured home parks in order to 

protect and promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the public, 

the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County enact the following. 
 

Article II  Health Department Review 

Unless connecting to public or community water and sewer systems, each 

proposed manufactured home park shall be reviewed and approved by 
AppHealthCare (health department) for well and septic system design and 

usage. Applicants are advised to work simultaneously with the County 
Department of Planning and Inspections and AppHealthCare to devise plans 

for proposed parks. 
 

Article III Preliminary Site Plan Submission  

No person, firm, or corporation shall commence construction or alteration of 

a manufactured home park within Watauga County without first securing the 
approval of a preliminary site plan from the Watauga County Planning Board.  

One (1) copy of said site plan shall be submitted to the Department of 

Planning and Inspections at least ten (10) working days prior to the regular 
monthly meeting of the Planning Board to allow for staff review and 

placement on the meeting agenda.  Subsequent to staff review but prior to 
the Board meeting, the developer shall submit eight (8) copies of the 

preliminary site plan. 
 

Section 1.  Preliminary Site Plan Specifications. 

The preliminary site plan shall be drawn at a scale of not less than one 

hundred (100) feet to the inch on sheets 18 x 24 inches and shall include 
the following: 

(A) Items specified by AppHealthCare. 
(B) Sketch vicinity map of the park's location. 

(C) Landscaping, buffering, open space plans. 
(D) Designated parking areas. 

(E) AppHealthCare certificate indicating approval of the plan. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

192



159 

 

Article IV Park Development Standards  

The standards of the AppHealthCare approval shall be met.  In addition, the 

following standards shall apply: 
(A) Minimum setbacks: 

(1) from right-of-way of roads bordering park 20 feet. 
(2) from right-of-way of roads inside park 10 feet, but at least 15 

feet from the edge of the road travel  surface. 
(3) between all manufactured homes and attachments thereto 

including porches, decks, storage areas, etc. - 25 feet. 
(4) from exterior property line - 20 feet. 

(B) Parking space sufficient to accommodate at least two (2) 
automobiles shall be constructed for each manufactured home 

space. 
(C) Roads within manufactured home parks shall be constructed to 

either NC DOT standards or "county standards" as defined in the 

Watauga County Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures regulations 
as amended from time-to-time, with the exception that right-of-

way may be reduced to thirty (30) feet. 
(D) A minimum of four hundred (400) square feet of common open 

space per lot shall be required.  Common open space shall be 
exclusive of road right-of-way, parking areas, or any areas set 

aside for solid waste collection or utility equipment. 
(E) A twenty-five (25) foot-wide buffer shall be provided around the 

perimeter of the park.  The purpose of the buffer is to create the 
impression of spatial separation between parks and adjacent land 

uses without eliminating visual contact. Buffers shall consist of 
plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees spaced no more than 

thirty (30) feet apart. Such trees shall be at least six to seven (6-7) 
feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-8) feet tall with a one 

and one-half (1-1/2) inch caliper (trunk measured six (6) inches 

above grade) for deciduous trees at time of planting and shall reach 
a height of no less than twenty (20) feet a maturity. In addition, 

plantings of low-growing shrubs, bushes, and/or trees shall be 
placed at ten (10) foot intervals. 

Plantings within buffer areas shall be staggered unless topography 
is prohibitive.  No planting shall be placed in a public road right-of-

way.  Lists of recommended plantings are available from the 
Planning and Inspections Department. 

In combination with or in lieu of a buffer, the following may be 
provided: A ten (10) foot-wide screening strip shall be provided 

around the perimeter of the park.  The purpose of screening is to 
eliminate visual contact between the park and adjacent land uses.  

Screening shall consist of plantings of evergreen trees at ten (10) 

042021 BCC Meeting

193



160 

 

foot intervals.  Such trees shall meet the height and caliper 
standards described in this section for buffer areas. 

(F) Maximum permissible density for a manufactured home park is six 
(6) spaces per acre. 

Article V Individual Manufactured Homes Within a Park  

Individual manufactured homes within a park shall be set-up, connected to 

utilities, and tied down in compliance with the State of North Carolina 
Regulations for Manufactured Homes and shall be inspected for compliance 

by the Planning and Inspections Department in order to be approved for 
permanent electrical power.  

  
Prior to performing any individual manufactured home inspections, the 

Planning and Inspections department shall confirm compliance with this and 
all other applicable regulations.  Such regulations may include (when 

applicable) but are not limited to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, 

Flood Damage Prevention, Structures Located on Land Adjacent to National 
Park Service Land. 

 
Article VI  Applicability to Existing Manufactured Home Parks 

All manufactured home parks in operation on the effective date of this 
chapter shall not be affected by this chapter, except for expansions or 

additions, which must comply. 
 

Article VII  Registration 

It shall be the duty of the owner of a manufactured home park to keep an 

accurate register containing a record of all manufactured homes, owners, 
and occupants of the park.  Said information shall be reported annually to 

the Watauga County Tax Supervisor in accordance with NCGS 105-316. 
 

Should any Federal or State regulation or statute incorporated herein by 

reference or otherwise referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should 

either require or mandate a different procedure or change or impose new, 

different or additional requirements, then, in that event, this ordinance shall 

be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 

with such new, additional or amended requirements.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

194



161 

 

CHAPTER 15    SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESSES 

 REGULATIONS REQUIRING THE DISPERSING OF SEXUALLY 

ORIENTED BUSINESSES AND LIMITING THEM TO SPECIFIED PLACES; 

PRESCRIBING DEFINITIONS OF SEXUALLY ORIENTED BUSINESSES; 

PROVIDING FOR LICENSING AND REGULATION OF SEXUALLY 

ORIENTED BUSINESSES AND EMPLOYEES; AND PROVIDING FOR 

ADDITIONAL MISCELLANEOUS REGULATIONS FOR SEXUALLY 

ORIENTED BUSINESSES. 

 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners enacted on 

September 10, 1999 an Ordinance establishing a moratorium on Sexually 

Oriented Businesses in Watauga County pursuant to North Carolina General 

Statute 160A-181.1 (superseded by 160D-902 in 2020) expressly authorizing 

county regulation of sexually oriented businesses, being authority in addition 

to that contained in North Carolina General Statutes 153A-45 and 153A-121; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Planning Board and staff of the 

Department of Planning and Inspections have studied the secondary impacts 

of sexually oriented businesses and conducted a public hearing, all of which is 

a matter of record; and 

 WHEREAS, sexually oriented businesses require special supervision 

from the public safety agencies of the County in order to protect and preserve 

the health, safety, morals and welfare of the patrons of such businesses as 

well as the citizens of the County; and 

  WHEREAS, the Planning Board has found by study of impacts in other 

counties and municipalities that sexually oriented businesses are frequently 

used for unlawful sexual activities, including prostitution and sexual liaisons of 

a casual nature; and 

 WHEREAS, the concern over sexually transmitted diseases is a 
legitimate health concern of the County which demands reasonable 

regulation of sexually oriented businesses in order to protect the health and 
well-being of the citizens; and 

 
 WHEREAS, licensing is a legitimate and reasonable means of 

accountability to ensure that operators and employees of sexually oriented 

businesses comply with reasonable regulations and to ensure that operators 

042021 BCC Meeting

195



162 

 

do not allow their establishments to be used improperly or as places of 
illegal sexual activity or solicitation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is convincing documented evidence that sexually 

oriented businesses, because of their very nature, have a deleterious effect on 

the existing uses, including but not limited to businesses, schools, daycare 

facilities, religious institutions, parks and rural fire departments around them 

and the surrounding residential areas adjacent to them, causing increased 

crime and the downgrading of property values; and 

 WHEREAS, it is recognized that sexually oriented businesses, due to 

their nature, have serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly 

when they are located in close proximity to each other, thereby downgrading 

the quality of life in the adjacent area; and 

 WHEREAS, family-oriented tourism is an important aspect of the local 

economy that would be negatively affected by increased crime and 

downgraded quality of life resulting from sexually oriented businesses; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to minimize and control 

these adverse effects and thereby protect the health, safety, and welfare of 

the citizenry; protect the citizens from increased crime; preserve the quality of 

life; preserve the property values and character of surrounding 

neighborhoods; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has determined that locational 

criteria alone do not adequately protect the health, safety, and general welfare 

of the people of this County; and 

  WHEREAS, it is not the intent of this ordinance to suppress any speech 

activities protected by the First Amendment, but to enact a content neutral 

ordinance which addresses the secondary effects of sexually oriented 

businesses; and 

 WHEREAS, it is not the intent of the Board of Commissioners to 

condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material, and the Board 

recognizes that state and federal law prohibits the distribution of obscene 

materials and expects and encourages state law enforcement officials to 

enforce state obscenity statutes against any such illegal activities in the 

County. 

042021 BCC Meeting

196



163 

 

 THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority granted by the Constitution and 

the legislature of the State of NORTH CAROLINA, BE IT ENACTED BY THE 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, 

February 22, 2000: 

Article I  Purpose and Findings 

Section 1.  Purpose.   

It is the purpose of this chapter to regulate sexually oriented businesses in 

order to promote the health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the 

citizens of the County, and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to 

prevent the deleterious location and concentration of sexually oriented 

businesses within the County.  The provisions of this chapter have neither the 

purpose nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content of any 

communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials.  Similarly, it is 

not the intent nor effect of this chapter to restrict or deny access by adults to 

sexually oriented materials protected by the First Amendment, or to deny 

access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually oriented entertainment to 

their intended market.  Neither is it the intent nor effect of this ordinance to 

condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material. 

Section 2.  Findings. 

Based on evidence concerning the adverse secondary effects of adult uses on 

the community presented in hearings and in reports made available to the 

Board, and on findings incorporated in the cases of City of Renton v. Playtime 

Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini Theatres, 426 

U.S. 50 (1976), and Barnes v. Glen Theatre, Inc., 501 U.S. 560 (1991), and 

on studies in other communities including, but not limited to, Horry County 

and Myrtle Beach, S.C.; Richland County, S.C.; Charlotte-Mecklenburg County, 

N.C.; Winston Salem-Forsyth County, N.C.; Broward County, Florida; St. 

Johns County, Florida; Kansas City, Missouri;  and also on findings from the 

Report of the Attorney General's Working Group On The Regulation Of 

Sexually Oriented Businesses, (June 6, 1989, State of Minnesota), the Board 

finds: 

(A) Sexually oriented businesses lend themselves to ancillary unlawful 

and unhealthy activities, the control of which elsewhere presents 
challenges to the operators of such establishments.  Further, there is 

presently no mechanism in this County to make the owners of such 

042021 BCC Meeting

197



164 

 

establishments responsible for the activities that would occur on their 
premises.   

(B) Certain employees of sexually oriented businesses defined in this 
chapter as adult theatres and cabarets engage in higher incidence of 

certain types of illicit sexual behavior than employees of other 
establishments. 

(C) Sexual acts, including masturbation, and oral and anal sex, occur at 
sexually oriented businesses, especially those which provide poorly 

lit, overly crowded private or semi-private areas, booths or cubicles 
for viewing films, videos, or live sex shows.  

(D) Offering and providing such space encourages such activities, which 
creates unhealthy conditions.   

(E) Persons frequent certain adult theatres, adult arcades, and other 
sexually oriented businesses for the purpose of engaging in sex 

within the premises of such sexually oriented businesses. 

(F) At least 50 communicable diseases may be spread by activities 
occurring in sexually oriented businesses, including, but not limited 

to, syphilis, gonorrhea, human immunodeficiency virus infection 
(HIV-AIDS), genital herpes, hepatitis B, Non A, Non B amebiasis, 

salmonella infections and shigella infections.   
(G) The surgeon general of the United States in his report of October 22, 

1986, has advised the American public that AIDS and HIV infection 
may be transmitted through sexual contact, intravenous drug abuse, 

exposure to infected blood and blood components, and from an 
infected mother to her newborn. 

(H) According to the best scientific evidence, AIDS and HIV infection, as 
well as syphilis and gonorrhea, are principally transmitted by sexual 

acts.   
(I) Sanitary conditions in some sexually oriented businesses are 

unhealthy, in part, because the activities conducted there are 

unhealthy, and, in part, because of the unregulated nature of the 
activities and the failure of the owners and the operators of the 

facilities to self-regulate those activities and maintain those facilities. 
(J) Numerous studies and reports have determined that semen is found 

in the areas of sexually oriented businesses where persons view 
"adult" oriented films. 

(K) The findings noted in (A) through (J) raise substantial governmental 
concerns. 

(L) Sexually oriented businesses have operational characteristics which 
should be reasonably regulated in order to protect those substantial 

governmental concerns. 
(M) A reasonable licensing procedure is an appropriate mechanism to 

place the burden of that reasonable regulation on the owners and the 
operators of the sexually oriented businesses.  Further, such a 

042021 BCC Meeting

198



165 

 

licensing procedure will place a heretofore nonexistent incentive on 
the operators to see that the sexually oriented business is run in a 

manner consistent with the health, safety and welfare of its patrons 
and employees, as well as the citizens of the County.  It is 

appropriate to require reasonable assurances that the licensee is the 
actual operator of the sexually oriented business, fully in possession 

and control of the premises and activities occurring therein. 
(N) Prohibition of doors on adult booths and requiring sufficient lighting 

on premises with adult booths advances a substantial governmental 
interest in curbing the illegal and unsanitary sexual activity occurring 

in adult theatres. 
(O) Requiring licensees of sexually oriented businesses to keep 

information regarding current employees and certain past employees 
will help reduce the incidence of certain types of criminal behavior by 

facilitating the identification of potential witnesses or suspects and by 

preventing minors from working in such establishments. 
(P) The disclosure of certain information by those persons ultimately 

responsible for the day-to-day operation and maintenance of the 
sexually oriented business, where such information is substantially 

related to the significant governmental interest in the operation of 
such uses, will aid in preventing the spread of sexually transmitted 

diseases.   
(Q) It is desirable in the prevention of the spread of communicable 

diseases to obtain a limited amount of information regarding 
employees who may engage in the conduct which this ordinance is 

designed to prevent or who are likely to be witnesses to such activity. 
(R) The fact that an applicant for an adult use license has been 

convicted of a sexually related crime leads to the rational concern 
that the applicant may engage in that conduct in contravention of 

this chapter. 

(S) The barring of such individuals from the management of adult uses 
for a period of years serves as a deterrent to and prevents conduct 

which leads to the transmission of sexually transmitted diseases.   
(T) The general welfare, health, morals and safety of the citizens of the 

County will be promoted by the enactment of this chapter. 
 

Article II  Classification 

Sexually oriented businesses are classified as follows: 

(A) adult arcades; 

(B) adult bookstores, adult novelty stores, or adult video stores; 
(C) adult cabarets; 

(D) adult motels; 

042021 BCC Meeting

199



166 

 

(E) adult motion picture theaters; 
(F) adult theaters; 

(G) escort agencies; 
(H) nude model studios; and 

(I) sexual encounter centers. 

 

Article III  License Required 

Section 1.  Unlawful Operation and Employment Without License 

It is unlawful: 

(A) For any person to operate a sexually oriented business without a 

valid sexually oriented business license issued by the County Official 

pursuant to this chapter. 
(B) For any person who operates a sexually oriented business to employ 

a person to work for the sexually oriented business who is not 
licensed as a sexually oriented business employee by the County 

Official pursuant to this chapter. 
(C) For any person to obtain employment with a sexually oriented 

business without having secured a sexually oriented business 
employee license pursuant to this chapter. 

(D) For any person who operates a sexually oriented business to allow 
any person to perform or participate in any contest or exhibition who 

does not have a valid and current sexually oriented business 
employee license pursuant to this chapter. 

Section 2.  Application. 

An application for any license must be made on a form provided by the 

County Official. 

Section 3.  Qualified Applicant. 

All applicants must be qualified according to the provisions of this chapter.  

The application may request and the applicant shall provide such information 

(including fingerprints) as to enable the County Official to determine whether 

the applicant meets the qualifications established in this chapter. 

Section 4.  Signatures. 

If a person who wishes to operate a sexually oriented business is an individual, 

the person must sign the application for a license as applicant.  If a person 

who wishes to operate a sexually oriented business is other than an individual, 

042021 BCC Meeting

200



167 

 

each individual who has a financial percent or greater interest in the business 

must sign the application for a license as applicant.  Each applicant must be 

qualified under the following Section and each applicant shall be considered a 

licensee if a license is granted. 

Section 5.  Application Contents. 

The completed application for a sexually oriented business license shall contain 

the following information and shall be accompanied by the following 

documents: 

(A) If the applicant is: 
(1) an individual, the individual shall state his/her legal name and 

any aliases and submit proof that he/she is 21 years of age; 
(2) a partnership, the partnership shall state its complete name, 

and the names of all partners, whether the partnership is 
general or limited, and a copy of the partnership agreement, 

if any; 
(3) a corporation, the corporation shall state its complete name, 

the date of its incorporation, evidence that the corporation is in 

good standing under the laws of its state of incorporation, the 
names and capacity of all officers, directors and principal 

stockholders, and the name of the registered corporate agent 
and the address of the registered office for service of process. 

(B) If the applicant intends to operate the sexually oriented business 
under a name other than that of the applicant; he or she must state 

1) the sexually oriented business's fictitious name and 2) submit the 
required registration documents. 

(C) Whether the applicant, or a person residing with the applicant, has 
been convicted of a specified criminal activity as defined in this 

chapter, and, if so, the specified criminal activity involved, the date, 
place, and jurisdiction of each. 

(D) Whether the applicant, or a person residing with the applicant, has 
had a previous license under this chapter or other similar sexually 

oriented business regulations from another city or county denied, 

suspended or revoked, including the name and location of the 
sexually oriented business for which the permit was denied, 

suspended or revoked, as well as the date of the denial, suspension 
or revocation, and whether the applicant or a person residing with 

the applicant has been a partner in a partnership or an officer, 
director or principal stockholder of a corporation that is licensed 

under this chapter whose license has previously been denied, 
suspended or revoked, including the name and location of the 

sexually oriented business for which the permit was denied, 

042021 BCC Meeting

201



168 

 

suspended or revoked as well as the date of denial, suspension or 
revocation. 

(E) Whether the applicant or a person residing with the applicant holds 
any other licenses under this chapter or other similar sexually 

oriented business regulations from another city or county and, if so, 
the names and locations of such other licensed businesses. 

(F) The single classification of license for which the applicant is filing. 
(G) The location of the proposed sexually oriented business, including a 

legal description of the property, street address, and telephone 
number(s), if any. 

(H) The applicant's mailing address and residential address. 
(I) A recent photograph of the applicant(s). 

(J) The applicant's driver's license number, Social Security number, 
and/or his/her state or federally issued tax identification number. 

(K) A sketch or diagram showing the configuration of the premises, 

including a statement of total floor space occupied by the business.  
The sketch or diagram need not be professionally prepared, but it 

must be drawn to a designated scale or drawn with marked 
dimensions of the interior of the premises to an accuracy of plus or 

minus six (6) inches. 
(L) A current certificate and straight-line drawing prepared within thirty 

(30) days prior to application by a registered land surveyor 
accurately depicting the property lines and the structures containing 

any existing sexually oriented businesses within 1500 feet of the 
property to be certified; the property lines of any established 

religious institution/synagogue, school, public park or recreation area, 
nursing home, daycare establishment, or fire department, within 

1500 feet of the property to be certified and the location of all 
residential structures within 660 feet of the property to be certified.  

For purposes of this Section, a use shall be considered existing or 

established if it is in existence at the time an application is submitted. 
(M) If an applicant wishes to operate a sexually oriented business, other 

than an adult motel, which shall exhibit on the premises, in a viewing 
room or booth of less than one hundred fifty (150) square feet of 

floor space, films, video cassettes, other video reproductions, or live 
entertainment which depict specified sexual activities or specified 

anatomical areas, then the applicant shall comply with the application 
requirements set forth in Article XII. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

202



169 

 

Section 6.  Employee Application. 

Before any applicant may be issued a sexually oriented business employee 

license, the applicant shall submit on a form to be provided by the County 

Official the following information: 

(A) The applicant's name or any other name (including "stage" names) or 
aliases used by the individual; 

(B) Age, date, and place of birth; 
(C) Height, weight, hair and eye color; 

(D) Present residence address and telephone number; 
(E) Present business address and telephone number; 

(F) Date, issuing state and number of driver's permit or other 
identification card information; 

(G) Social Security number; and 
(H) Proof that the individual is at least twenty-one (21) years of age. 

Section 7.  Additional Requirements. 

Attached to the application form for a sexually oriented business employee 

license as provided above, shall be the following: 

(A) A color photograph of the applicant clearly showing the applicant's 

face, and the applicant's fingerprints on a form provided by the 
sheriff’s department.  Any fees for the photographs and fingerprints 

shall be paid by the applicant. 

(B) A statement detailing the license history of the applicant for the five 
(5) years immediately preceding the date of the filing of the 

application, including whether such applicant previously operated or 
is seeking to operate, in this or any other county, city, state, or 

country has ever had a license, permit, or authorization to do 
business denied, revoked, or suspended, or had any professional or 

vocational license or permit denied, revoked, or suspended.  In the 
event of any such denial, revocation, or suspension, state the name, 

the name of the issuing or denying jurisdiction, and describe in full 
the reason for the denial, revocation, or suspension.  A copy of any 

order of denial, revocation, or suspension shall be attached to the 
application.   

(C) A statement whether the applicant has been convicted of a specified 
criminal activity as defined in this ordinance and, if so, the specified 

criminal activity involved, the date, place and jurisdiction of each. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

203



170 

 

Article IV Issuance of License 

Section 1.  Investigation. 

Upon the filing of said application for a sexually oriented business employee 

license, the application shall be referred to the appropriate county 

departments for an investigation to be made on such information as is 

contained on the application.  The investigation process shall be completed 

within thirty (30) calendar days from the date the completed application is 

filed.  After the investigation, the County Official shall issue a license, unless 

he/she determines by a preponderance of the evidence that one or more of 

the following findings is true, whereupon the application must be denied: 

(A) The applicant has failed to provide information reasonable 

necessary for issuance of the license or has falsely answered a 
question or request for information on the application form;  

(B) The applicant is under the age of twenty-one (21) years; 
(C) The applicant has been convicted of a "specified criminal activity" as 

defined in this ordinance; 
(D) The sexually oriented business employee license is to be used for 

employment in a business prohibited by local or state law, statute, 
rule or regulation, or prohibited by a particular provision of this 

chapter; or  
(E) The applicant has had a sexually oriented business employee license 

revoked by the County Official or comparable license in any 
jurisdiction within two (2) years of the date of the current application.  

If the sexually oriented business employee license is denied, the 
temporary license previously issued is immediately deemed null and 

void.  Denial, suspension, or revocation of a license issued pursuant 

to this subsection shall be subject to appeal as set forth in Article 
VIII. 

(F) Each such determination and denial shall be documented in writing, a 
copy of which shall be mailed to the applicant by first class mail to 

the address shown on the application. 

Section 2.  Annual Renewal. 

A license granted pursuant to Section 1 shall be subject to annual renewal 
upon the written application of the applicant received not less than thirty 

(30) calendar days before the license expires and a finding by the County 
that the applicant has not been convicted of any specified criminal activity as 

defined in this ordinance or committed any act during the existence of the 
previous license, which would be grounds to deny the initial license 

042021 BCC Meeting

204



171 

 

application.  The renewal of the license shall be subject to the payment of 
the fee as set forth in Article V.   

Section 3.  Approval/Denial. 

Within 30 calendar days after receipt of a completed sexually oriented 

business application, the County Official shall approve or deny the issuance of 

a license to an applicant.  The County Official shall approve the issuance of a 

license to an applicant unless he determines by a preponderance of the 

evidence that one or more of the following findings is true, whereupon the 

application must be denied: 

(A) An applicant is under twenty-one (21) years of age. 

(B) An applicant or a person with whom applicant is residing is overdue in 
payment to the County of taxes, fees, fines, or penalties assessed 

against or imposed upon him/her in relation to any business. 
(C) An applicant has failed to provide information reasonably necessary 

for issuance of the license or has falsely answered a question or 
request for information on the application form. 

(D) An applicant or a person with whom the applicant is residing has 
been denied a license by the County Official to operate a sexually 

oriented business within the preceding twelve (12) months or whose 
license to operate a sexually oriented business has been revoked 

within the preceding twelve (12) months. 
(E) An applicant or a person with whom the applicant is residing has 

been convicted of a specified criminal activity defined in this 

ordinance. 
(F) The premises to be used for the sexually oriented business have not 

been approved by the health department, fire marshal’s office, and 
the planning and inspections department as being in compliance with 

applicable laws and ordinances. 
(G) The license fee required by this ordinance has not been paid. 

(H) An applicant of the proposed establishment is in violation of or is not 
in compliance with any of the provisions of this chapter.   

(I) Each such determination and denial shall be documented in writing, a 
copy of which shall be mailed to the applicant by first class mail to 

the address shown on the application. 

Section 4.  Posted License. 

The license, if granted shall state on its face the name of the person or 

persons to whom it is granted, the expiration date, the address of the sexually 

oriented business and the classification for which the license is issued pursuant 

to Article II.  All licenses shall be posted in a conspicuous place at or near the 

042021 BCC Meeting

205



172 

 

entrance to the sexually oriented business so that they may be easily read at 

any time. 

Section 5.  Timeline for Review. 

The health department, fire marshal’s office, and the planning and inspections 

department shall complete their certification that the premises is in compliance 

or not in compliance within twenty (20) days of receipt of the application by 

the County Official. 

Section 6.  License Classification. 

A sexually oriented business license shall be issued for only one classification 

as found in Article II. 

Article V  Fees 

Every application for a sexually oriented business license (whether for a new 
license or for renewal of an existing license) shall be accompanied by a 

$1000.00 non-refundable application and investigation fee. 

In addition to the application and investigation fee required above, every 

sexually oriented business that is granted a license (new or renewal) shall pay 

to the County Official an annual non-refundable license fee of $ 1000.00 within 

thirty (30) days of license issuance or renewal. 

Every application for a new sexually oriented business employee license shall 

be accompanied by $ 250.00 non-refundable application, investigation, and 

license fee. 

In addition to the application and investigation fee required above, every 

sexually oriented business employee that is granted a license shall pay to the 

County Official an annual non-refundable license fee of $150.00 within thirty 

(30) days of license issuance or renewal. 

All license applications and fees shall be submitted to the County Official. 

Article VI  Inspection 

An applicant or licensee shall permit representatives of the Sheriff’s 

Department, Health Department, Fire Marshal’s Office, Planning and 

Inspections Department, or other County departments or agencies to inspect 

042021 BCC Meeting

206



173 

 

the premises of a sexually oriented business for the purpose of insuring 

compliance with the law. 

A person who operates a sexually oriented business or his agent or employee 

commits a misdemeanor if he refuses to permit such lawful inspection of the 

premises at any time. 

Article VII  Expiration of License 

Each license shall expire one year from the date of issuance and may be 

renewed only by making application as provided in Article III.  Application for 

renewal shall be made at least thirty (30) days before the expiration date, and 

when made less than thirty (30) days before the expiration date, the license 

will expire. 

When the County Official denies renewal of a license, the applicant shall not be 

issued a license for one year from the date of denial. 

Article VIII  Suspension 

The County Official shall suspend a license for a period not to exceed thirty 

(30) days if he/she determines that a licensee or an employee of a licensee 

has: 

(A) violated or is not in compliance with any section of this chapter; 
(B) refused to allow an inspection of the sexually oriented business 

premises as authorized by this chapter. 

Each such determination and denial shall be documented in writing, a copy of 

which shall be mailed to the applicant by first class mail to address shown on 

the application. 

Article IX Revocation 

Section 1. Previous Suspension 

The County Official shall revoke a license if a cause of suspension in Article 

VIII occurs and the license has been suspended within the preceding twelve 

(12) months. 

042021 BCC Meeting

207



174 

 

Section 2.  Evidence. 

The County Official shall revoke a license if he/she determines by a 

preponderance of the evidence that one or more of the following findings is 

true that: 

(A) a licensee gave false or misleading information in the material 
submitted during the application process; 

(B) a licensee has allowed possession, use, or sale of controlled 
substances on the premises; 

(C) a licensee has allowed prostitution on the premises; 
(D) a licensee operated the sexually oriented business during a period of 

time when the licensee's license was suspended; 
(E) except in the case of an adult motel, a licensee has allowed any act 

of sexual intercourse, sodomy, oral copulation, masturbation, or 
other sex act to occur in or on the licensed premises; or 

(F) a licensee is delinquent in payment to the County or State for any 

taxes or fees past due. 
 

Each such revocation under Section 1 or 2 shall be documented in 
writing, a copy of which shall be mailed to the licensee by first class 

mail to the address shown on the license. 

Section 3.  Length of Revocation. 

When the County Official revokes a license, the revocation shall continue for 
one (1) year, and the licensee shall not be issued a sexually oriented 

business license for one (1) year from the date the revocation became 
effective.   

Section 4.  Judicial Review. 

After denial of an application, or denial of a renewal of an application, or 

suspension or revocation of any license, the applicant or licensee may seek 

judicial review of such administrative action in any court of competent 

jurisdiction. 

Article X Transfer of License 

A licensee shall not transfer his/her license to another, nor shall a licensee 

operate a sexually oriented business under the authority of a license at any 

place other than the address designated in the application. 

042021 BCC Meeting

208



175 

 

Article XI  Location of Sexually Oriented Businesses 

Section 1.  Residential Structures. 

A person commits a misdemeanor if that person operates or causes to be 

operated a sexually oriented business within 660 feet of any residential 

structure. 

Section 2.  Non-Residential Structures. 

A person commits a misdemeanor if the person operates or causes to be 

operated a sexually oriented business within 1500 feet of:  

(A) A church, synagogue, mosque, temple or building which is used 

primarily for religious worship and related religious activities; 
(B) A public or private educational facility including but not limited to 

child day care facilities, nursery schools, preschools, kindergartens, 
elementary schools, private schools, intermediate schools, junior 

high schools, middle schools, high schools, vocational schools, 
secondary schools, continuation schools, special education schools, 

junior colleges, and universities; school includes the school 

grounds, but does not include facilities used primarily for another 
purpose and only incidentally as a school. 

(C) A public park or recreational area which has been designated for park 
or recreational activities including but not limited to a park, 

playground, nature trails, swimming pool, reservoir, athletic field, 
basketball or tennis courts, pedestrian/bicycle paths, wilderness 

areas, or other similar public land within the county which is under 
the control, operation, or management of the county park and 

recreation authorities; 
(D) A fire department 

(E) An entertainment business which is oriented primarily towards 
children or family entertainment; or   

(F) A licensed premises, licensed pursuant to the alcoholic beverage 
control regulations of the State.  

Section 3.  Proximity to Existing Sexually Oriented Business. 

A person commits a misdemeanor if that person causes or permits the 

operation, establishment, substantial enlargement, or transfer of ownership or 

control of a sexually oriented business within 1500 feet of another sexually 

oriented business. 

042021 BCC Meeting

209



176 

 

Section 4.  Highway. 

A person commits a misdemeanor if that person causes or permits the 

operation or establishment of a sexually oriented business on any road in 

Watauga County other than a federal aid primary system highway as 

designated by the federal government. 

Section 5.  Existing Sexually Oriented Business 

A person commits a misdemeanor if that person causes or permits the 

operation, establishment, or maintenance of more than one sexually oriented 

business in the same building, structure, or portion thereof, or the increase of 

floor area of any sexually oriented business in any building, structure, or 

portion thereof containing another sexually oriented business. 

Section 6.  Measurement to Property Line. 

For the purpose of Section 2 of this Article, measurement shall be made in a 

straight line, without regard to the intervening structures or objects, from the 

nearest portion of the building or structure used as the part of the premises 

where a sexually oriented business is conducted, to the nearest property line 

of the premises of a use listed in Section 2.  Presence of a city, county or other 

political subdivision boundary shall be irrelevant for purposes of calculating 

and applying the distance requirements of this Section.   

Section 7.  Measurement to Structure. 

For purposes of Section 1 & 3 of this Article, the distance between a residence 

and a sexually oriented business or between two sexually oriented businesses 

shall be measured in a straight line, without regard to the intervening 

structures or objects or political boundaries, from the closest exterior wall of 

the structure in which each residence or business is located. 

Section 8.  Applicably to Other Ordinances. 

Nothing herein is intended to or shall be construed to preempt, modify, or 

repeal any other land use regulation applicable to any property or its use in 

the County, but instead this Ordinance is intended to and shall be in addition 

thereto.  

042021 BCC Meeting

210



177 

 

Article XII  Additional Regulations For Adult Motels 

Section 1.  Adult Motel. 

Evidence that a sleeping room in a hotel, motel, or a similar commercial 

establishments has been rented and vacated two or more times in a period of 

time that is less than ten (10) hours creates a rebuttable presumption that the 

establishment is an adult motel as that term is defined in this ordinance. 

Section 2.  Penalties. 

A person commits a misdemeanor if, as the person in control of a sleeping 

room in a hotel, motel, or similar commercial establishment that does not 

have a sexually oriented license, he rents or sub-rents a sleeping room to a 

person and, within ten (10) hours from the time the room is rented, he rents 

or sub-rents the same sleeping room again. 

Section 3.  Word Interpretation.  

For purposes of Section 2 of this Article, the terms "rent" or "sub-rent" mean 

the act of permitting a room to be occupied for any form of consideration. 

Article XIII  Regulation Pertaining To Exhibition of Sexually Explicit 

Films, Videos or Live Entertainment 

Section 1.  Requirements. 

A person who operates or causes to be operated a sexually oriented business, 

other than an adult motel, which exhibits on the premises in a viewing room of 

less than one hundred fifty (150) square feet of floor space, a film, video 

cassette, live entertainment, or other video reproduction which depicts 

specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas, shall comply with the 

following requirements: 

(A) Upon application for a sexually oriented business license, the 
application shall be accompanied by a diagram of the premises 

showing a plan thereof specifying the location of one or more 
manager's stations and the location of all overhead lighting fixtures 

and designating any portion of the premises in which patrons will 

not be permitted.  A manager's station may not exceed thirty-two 
(32) square feet of floor area.  The diagram shall also designate the 

place at which the permit will be conspicuously posted, if granted.  
A professionally prepared diagram in the nature of an engineer's or 

042021 BCC Meeting

211



178 

 

architect's blueprint shall not be required; however, each diagram 
should be oriented to the north or to some designated street or 

object and should be drawn to a designated scale or with marked 
dimensions sufficient to show the various internal dimensions of all 

areas of the interior of the premises to an accuracy of plus or minus 
six (6") inches.  The County may waive the foregoing diagram for 

renewal applications if the applicant adopts a diagram that was 
previously submitted and certifies that the configuration of the 

premises has not been altered since it was prepared. 
(B) The application shall be sworn to be true and correct by the applicant. 

(C) No alteration in the configuration or location of a manager's station 
may be made without the prior approval of the County. 

(D) It is the duty of the licensee of the premises to ensure that at least 
one licensed employee is on duty and situated in each manager's 

station at all times that any patron is present inside the premises. 

(E) The interior of the premises shall be configured in such a manner that 
there is an unobstructed view from a manager's station of every area 

of the premises to which any patron is permitted access for any 
purpose, excluding restrooms.  Restrooms may not contain video 

reproduction equipment.  If the premises has two or more manager's 
stations designated, then the interior of the premises shall be 

configured in such a manner that there is an unobstructed view of 
each area of the premises to which any patron is permitted access for 

any purpose from at least one of the manager's stations.  The view 
required in this subsection must be by direct line of sight from the 

manager's station. 
(F) It shall be the duty of the licensee to ensure that the view area 

specified in (E) remains unobstructed by any doors, curtains, 
partitions, walls, merchandise, display racks or other materials and, 

at all times, to ensure that no patron is permitted access to any area 

of the premises which has been designated as an area in which 
patrons will not be permitted in the application filed pursuant to (A). 

(G) No viewing room may be occupied by more than one person at any 
time. 

(H) Regardless of the square footage of the premises or any section 
thereof, each sexually oriented business other an adult motel shall be 

equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of sufficient intensity to 
illuminate every place to which patrons are permitted access at an 

illumination of not less than five (5.0) foot-candles as measured at 
the floor level. 

(I) No licensee shall allow openings of any kind to exist between 
viewing rooms or booths. 

(J) No person shall make or attempt to make an opening of any kind 
between viewing booths or rooms.   

042021 BCC Meeting

212



179 

 

(K) The licensee shall, during each business day, regularly inspect the 
walls between the viewing booths to determine if any openings or 

holes exist. 
(L) The licensee shall cause all floor coverings in viewing booths to be 

nonporous, easily cleanable surfaces, with no rugs or carpeting. 
(M) The licensee shall cause all wall surfaces and ceiling surfaces in 

viewing booths to be constructed of, or permanently covered by, 
nonporous, easily cleanable material.  No wood, plywood, 

composition board or other porous material shall be used within forty 
eight (48") inches of the floor.   

Section 2.  Maintenance. 

It shall be the duty of the licensee to ensure that the illumination described 

above is maintained at all times that any patron is present in the premises. 

Section 3.  Penalties. 

A person having a duty under Section 1 or 2 above commits a misdemeanor 

if he knowingly fails to fulfill that duty. 

 
Article XIV  Additional Regulations 

Section 1.  For Escort Agencies. 

(A) An escort agency shall not employ any person under the age of 21 

years. 
(B) A person commits an offense if the person acts as an escort or agrees 

to act as an escort for any person under the age of 21 years. 

Section 2.  For Nude Model Studios. 

(A) A nude model studio shall not employ any person under the age of 21 
years. 

(B) A person under the age of 21 years commits an offense if the person 
appears semi-nude or in a state of nudity in or on the premises of a 

nude model studio.  It is a defense to prosecution under this 
subsection if the person under 21 years was in a restroom not open 

to public view or visible to any other person. 

(C) A person commits an offense if the person appears in a state of 
nudity, or knowingly allows another to appear in a state of nudity in 

an area of a nude model studio premises which can be viewed from 
the public right of way. 

042021 BCC Meeting

213



180 

 

(D) A nude model studio shall not place or permit a bed, sofa, or 
mattress in any room on the premises, except that a sofa may be 

placed in a reception room open to the public. 

Section 3.  Concerning Public Nudity. 

(A) It shall be a misdemeanor for a person who knowingly and 
intentionally, in a sexually oriented business, appears in a state of 

nudity or depicts specified sexual activities. 
(B) It shall be a misdemeanor for a person who knowingly or intentionally 

in a sexually oriented business appears in a semi-nude condition 
unless the person is an employee who, while semi-nude, shall be at 

least ten (10) feet from any patron or customer and on a stage at 
least two feet from the floor. 

(C) It shall be a misdemeanor for an employee, while semi-nude in a 
sexually oriented business, to solicit any pay or gratuity from any 

patron or customer or for any patron or customer to pay or give any 

gratuity to any employee, while said employee is semi-nude in a 
sexually oriented business. 

(D) It shall be a misdemeanor for an employee, while semi-nude, to 
touch a customer or the clothing of a customer. 

Article XVII  Prohibition Against Youth in a Sexually Oriented 
Business 

A person commits a misdemeanor if the person allows a person under the age 

of 21 years on the premises of a sexually oriented business. 

Article XVIII  Prohibition Of Sale or Consumption of Alcohol 

Sale or consumption of alcohol on the premises of sexually oriented business 

shall be prohibited.  Violations shall be a misdemeanor. 

 

Article XIX  Exterior Portions of Sexually Oriented Businesses 

Section 1. Visibility. 

It shall be unlawful for an owner or operator of a sexually oriented business to 

allow the merchandise or activities of the establishment to be visible from a 

point outside the establishment. 

042021 BCC Meeting

214



181 

 

Section 2.  Exterior Appearance. 

Except as permitted by Article XIX, it shall be unlawful for the owner or 

operator of a sexually oriented business to allow the exterior portion of the 

sexually oriented business to have flashing lights, or any words, lettering, 

photographs, silhouettes, drawings, or pictorial representations of any 

manner.  

Section 3.  Parking 

One (1) parking space per one hundred (100) square feet of gross floor area 

shall be provided upon the premises immediately adjoining the structure 

housing the sexually oriented business. 

(A) Parking spaces shall be not less than nine (9) feet in width and 

eighteen (18) feet in length. 
(B) Aisle width between rows of parking spaces shall be not less than 

twelve (12) feet in width (to accommodate maneuvering and one-
way traffic) where angled parking spaces are used and not less than 

twenty-four (24) feet (to accommodate maneuvering and two-way 
traffic) where perpendicular parking spaces are used. 

(C) Handicapped parking spaces shall be provided in accordance with the 
North Carolina State Building Code. 

Section 4.  Lighting. 

All parking areas and exterior entrance/exits shall be fully illuminated with 

night-lighting to deter criminal activities. 

Section 5.  Buffering. 

Perimeter buffer areas shall be established in order to create spatial separation 

and to lessen the possible adverse impacts upon adjacent land uses. 

(A) Side and rear yard setbacks of thirty (30) feet shall be observed for 

buildings or parking.  This area is to be used as a buffer and shall be 
landscaped as follows.  Buffers shall consist of planting of evergreen 

and/or deciduous trees spaced no less than thirty (30) feet apart.  
Such trees shall be at least six (6) feet high and one (1”) inch caliper 

(trunk  diameter at chest height) at time of planting and shall reach 
a height of no less than twenty (20) feet at maturity.  In addition, 

plantings of low growing shrubs, and/or trees shall be placed at ten 

(10) foot intervals.  Plantings within buffer zones shall be staggered 
unless topography is prohibitive.  No planting shall be placed in the 

042021 BCC Meeting

215



182 

 

road right-of-way.  Lists of recommended plantings are available 
from the Planning and Inspection Department. 

(B) Walls, fences, earthen berms, or other natural features may be used 
in combination with or in lieu of planted buffers if approved by 

County Official.  Considerations include but are not limited to: 
(1) Any existing significant vegetation within the buffer(s) may be 

preserved and credited towards meeting the standard for the 
required buffer.  Existing fences, berms, and/or walls within the 

buffer(s) may be used to fulfill the standards set forth for the 
buffer providing these elements are healthy and in a condition 

of  good repair.  Chain link fencing is not acceptable in meeting 
the performance criteria of this ordinance. 

(2) Installation of supplemental vegetation and/or site features 
may be required if existing vegetation and/or site features 

within the buffer do not meet or exceed the requirements of 

this ordinance.  

Section 6.  Maintenance 

The sexually oriented business licensee shall be responsible for proper 

maintenance of parking and buffer areas required by this ordinance. 

Section 7.  Penalties. 

Any violation of this Section shall be a misdemeanor.     

Article XX Signage 

It shall be a misdemeanor for the owner or operator of any sexually oriented 

business or any other person to erect, construct, or maintain any sign for the 

sexually oriented business other than as permitted in the sign regulations of 

Watauga County. 

Primary signs shall contain no photographs, silhouettes, drawings, or pictorial 

representations in any manner, and may contain only the name of the 

enterprise. 

Article XXI  Hours of Operation 

No sexually oriented business, except for an adult motel, may remain open at 

any time between the hours of eleven o’clock (11:00) P.M. and eight o'clock 

(8:00) A.M. on weekdays and Saturdays, or during the period from eleven 

o’clock (11:00) P.M. Saturday until eight o’clock (8:00) A.M. Monday. 

042021 BCC Meeting

216



183 

 

Article XXII Exemptions 

It is a defense to prosecution under Article XIV Section 2 that a person 

appearing in a state of nudity did so in a modeling class operated: 

(A) by a proprietary school, licensed by the State of  North Carolina;  a 
college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by 

taxation; 

(B) by a private college or university which maintains and operates 
educational programs in which credits are transferable to a college, 

junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; 
or 

(C) in a structure: 
(1) which has no sign visible from the exterior of the structure and 

no other advertising that indicates a nude person is available 
for viewing; and 

(2) where, in order to participate in a class a student must enroll at 
least three (3) days in advance of the class; and 

(3) where no more than one nude model is on the premises at any 
one time. 

 

Article XXIII  Injunction 

A person who operates or causes to be operated a sexually oriented business 

without a valid license or in violation of this chapter is subject to a suit for 

injunction as well as prosecution for criminal violations.  Pursuant to NC 

General Statute14-4, each violation of any requirement of this chapter shall be 

a crime, which shall be punishable by a fine of $500.00 or thirty (30) days 

imprisonment.  Each day any such violation continues or occurs in is a 

separate offense or violation.   

Notwithstanding the foregoing, licensing decisions including issuance, 

revocation, and suspension, based upon violations of this chapter, shall be 

made by the County Official based upon a preponderance of the evidence. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

217



184 

 

CHAPTER 16    SIGNS 
 

Article I  Purpose and Legislative Intent 

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the public health, safety and 

welfare pursuant to the general ordinance authority granted to counties by 
the General Assembly of North Carolina. (NCGS §153A-121 et seq. and other 

pertinent statutes and amendments thereto).  By enacting this chapter it is 

the County’s intent to: 
 

(A) To promote the creation of an attractive visual environment that 
promotes a healthy economy by: 

(1) Permitting businesses to inform, identify, and communicate 
effectively; and 

(2) Directing the general public through the use of signs while 
maintaining attractive and harmonious application of signs on 

buildings and sites. 
(B) To protect and enhance the physical appearance of the community 

in a lawful manner that recognizes the rights of property owners 
by: 

(1) Encouraging the appropriate design, scale, and placement of 
signs. 

(2) Encouraging the orderly placement of signs on buildings while 

avoiding regulations that are so rigid and inflexible that all 
signs in a series are monotonously uniform. 

(3) Assuring that the information displayed on a sign is clearly 
visible, conspicuous, legible and readable so that the sign 

achieves the intended purpose. 
(C) To foster public safety along public and private streets within the 

community by assuring that all signs are in safe and appropriate 
locations. 

(D) To have administrative review procedures that is the minimum 
necessary to: 

(1) Balance the community’s objectives and regulatory 
requirements with the reasonable advertising and way finding 

needs of businesses. 
(2) Allow for consistent enforcement of the Sign regulations. 

(3) Minimize the time required to review a sign application.  

(4) Provide flexibility as to the number and placement of signs so 
the regulations are more responsive to business needs while 

maintaining the community’s standards. 
 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

218



185 

 

Article II  Measurement Standards  

Section 1.  Determining Sign Area and Dimensions. 

(A) For a wall sign which is framed, outlined, painted or otherwise 
prepared and intended to provide a background for a sign display, 

the area and dimensions shall include the entire portion within such 
background or frame. 

(B) For a wall sign comprised of individual letters, figures or elements 
on a wall or similar surface of the building or structure, the area 

and dimensions of the sign shall encompass a regular geometric 
shape (rectangle, circle, trapezoid, triangle, etc.), or a combination 

of regular geometric shapes, which form, or approximate, the 
perimeter of all elements in the display, the frame, and any applied 

background that is not part of the architecture of the building. 
(C) When separate elements are organized to form a single sign, but 

are separated by open space, the sign area and dimensions shall be 

calculated by determining the geometric form, or combination of 
forms, which comprises all of the display areas, including the space 

between different elements. 
(D) Minor appendages to a particular regular shape, as determined by 

the Administrator, shall not be included in the total area of a sign. 
(E) For a freestanding sign, the sign area shall include the frame, if 

any, but shall not include: 
(1) A pole or other structural support unless such pole or 

structural support is internally illuminated or otherwise so 
designed to constitute a display device, or a part of a display 

device. 
(2) Architectural features that are either part of the building or 

part of a freestanding structure, and not an integral part of 
the sign, and which may consist of landscaping, building or 

structural forms complementing the site in general.  

(F) When two identical sign faces are placed back to back so that both 
faces cannot be viewed from any point at the same time, and are 

part of the same sign structure, the sign area shall be computed as 
the measurement of one of the two faces. When the sign has more 

than two display surfaces, the area of the sign shall be the area of 
largest display surfaces that are visible from any single direction. 

(G) In the event of a dispute in determining the area or dimensions of 
any sign, a negative decision of the Administrator may be appealed 

to the Board of Adjustment.  
  

042021 BCC Meeting

219



186 

 

Section 2.  Determining Sign Height. 

(A) The height of a freestanding sign shall be measured from the base 

of the sign or supportive structure at its point of attachment to the 
ground, to the highest point of the sign. A freestanding sign on a 

man-made base, including a graded earth mound, shall be 
measured from the grade of the nearest pavement or top of any 

pavement curb. 
(B) Clearance for freestanding and projecting signs shall be measured 

as the smallest vertical distance between finished grade and the 
lowest point of the sign, including any framework or other 

embellishments.  

Section 3.  Determining Building Frontages and Frontage Lengths. 

(A) Building Unit - The building unit is equivalent to the tenant space. 
The frontage of the tenant space on the first floor shall be the basis 

for determining the permissible sign area for wall signs. 

(B) Primary and Secondary Frontage - The frontage of any building unit 
shall include the elevation(s) facing a public street, facing a primary 

parking area for the building or tenants, or containing the public 
entrance(s) to the building or building units. 

(1) The primary frontage shall be considered the portion of any 
frontage containing the primary public entrance(s) to the 

building or building units. 
(2) The secondary frontage shall include those frontages 

containing secondary public entrances to the building or 
building units, and all building walls facing a public street or 

primary parking area that are not designated as the primary 
building frontage by subsection (A) above. 

Section 4 .   Length of Building Frontage. 

(A) The length of any primary or secondary building frontage as defined 

in Chapter 7 shall be the sum of all wall lengths parallel, or nearly 

parallel, to such frontage, excluding any such wall length 
determined by the Administrator as clearly unrelated to the 

frontage criteria. 
(B) For buildings with two or more frontages, the length of the wall and 

allowable sign area shall be calculated separately for each such 
building frontage. 

(C) The building frontage for a building unit shall be measured from the 
centerline of the party walls defining the building unit. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

220



187 

 

Article III  Signs Permitted 

Section 1.  Residential Subdivisions 

(A) Residential Subdivision and Multi-Family Development signs shall be 
limited to 50 square feet.  

(B) Signs advertising home occupations shall be limited to 6 square 
feet. 

(C) Temporary signs shall be limited to a total of 16 square feet per 
parcel.  

Section 2.  Unzoned Commercial Areas. 

(A) Signs located in unzoned commercial areas shall be as described, 

located and designed in Article IV.  
(B) Temporary signs shall be limited to a total of 32 square feet per 

parcel. 
(C) Highway signs shall be as described, located and designed in Article 

IV Section 7. 

 
Article IV  Development Standards  

Section 1.  Wall Signs. 

(A) The basic allowance for wall signs shall be limited to 1.5 square feet 

of sign area for each lineal foot of building or tenant frontage.  
(B) Each tenant may have multiple wall signs as long as the total wall 

sign area does not exceed the basic allowance established for wall 
signs.  

(C) The wall sign or signs shall not be greater than 80% of the length 
of the tenant space or the length of the building frontage for single 

tenant buildings. 
(D) The area of any wall sign may be increased by 25% when the 

building is setback at least 200 feet from the public right-of-way. 
(E) Additional wall sign area is permitted for a secondary frontage (see 

Definitions) which shall be equal to 100% of the primary sign area 

allowance.  
(F) The following additional wall signs may be permitted: 

(1) Projecting Signs - In addition to the allowances for wall signs, 
projecting signs are permitted when designed and placed for 

the purpose of identifying the businesses for a pedestrian 
walking along the same side of the street as the business 

they seek or under a continuous rain canopy projecting from 
the building. Projecting signs shall have a maximum area of 

16 square feet; the bottom of the sign shall be a minimum of 

042021 BCC Meeting

221



188 

 

8 feet above the sidewalk; the sign shall not project more 
than 4 feet from the wall; and adjacent projecting signs shall 

not be closer than 20 feet. 
(2) Building Directory – In addition to the allowances for wall 

signs, a directory sign may be permitted up to a maximum of 
16 square feet for the purpose of identifying first floor tenants 

that do not have outside building frontage or upper floor 
tenants.  

(G) Additional Wall Signs for Multiple Story Buildings – An additional 
building sign is permitted on each of the building’s primary and 

secondary frontages according to the following: 
(1) For a building with two floors, the area of any wall sign may 

be increased by 25% for each eligible wall. 
(2) This additional permitted sign area may be increased by 10% 

for each additional building floor. 

(3) The sign must be placed at the height for which the bonus 
has been granted.  

Section 2.  Freestanding signs. 

(A) One freestanding sign is permitted for each 200 feet of primary 

road frontage with a maximum of 3 freestanding signs per parcel.    
(B) The permitted area of each freestanding sign shall not exceed 50 

square feet except for: Properties entitled to more than one 
freestanding sign based on primary frontage. In this instance the 

sign area of a single sign may be increased to a maximum area of 
100 or 150 square feet in lieu of erecting a second or third sign.   

(C) No portion of a freestanding sign shall be in, or project over, the 
public right-of-way.  

(D) The maximum height of a freestanding sign shall be 35 feet in 
height above the road grade or natural grade level, whichever is 

higher.  

Section 3.  Electronic Message Center/Changeable Copy Signs. 

(A) Changeable copy by non-electronic means may be utilized on any 

permitted sign. 
(B) Only one EMC sign is permitted on each road on which the 

development fronts.  
(C) EMCs may not contain or display flashing, intermittent, or moving 

lights, including animated or scrolling advertising.  
(D) EMCs are permitted provided that the copy does not change more 

than once every 8 seconds. 
(E) Copy changes must be accomplished within a one second interval.  

042021 BCC Meeting

222



189 

 

(F) EMCs are required to have automatic diming capability that adjusts 
the brightness to the ambient light at all times of the day and night. 

(G) EMCs may not exceed 50% of the total sign area permitted.  

Section 4.  Instructional signs. 

Instructional or “way-finding” signs shall be permitted in addition to all other 

signs when they are of such size and location that satisfy the intended 

instructional purpose and based on their size, location, and intended purpose 

will not constitute additional advertising. Instructional signs may include the 

name of the business and logos. 

Section 5.  Window Signs. 

Permanent window signs shall not exceed 25% of the area of a window and 

the total area of all window signs, including both permanent and temporary, 

shall not exceed 50% of the window area.  

Section 6.  Temporary Signs. 

(A) In addition to the signs permitted in Article III, temporary signs 
related to Special Events are allowed on private property for a time 

period not to exceed 30 days. Such signs are permitted on and off-
premises.     

(B) In addition to the signs permitted in Article III, temporary signs 
related to a single event for commercial enterprises are allowed on 

private property for a time period not to exceed 30 days, with a 

limit of 4 events per calendar year. Such signs are permitted on-
premises only. 

(C) Temporary signs containing any message are allowed on private 
property during an election period subject to the area limitations 

stated herein. An election period begins on the 30th day before the 
beginning date of one-stop early voting and ends ten days after any 

election conducted under federal, state, county, or city laws or 
ordinances in which residents of Watauga are entitled to vote, 

including elections or votes regarding selection or recall of any 
federal, state, county or city officials, any ballot questions, 

referendum, constitutional amendments, or advisory vote.  
(D) Temporary sign(s) located in residential subdivisions may not 

exceed a total area of 16 square feet per parcel.  
(E) Temporary sign(s) located in unzoned commercial areas may not 

exceed a total area of 32 square feet per parcel.  

(F) Temporary signs located on property offered for sale or lease are 
allowed for time periods exceeding those listed herein provided 

042021 BCC Meeting

223



190 

 

such signs are promptly removed following the sale or lease closing 
date. All signs are subject to the area limitations stated in this 

Section. 
(G) No temporary signs may be illuminated.  

(H) All temporary signs must be secured to prevent them from 
becoming a hazard to pedestrians, vehicles or adjacent property 

during high winds. 
(I) Temporary directional signs are allowed off-premises for a time 

period not to exceed 60 days as a navigational aid to specific 
destination(s).    

Section 7.  Highway Signs. 

(A) Highway signs shall not exceed 300 square feet in area. This square 

footage includes both sign face and border. 
(B) Highway signs shall:  

(1) Be located outside the right-of-way of all roads, or 35 feet 

from the center line if there is no recorded right-of-way, 
provided that on corner lots no part of a highway sign may be 

located within a triangular area formed by the street right-of-
way lines and a line connecting them at points 50 feet from 

the right-of-way intersection.  
(2) Be located only in "Unzoned Commercial Areas" as defined in 

the North Carolina DOT Outdoor Advertising Manual and 
spaced as set forth in said manual except that new “side-by-

side” signs shall be prohibited. This paragraph shall be 
applicable on all streets/roads in Watauga County which are 

not within the jurisdiction of a municipality.  
(3) Be located not closer than 100 feet to a pre-existing 

residential structure on an adjoining lot. This does not 
prevent the owner of a residence from placing a highway sign 

on the same lot as the residence provided that the placement 

of such sign complies with subparagraph “b” above.  
(4) Not exceed 35 feet in height above the street/road grade 

level. 
(5) Not exceed a width of 30 feet. 

(6) Be located in such a way that they maintain horizontal and 
vertical clearance of all overhead electrical conductors in 

accordance with the National Electric Code and local electric 
utilities’ requirements. 

(7) Be located only on primary highway systems (i.e. 105, 221, 
321, and 421) with evidence of NCDOT approval. 

(8) Not be located on designated scenic byways. 

042021 BCC Meeting

224



191 

 

(C) No existing highway sign may be converted to, or replaced with, a 
digital billboard.  

(D) No new locations for digital billboards shall be permitted. 
(E) Only one highway sign shall be permitted per parcel. 

 
Article V  Non-Conforming Signs 

Section 1.  General Provisions. 

(A) Nonconforming signs shall be maintained in good condition 

pursuant to Article VII. 
(B) A Nonconforming sign shall not be altered, modified or 

reconstructed except: 
(1) When such alteration, modification or reconstruction would 

bring such sign into conformity with these regulations; 
(2) When the existing use has new ownership which results in a 

change in the name or logo of the use or business on the 

property, and such change complies with subsection (4) 
below; 

(3) When the space is re-occupied by a similar use and the new 
occupant requires no external building or site renovation, and 

such change complies with subsection (4) below; 
(4) Any alteration, modification or reconstruction permitted in 

this section shall be limited to the replacement of a sign 
panel, replacing individual letters and logos within the same 

area or repainting a sign face, and does not permit changes 
to the structure, framing, erection or relocation of the sign 

unless such changes conform to subsection (1) above. 
(C) Nonconforming highway signs for which there is in effect a valid 

NCDOT permit may be repaired or reconstructed without limitation 
so long as the square footage of the sign face is not increased.   

(D) A nonconforming sign shall be removed upon verification that the 

use to which such non-conforming sign refers has been abandoned 
for more than 180 consecutive days.  

 
Article VI  Sign Review Procedures. 

(A) A sign permit shall be required for all permanent signage.  
(B) All sign permit applications shall be reviewed for compliance with 

these regulations and the North Carolina State Building Code within 
10 business days from the time a completed application has been 

accepted by the Administrator.  
(C) All appeals and variances regarding the sign ordinance shall be 

heard by the Board of Adjustment in accordance with Chapter 3. 

042021 BCC Meeting

225



192 

 

 
Article VII  Supplemental Considerations 

Section 1.  Construction Standards. 

The construction, erection, safety and maintenance of all signs shall comply 

with the North Carolina State Building Code and all of the following:  
(A) Signs shall be structurally sound and located so as to pose no 

reasonable threat to pedestrian or vehicular traffic. 
(B) All permanent freestanding signs shall have self-supporting 

structures erected on, or permanently attached to, concrete 
foundations. 

(C) If possible, signs should not be in locations that obscure 
architectural features such as pilasters, arches, windows, cornices, 

etc. 
(D) Signs shall not be in locations that interfere with safe vehicular and 

pedestrian circulation or public safety signals and signs. 

(E) No signs shall be erected, constructed or maintained so as to 
obstruct any fire escape, required exit, window, or door opening 

used as a means of egress. 
(F) Signs shall be structurally designed in compliance with ANSI and 

ASCI standards. All electric signs shall be constructed according to 
the technical standards of UL or other certified testing laboratory. 

(G) Signs may be illuminated – by external or internal means -- 
provided that: 

(1) The brightness and intensity shall not be greater than 
necessary to meet reasonable needs of the business or use 

served; 
(2) Light sources shall be shielded from all adjacent buildings and 

streets; and 
(3) The lighting shall not create excessive glare to pedestrians 

and/or motorists, and will not obstruct traffic control or any 

other public informational signs. 

Section 2.  Maintenance. 

(A) All signs shall be maintained in accordance with the following: 
(B) The property owner shall maintain signs in a condition appropriate 

to the intended use and to all County standards. 
(C) The property owner has a continuing obligation to comply with all 

building code requirements. 
(D) If the sign is deemed by the Administrator to be in an unsafe 

condition, the owner of the business shall be immediately notified in 
writing, and shall, within 48 hours of receipt of such notification, 

respond to the county with a plan to correct the unsafe condition, 

042021 BCC Meeting

226



193 

 

remove the unsafe sign, or cause it to be removed. If after 30 days, 
the unsafe condition has not been corrected through repair or 

removal, the Administrator may cause the repair or removal of such 
sign, at the expense of the property owner or lessee. If the total 

costs are not paid in full within 60 days of the repairs or removal, 
the amount owed shall be certified as an assessment against the 

property of the sign owner, and lien upon that property, together 
with an additional 10 percent penalty for collection as prescribed for 

unpaid real estate taxes. 
(E) In cases of emergency, the Administrator may cause the immediate 

removal of a dangerous or defective sign without notice.  
(F) Whenever any sign, either conforming or nonconforming to these 

regulations, is required to be removed for the purpose of repair, re-
lettering or repainting, the same may be done without a permit or 

without any payment of fees provided that all of the following 

conditions are met:  
(1) There is no alteration or remodeling to the structure or the 

mounting of the sign itself; 
(2) There is no enlargement or increase in any of the dimensions 

of the sign or its structure; and 
(3) The sign is accessory to a legally permitted or nonconforming 

use. 

Section 3.  Exempt from these Regulations. 

The following shall be exempt from regulation under this Ordinance: 
(A) Government Signs.  

(B) Works of Art. 
(C) Holiday Decorations, when displayed during the appropriate time of 

the year. 
(D) Flags, except feather flags.  

(E) Building markers.  

Section 4.  Prohibited Signs. 

The following signs are prohibited in the County: 

(A) Abandoned Signs. 
(B) Animated Signs. 

(C) Signs containing any words or symbols that would cause confusion 
because of their resemblance to highway traffic control or direction 

signals. 
(D) Signs located on trees, utility poles, public benches or any other 

form of public property or within any public right-of-way unless 
explicitly permitted by the regulations. 

042021 BCC Meeting

227



194 

 

(E) Off-Premises temporary signs, other than those explicitly permitted 
by Article IV Section 6. 

(F) Any signs placed on public property without consent or placed in 
violation of local, state, or federal requirements. 

 
Article VIII  Jurisdiction 

The provisions of this chapter shall be applicable only to unincorporated 
areas of Watauga County which are not included in the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of a municipality. The Valle Crucis Historic District and Foscoe-
Grandfather Community have additional regulations concerning allowable 

signage.    

  

042021 BCC Meeting

228



195 

 

CHAPTER 17  STRUCTURES LOCATED ON LAND ADJACENT 
TO NATIONAL PARK SERVICE LAND 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners are concerned with protecting 

National Parks Service Lands from encroachment which could damage the 

unique scenic importance of such lands; and 

WHEREAS, the economy of Watauga County is partially dependent upon 

maintaining the quality of such scenic lands; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners are authorized to enact ordinances 

to promote the general welfare generally by N.C.G.S. 153A-121 and 

specifically to regulate the location of buildings, structures, etc. by N.C.G.S. 

160D; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners do enact 

the following: 

Article I  Regulation of Location of Structures 

No building or structure which is located upon land which is adjacent to 

National Park Service Land shall be located closer than fifteen (15) feet to 

the Park Service property line. 

Article II  Permit 

Prior to issuance of a building permit for structure(s) located upon land 

adjacent to National Park Service Land, National Park Service personnel, 

upon notification by the County Department of Planning and Inspection, shall 

determine said property line and shall establish the required fifteen(15) foot 

setbacks within fifteen(15) days of the application for a building permit. 

Article III  Jurisdiction and Effective Date 

This chapter shall be applicable within all areas of Watauga County not 

within the jurisdiction of a municipality and shall be effective upon 

enactment. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

229



196 

 

CHAPTER 18  SUBDIVISION AND MULTI-UNIT 
STRUCTURES 

 

Article I  Title 
This chapter is known and may be cited as the Subdivisions and Multi-Unit 

Structures Regulations for Watauga County, North Carolina 
 

Article II Authority and Enactment Clause 
The County Commissioners of the County of Watauga, pursuant to the 

authority conferred by Chapter 160D, Article 8, of the General Statutes of 
the State of North Carolina, do hereby enact into law these Articles and 

Sections. 
Article III  Jurisdiction and Purpose 

Section 1.  Jurisdiction 

On and after the date of adoption, these regulations shall govern each and 
every subdivision of land and/or multi-unit structure within Watauga County 

(hereinafter referred to as the "County") and outside the jurisdiction of any 
incorporated municipality.  However, this ordinance may also regulate 

territory within the subdivision regulation jurisdiction of any municipality 
whose governing body by resolution agrees to such regulation provided, 

however, that any such municipal governing body may, upon written notice, 
withdraw its approval of these County Regulations, and those regulations 

shall not have further effect within the municipality's jurisdiction 30 days 
after the day the County receives the written notice. (N.C.G.S. 153A-122) 

Section 2.  Purpose 

The purpose of these subdivision regulations is to guide and regulate the 

subdivision of land and/or multi-unit structures within the county in order to 
preserve the public health, safety, and welfare.  The regulations included 

herein are designed to insure an adequately planned street system and to 

avoid hazardous conditions; to avoid overcrowding of the land and extreme 
concentration of population; to secure safety from fire, panic, and other 

dangers; to provide for adequate water and sewage systems, schools, parks 
and playgrounds; to insure against flood damage and soil erosion; to 

facilitate an orderly system for the design, layout, and use of the land; to 
insure the proper legal description and monumentation of subdivided land; 

and to provide for the re-subdivision of large land parcels. 
 

 
 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

230



197 

 

Article IV  Planning Board Review and Legal Status Provisions 

Section 1.  Planning Board Review and Approval. 

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160D, Article 8 unless otherwise noted, no real 

property within the jurisdiction of this chapter shall be subdivided and 

offered for sale or a plat thereof recorded until a preliminary and final plat 

have been reviewed and approved by the Watauga County Planning Board as 

provided hereinafter.  Plans of group developments for housing, commercial, 

industrial, or other uses, or for any combination of uses shall be submitted in 

the same manner as other plats for review by the Planning Board. 

Section 2.  Exemptions. 

(A) The combination or recombination of portions of previously 

subdivided and recorded lots where the total number of lots is not 

increased and the resultant lots are equal to or exceed the 
standards of the local government as shown in its subdivision 

regulations.  
(B) The division of land into parcels greater than 10 acres where no 

street right-of-way dedication is involved. 
(C) The public acquisition by purchase of strips of land for the widening 

or opening of streets or for public transportation system corridors.  
(D) The division of a tract in single ownership whose entire area is no 

greater than 2 acres into not more than three lots, where no street 
right-of-way dedication is involved and where the resultant lots are 

equal to or exceed the standards of the local government, as shown 
in its subdivision regulations. 

(E) The division of a tract into parcels in accordance with the terms of a 
probated will or in accordance with intestate succession under 

Chapter 29 of the General Statutes.  

(F) The division of land solely among members of the same family, 
which shall include all lineal descendants or ancestors plus brothers, 

sisters, aunts, uncles, fathers-in-law, mothers-in-law, brothers-in-
law, sisters-in-law, nieces, nephews and stepchildren by any 

method of transfer except where the parties contemplate 
development for resale, and where the resultant lots are equal to or 

exceed the standards of the county as shown in this chapter. 

Section 3.  Building Permits. 

Approval of the final plat by the Planning Board shall be required before 

issuance of any building permit for a structure to be erected in a subdivision, 

except in Planned Unit Developments, or up to two (2) may be issued in any 

042021 BCC Meeting

231



198 

 

subdivision to the owner/developer only, when the owner is also the 

developer. 

Section 4.  Recording of Plats. 

No subdivision plat of land within the County's jurisdiction shall be filed or 

recorded until it has been submitted to and approved by the Watauga 

County Planning Board or Staff, and until this approval is entered in writing 

on the face of the plat by the designated representative of the County 

Planning Board. 

Section 5.  Duty of Register of Deeds. 

The Register of Deeds shall not file or record a plat of a subdivision of land 

located within the territorial jurisdiction of the County that has not been 

approved in accordance with these provisions, nor shall the Clerk of Superior 

Court order or direct the recording of a plat if the recording would be in 

conflict with this section. No subdivision plat of land within a Public Water 

Supply Watershed shall be filed or recorded by the Register of Deeds until it 

has been approved in accordance with the provisions of Watauga County's 

Watershed Protection regulations.  Likewise, the Clerk of Superior Court shall 

not order or direct the recording of a plat if the recording of such plat would 

be in conflict with the watershed protection regulations. 

Section 6.  Relationship to Effective Changes in the Chapter. 

It is not intended that this chapter will in any way repeal, annul, or interfere 

with any valid permits or approvals which were legally issued under previous 

ordinances for the use or development of land or structures.  In addition, 

future changes in this chapter shall not repeal, annul, or interfere with any 

valid permits or approvals issued pursuant to this chapter prior to said 

changes.  This provision shall include approved master plans for phased 

developments.  If the density in the approved master plan is not increased, 

any plats and extensions thereof shall be subject to the regulations under 

which the original master plan was approved. 

 

 
 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

232



199 

 

Article V  Procedures For Review and Approval of Subdivisions 

Section 1.  Plat Required on Any Subdivision of Land. 

Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160D-803, a final plat shall be prepared, approved, 
and recorded pursuant to the provisions of this chapter whenever any 

subdivision of land takes place.  Prior to recording, such plat shall be 
approved pursuant to Article V.  To secure such approval, the subdivider 

shall follow the procedures established in this Article as applicable. 

Section 2.  Submission of Preliminary Plat. 

A preliminary plat meeting the requirements of this ordinance shall be 
submitted for review and shall be approved by the Planning Board before 

any improvements or land disturbing activities are made in a subdivision.  
One(1) copy of this plat, plus at least one-half plat fee shall be submitted to 

the Planning Staff at least two (2) weeks before the meeting of the Planning 
Board at which time it is to be reviewed.  One week prior to the meeting and 

subsequent to staff review, an electronic version of the plat shall be provided 

to the Planning Staff; eight (8) full-size copies shall be submitted no later 
than 9:00 AM the day of the Planning Board meeting, unless deemed 

unnecessary by the Planning Staff. 
 

A Developer Authorization Form (Appendix M) must accompany the 
Preliminary Plat application when the application is made by person(s) other 

than the land owner(s).  
 

The Planning Staff shall provide that the following agencies be given an 
opportunity to make recommendations as appropriate concerning an 

individual subdivision plat before the plat is approved: AppHealthCare, 
Department of Transportation, County Board of Education, County Fire 

Marshal.  The Planning Staff shall transmit copies of the plat to those 
agencies and others upon their request. 

 

The Planning Board shall review the preliminary plat and identify any 
changes required in order that the subdivision may comply with the 

provisions of this ordinance. The Planning Board shall take formal action on 
the preliminary plat at the first regular meeting date (Normally the 3rd 

Monday evening of each month) after receipt of the plat.  Within five (5) 
days after its action on the plat, the Staff shall notify the subdivider by letter 

indicating the action taken. 
 

After receiving approval of the preliminary plat by the Planning Board and 
the erosion control plan by the staff (and not before that time), the 

subdivider may proceed to construct the proposed road and other 

042021 BCC Meeting

233



200 

 

improvements in accordance with the requirements of this chapter and as 
shown on the approved preliminary plat. 

(A) Fees.  The developer shall pay a review fee of an amount specified 
from time to time by the Watauga County Commissioners. At least 

half of said fee shall be paid at the time of submission of the 
preliminary plat (the fee shall be paid before the plat will be placed 

on the Planning Board meeting agenda); the remainder, if any, 
shall be paid at submission of the final plat. 

(B) For a planned unit development the developer shall pay a review 
fee at the rate provided above for each structure in the 

development. No fees are required for master plan review. 

Section 3.  Specifications for Preliminary Plat. 

The preliminary plat shall be at a scale of one-hundred (100) feet to one (1) 
inch or larger and shall be on a sheet, 18" x 24".  However, if the size and 

shape of the property is such that a sheet 18" x 24" will not accommodate 

the entire tract, a sheet not larger than 24" x 36" may be used, and in 
unusual circumstances may be at a scale of no smaller than 1"=200'. In 

addition, the developer shall provide an electronic version of the plat. 
 

The following information shall be required as applicable: 
(A) A sketch vicinity map showing the relationship of the proposed 

subdivision with the surrounding area. 
(B) The location of existing property lines, streets, buildings, water 

courses, transmission lines, sewers, bridges, and water mains, city 
and county lines (if adjoining) and any public utility easements. 

(C) Boundaries of the tract shown with distances and approximate 
acreage. 

(D) Evidence of access right-of-way from state road. 
(E) Names of adjoining property owners and/or subdivisions. 

(F) Zoning classification, if any, both on the land to be subdivided and 

on adjoining land. 
(G) Proposed streets, street names, rights-of-way, roadway widths, 

approximate grades, curve radiuses, and proposed drainage 
facilities. 

(H) Other proposed rights-of-way or easements showing locations, 
widths and purposes. 

(I) Proposed lot lines, lot numbers, and approximate area.  Statement 
that all lots will comply with the Subdivision Regulations. 

(J) Proposed minimum building set back lines. 
(K) Proposed utility layouts (sewer, water, electricity) showing 

connections to existing systems or plans for central water system or 

042021 BCC Meeting

234



201 

 

package sewage system, or designation for individual water and 
sewage. 

(L) Proposed parks, open spaces, or any other public areas. 
(M) Name of owner, developer, engineer and registered surveyor. 

(N) Title, date, north point, and graphic scale. 
(O) Statement of intended use of the lots (single or multi-family). 

(P) Evidence of N.C.D.O.T. driveway connection permit shall be 
submitted prior to commencement of construction. 

(Q) When an area covered in the plan includes or abuts a water area 
(stream, river or lake) the following additional information is 

required: 
(1) Relationship with floodway and flood plain as delineated by 

the county floodway boundary and flood insurance rate maps. 
(2) Any proposed dock lines beyond which no dock structure may 

be constructed. 

(3) Methods of providing ingress and egress from uplands to 
water area. 

(4) Names of the owners of the water area. 
(R) A soil erosion control plan (3 copies) shall be submitted to the 

Planning Staff.  Grading shall not commence until the erosion 
control plan is reviewed and approved by the Planning Staff and the 

Soil and Water Conservation District and a grading permit is issued.  
See Appendix B - D for further detail. 

(S) If road (s) are to be "county standard", the developer shall maintain 
the road(s) until such time as a property owners association 

assumes maintenance. Prior to final plat approval, the developer 
shall comply with Article VI, Section 2(A)(1) concerning recording of 

property owners association road maintenance provisions. 

Section 4.  Minor Subdivisions. 

(A) Procedures set forth here for handling applications for approval of 

minor subdivisions are intended to simplify processing of routine 
small subdivisions with due regard to protection of the public 

interest. 
(B) For the purpose of these regulations, a minor subdivision is defined 

as any subdivision requiring no variances and consisting of not 
more than ten (10) lots.  One phase of a phased development 

cannot be considered a minor subdivision unless the entire 
development is not more than 10 lots. 

(C) After January 1, 2006, all new divisions of land shall comply with all 
of the requirements of this ordinance, with the exception of the 

following: The division of one (1) lot or tract out of a larger tract 
will be allowed provided 1) the new lots meet the size, dimensional, 

042021 BCC Meeting

235



202 

 

and setback requirements of this or any applicable ordinance; 2) no 
public street or road dedication or change in existing public streets 

or road is involved; 3) the original lot or tract was created prior to 
January 1, 2006 and is over ten (10) acres in size; or 4) if the 

original tract is less than ten (10) acres, it shall have been created 
prior to June 15, 1973, or be otherwise exempt from this 

ordinance; 5) only one (1) such division shall be allowed from the 
original tract without total compliance with this ordinance. 

(D) The Watauga County Planning Staff shall review the preliminary plat 
of each minor subdivision and shall find that it either is or is not a 

minor subdivision and shall find that it either does or does not meet 
the requirements of this ordinance.  Said findings shall be stated in 

writing and recorded in the records of the Planning Board.  Based 
upon said findings the Staff shall either approve, not approve, or 

approve conditionally the proposed minor subdivision. 

(E) A decision by the Planning Staff shall be made within fifteen days of 
submission of the proposed minor subdivision to the Staff and the 

decision of the Staff is subject to appeal by the subdivider to the 
Planning Board which must act on appeals at its next regular 

meeting. 
(F) A final plat shall be submitted to the Watauga County Planning Staff 

for consideration and approval before the conveyance of any of the 
property or the recording of the plat. 

(G) The County may require only a plat for recordation for the division 
of a tract or parcel of land in single ownership if all of the following 

criteria are met: 
(1) The tract or parcel to be divided is not exempted under Article 

IV, Section 2. (i.e. no resultant tract is 10 acres or more) 
(2) No part of the tract or parcel to be divided has been divided 

under this subsection in the 10 years prior to division. 

(3) The entire area of the tract or parcel to be divided is greater 
than five acres. 

(4) After division, no more than three lots results from the 
division. 

(5) After the division, all resultant lots comply with all of the 
following: 

a) Any lot dimension size requirements of the applicable 
land-use regulations, if any. 

b) The use of the lots is in conformity with the applicable 
zoning requirements, if any. 

c) A permanent means of ingress and egress is recorded for 

each lot. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

236



203 

 

Section 5.  Phased Developments. 

If a developer proposes that a subdivision (including PUD's) will be 

constructed in phases, the following procedure shall apply. 
(A) A master plan showing the entire proposed subdivision and the 

phases of development, proposed density, proposed type and 
location of utilities, and proposed development timetable shall be 

submitted to the Planning Board for approval. 
(B) Each phase of development shall be preceded by submission and 

approval of a preliminary plat as outlined in Section 3 unless such 
plat submission is waived by the Planning Board.  The master plan 

may be submitted prior to or simultaneously to submission of the 
preliminary plat for the first phase of development. 

(C) As each phase is completed, a final plat must be submitted and 
approved for that phase as outlined in Sections 6 and 7. 

(D) Approval of the master plan need not be renewed unless density 

increases are proposed. 

Section 6.  Submission of Final Plat. 

Unless a final plat is submitted to the Planning Board within eighteen (18) 
months from the date on which the preliminary plat was approved, such 

action on the preliminary plat shall become void and of no effect, and will 
necessitate the resubmission of the preliminary to the Planning Board for 

consideration, except in the case of preliminary plats for Planned Unit 
Developments, which do not expire.  One (1) copy of this plat, plus plat fee, 

if any remains unpaid, shall be submitted to the Planning Staff at least two 
(2) weeks before the meeting of the Planning Board at which time it is to be 

reviewed.  One week prior to the meeting and subsequent to staff review, 
one electronic copy shall be provided to the Planning Staff; eight (8) full size 

copies of the plat shall be submitted no later than 9:00 AM day of the 
Planning Board meeting.  Roads and lots shall be clearly marked in the field 

upon submission of the final plat. 

(A) Final Plat.  The final plat shall be drawn on reproducible mylar. The 
final plat shall constitute only that portion of the approved 

preliminary sketch plan which the subdivider proposes to record 
provided that such portion conforms to all requirements of this 

ordinance.  All final plats shall be on sheets with overall 
measurements of 18" x 24" and shall be on a scale no smaller than 

1" = 100'. In addition, the developer shall provide one electronic 
version of the plat. 

The final plat shall show as applicable: 
(1) A sketch vicinity map showing the location of the subdivision 

in relation to the surrounding area. 

042021 BCC Meeting

237



204 

 

(2) The right-of-way lines and easements of all streets and roads, 
and access right-of-way to state road. 

(3) Lot lines and lot numbers showing bearings and distances, and 
lot sizes. All dimensions should be to the nearest one-

hundredth (0.01) of a foot and angles to the nearest minute. 
(4) Minimum building setback lines. (Show typical lot setback; not 

required of all lots.) 
(5) Relationship with floodway and flood plain as delineated by the 

county floodway boundary and flood insurance maps. 
(6) Sufficient data to determine readily and reproduce on the 

ground the location, bearing and length of every street line, 
lot line, boundary line, and block line whether curved or 

straight. 
(7) Accurate location and description of all monuments and 

markers and block tie lines. 

(8) The names and locations of adjoining subdivisions and streets, 
and the location and ownership of adjoining un-subdivided 

property, including water areas. 
(9) Title, date, name, and location of subdivision, graphic scale, 

and true north point. 
(10) Name of owner, developer, surveyor, engineer and land 

planner. 
(11) Reservations for easements, and areas to be dedicated to 

public use or sites for other than residential use shall be 
shown on the plat with notes stating their purposes. 

(12) One of the following statements: 
a) Drinking water source to be individual or shared wells 

(not a community or public water supply).  Wastewater 
disposal method to be septic tanks. Individual lots 

have/have not been approved by App HealthCare for 

septic system. 
b) Drinking water source to be a public water supply 

(name system if to be connected to existing system, or 
indicate proposed new supply).  Wastewater disposal 

method to be septic tanks.  Individual lots have/have 
not been approved by AppHealthCare for septic system. 

c) Drinking water source to be a community water system 
(name system if to be connected to existing system, or 

indicate proposed new supply).  Wastewater disposal 
method to be septic tanks.  Individual lots have/have 

not been approved by AppHealthCare for septic system. 
d) Drinking water source to be individual or shared wells 

(not a community or public water system).  Wastewater 
disposal method to be NPDES sewer (name system if to 

042021 BCC Meeting

238



205 

 

be connected to existing system, or indicate proposed 
new system). 

e) Drinking water source to be a public water supply 
(name system if to be connected to existing system, or 

indicate proposed new supply).  Wastewater disposal 
method to be NPDES sewer (name system if to be 

connected to existing system, or indicate proposed new 
system). 

f) Drinking water source to be a community water supply 
(name system if to be connected to existing system, or 

indicate proposed new supply).  Wastewater disposal 
method to be NPDES sewer (name system if to be 

connected to existing system, or indicate proposed new 
system). 

(13) Location and size of culverts/ drainage facilities. 

(14) Density in units per acre if PUD. 
(15) Variances granted, if any. 

(16) Reference shall be made on final plat to deed book and page 
number of recorded Restrictive Covenants and/or Road 

Maintenance Agreement. 
(B) The following certificates shall be shown on the final plat as 

applicable: 
(1) Certificate of Ownership and Dedication  

 
I (We) hereby certify that I am (we are) the owner(s) of the 

property shown and described here on, that the property is 
within the regulatory jurisdiction of Watauga County, and that I 

(we) hereby adopt this plan of subdivision with my (our) free 
consent, establish all lots, and dedicate all streets, alleys, walks, 

parks, easements, right-of way, and other open spaces to public 

or private use as noted. 
___________   ____________________________ 

DATE      OWNER 
(2) Certificate of Accuracy 

The undersigned surveyor, being duly sworn, deposes and says 
that the plat upon which this certificate appears was prepared in 

accordance with N.C.G.S.47-30 as amended, is in all respects 
correct according to the best of his knowledge and belief, and 

was prepared from an actual survey made by him on the 
______________ day of __________________ 20___, with 

maximum linear error of closure of 
__________________________ and a maximum field error of 

angular closure of ____________________. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

239



206 

 

 
Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 47-30, the surveyor shall certify to one of 

the following. 
(a) That this survey creates a subdivision of land within the 

area of a county or municipality that has an ordinance 
that regulates parcels of land; 

(b) That this survey is located in a portion of a county or 
municipality that is unregulated as to an ordinance that 

regulates parcels of land; 
(c) Any one of the following: 

i. That the survey is of an existing parcel or 
parcels of land and does not create a new 

street or change an existing street; 
ii. That the survey is of an existing building or 

other structure, or natural feature, such as 

a watercourse; or 
iii. That the survey is a control survey. 

(d) That this survey is of another category, such as the 
recombination of existing parcels, a court ordered 

survey, or other exception to the definition of 
subdivision; 

(e) That the information available to the surveyor is such 
that the surveyor is unable to make a determination to 

the best of the surveyor's professional ability as to 
provisions contained in (a) through (d) above. 

(3) Certificate of the Approval of Water and Sewage System 
I hereby certify that the water supply and sewage disposal utility 

system installed, or proposed for installation, in each lot of the 
subdivision entitled _________________________________ 

fully meets the requirements of the undersigned agency(ies), 

and are hereby approved as shown. 
__________  _______________________________  

DATE     APPHEALTHCARE 
_________________________________ 

NC PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY SECTION 
__________________________________________________ 

NC DEPT. OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
(4) Certification of the Approval of Streets and Utilities 

 hereby certify: (1) that streets, utilities and other improvements 
have been installed in an acceptable manner and according to 

County specifications in the subdivision entitled 
________________________________________________ or 

(2) that a security guarantee in the amount of $___________or 
cash in the amount of $____________ has been posted with the 

042021 BCC Meeting

240



207 

 

county to assure completion of all required improvements in 
case of default. 

______ __________________________________________ 
DATE  WATAUGA COUNTY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

(5) Certificate of Approval of Recording. 
I hereby certify that the subdivision plat shown hereon has been 

found to comply with the Subdivision Regulations of Watauga 
County, North Carolina, with the exception of such variances, if 

any, as are noted in the Minutes of the Planning Board and are 
recorded on the plat and that it has been approved by the 

Watauga County Planning Board at their regular meeting of 
_____________ for recording in the office of the County 

Register of Deeds. 
_______   ___________________________________________ 

DATE  WATAUGA COUNTY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

(6) Certificate of Approval of Recording.  
(watershed; can be combined with (5) or (10)) 

I certify that the plat shown here on complies with the 
Watershed Protection regulations and is approved by the 

Watauga County Planning Board or Staff (choose which is 
applicable) for recording in the Register of Deeds Office. 

______   ____________________________________________ 
DATE  WATAUGA COUNTY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

 
NOTICE:  This property is located within a Public Water Supply 

Watershed – development restrictions may apply. 
(7) Certificate of Approval and Acceptance of Dedications 

I,________________________, the Authorized Representative 
of Watauga County, North Carolina, do certify that Watauga 

County approved of this plat or map and has accepted the 

dedication of the streets, easements, right-of-way, and public 
parks shown thereon, but assume no responsibility to open or 

maintain the same until, in the opinion of the governing body of 
Watauga County it is in the public interest to do so. 

______     ___________________________________________ 
DATE  WATAUGA COUNTY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

(8) Certification of Approval of N.C.D.O.T Division of Highways  
NCDOT DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS 

PROPOSED SUBDIVISION ROAD 
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS CERTIFICATION 

APPROVED _____________________________ 
DISTRICT ENGINEER 

DATE _________________________________ 
(or as otherwise specified by D.O.T.) 

042021 BCC Meeting

241



208 

 

(9) Certificate of Exemption 
I hereby certify that the plat shown here on is exempt from the 

Watauga County Subdivision Regulations pursuant to Section 
__________ of the regulations.  No approval is required. 

_____ ________________________________________ 
DATE  WATAUGA COUNTY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

(10) Certificate of Approval of Minor Subdivision 
I hereby certify that the subdivision plat shown hereon has been 

found to comply with the Subdivision Regulations of Watauga 
County, North Carolina.  It has been approved as a minor 

subdivision as defined in Section _____ of the Subdivision 
Regulations for recording in the office of the County Register of 

Deeds. 
______ _______________________________________________ 

DATE  WATAUGA COUNTY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

 
(NOTE:  Authorized representatives shall be the Director of Planning 

and Inspections and Planner/Property Development Coordinator, 
and in their absence, the Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning 

Board.) 

Section 7.  Approval of Final Plat. 

Upon receipt of the final plat, the Planning Board and Staff shall review it for 
compliance with the provisions of the ordinance. The Planning Board may 

approve the plat in whole or in part, or subject to modifications.  Failure of 
the Planning Board to take formal action on the final plat after receipt of the 

plat at least two (2) weeks prior to the regular meeting date(3rd Monday 
evening of each month) shall be deemed approval of submitted plat. (The 

regular meeting may be postponed, but for no more than one (1) week). The 
approval of the final plat by the Planning Board shall be on the condition that 

such plat be recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds within one (1) 

year after such approval. The original tracing of the final shall be made 
available by the subdivider for authentication when the Planning Board takes 

final action approving the plat. 

Section 8.  Advisory Opinion. 

A subdivider is encouraged to submit a sketch to the Planning Staff prior to 
submission of a preliminary plat if s/he wishes to ascertain the feasibility of 

development of his property. 
 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

242



209 

 

Article VI  General Requirements and Minimum Standards of Design 

Section 1.  General Requirements. 

The subdivider shall observe the following general requirements and 
principles of land subdivision. 

(A) Suitability of Land.  Land which has been determined by the 
Watauga County Planning Board on the basis of engineering and/or 

other studies prepared by licensed professionals to pose an 
ascertainable danger to life or property by reason of its unsuitability 

for the use proposed shall not be platted for that purpose, unless 
and until the subdivider has taken the necessary measures to 

correct said conditions and to eliminate said dangers. 
(1) Land subject to flooding may be considered unsuitable for 

building development. The decision by the Planning Board 
shall be based on flooding history of the area and survey 

information furnished by Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA) as delineated on the Watauga County 
Floodway Boundary and Flood Rate Insurance Maps. 

Subdivision developments shall comply with the Watauga 
County Flood Damage Prevention regulations. 

(2) Generally, property which has a natural cross slope of fifty 
(50) percent or more is considered unfeasible for subdivision 

development. Any variance beyond a fifty (50) percent slope 
shall require the approval of the Planning Board. See 

Appendix H for method of defining average cross slope. 
(B) Conformity to Existing Plans.  All proposed subdivisions shall 

conform to any adopted plans for the county and to any applicable 
regulations of any existing county zoning regulations.  Whenever a 

tract to be subdivided embraces any part of a state maintained 
road, as designated on any officially adopted plan, such part of such 

public right-of-way shall be platted by the subdivider in the location 

and at the width indicated by said plan and provisions of this 
ordinance. 

(C) Driveway Connection Permit. A driveway connection permit issued 
by NC Department of Transportation shall be obtained. A Traffic 

Impact Analysis shall be required from the applicant under the 
following circumstances, unless the Planning Staff and NCDOT 

concur that one is unnecessary: 
(1) The development proposes to have access to any public road 

at a location where sight distance in any direction along the 
road is less than 500 feet; or 

(2) The development proposes access onto a public road that 

does not have a paved  width of at least 18 feet; or 

042021 BCC Meeting

243



210 

 

(3) The development proposes access to a public road with 
current NCDOT traffic counts that are 85% of capacity shown 

in the most recent Watauga County Comprehensive 
transportation Plan and based upon ITE trip generation rates 

is projected to generate 1,500 or more weekday trips; or 

(4) The Planning Staff determines that the proposed project will 

have a potential negative impact on the public road system 
due to the size of the project or existing transportation 

system or determines that there are safety concerns with the 
driveway location and design. If a traffic impact analysis is 

performed and that analysis concludes that improvements are 
required to the transportation system, the applicant may be 

required to complete those improvements in connection with 
the project as a condition of issuing a permit. Unless an 

agreement is executed by the County in which the time for 

the improvement is specified, the improvement shall be 
completed prior to issuance of final plat approval.  

(D) Coordination and Continuation of Streets.  The proposed street 
layout within a subdivision shall be coordinated with the existing 

street system of the surrounding area and where possible, existing   
principal streets shall be extended. 

(E) Access to Adjacent Properties.  Where, in the opinion of the 
Planning Board it is necessary to provide for street access to an 

adjoining property, proposed streets shall be extended by 
dedication to the boundary of such property and a temporary 

turnaround shall be provided.  This provision shall apply only to 
roads which will be state maintained (dedicated to the public). 

(F) Access Right-of-Way.  Where a right-of-way, less than forty-five 
(45) feet, which provides access to property proposed for 

subdivision had been granted prior to June 15, 1973, and the 

developer presents proof in writing that s/he cannot feasibly obtain 
a forty-five (45) foot right-of-way to the property then s/he may be 

permitted to develop the property provided s/he secure at least a 
thirty (30) foot right-of-way into the property proposed for 

subdivision.  If the right-of-way is less than thirty (30) feet, the 
Planning Board may grant a variance for development provided that 

the road width will meet county standards.  Less-than-county-
standard-width may be permitted under extreme circumstances in 

the judgment of the Planning Board, provided the access right-of-
way is no greater than 300 feet in length and there are no view 

obstructions from either end of the access.  Roads providing access 
to subdivisions shall meet the same standard as the roads within 

the subdivision unless a variance specifying otherwise is granted by 

042021 BCC Meeting

244



211 

 

the Planning Board.  In all cases where less than a forty-five (45) 
foot right of-way is used for access to a subdivision, this fact shall 

be contained in the disclosure statement and shown on the final 
plat as specified in Article V, Section 6.  For purposes of this 

section, access road shall not include any state-maintained road.  
When an access road passes by an existing structure, the 

subdivision developer shall make efforts to protect the structure(s) 
from visual, noise, stormwater and other impacts potentially caused 

by the access road. 
(G) Large Tracts or Parcels.  Where land is subdivided into larger 

parcels than ordinary building lots, such parcels should be arranged 
so as to allow for the opening of future streets and logical further 

re-subdivisions. 
(H) Marginal Access Streets.  Where a tract of land to be subdivided 

adjoins a principal arterial street or a major arterial street, the 

subdivider may be required to provide a marginal access street 
parallel to the arterial street or reverse frontage on a minor street 

for the lots to be developed adjacent to the arterial.  Where reverse 
frontage is established, private driveways shall be prevented from 

having direct access to the expressway.  
(I) Lots.  All lots shall front, except as provided in Article VI, Section 

3(F), with a minimum of forty (40) feet on a dedicated through 
street; thirty (30) feet on cul-de-sacs.  Double frontage lots shall be 

encouraged where terrain necessitates double frontage for 
reasonable access to property. 

(J) Street Names.  Proposed streets which are obviously in alignment 
with existing streets shall be given the same name.  In assigning 

new names, the provisions of the Ordinance Establishing Names For 
Public And Private Roads In Watauga County shall apply.  Street 

names shall be subject to the approval of the Watauga County 

Emergency Services Department.  
(K) Name of Subdivision.  The name of a subdivision shall not duplicate 

nor closely approximate the name of an existing subdivision within 
the county. 

(L) Natural Assets.  In any subdivision due consideration will be given 
to preserving natural features such as trees, ponds, streams, rivers, 

lakes and for any historical sites which are of value not only to the 
subdivision but to the county as a whole.  

(M) Erosion Control.  In order to prevent soil erosion and sedimentation 
of streams, springs, flat water bodies, or other drainage networks, 

the subdivider shall retain the natural vegetation cover wherever 
possible.  Further, land cleared of the natural vegetation shall be 

reseeded or replanted with an appropriate vegetative cover which 
shall be approved by the Planning Staff and Soil and Water 

042021 BCC Meeting

245



212 

 

Conservation District.  In all cases of street construction, or land 
disturbing activity of one half (1/2)acre or more, the subdivider 

shall comply with the Watauga County Soil Erosion Control 
Regulations. In addition, the grading plan and specifications 

controlling execution of land-disturbing activities shall adhere to the 
following standards:  

(1) Maximum cut slopes shall be 2H:1V.  
(2) Maximum fill slopes shall be 2H:1V. 

(3) Innovative designs exceeding the slope standards specified 
herein may be approved when accompanied by a site-specific 

subsurface investigation, report and recommendation 
performed by a registered professional engineer competent in 

geotechnical engineering. All grades shall be sloped to drain 
surface water away from buildings, pavements, slopes and 

structures as applicable.  

Also see Appendix B-D for further detail. 
(N) Storm Water Drainage.  The subdivider shall provide an adequate 

drainage system for the proper drainage of all surface water.  The 
design of such a system shall be subject to the approval of the 

Planning Staff. 
(1) No surface water shall be channeled or directed into a sanitary 

sewer. 
(2) Where feasible, the subdivider shall connect to an existing 

storm drainage system. 
(3) Where an existing storm drainage system cannot feasibly be 

extended to the subdivision, a surface drainage system shall 
be designed to protect the proposed development and 

adjoining property from water damage. 
(O) Proposed Water and Sewage Systems.  The preliminary subdivision 

plat must be accompanied by satisfactory evidence as to the 

proposed method and system of water supply and sanitary sewage 
collection and disposal. 

(1) Where the system is to be connected to the system owned and 
operated by the Towns of Boone, Blowing Rock, Beech 

Mountain, Seven Devils, or any associated sanitary district, or 
any sanitary facility of Watauga County, but not constructed 

by the municipalities or county, the preliminary subdivision 
plat shall be accompanied by a letter of approval from the 

proper official representing the owner of the existing system 
to which the proposed system is to be connected.  After 

preliminary approval but prior to installation of a public water 
or sewer system, the developer shall present to the Planning 

Board plans for the proposed system, prepared by a 
registered engineer and approved by the proper official 

042021 BCC Meeting

246



213 

 

representing the owner of the system to which the proposed 
system is to be connected, and by the designated state 

agency. 
(2) Where community water/sewer systems are proposed, the 

preliminary plat shall be accompanied by a letter of approval 
from the proper official of the designated state agency or 

AppHealthCare, whichever is applicable. The developer shall 
note the type of systems to be utilized on the preliminary and 

final plat and shall record with the Watauga County Register 
of Deeds an instrument setting forth provisions for the 

establishment of a property owner’s association for the 
purpose of assessing dues for maintenance of the community 

systems by purchasers of property which will be served within 
the development. The developer shall maintain community 

systems at least until such time that the property owner’s 

association assumes maintenance. 
(3) Where the proposed system does not contemplate the use of 

facilities owned and operated by any of the above, the 
developer shall note on the preliminary and final plat that 

each lot shall have an individual water supply and sewage 
disposal facility to be approved by the AppHealthCare. The 

developer shall note further which lot(s) have or have not 
received prior approval for septic tank use by AppHealthCare. 

(P) Cemeteries: Where a subdivision plat encompasses an existing 
cemetery - whether active or abandoned - the subdivider shall 

provide permanent access to the cemetery. 

Section 2.  Design Standards for Streets. 

The design standards for subdivision streets shall meet either the minimum 
construction standards for secondary roads as required by the N.C. 

Department of Transportation or the minimum construction requirements for 

county standard roads.  When state standards are to be met, the developer 
shall submit proposed road specifications for the approval of the local 

Department of Transportation office prior to submitting a preliminary plat.  It 
is recommended that subdivision roads be constructed to meet D.O.T. 

requirements in all areas where terrain is suitable for D.O.T. approval. 
(A) County Standard Roads. County standards may be utilized under 

the following conditions: 
(1) Prior to the recording of the final plat, the developer shall 

record a Declaration of Restrictions and/or approved Road 
Maintenance Agreement having provisions for the 

establishment of a property owner’s association for the 
purpose of assessing dues for road maintenance. The 

042021 BCC Meeting

247



214 

 

developer shall maintain the road at least until such time that 
the property owner’s association assumes maintenance. 

(2) County standard roads shall be maintained to the original 
graveled or paved width.  

(3) The Planning Staff may perform periodic inspections to insure 
that the roads are being maintained to the required width.  

(B) Design Requirements for County Standard Roads. 
(1) Right-of-Way Width. Right of way width for County standard 

roads shall be not less than forty-five (45) feet. 
(2) Width of Road. Graded width of road bed including ditch and 

shoulder areas shall have a minimum width of twenty five 
(25) feet. This amount may be reduced pursuant to Article VI, 

Section 2(B)(4) 
(3) Stoned or Paved Area. Road travel area may be either stoned 

or paved, and shall have a minimum width of twenty (20) 

feet. 
(a) Where stone is used, it shall be "crusher-run" or DOT 

approved "ABC" stone compacted to a minimum of four 
(4) inches. In locations where soil conditions require 

additional stone to attain a stable road bed, the 
developer shall add the required amount of stone before 

attaining approval of the final plat. 
(b) If the developer elects to pave county standard roads, 

s/he shall meet requirements of the State Department 
of Transportation pertaining to stone base  and top 

surface. 
(c) In the case of roads which were approved and for which 

construction began prior to the adoption of the 20-foot 
width requirement on May 15, 2012 the Planning Board 

may allow 18-foot road width provided the Board 

determines the following: 
(i.) the subject road received a preliminary plat 

approval prior to May 15, 2012, and 
(ii.) the road was substantially completed to the 

formerly-required 18 foot width, and  
(iii.) it is impractical from an engineering or 

environmental perspective to increase the 
width to 20 feet.  Examples include, but are 

not limited to: 1)underground utilities have 
been placed in the road right-of-way, 2) cut 

and fill slopes have been stabilized and 
additional grading would unnecessarily 

affect the slopes, and 3) the subject road 

042021 BCC Meeting

248



215 

 

segment is the final segment of an existing 
road. 

(4) Shoulder Areas and Ditches.  Shoulder area on cut side shall be 
a minimum of four (4) feet in width and shall provide a 

drainage ditch of adequate size to accommodate storm water 
run-off based on terrain and location.  Shoulder width on fill 

side shall be a minimum width of three (3) feet.  In locations 
where cuts are required on both sides of the road, drainage 

ditches and shoulders shall occupy approximately three and 
one-half (3 1/2) feet wide on each side.  The Planning Staff 

may recommend shoulder design which differs from the 
above during site inspection and depending upon terrain and 

cut and fill.  In addition, the staff may approve a reduction in 
shoulder area on the ditch side of up to one and one-half (1 

1/2) feet where the road is paved and "roll type" curb and 

gutter is used. The total reduction in shoulder area could be 
three (3) feet if there is a ditch on both sides. This reduction 

is dependent upon adequacy of this design to handle runoff as 
calculated by the erosion control plan. 

(5) Road Grades.  Maximum grade shall be fifteen (15) percent. A 
variance up to eighteen (18) percent may be granted by the 

Planning Board in extreme cases where terrain prohibits a 
lesser grade to attain access to a nearby area, if in the 

opinion of the Planning Board such variance will not create a 
hazardous or destructive condition. In no case shall a 

variance be granted for road grades exceeding eighteen (18) 
percent. In addition, for any road containing grade(s) 

exceeding fifteen (15) percent, the entire road network shall 
be paved unless deemed unnecessary by the Planning Board 

in considering the variance. The Planning Board may require 

the placement of safety barriers on curves of such roads. The 
Planning Board shall also require a slope stake road profile for 

roads (or portions of roads where practical) with grade(s) 
fourteen (14) to eighteen (18) percent subsequent to 

preliminary plat approval.  Certification of road grade by a NC 
licensed surveyor shall be required when deemed necessary 

by the Planning Board or Staff. 
(6) Culverts and Drainage.  Culverts shall be of adequate size to 

discharge storm water from any given area depending upon 
terrain and location.  Minimum culvert size shall be eighteen 

(18) inches (may be reduced at the discretion of the Planning 
Staff) inside diameter and shall be located and installed as 

recommended by the project engineer or as recommended by 
the Planning Staff. 

042021 BCC Meeting

249



216 

 

(a) Culverts may be made of any NCDOT approved material 
and design and shall be installed on a constant grade of 

a sufficient degree to insure proper drainage and a 
minimum danger of becoming clogged with debris or 

mud. 
(b) All culverts shall have a minimum cover of twelve (12) 

inches of well compacted earth. The first six (6) inches 
of earth surrounding the culvert shall be free of stones 

larger than two (2) inches square. 
(7) Curve Radius.  All curves in county standard roads shall have a 

radius of no less than thirty five (35) feet. 
(8) Bridges.  Proposed bridges which will be part of a county 

standard road or bridges used by more than one house, 
townhouse or duplex shall be constructed and maintained in 

accordance with AASHTO HB-17 and designed to 

accommodate two (2) lanes of traffic  unless a variance for a 
one (1) lane bridge is granted by the Planning Board. Factors 

to be considered by the Board in deciding upon such 
variances are: (1) environmental impact of a one (1) lane 

bridge as opposed to a two (2) lane bridge; (2) density 
(number of houses to be served by bridge); (3) traffic flow 

(one lane bridges should not be placed so as to cause traffic 
to back up onto a major thoroughfare). In any event, bridges 

serving more than one house, townhouse or duplex shall be 
permitted and constructed to meet NC Department of 

Transportation specifications, except that the width may be 
reduced to twenty (20) feet.  Confirmation that bridges meet 

such specifications may be provided by either Department of 
Transportation engineer or a registered private engineer. In 

addition, one-lane bridges shall include gravel or paved 

turnouts on each side of the bridge(s) to provide access to 
the water body for fire-fighting equipment where feasible.  

Developers proposing bridges should request an advisory 
opinion from the Planning Staff to assist in designing 

appropriate and adequate bridges. Private bridges shall be 
maintained by the developer or property owners association. 

Suggested maintenance procedures are found in Appendix I. 
It is recommended that these or similar procedures be 

adopted as an annual procedure. 
(9) Cul-de-sacs.  Turn-around right-of-way width shall be a 

minimum of one hundred (100) feet in diameter for round-
design cul-de-sacs; the travel surface shall be a minimum of 

seventy (70) feet in diameter.  Provided, however, that if 
terrain prevents construction of a round-design cul-de-sac, 

042021 BCC Meeting

250



217 

 

"tee" and "y" types of turn-arounds may be constructed; 
right-of-way shall be forty-five (45)feet in width; travel 

surface shall be twenty (20)feet. See Appendix K for 
drawings. 

(10) Turnarounds.  County standard roads shall be provided with 
turnarounds located as near as practical to the first 1000 foot 

point and each 1000 foot point thereafter, but not to vary by 
more than 100 feet longer.  Road right-of-way shall be 

established so as to encompass turnarounds. 
(11) Property Lines - - Concerning County Standard Roads.  Roads 

which are to have a forty-five (45) foot right-of-way may also 
have the property line located along and with the centerline of 

the road with a twenty-two and one-half (22 1/2) foot road 
right-of-way measured from the centerline to each side of the 

road. If this method is used, it shall be clearly indicated on 

the plats and incorporated in all deed conveyances. If the 
developer elects, s/he may place property line(s) twenty-two 

and one-half (22 1/2) feet from the centerline of the road(s) 
thereby providing a forty-five (45) foot right-of way. 

(a) Property line markers (iron rod, granite, or concrete 
monument) shall be placed on the side property lines at 

a point measured twenty-two and one-half (22 1/2) feet 
from the center of the road where a forty-five (45) foot 

right-of-way is provided. 
(b) The minimum building set-back distance from the road 

abutting the front of the property shall be forty (40) 
feet from the center of a forty-five  (45) foot right-of-

way.  This will place the structure 17 1/2 feet behind 
the right-of-way line. 

(12) Designation of Road Status.  All roads shown on the 

preliminary and final plats shall be clearly noted as to which 
roads are county standard and which are constructed to meet 

N.C. Department of Transportation requirements. 
(a) It is permissible to have both county standard and state 

approved roads within a subdivision. It is suggested 
that for a subdivision of substantial size with a main 

entrance road entering from an existing state road 
which will have a length of one thousand (1000) feet or 

more and may be extended in the foreseeable future, 
the entrance road should be constructed to meet N.C. 

Department of Transportation standards. This plan is 
suggested in order to insure mail delivery, state road 

maintenance and school bus service to a closer 
proximity of property owners located on county 

042021 BCC Meeting

251



218 

 

standard roads which may intersect the new public 
road. 

(b) Construction of a county standard road intersecting an 
existing state road with the intention of connecting and 

serving a new state approved road is prohibited. 
(13) Disclosure. The developer shall comply with N.C.G.S.136-

102.6 which provides for a Disclosure Statement from the 
developer to the purchaser setting forth the status (whether 

public or private) of the road on which the property is located. 
The disclosure statement shall also fully disclose the party or 

parties upon whom responsibility for maintenance of such 
roads shall rest. 

Section 3.  Design Standards for Lots. 

The lot size, width, depth, shape and orientation, shall be appropriate for the 

location and terrain of the subdivision and for the type of development and 

use contemplated. 
(A) Lot Area. (SEE ALSO TABLE 1) 

(1) Lots served by public/community water and NPDES sewer 
shall have an area of at least eight thousand (8000) square 

feet. 
(2) Lots served by NPDES sewer but individual water shall have 

an area of at least ten thousand (10,000) square feet. 
(3) Lots served by individual sewer shall have an area of at least 

twenty-one thousand, seven hundred eighty (21,780) square 
feet (one-half acre).  These requirements shall be increased 

on the recommendation of the Appalachian District Health 
Department based on site investigations or percolation rates 

and subsoil conditions. 
(4) Lots located within drinking water supply watersheds shall 

comply with the size requirements specified for WS-I, WS-II, 

WS-III, or WS-IV found in the Watauga County Watershed 
Protection regulations. 

(5) Individual lots within townhouse developments or townhome 
conversions must include an individual dwelling, together with 

front and rear yards or rights to yards in common areas, but 
are otherwise exempt from minimum lot area and setback 

requirements.  
 

 
 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

252



219 

 

TABLE 1 - LOT AREA REQUIREMENTS 
 
 PUBLIC/COMMUNITY 

WATER, NPDES & 

NON-DISCHARGE 

SEWER SYTEMS 

PUBLIC/COMMUNITY 

WATER, INDIVIDUAL 

SEWER SYSTEMS 

INDIVIDUAL WATER 

INDIVIDUAL SEWER 

SYSTEMS 

INDIVIDUAL WATER 

NPDES SEWER 

SYSTEMS 

Minimum Lot 

area in 

square feet  

8,000 21,780 21,780 10,000 

Minimum Lot 

width in feet 

75-average 

40-street line** 

75-average 

40-street line 

75-average 

40-street line 

75-average 

40-street line 

Minimum lot 

depth in feet 

 

125-average 

 

 

125-average 

 

125-average 

 

125-average 

 

Density in 

units per 

acres 

5.4 

(conventional) 

6.155 (PUD***) 

2 

(conventional) 

2.261 (PUD***) 

2 

(conventional) 

2.261 (PUD***) 

4.3 

(conventional) 

4.924 (PUD***) 

 

** Street line width for cul-de-sacs may be 30 feet. 

*** Multiply gross area by figures shown here. These figures have 15% deduction for  

roadways built in. These figures do not apply where the average cross slope is 30% 

or greater. 

 

NOTES: 
a) PUDs served by shared individual sewer systems (see 

definitions) shall be permitted density of 4.522 units per acre 
(this figure has 15% roadway deduction built it); density 

permitted where average cross slope exceeds 30% shall be 4 
units per acre. 

 
b) Minimum lot size requirements may exceed those shown 

above if subdivision is located in areas of the County affected 

by the following state and local regulations: 
(i.) Valle Crucis Historic District 

(ii.) Foscoe-Grandfather Zoning  
(iii.) Watershed Protection 

(iv.) High Quality Waters (HQW)  
c) Outstanding Resource Waters (ORW) Setback: 15 feet from 

side and rear property lines; 40 feet from center of 45 foot 
right-of-way. 

d) AppHealthCare regulations require that 1 unit = 2 bedrooms 
for individual sewer systems. 

e) Minimum lot areas are exclusive of road right-of-way. 
f) Formula for units per acre: #units divided by total acres. 

Example: 10 units on 2 acres = 10/2= 5 units per acre. 

042021 BCC Meeting

253



220 

 

g) Except as set forth as follows in Subsection (F), A residential 
lot, meeting the minimum standards of this ordinance, or 

being a lot which was established prior to June 15, 1973, may 
accommodate a single residence, a duplex, or a single 

residence and a detached secondary residence such as a 
garage apartment, provided there are no more than two (2) 

units. 
(B) Lot Width.  All lots shall have an average width of seventy-five (75) 

feet and a minimum width at the street line of forty (40) feet, thirty 
(30) feet on a cul-de-sac. 

(C) Lot Depth.  All lots shall have an average depth of at least one 
hundred twenty-five (125) feet. 

(D) Orientation of Lot Lines.  Side lot lines are encouraged to be 
designed substantially at right angles or radial to street lines 

depending upon terrain. 

(E) Panhandle Lots.  The Planning Board or Staff may approve 
panhandle lots where it is impractical to serve an isolated lot by a 

state or county standard road.  The frontage of the panhandle lot 
shall have a minimum width of thirty-five (35) feet which will 

provide an access strip between two standard lots to the isolated 
building site.  The area of such strip shall be excluded in computing 

the lot area and the length of said strip shall not exceed three-
hundred (300) feet.  If the panhandle widens to seventy (70) feet 

or more, it shall be included in the acreage calculation. 
(F) Access to Lots.  All lots within a subdivision shall have direct 

vehicular access to state or county standard roads, provided 
however that access to a maximum of three (3) lots (each lot 

containing no more than one residential unit) may be provided 
through use of a shared private driveway. A shared private 

driveway shall not exceed eighteen (18) percent grade, shall be 

contained within a 20 foot or greater right-of-way, and shall have a 
35 foot minimum curve radii. Driveway travel area may be either 

stoned or paved and shall have a minimum width of ten (10) feet 
with a vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches. The 

travel area must be designed to support the loads imposed by fire 
apparatus and provide all weather driving capabilities. Driveways 

that exceed 1,000 feet in length shall have an approved pullout 
area with a minimum width of 10 feet and minimum length of 40 

feet to allow for two-way traffic. Shared driveways shall be 
constructed at the time of final plat submission. There shall be no 

obstructions within the right-of-way of shared driveways. The 
developer shall record with the Watauga County Register of Deeds 

an instrument setting forth provisions for maintenance of the 
shared driveway and shall maintain the driveway at least until such 

042021 BCC Meeting

254



221 

 

time that the maintenance is assumed by others. The provisions of 
this subsection are applicable to shared driveways serving more 

than one subdivision, or a subdivision and property outside of the 
subdivision. Decisions of the staff may be reviewed by the Planning 

Board upon written appeal submitted to the Clerk to the Planning 
Board within thirty (30) days of the staff decision. 

(G) Building Setback Lines. The minimum building setback distance 

shall be as stipulated in Table 2. Structures subject to setback 

requirements may be completed without regard to older, more 

stringent setback requirements found in older subdivisions. Building 

setbacks shall be measured from the property line to any part of 

the structure above ground, including eaves and overhangs, but not 

including walkways or driveway/parking areas.  The owner or 

contractor shall certify compliance with setbacks prior to inspection 

of the building footings. 

 

TABLE 2 - BUILDING SETBACK REQUIREMENTS 

 
Type of Setback Amount of Setback 

1. Distance from center of right-of-way on 
Highways 321,421,221,105,194. 

(includes all frontages on multiple frontage lots) 

80 feet, but shall in all cases be at 
least 15 feet from the street right-of-

way line. 

2. Distance from center of right-of-way on all other 
streets. 
(includes all frontages on multiple frontage lots) 

45 feet, or 40 feet per Section 
71.0312. 

3. Distance from cul-de-sac right-of-way. 15 feet 

4. Distance from side property line. 15 feet 

5. Distance from rear property line. 
(If rear property line does not front on a road) 

15 feet 

6. Distance (horizontal) from a stream, river or 
lake. 

To be determined by Watauga County 
Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance or 
other applicable regulations including 

but not limited to High Quality Waters, 
Outstanding Resource Waters, and 

Watershed Protection. 

7. Pre-existing Situations.  Setback requirements contained herein are not applicable to 
structures and lots lines which pre-existed this ordinance and/or pre-existed the subdivision 

of land upon which the structure are located.  The setbacks contained herein shall apply to 
any new or rebuilt structures located on the subject land. 

042021 BCC Meeting

255



222 

 

Section 4.  Design Standards for Easements. 

Easements shall be provided as follows: 

(A) Utility Easements.  Easements for underground or above ground 
utilities shall be provided where necessary across lots or preferably 

centered on rear or side lot lines and shall be at least ten (10) feet 
in width. 

(B) Drainage Easements.  Where a subdivision is traversed by a stream 
or drainage way, a minimum easement of fifteen (15) feet shall be 

provided conforming to the lines of such stream. 
 

Article VII  Planned Unit Development 

Section 1.  Definition. 

A "planned unit development" (PUD) is a tract of land under single, 
corporate,  firm, partnership, or association ownership which is planned and 

developed as an integral unit.  It is established in a single development 

operation or a definitely programmed series of development operations 
according to an approved master development plan and a preliminary site 

plan. 

Section 2.  Purpose. 

It is the objective of this Article to encourage PUD proposals that exhibit 
such special qualities or concepts that they may deviate from standard 

requirements.  These regulations are established in order that each PUD 
proposal will be evaluated on its own merits.  It is recognized that some 

proposals or concepts will be more successful than others and the approval 
of a specific proposal in one situation does not mean that a similar proposal 

would be acceptable in other circumstances.  It is also recognized that only 
through ingenuity, imagination, and high quality design can residential or 

commercial developments be produced which are in keeping with the intent 
of this article but which are not constrained by the strict application of 

conventional use and dimensional requirements of the subdivision 

regulations. 
 

A Voluntary Alternate Procedure 
 

Use of the PUD procedure is not mandatory for the development of any site 
or area.  Rather, this process will provide a voluntary alternate development 

procedure which has one or more of the advantages listed below. 
(a) Permit creative approaches to the development of 

residential or commercial land, reflecting changes in the 
technology of land development. 

042021 BCC Meeting

256



223 

 

(b) Accomplish a more desirable environment than would 
otherwise be possible, by providing for a variety of 

housing types, designs and arrangements. 
(c) Provide for an efficient use of land which can result in 

smaller networks of utilities and streets and reduce 
development costs. 

(d) Enhance the appearance of neighborhoods through the 
preservation of natural features, and the provision of 

recreational and open space areas. 
(e) Provide an opportunity for new approaches to home 

ownership. 
(f) Provide an environment of stable character compatible 

with surrounding residential and natural areas. 
(A) Minimum Requirements. 

(1) The normal lot size, setbacks and frontage 

requirements are hereby waived for lots or building 
sites within the planned unit development, provided 

that the spirit and intent of this article are complied 
with in the total development plan, as determined by 

the Planning Board. Compliance with the buffering and 
screening requirements found in Appendix J along the 

perimeter of a PUD is required. 
(2) Height limitations: All buildings shall comply with the 

Watauga County Height of Structures regulation or the 
NC Ridge Law, whichever is applicable. 

(3) All streets providing access to a PUD and streets within 
a PUD shall be constructed to at least County standards 

regarding right-of-way and width, and must be paved. 
(4) Every dwelling unit shall have access to a public or 

private street, walkway or other area dedicated to 

common use, and there shall be provision for adequate 
vehicular circulation to all development properties, in 

order to ensure acceptable levels of access for 
emergency vehicles. 

(5) Every planned unit development shall provide at least 
two (2) off-street parking spaces per dwelling unit and 

commercial/office parking and loading space according 
to the following schedule. 

(a) Parking space for commercial/office shall 
consist of one (1) off-street parking space 

for each two hundred (200) square feet of 
gross floor area for operations designed to 

attract and serve customers and clients on 
the premises; one (1) space for each four 

042021 BCC Meeting

257



224 

 

hundred (400) square feet of gross floor 
area for operations designed to attract little 

or no customer or client traffic other than 
employees of the operation; one and one 

half (1.5) spaces per bedroom for hotels, 
motels, and inns; one and one half (1.5) 

spaces per three employees for industrial 
and warehouse uses. 

(b) Parking spaces shall be a minimum of nine 
feet by eighteen feet (9’ x 18’) in size. 

(c) Loading/unloading space for commercial/ 
office uses shall consist of one (1) space at 

least three hundred (300) square feet in 
size for each five thousand (5000) square 

feet of gross floor area. 

(d) Parking and loading areas for all multi-unit 
buildings shall be accessible to fire 

department apparatus through the use of 
fire lanes or other means of access 

approved by the County Fire Marshal 
/Emergency Management Office.  

(e) Grading and erosion control shall be 
undertaken in accordance with Article VI, 

Section 1(M). 
(B) Land Development Standards.  Subject to the provisions set forth 

herein, residential, office, commercial, or mixed use PUD's are 
permitted uses.  Common land must be an essential element of the 

PUD, provided in lieu of standard individual lots. A minimum of 
thirty – three percent (33%) of the total land area must be 

permanently dedicated as any combination of common space, open 

space or green space. Road and parking areas and buildings shall 
not be included in common land for purposes of this subsection; 

areas designated for septic drain fields and repair areas and well 
buffers shall be included. Also included, for example, are outdoor 

recreation areas and no-wall structures such as picnic shelters.  
(1) Residential Uses.  Residential units within a PUD may 

include single family detached or attached units, 
townhouse developments, garden apartments, patio 

homes, and other type residential units. Condominium, 
cooperative, individual, municipal, or any other type of 

ownership development may be recorded, and the plan 
shall be approved as a preliminary and final plat 

according to the requirements of the subdivision 
regulations. 

042021 BCC Meeting

258



225 

 

(2) Non-Residential Uses.  Non-residential uses 
(commercial and office) within residential PUD's shall 

not constitute the primary use in the PUD, and non-
residential uses shall be carefully designed to 

complement the residential uses within the PUD. 
Commercial/office PUD's are permitted, and are subject 

to the same requirements as residential PUD's including 
the preceding subsection. 

(3) Privacy.  Each development shall provide reasonable 
visual and acoustical privacy for all dwelling units.  

Fences, insulation, walkways, barriers, and landscaping 
shall be used, as appropriate, for the protection and 

aesthetic enhancement of property and the privacy of 
its occupants. 

(4) Perimeter Requirements.  The standards of Appendix J 

shall apply. 
(C) Density.  The density which may be constructed within the Planned 

Unit Development shall be determined by dividing the gross project 
area minus fifteen percent (15%) of the total (to account for 

roadways) by the required lot area per unit which is required on 
Table  1 for conventional subdivisions, and modified by the 

increases in density permitted under this Section.  Density (units 
per acre) may be increased (see Table 1) if the character of the 

development and/or amenities incorporated in the development 
warrant such increases provided that in no case shall the density 

increase cause the density of the Planned Unit Development to be 
more than thirty-three percent (33%) in excess of the density 

which would be achieved under standard subdivision regulations. 
(1) Limits Upon Density Increases. If the Planning Board 

finds that any of the following conditions would be 

created by an increase in density, it may either deny an 
application for increase in density, or limit the increase 

in density by an amount sufficient to avoid the creation 
of any of the following conditions: 

(a) Inconvenient or unsafe access to the 
development. 

(b) Traffic congestion in streets adjoining the 
development. 

(c) An excessive burden imposed on parks, 
recreational areas, schools, and other public 

facilities which serve or are proposed to serve the 
development. 

(2) Denial of Density Increases. The increases in density 
shall not apply where the average cross slope is thirty 

042021 BCC Meeting

259



226 

 

(30) percent or greater. See Appendix H for method of 
determining average cross slope. 

(D) Conveyance and Maintenance of Common Land.  Conveyance and 
maintenance of common land, common elements, open space, 

green space, recreational areas and other facilities owned in 
common shall be in accordance with the Unit Ownership Act 

(Chapter 47-A of the North Carolina General Statutes), the 
Condominium Act (Chapter 47-C), the Planned Community Act 

(Chapter 47-F) and/or any other applicable state or federal law. 
(E) Improvements 

(1) Circulation Facilities. The arrangement of public and 
common ways for pedestrian and vehicular circulation in 

relation to other existing or planned streets in the area, 
together with provisions for street improvements, shall 

be in compliance with standards set forth in Article VI, 

Section 2(B)(3)&(4) (unless a variance for one lane 
traffic has been granted).  Upon application by the 

developer and good cause shown, the Planning Board 
may permit changes or alterations of such standards 

which are consistent with the spirit and intent of this 
section. 

(2) Utilities.  Whenever reasonably possible, all Planned 
Unit Developments shall provide for underground 

installation of utilities (including electricity and 
telephone) in both public ways and private extensions 

thereof. Provisions shall be made for acceptable design 
and construction of storm water facilities including 

grading, gutters, piping, treatment of turf to handle 
storm waters and erosion prevention.  Utilities and 

maintenance of facilities shall be in accordance with the 

requirements and regulations of the appropriate 
governmental authority having jurisdiction thereof. 

A planned unit development application shall not be 
approved unless adequate assurance is given that 

public or community water and sanitary sewer service 
will be available, except that upon application by the 

developer and good cause shown, the Planning Board 
may modify or waive this requirement provided such 

action is consistent with the spirit and intent of this 
section. 

(3) Pedestrian Circulation. Any pedestrian circulation 
system and its related walkways shall be insulated as 

completely and as reasonably as possible from the 

042021 BCC Meeting

260



227 

 

vehicular street system in order to provide separation of 
pedestrian and vehicular movement. This shall include 

where deemed to be necessary by the Planning Board 
pedestrian underpass or overpass in the vicinity of 

schools, playgrounds, local shopping areas, and other 
neighborhood uses which generate a considerable 

amount of pedestrian traffic. 
(F) PUD Reviewed As Subdivision.  

It is the intent of this regulation that subdivision review be carried 
out as an integral part of the review of a Planned Unit Development 

under the Section.  The plans required under this Section must be 
submitted in a form which substantially will satisfy requirements of 

these regulations for the preliminary and final plat approvals.  The 
plans may also be subject to review by the County Board of 

Adjustment if the PUD is proposed in a zoned area.  Approval of a 

Special Use Permit for a PUD by the Board of Adjustment shall 
constitute preliminary plat approval; Planning Board approval of 

preliminary plat(s) is not required.  The Planning Board shall 
approve all final plats.  The Planning Staff has the authority to 

approve final plats consisting of up to ten (10)lots or buildings. The 
Planning Board shall approve all other final plats.  

(1) Phased Developments. If the proposed PUD is to be 
developed in phases, the developer shall submit a 

master plan as specified in Article V Section 5 of this 
chapter. 

(2) Advisory Opinion. Prior to formal master plan or a 
preliminary plat submission, the developer is 

encouraged to submit a sketch plan of the PUD to the 
Planning Staff in order to obtain an advisory opinion of 

the project's feasibility. 

Section 3.  Affordable Housing PUD. 

It is the objective of this section to encourage the provision of housing that 

is affordable to low and moderate income households. These regulations are 

established in support of Watauga County’s adopted Affordable Workforce 

Housing policy (See Appendix “L”) and provide a voluntary alternative 

procedure to encourage development of housing affordable to all income 

levels, particularly first time home buyers.  

The following are definitions of the words or terms utilized in this Section:  

Affordable Dwelling Unit. A dwelling unit that is offered for sale or rent at a 

total monthly mortgage or rental price (including utilities) which is no 

042021 BCC Meeting

261



228 

 

greater than 1/12 of 30% of the Area Median Income as established 

annually by the United Stated Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, adjusted for assumed household size based on unit size. The 

assumed household size shall be (2) persons in a one bedroom unit, (3) 

persons in a two bedroom unit, and (4) persons in units containing three or 

more bedrooms.  

Affordable Housing PUD. A Planned Unit Development, as defined by Article 

VII Section 1, in which 51% or more of the included dwelling units meet the 

definition of an Affordable Dwelling Unit.  

(A) Minimum Requirements. 

The minimum requirements for development of an Affordable 
Housing PUD shall be as established in Article VII, Section 2(A), 

with the exception of the following: 
(1) Streets within an Affordable Housing PUD shall be constructed 

in accordance with Article VI, Section 2(B)(3). The right-of- 
way shall not be less than thirty (30) feet.  

(2) Affordable Dwelling Units within an Affordable Housing PUD 
shall provide one (1) off-street parking space per unit. 

(3) When an Affordable Housing PUD contains both Affordable 
Dwelling Units and market rate housing, the Affordable 

Dwelling Units shall be intermixed with the market rate units. 
(4) When an Affordable Housing PUD contains both Affordable 

Dwelling Units and market rate housing, the general exterior 

design and appearance of the Affordable Dwelling Units shall 
be compatible with the market rate units.  

(B) Land Development Standards.  
The land development standards for an Affordable Housing PUD 

shall be as established in Article VII, Section 2(B).  
(C) Density.  

The density which may be constructed within an Affordable Housing 
PUD shall be determined by the capacity of the proposed water and 

sewer systems, provided that the proposed density does not result 
in the any of the following conditions: 

(1) Inconvenient or unsafe access to the development.   
(2) Traffic congestion in the streets adjoining the development. 

(3) An excessive burden imposed on parks, recreation areas, 
schools and other public facilities which serve or are proposed 

to serve the development. 

(D) Conveyance and Maintenance of Common Land. 
Conveyance and maintenance of common land within an Affordable 

Housing PUD shall be as established in Article VII, Section 2(D). 

042021 BCC Meeting

262



229 

 

(E) Improvements. 
Required improvements within an Affordable Housing PUD shall be 

as established in Article VII, Section 2 (E). 
(F) Procedure.  

Applications for an Affordable Housing PUD shall be reviewed by 

Planning Board or Board of Adjustment in accordance with Article 

VII, Section 2(F). In addition:   

(1) Applications containing Affordable Dwelling Units shall be 
processed with priority over others. 

(2) Highest priority for processing shall be given to applications 

involving partnerships with a community land trust or other 
non-profit organization responsible for ensuring long-term 

retention of affordable housing. 
(3) The County shall waive review fees associated with Affordable 

Housing PUDs meeting the criteria established herein. 
(4) If market rate housing units are included within an Affordable 

Housing PUD constructed in phases or over a time period 
exceeding 12 months, a proportional amount of Affordable 

Dwelling Units must be completed concurrently with the 
market rate housing units. 

(5) An agreement in a form approved by the County must be 
recorded with the Register of Deeds requiring Affordable 

Dwelling Units which are provided under this section to 
remain as affordable housing for the life of the project. This 

agreement shall be a covenant running with the land, binding 

on the assigns, heirs and successors of the applicant. 

 

Article VIII  Installation of Permanent Reference Points and 

Improvements 
 

Section 1.  Permanent Reference Points. 

Prior to the approval of the final plat, permanent reference points shall have 

been placed in accordance with N.C.G.S. 89C and N.C.G.S. 47-30, which 
provide regulations for surveyors for the mapping of subdivisions.  

Additionally, the following requirements shall be met: 
(A) Block Tie Lines.  Each block shall have adequate tie line(s) showing 

bearing and distance between one established point on each side of 

the road. 
(B) Certificate.  A certificate signed by the surveyor meeting the 

requirements of N.C.G.S. 47-30 et. seq. for proof upon oath that 

042021 BCC Meeting

263



230 

 

the plat is in all respects correct, written as shown in Article V, 
Section 6(B)(2). 

Section 2.  Installation of Improvements. 

Prior to the approval of the final plat, the subdivider shall have complied with 

the following requirements. 
(A) Streets and Storm Drainage Facilities.  All streets and storm 

drainage facilities in the subdivision shall be constructed in 
accordance with specifications and standards of the State 

Department of Transportation, Division of Highways, or the 
Watauga County Road Standards. 

(B) Water Lines.  Where public water is reasonably accessible, the 
subdivider shall connect with the public supply and shall provide 

water mains and a suitable water connection to each lot.  Where a 
public water supply is not reasonably accessible, the subdivider 

may provide for connection to a community system, establishment 

of a new public or community system, or for shared or individual 
wells.  Water source shall be noted on the final plat. 

(C) Sanitary Sewers.  Where a public sanitary sewer system is 
reasonably accessible, the subdivider shall connect with the public 

system and shall provide a connection for each lot.  Where a public 
sanitary sewer system is not accessible, the subdivider may provide 

for connection to an existing private system, establishment of a 
new private system, or for shared or individual septic systems.  

Sewage disposal method shall be noted on the final plat. 
(D) Installation at time of Final Plat.  In the event that any public or 

community utilities are not installed at the time of final plat 
approval, bond or other security guarantee may be required by the 

Planning Board as specified in Article VIII, Section 3. 

Section 3.  Deferment of Improvements. 

Where it is in the best interest of all parties concerned to defer the 

installation or completion of some required improvement, and in accordance 
with N.C.G.S. 160D-804.1, the Planning Board may approve the final plat if 

the subdivider posts a bond with surety or other guarantees satisfactory to 
the County Commissioners in an amount equal to the estimated cost of the 

deferred improvements plus twenty (20) percent.  Such guarantees shall 
assure either the performance of the specified work or payment of the 

specified sum to the County if such improvements have not been installed 
within the time specified on the final plat.  At least fifty percent (50%) of the 

required improvements shall be completed prior to submission of a request 
for approval of a performance guarantee by a subdivider. 

042021 BCC Meeting

264



231 

 

ARTICLE IX - Regulation Of Multi-Unit Structures 

Section 1.  Definition. 

A "multi-unit" structure is a building containing three (3) or more separate 
and independent dwellings, offices, or commercial establishments (excluding 

hotels/motels).  This definition shall apply whether the building and/or 
individual units contained within are for sale, lease, or rent. 

 

An “Affordable Housing Multi-Unit Structure” is a multi-unit structure 

containing at least (3) dwelling units, 51% or more of which are offered for 

sale or rent at a total monthly mortgage or rental price (including utilities) 

which is no greater than 1/12 of 30% of the Area Median Income as 

established annually by the United Stated Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, adjusted for assumed household size based on unit size. The 

assumed household size shall be (2) persons in a one bedroom unit, (3) 

persons in a two bedroom unit, and (4) persons in units containing three or 

more bedrooms.  

Section 2.  Purpose. 

The purpose of this article is to provide for a site plan review of multi-unit 
structures in order to regulate density, parking/loading, building setbacks, 

and other public health, safety, and general welfare concerns. 

Section 3.  Application of Article. 

This Article shall apply to any multi-unit construction which consists of one 
(1) building only.  Any multi-unit development consisting of two (2) or more 

building sites or any townhouse development regardless of the number of 
buildings, shall comply with Article VII (Planned Unit Development) of this 

Ordinance, including phased developments where each phase consists of one 
(1) building only. 

Section 4.  Standards of Design. 

The developer shall observe the following standards of design. 
(A) Density. 

The number of units per acre allowed shall depend upon the 
availability of public/community water and sewer facilities and shall 

be determined as described in Article VII, Section 2(C) and depicted 
on Table 1. If no roadway is to be constructed, the same method of 

calculating density shall be used, except that the gross area will not 
be required to be reduced by fifteen (15) percent. A minimum of 

042021 BCC Meeting

265



232 

 

thirty three percent (33%) of the total land area must be 
permanently dedicated as any combination of common space, open 

space or green space. Road and parking areas and buildings shall 
not be included in common land for purposes of this subsection; 

areas designated for septic drain lines and repair areas and well 
buffers shall be included. Also included, for example, are outdoor 

recreation areas and no-wall structures such as picnic shelters. 
 

For Affordable Housing Multi-Unit Structures, the number of units 
per acre allowed shall depend upon the capacity of proposed water 

and sewer system(s), provided that the proposed density does not 
result in the any of the following conditions: 

(1) Inconvenient or unsafe access to the development. 
(2) Traffic congestion in the streets adjoining the development. 

(3) An excessive burden imposed on parks, recreation areas, 

schools and other public facilities which serve or are proposed 
to serve the development. 

(B) Off-Street Parking/Loading. 
The provisions of Article VII, Section 2(A) shall apply.  At a 

minimum, parking areas shall be graveled. For Affordable Multi-Unit 
Structures, one (1) required off-street parking space may be 

eliminated for each Affordable Dwelling Unit provided. Additional 
parking reductions may be allowed when development:  

(1) Is an adaptive re-use of previously developed property, or  
(2) Is located within 1 mile of Appalachian State University or 

other major employment center, or 
(3) Is located on an established AppalCart Route, or  

(4) Has transit service or other acceptable alternative 
transportation provided by the developer. 

(C) Streets and Private Drives. 

All multi-unit structures shall front on a state maintained road or a 
county standard road as defined in this chapter.  A private drive 

may be used to provide access to one three (3) unit structure. 
(D) Height Requirements. 

All multi-unit structures shall comply with the Watauga County 
Height of Structures regulation or the North Carolina Ridge Law, 

whichever  is applicable.  Building height will be determined by the 
Watauga County Building Inspector. 

(E) Building Setback Requirements. 
Building setbacks shall conform with Table 2 (Article VI, Section 3), 

unless superseded by Appendix J. 
(F) Utilities. 

Developers of multi-unit structures are encouraged to provide 
public/community water and sewer facilities whenever feasible.  

042021 BCC Meeting

266



233 

 

Developers are also encouraged to provide underground electric 
and telephone lines where feasible. 

(G) Buffers. 
It is the intent of this chapter to promote high quality multi-unit 

developments which do not create a nuisance, aesthetic or 
otherwise, for existing adjacent residential areas. Therefore, the 

provisions of Appendix J shall apply. 

Section 5.  Submission of Site Plans. 

Developers of proposed multi-unit structures which will be regulated by this 
Article shall submit a site plan to the Planning Staff.  If the proposed 

structure contains ten (10) or less units, the Staff shall approve or 
disapprove said plan.  If the proposed structure contains eleven (11) or 

more units, or the developer is requesting a variance, the Planning Board 
shall approve or disapprove said plan. Construction may begin upon such 

approval.  Site plans shall show how the requirements of the preceding 

Section 4 will be met. Specifically, site plans shall include as applicable: 
(A) A sketch vicinity map showing the relationship of the proposed 

development with the surrounding area. 
(B) The location of existing and platted property lines, streets, 

buildings, water courses, transmission lines, sewers, bridges, 
culverts, and drain pipes, water mains, city and county line (if 

adjoining) and any public utility easements. 
(C) Boundaries of the tract shown with distances and approximate 

acreage. 
(D) Names of adjoining property owners or subdivisions. 

(E) Zoning classification, if any, both on the land to be developed and 
on adjoining land. 

(F) Proposed streets, street names, rights-of-way, roadway widths, 
approximate grades and proposed drainage facilities. 

(G) Other proposed rights-of-way or easements showing locations, 

widths and purposes. 
(H) Proposed building set back lines. 

(I) Proposed utility layouts (sewer, water, electricity showing 
connections to existing systems or plans for central water system or 

package sewage system, or designation for individual water and 
sewage. 

(J) Proposed parks, open spaces, or any other public areas. 
(K) Name of owner, developer, engineer and registered surveyor. 

(L) Title, date, north point and graphic scale. 
(M) When an area covered by the plan includes or abuts a water area 

(stream, river or lake) the following  additional information is 
required: 

042021 BCC Meeting

267



234 

 

(1) Relationship with floodway and flood plain as delineated by 
the county floodway boundary and flood insurance rate maps. 

(2) Any proposed dock lines beyond which no dock structure may 
be constructed. 

(3) Methods of providing ingress and egress from uplands to 
water area. 

(4) Names of the owners of the water area. 
(N) Grading and erosion control shall be undertaken in accordance with 

Article VI, Section 1(M). 

Section 6.  Inspections. 

Prior to issuance of an Inspection Certificate for a final building inspection, 
the Planning Staff shall conduct a site inspection to assure that the multi-

unit structure meets the requirements of this Article.  The developer of a 
multi-unit structure shall pay an inspection fee (in addition to purchase of a 

building permit) in the same amount per structure as is assessed for Planned 

Unit Developments. 

Section 7.  Building Permits. 

No permits for any building or structures will be issued upon any land 
requiring approval as a subdivision under the conditions set forth herein, 

unless a final plat is recorded, except as set forth elsewhere in this chapter. 
 

Should any Federal or State regulation or statute incorporated herein by 
reference or otherwise referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should 

either require or mandate a different procedure or change or impose new, 
different or additional requirements, then, in that event, this ordinance shall 

be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
with such new, additional or amended requirements.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

268



235 

 

Appendix A  Guide For Sub-Division Development In Watauga County 

1. Evaluate your property for either sub-dividing or planned unit 
development (resorts, clusters, time-shares, condominiums, townhouses, 
apartments, etc.) suitability. 

 
2. Evaluate your capital outlay for road(s) and other improvement and 

environmental protection measures. 
 

3. Consult the Department of Planning and Inspections at (828)265-8043 to 

ascertain the legal aspects and requirements for any such projects. 
 

4. Consult a licensed surveyor and/or professional engineer for project 
drawings and layout. 

 

5. Maintain close contact with those persons contracted for the planning 
phase of the project so as to have a working knowledge of the project. 

 
6. Solicit bids and/or contract a grading contractor to complete all planned 

construction. 

 
7. The developer will be responsible for environmental protection measures 

during development and also will be financially responsible for all work on 
the project. 

 

8. Present a finished development that complies with all local and state 
ordinances concerning land use and also one that is appealing to the 

consumer. 
 

9. In working with the Watauga County Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions 

and Multi-Unit Structures, the Watauga County Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance and the Watauga County Building 

Inspectors and Fire Marshal, those persons responsible for each area will 
assist you in the construction stages of development. 

 
10. Obtain copies of the following additional regulations from the Department 

of Planning and Inspections as needed: 

 
Flood Damage Prevention. 

N.C. Ridge Law. 
the Height of Structures. 
Mobile Home Parks. 

Subdivision Regulations for Recreational Vehicle Parks. 
Valle Crucis Historic District. 

Foscoe Grandfather Zoning. 
Watershed Protection.  

042021 BCC Meeting

269



236 

 

Appendix B  Guidelines For Developing Erosion and Sediment Control 
Plans  

Section 1.  Introduction. 
 

Extensive amounts of sediment are produced from grading streets and roads 
in the mountain sections of North Carolina when erosion control measures 

are not properly designed and installed. Irreversible damage to land, 
streams and lakes is occurring from acceleration of development in this area.  

This is offered as a minimal guideline, but the developer must keep in mind 
that the Sediment and Pollution Control Act and the Watauga County Soil 

Erosion and Sedimentation Control regulations are performance oriented and 
s/he must do whatever is necessary to prevent off-site damage. 

 
This guide is developed to assist planners and developers to protect land and 

streams from sedimentation as required by the Watauga County Soil Erosion 

and Sedimentation Control regulations. 
 

Said regulations require that an erosion control plan be prepared and its 
measures installed where one-half acre or more is disturbed by grading.  

This also applies to all subdivision roads and any land disturbing activity 
which causes off-site erosion damage regardless of acreage. 

 
The practices in this guide, when properly installed and maintained, are 

methods used in the past that have minimized erosion and sedimentation 
and meet the mandatory standards required by the Sedimentation Pollution 

Control Act of 1973 and the Watauga County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation 
Control regulations.  The mandatory standards are listed on the following 

page. 
 

Section 2.  Mandatory Standards For Land Disturbing Activity 

 
No land disturbing activity subject to this article shall be undertaken except 

in accordance with the following mandatory requirements: 
 

Buffer Zone 
(A) No land-disturbing activity during periods of construction or 

improvement to land shall be permitted in proximity to a lake or 
natural watercourse unless a buffer zone is provided along the 

margin of the watercourse of sufficient width to confine visible 
siltation within the twenty-five percent (25%) of the buffer zone 

nearest the land-disturbing activity.  Waters that have been 
classified as trout waters by the Environmental Management 

Commission shall have an undisturbed buffer zone 25 feet wide or 
of sufficient width to confine visible siltation within the twenty-five 

042021 BCC Meeting

270



237 

 

(25%) of the buffer zone nearest the land-disturbing activity, 
whichever is greater.  Provided, however, that the county may 

approve plans which include land-disturbing activity along trout 
waters when the duration of said disturbance would be temporary 

and the extent of said disturbance would be minimal.  This 
subdivision shall not apply to a land-disturbing activity in 

connection with the construction of facilities to be located on, over, 
or under a lake or natural watercourse. 

(B) Unless otherwise provided, the width of a buffer zone is measured 
from the edge of the water to the nearest edge of the disturbed 

area, with the 25 percent of the strip nearer the land-disturbing 
activity containing natural or artificial means of confining visible 

siltation. 
(C) The 25 foot minimum width for an undisturbed buffer zone adjacent 

to designated trout waters shall be measured horizontally from the 

top of the bank. 
(D) Where a temporary and minimal disturbance is permitted as an 

exception by Chapter 8 of this Title, land-disturbing activities in the 
buffer zone adjacent to designated trout waters shall be limited to a 

maximum of 10% of the total length of the buffer zone within the 
tract to be distributed such that there is not more than 100 linear 

feet of disturbance in each 1000 linear feet of buffer zone.  Larger 
areas may be disturbed with the written approval of the Director. 

(E) No land-disturbing activity shall be undertaken with a buffer zone 
adjacent to designated trout waters that will cause adverse 

temperature fluctuations, as set forth in 15A NCAC 2B.0211 "Fresh 
Surface Water Classification and Standards", in these waters. 

(1) Graded Slopes and Fills -The grading plan and specifications 
controlling execution of land disturbing activities shall adhere 

to the following standards:  

a) Maximum cut slopes shall be 2H:1V. 
b) Maximum fill slopes shall be 2H:1V. 

Innovative designs exceeding the slope standards specified 
herein may be approved when accompanied by a site-specific 

subsurface investigation, report and recommendation 
performed by a registered professional engineer competent in 

geotechnical engineering. All grades shall be sloped to drain 
surface water away from buildings, pavements, slopes and 

structures, as applicable.  
Slopes left exposed will, within 15 working days or 30 

calendar days of completion of any phase of grading, 
whichever period is shorter, be planted or otherwise provided 

with ground cover, devices, or structures sufficient to restrain 
erosion. 

042021 BCC Meeting

271



238 

 

(2) Ground Cover - Whenever land-disturbing activity is 
undertaken on a tract comprising more than one-half acre, if 

more than one-half acre is uncovered, the person conducting 
the land-disturbing activity shall install such sedimentation 

and erosion control devices and practices as are sufficient to 
retain the sediment generated by the land-disturbing activity 

within the boundaries of the tract during construction upon 
and development of said tract, and shall plant or otherwise 

provide a permanent ground cover sufficient to restrain 
erosion after completion of construction or development.  

Except as provided in Chapter 8, provisions for a ground 
cover sufficient to restrain erosion must be accomplished 

within 15 working  days or 90 calendar days following 
completion of construction or development whichever period 

is shorter. 

(3) Prior Plan Approval - No person shall initiate any land-
disturbing activity on a tract if more than one-half acre is to 

be uncovered unless, thirty or more days prior to initiating 
the activity, an erosion and sedimentation control plan  for 

such activity is filed with and approved by  Watauga County, 
or unless for land-disturbing activity or more than a half acre 

but less than an acre the requirement for such plan had been 
waived as specified in Chapter 8.  The County will attempt to 

review plans as quickly as possible.  The initiation of land-
disturbing activities shall not be restricted when the plan is 

approved and permit issued in less than 30 days. 
 

Section 3.  Design and Performance Standards 
(A) Except as provided in Chapter 8  erosion and sedimentation control 

measures, structures, and devices shall be so planned, designed, 

and constructed as to provide protection from the calculated 
maximum peak rate of runoff from the 10-year  storm.  Runoff 

rates shall be calculated using the procedures in the USDA, Soil 
Conservation Service's "National Engineering Field Manual for 

Conservation Practices", or other acceptable calculation procedures. 
(B) In High Quality Water (HQW) zones the following design standards 

shall apply: 
(1) Uncovered areas in HQW zones shall be limited at any time to 

a maximum total area within the boundaries of the tract of 20 
acres. Only the portion of the land-disturbing activity within a 

HQW zone shall be governed by this section. Larger areas 
may be uncovered within the boundaries of the tract with the 

written approval of the Director. 

042021 BCC Meeting

272



239 

 

(2) Erosion and sedimentation control measures, structures, and 
devices within HQW zones shall be so planned, designed and 

constructed to provide protection from the run off of the 25-
year storm which produces the maximum peak rate of run off 

as calculated according to procedures in the United States 
Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service's 

"National Engineering Field Manual for Conservation Practices" 
or according to procedures adopted by any other agency of 

this state or the United States or any generally recognized 
organization or association. 

(3) Sediment basins within HQW zones shall be designed and 
constructed such that the basin will have a settling efficiency 

of at least 70% for the 40 micron (0.04 mm) size soil particle 
transported into the basin by the runoff of that 2-year storm 

which produces the maximum peak rate of runoff as 

calculated according to procedures in the United States 
Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service's 

"National Engineering Field Manual for Conservation Practices" 
or according to procedures adopted by any other agency of 

this state or the United States or any generally recognized 
organization or association. 

(4) Newly constructed open channels in HQW zones shall be 
designed and constructed with side slopes no steeper than 2 

horizontal to 1 vertical if a vegetative cover is used for 
stabilization unless soil conditions permit a steeper slope or 

where the slopes are stabilized by using mechanical devices, 
structural devices or other acceptable ditch liners.  In any 

event, the angle for side slopes shall be sufficient to restrain 
accelerated erosion. 

(5) Ground cover sufficient to restrain erosion must be provided 

for any portion of a land-disturbing activity in a HQW zone 
within 15 working days or 60 calendar days following 

completion of construction or development, whichever period 
is shorter. 

 
Section 4.  Planning and Design Considerations to Control Erosion 

and Sedimentation 
 

The following list of considerations, activities, and techniques of 
development within Watauga County should all be taken into account during 

the planning phase of a development: 
 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

273



240 

 

A. Reducing the Potential for Off-site Sediment Damage 
B. Location of Roads 

C. Soil Types and Properties 
D. Buffer Zones 

E. Construction Techniques 
F. Sequence of Construction and Time of Soil Exposure 

G. Seasonal Construction Scheduling 
H. Clearing and Grubbing 

I. Stream Crossings and Stream Protection 
J. Road Grades and Side Ditches 

K. Road Cut & Fill Slopes 
L. Underground Seepage or Wetlands 

M. Culvert Placement and Sizing 
N. Borrow and Waste Areas 

O. Utility Placement 

P. Roadbed Stabilization 
Q. Floodplain/Floodway 

R. Specifications Guide for Application of Temporary Seeding 
S. Permanent Vegetation 

T. Specifications Guide for Permanent Planting of Vegetation on Road and 
Right-of-Way 

 
When planning for the considerations listed above, minimum acceptable 

standards must be adhered to.  These standards have been established to 
control erosion and sedimentation during construction, and also to control 

erosion during the life-time operation of roads built in Watauga County. 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

274



241 

 

Appendix C  Erosion and Sedimentation Plan Checklist 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

275



242 

 

Appendix D Ownership/Financial Responsibility Form 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

276



243 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

277



244 

 

Appendix E  Preliminary Plat Checklist 
 

FOR SUBDIVISION RECORD __________________     DATE SUBMITTED ___________ 

 

NAME OF SUBDIVISION ____________________________________________________ 

 

LOCATION _______________________________________________________________ 

 

OWNER __________________________________________________________________ 

 

LAND PLANNER __________________________ ADDRESS ________________________ 

 

SURVEYOR ______________________________ ADDRESS ________________________ 

 

CHECKLIST 

 

1. Surveyor shall submit CHECKLIST with signed certification stating that plat complies 

with Subdivision Regulations. 

 

2. Vicinity map embracing subdivision and surrounding area. 

 

3. SCALE: 1" = 100' or larger.  In EXTREME cases may be 1" = 200'.  One (1) 

electronic copy of plat. 

 

4. Name of subdivision and owner. 

 

5. North point, graphic scale, date. 

 

6. Boundaries of the tract shown with distances and approximate acreage. 

 

7. Names of adjoining property owners or subdivisions. 

 

8. The locations of existing sewers and water facilities and other utilities if any. 

 

9. The locations of existing streets, easements, bridges, culverts, watercourses, etc. 

 

10. Name, location and approximate dimensions of proposed streets, easements, parks 

and reservations, lot lines, etc. 

 

11. Proposed lot lines, building lines and approximate area. 

 

12. Lot numbers, if any. 

 

13. Types of proposed utilities shown or described. 

 

14. Proposed minimum building setbacks (typical section). 

 

15. Location of existing water areas/floodway if applicable as delineated by the county 

floodway boundary and flood insurance rate maps. 

 

16. Upon approval of Preliminary Plat, 3 copies of a sufficient soil erosion plan shall be 

submitted to the planning staff. 

 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

278



245 

 

17. This plat conforms to general requirements and minimum design standards. 

 

18. Evidence of NCDOT driveway connection permit. 

 

19. Evidence of access right-of-way. 

 

20. Statement of average cross slope if applicable. 

 

 

COMMENTS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

279



246 

 

Appendix F  Final Plat Checklist 
 

 

FOR SUBDIVISION RECORD ___________________ DATE SUBMITTED________________ 

 

PRELIMINARY APPROVAL DATE ________________________________________________ 

 

NAME OF SUBDIVISION ______________________________________________________ 

 

LOCATION ________________________________________________________________ 

 

OWNER __________________ ADDRESS _____________________ TEL. ______________ 

 

ENGINEER _________________ ADDRESS _____________________ TEL. _____________ 

 

SURVEYOR ________________ ADDRESS ______________________ TEL. _____________ 

 

CHECKLIST 

 

1. Submitted to the Planning Staff within 18 months of preliminary approval and 

two (2) weeks prior to the scheduled meeting of the Planning Board. 

 

2. Eight (8) copies of final plat.  One reproducible (Sepia) and seven paper copies. 

One (1) electronic copy of plat. 

 

3. A sketch vicinity map showing location in relation to the surrounding area. 

 

4. SCALE: 1" = 100' or larger. 

 

5. Names, right-of-way, lines and easements of streets and roads. 

 

6. Minimum building setback lines when applicable. 

 

7. Lot lines, numbers, and/or tract numbers. 

 

8. Reservations, easements, public areas, of sites for other than residential use with 

explanation of purpose. 

 

9. North point, graphic scale, date. 

 

10. Location and description of monuments. 

 

11. Names and location of adjoining subdivisions and streets and the location and 

ownership of adjoining unsubdivided property. 

 

12. Conforms to general requirements and minimum design standards. 

 

13. Required improvements have been made or $________bond posted. 

 

14. Required certificate for Recordation. 

 

15. Location of existing water Areas/Floodway if Boundary and Flood Insurance Rate 

Maps. 

042021 BCC Meeting

280



247 

 

 

16. Types of proposed utilities shown or statement that individual lots have or have 

not been approved for septic tank use by AppHealthCare. 

 

17. Density in units per acre. 

 

18. Culvert/drainage facility location and size. 

 

19. Variances granted, if any. 

 

 

ON-SITE FIELD INSPECTION (DATE) ________________ 

 

PERSONS MAKING INSPECTION _____________________________________ 

 

COMMENTS: 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

281



248 

 

Appendix G  Subdivision Specifications Checklist 
 

1. Plat fee paid. 

 

2. Variance requested in writing. 

 

3. Bond to be submitted. 

 

4. Meets floodplain regulations. 

 

5. Acceptable average cross slope. 

 

6. Roads: 

 

(a) State 

 

(b) County.  If County then: 

 

_______Meets criteria permitting county standards. 

_______Meets right-of-way requirements. 

_______Meets road bed requirements. 

_______Sufficient drainage provided. 

_______Meets grade requirements. 

_______Meets curve radius requirements. 

_______Sufficient turnarounds provided. 

_______Meets bridge requirements. 

 

(c) Access road meets right-of-way requirements. 

 

7. Lots: 

 

_______Meet frontage requirements. 

_______Meet area requirements. 

_______Panhandles used. 

_______Meet access requirements. 

_______Private drives used. 

 

8. Meets building setback requirements. 

 

9. Sufficient erosion control plan submitted. 

 

10. Property owners association rules established. 

 

11. Compliance with other applicable local regulations (zoning, etc.). 

 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

282



249 

 

Appendix H  Method of Defining Slope 
 

The chief source of information for determination of slope is a contour 
map.  The contour map supplies the necessary data for using the 

following formula to determine the average slope of a parcel: 
 

.0023 x I x L 
 

S  = A 
 

Where .0023 is a conversion factor, of square feet to acres, "I" is the 
contour interval (or the distance between adjacent contour lines on the 

map) in feet, "L" is the total length of the contour lines within the 
subject parcel, and "A" is the area in acres of the subject parcel. 

 

Step 1. Determine "I", the contour interval, by examining the 
interval, using the key on the map.  For purposes of this 

example, an interval of five feet is used. 
(To achieve accuracy within one percent, the contour 

interval must be 10 feet or less). 
 

Step 2. Determine "L", the total length of the contour lines within 
the subject area, by tracing each line with a planimeter or 

similar device and converting to feet.  In this example, "L" 
is 1,000 feet. 

 
Step 3. Determine "A", area (in acres) from the development plans 

or permit application.  In this example, "A" is 5 acres. 
 

Step 4.  Determine "S" by using the equation: 

 
.0023 x 5 x 1,000 

 
S  = 5 = 2.3 percent average slope 

 
NOTE:  Other methods of calculating average cross slope - using 

computer mapping/GIS technology - may be acceptable. 
 

 
 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

283



250 

 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

284



251 

 

Appendix I  Minor Bridge Maintenance Checklist 

(A) Bridge Approach 

(1) Check Signs on both ends of bridge. 
Warning and Information Signs (straighten, clean, and cut 

weeds). 
Bridge End Markers (clean and visible). 

Check Guard Rails along approach (repair and straighten). 
(2) Clear Weed, Brush, and Overhanging Limbs. 

Require clear visibility of bridge. 
Police and clean area around bridge. 

Remove all debris from site. 
(B) Side Ditches and Stream Channel 

(1) Clear side ditches of all brush, weeds and debris. 
(2) Clear debris and obstructions from stream channel through 

full width of R.O.W. 

(3) Eliminate all brush growing under the bridge. 
(C) Erosion of Bridge Approach 

(1) At gutter line on shoulder - fill any eroded areas. 
(2) At gutter line, build (if needed) paved channel to carry water 

to side ditch at non-erosive velocity. 
(3) Check shoulders for erosion signs - fill and tamp erosion 

channels. 
(D) Condition of Approach Road Traffic Lanes 

(1) Fill all ruts. 
(2) Check transition from road to bridge - must be smooth. 

(3) Build short bituminous ramp to provide transition in difficult 
cases. 

(E) Bridge Structure 
(1) Cleaning Deck 

Clean all dirt, gravel, trash and debris from deck. Clear all 

gutters and all drainage outlets. 
Remove any obstructions causing ponding of water. Direct 

deck drains away from all structural components. 
(2) Deck Maintenance (Wood Decks) 

Check transverse planking for breaks, rotting, or any 
weakness. Replace individual planks if needed. Check 

longitudinal "tread" planks for damage, excessive wear, 
breaks, shattering, looseness or rot. Replace damaged planks 

- re-nail old planks if required. Pull any protruding nails and 
replace. 

(3) Deck Maintenance (Concrete Decks) 
Clean, check depth, and flush all open cracks.  Dry such 

cracks and fill totally with liquid asphalt or other such sealing 

042021 BCC Meeting

285



252 

 

compound.  Make notes on any system of patterned crack 
and report them to road supervisor.  For small shrinkage 

cracks (those not fully opened) check with road supervisor 
about a spray coat sealant.  Pop-outs, surface deterioration, 

or chuck holes in deck must be cleaned thoroughly and 
packed smooth with bituminous road surface mixture.  

Provide a mechanical "lock" to hold patch in place.  Eliminate 
"low" spots to prevent water ponding. 

(F) Expansion Joints 
Deck expansion joints should be identified and cleaned. Remove 

dirt, gravel, debris and other obstructions from expansion joint 
opening.  Do this when bridge is cool so joint is as wide open as 

possible. For open expansion joint slot, fill the opening with an 
elastic joint sealer compound or a special compressible composite 

joint filler.  For plate covered joint slot, clean the sliding surface of 

any obstructions and treat sliding surface if necessary to make it 
free operating. 

(G) Bridge Structural Components 
(1) Truss Bridges 

Clear debris from truss joints, flanges of truss members, or 
any pockets that have collected debris, gravel or dirt. 

(2) Girders and Beams 
Clear any debris found on flanges or on any bracing occurring 

on the structure. 
(3) Handrails and Curbs 

Repair any bent, broken, or missing parts of the bridge 
handrail or curbs. 

(4) Bearing Devices  
Bearing devices are points where bridge structure is attached 

to the substructure (piers, abutments, or other supports).  

Identify the "fixed" and movable bearings.  Clear all dirt, 
disintegrated concrete, debris of any kind which collects 

around the bearings - fixed or movable.  Especially clear any 
obstruction that would prevent movable support from being 

able to function.  Once cleared, spray with oil to prevent 
rusting and to assist movement. 

(H) Substructure 
(1) Abutments 

Note cracking of main wall or wing wall. Assess serious 
movement of any part of the abutment.  Report out-of-plumb 

components and any serious deterioration of the abutment. 
Note any erosion of stream that may undermine the 

abutment, and eliminate cause. Fill and tamp any rodent 
holes along base of the abutment and its wing walls. 

042021 BCC Meeting

286



253 

 

(2) Piers 
Note and correct any water drainage on pier or the pier cap. 

Note any cracks or deterioration of pier.  Repair where 
possible. Check for undermining of pier foundation and 

correct cause if possible. Check pier for "plumb-ness" or any 
signs of movement. 

 
 

 
Source: Minor Maintenance Manual For County Bridges, Highway 

Extension and Research Project  for Indiana Counties and Cities, 
Purdue University,1984. 

 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

287



254 

 

Appendix J  Buffering and Screening 
 

(A) Where a PUD is proposed adjacent to a single family residential use, 

side and rear yard setback of 30 feet shall be observed for 
buildings, parking, or storage.  This area is to be used as a buffer 

and shall be landscaped as follows.  Buffers shall consist of 
plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees spaced no more than 

thirty (30) feet apart.  Such trees shall be at least six to seven (6-
7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-8) feet tall with a one 

and one half (1-1/2) inch caliper (trunk diameter 6 inches above 
grade) for deciduous trees at time of planting and shall reach a 

height of no less than twenty (20) at maturity.  Where utility 
easements conflict with this height requirement, the requirement 

may be lessened at the discretion of the Planning Staff. In addition, 
plantings of low growing shrubs, and/or trees shall be placed at ten 

(10) foot intervals.  Plantings within buffer zones shall be staggered 

unless topography is prohibitive.  No planting shall be placed in the 
road right-of-way.  Lists of recommended plantings are available 

from the Planning and Inspections Department. 
(B) Where a PUD is proposed adjacent to a commercial or multi-family 

use side and rear yard setback of 15 feet shall be observed for 
buildings, parking, or storage.  This area is to be used as a buffer 

and shall be landscaped as follows.  Buffers shall consist of 
plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees spaced no more than 

thirty (30) feet apart.  Such trees shall be at least six to seven (6-
7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-8) feet tall with a one 

and none half (1-1/2) inch caliper for deciduous trees at time of 
planting and shall reach a height of no less than twenty (20) feet at 

maturity, unless reduced by staff due to utility easements.  In 
addition, permanent ground cover such as grasses shall be 

established. 

(C) Walls, fences, earthen berms, or other natural features may be 
used in combination with or in lieu of planted buffers if approved as 

part of a permit.  Considerations include but are not limited to: 
(1) Any existing significant vegetation within the buffer(s) may be 

preserved and credited towards meeting the standard for the 
required buffer.  Existing fences, berms and or walls within 

the buffer(s) may be used to fulfill the standards set forth for 
the buffer providing these elements are healthy and in a 

condition of good repair.  Chain link fencing is not acceptable 
in meeting the performance criteria of this ordinance. 

(2) Installation of supplemental vegetation and/or site features 
may be required at the time of site plan review, if existing 

042021 BCC Meeting

288



255 

 

vegetation and/or site features within the buffer do not meet 
or exceed the requirements of this ordinance. 

(D) Open storage areas, exposed machinery and outdoor areas used for 
the storage and collection of rubbish must be visually screened 

from roads and surrounding land uses.  Suitable types of screening 
include opaque wood fences and dense evergreen hedges of six (6) 

feet or more in height. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

289



256 

 

- - - - -     Right of Way 
___________ Travel Surface 

  

Appendix K  Fire Apparatus Access Roads 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       (Drawings not to scale) 

 

100’ ROW 

70’ PAVEMENT 

20’ 

45’ ROW 

CUL-DE-SAC 

60’ 60’ 

20’ 

45’ ROW 

20’ 45’ ROW 

120’ HAMMER HEAD 

45’ ROW 

20’ 

20’ 20’ 

60’ 

45’ ROW 
45’ ROW 

60’ Y 

042021 BCC Meeting

290



257 

 

Appendix L  Affordable Workforce Housing Policy 

 

Section 1.  Background. 

The generally accepted definition of affordability is for a household to pay no 

more than 30 percent of its annual income on housing.  An estimated 12 

million renter and homeowner households now pay more than 50 percent of 

their annual income on housing.  The lack of affordable housing is a 

significant hardship for low-income and working households and prevents 

them from meeting other basic needs, such as food, clothing, transportation 

and medical care. 

Availability of housing for all income levels is critical for balanced and 

healthy growth of the County. Employers seeking to locate in Watauga 

County need to first attract and then maintain a workforce. A key component 

to workforce recruitment and retention is affordable and centrally located 

housing. Job satisfaction becomes more of a challenge when workers can 

only find affordable housing by living far from their jobs and enduring long 

commutes. 

Section 2.  Policy. 

The county will seek to work with the developers and nonprofit housing 

organizations to provide for affordable units in developments and ensure 

that such units are compatible with other homes in the development. 

Affordable units should include both units for sale and units for rent. 

Developers should promote a design criterion that disperses affordable 

homes throughout a development and encourages a variety of housing 

types. 

Section 3.  Streamlined Permitting Process. 

  
Improved coordination of the permitting process at the state and local levels 

could result in lower housing costs. The permitting process often involves 
dealing with city, county and state approval boards, all of which require a 

variety of permits and approvals (i.e. – fire protection, sewer hookup, 

plumbing, environmental, road construction, electrical, building, etc.). Often 
the various levels of governmental authorities do not have effective 

communication and co-approval systems, which cause can unnecessary 
delays, increase construction costs and ultimately hinder affordable housing.  

 

042021 BCC Meeting

291



258 

 

Section 4.  Density. 
  

Real estate of all types flourishes best in livable communities that offer a 

high quality of life at a reasonable cost. Livable communities offer a variety 

of affordable housing choices, good schools, quality public services, open 

space, and a strong employment base. One of the most challenging aspects 

to promoting these essential livable community elements is density. Building 

at higher densities in the appropriate locations is vital to provide greater 

choice and affordability in housing.  

Section 5.  Employer-Assisted Housing. 

  

Employer-assisted housing (EAH) refers to benefits that enable employees to 

purchase homes or secure affordable rental housing, often within designated 

neighborhoods located near the workplace. Benefits can take a number of 

forms, including grants or forgivable loans for down payments and closing 

costs, reduced-cost financing, and matched savings plans. Providing an EAH 

benefit can help employers reduce turnover, leading to lower training and 

hiring costs. In addition, EAH can increase loyalty and morale, support 

bottom-line business goals, and strengthen links with the local community. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

292



259 

 

Appendix M  Developer Authorization Form 

 

For projects being developed by person(s) other than land owner(s) 

Name of Project: ____________________________________________ 

Land Owner(s) ____________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________ 

Developer(s) ____________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________ 

   ____________________________________________ 

The above-named Developer(s) is/are authorized to submit the subject 

project to Watauga County for development approval on behalf of the above-

named Land Owner(s). 

 

Land Owner(s) Signature       Date 

________________________________________________       ______  

________________________________________________       ______ 

________________________________________________       ______ 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

293



260 

 

CHAPTER 19  REGULATION OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 
SUBDIVISIONS 

  

Article I  Authority and Enactment Clause 

The County Commissioners of the County of Watauga, pursuant to the 

authority conferred by Chapter 160D-Article 8 and Chapter 130 Section 17  

of the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina, enact into law these 

Articles and Sections. 

Article II  Jurisdiction and Purpose 

Section 1.  Jurisdiction. 

On and after the date of adoption, these regulations shall govern each and 

every subdivision of land to be developed and sold for use by recreational 

vehicles within Watauga County (hereinafter referred to as the “county”) and 

outside the subdivision regulation jurisdiction of any incorporated 

municipality.  As used herein the term “sell”, in addition to its standard 

meaning, shall also mean the rental or lease of any real property, the term 

of which or any pre-existing renewal thereof shall total twelve months or 

more.   

Section 2.  Purpose. 

The purpose of these regulations for recreational vehicle subdivisions is to 

guide and regulate the subdivision of land within the county in order to 

preserve the public health, safety and welfare.  The regulations included 

herein are designed to insure an adequately planned street system and to 

avoid sharp curves, hazardous intersections; to secure safety from fire, 

panic, and other dangers; to provide for adequate water and sewage 

systems; to facilitate an orderly system for the design, layout, and use of 

the land; to insure the proper legal description and monumenting of 

subdivided land; and to provide for the resubdivision of large land parcels. 

Section 3.  Permits. 

(A) No person shall operate a recreational vehicle subdivision within the 

County of Watauga unless s/he holds a valid certification from the 
Health Department in the name of such a person for the specific 

recreational vehicle subdivision.  Final plat approval will be made by 

042021 BCC Meeting

294



261 

 

the Planning Board provided all requirements of this chapter are 
met. 

(B) Recreational Vehicle Permanent Occupancy Prohibited. 
(1) No recreational vehicle shall be used as permanent place of 

abode, dwelling or business. 
(2) Any action toward removal of wheels of a recreational vehicle 

except for temporary purposes of repair is hereby prohibited. 
(3) No recreational vehicle shall be anchored or permanently 

affixed in a flood plain area. 
(C) No person shall construct, alter or extend any recreational vehicle 

subdivision within the County of Watauga until the following has 
been obtained: 

(1) Proper certification from the Health Department, 
(2) Final plat approval from the Watauga County Planning Board, 

and 

(3) A building permit from the Building Inspector. 
 

Article III  Planning Board Review 

No real property within the jurisdiction of this chapter shall be subdivided 

and offered for sale or a plat thereof recorded until a preliminary and final 

plan has been reviewed and approved by the Planning Board as provided 

hereinafter. 

Article IV  Procedures For Review And Approval Of Subdivisions 

Section 1.  Submission of Preliminary Plan to Planning Board. 

A preliminary plan meeting the requirements of these regulations shall be 

submitted for review and shall be approved by the Planning Board before 

any improvements are made in a subdivision. Two copies of this plan shall 

be submitted to the Planning Staff at least ten (10) working days before the 

meeting of the Planning Board at which time it is to be reviewed. One of 

these copies shall be transmitted to the Health Department for 

recommendations concerning water and sewerage systems. 

After receiving approval of the preliminary plan by the Planning Board (and 

not before that time), the subdivider may proceed to construct 

improvements in accordance with the requirements of the regulations and as 

shown on the approved preliminary plan, and to prepare and submit the final 

plat.  The subdivider shall submit the final plat to the Planning Board within 

eighteen (18) months from the approval of the preliminary plan. 

042021 BCC Meeting

295



262 

 

Section 2.  What the Preliminary Plat Shall Show. 

The preliminary plat shall be drawn at a scale of not less than one hundred 

(100) feet to the inch on sheets 18 x 24 inches and shall show the following 

on one (1) or more sheets: 

(A) A sketch vicinity map showing the relationship between the 
proposed subdivision and the surrounding area. 

(B) The name of the RV subdivision, the names and addresses of the 
owner(s) and designer. 

(C) Date, approximate north arrow and scale. 
(D) The boundary line of the tract with bearings and distances drawn to 

scale. 
(E) The locations of existing and platted property lines, streets, 

buildings, water courses, railroads, bridges, water mains, sewers, 
culverts, drain pipes, and utility easements, both in the proposed 

recreational vehicle park and on land immediately adjoining 100 

feet in all directions and the names of adjoining subdivisions or the 
names of owners of record of adjoining parcels of unsubdivided 

land. 
(F) The names, proposed location and dimension of proposed streets, 

alleys, driveways, entrances, exits, walkways, easements, 
recreation areas, and other spaces, reservations, proposed lot lines, 

lot and block numbers with approximate dimensions, and parking 
lines within the park.  This information should be graphical only, not 

requiring detailed computations of field work above that required to 
obtain the above information. 

(G) Plans and proposed location of a service building consisting of toilet 
and shower facilities if required by Health Department. 

(H) Plans of proposed utility layouts (sewer lines, septic tank 
drainfields, water line and storm drainage) showing feasible 

connections to existing and proposed utility systems. 

(I) Where public water or public sewer is not available, a written 
statement from the Health Department shall be submitted with the 

recreational vehicle subdivision preliminary plan indicating that the 
recreational vehicle subdivision has adequate land area and suitable 

soil characteristics and topography to accommodate the proposed 
methods of water supply and sewage disposal. 

(J) Location and number of garbage receptacles. 
(K) Plan for electric lighting. 

(L) Plan showing measures to be taken to prevent soil erosion and off-
site sedimentation damage. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

296



263 

 

Section 3.  Submission of Final Plat to Planning Board. 

Prior to the submission of the final plat all improvements proposed and 

approved on the preliminary plat shall be completed to meet the 

requirements.  Unless a final plat is submitted to the Planning Board within 

eighteen (18) months from the date on which the preliminary plat was 

approved, such action on the preliminary plat shall become void and of no 

effect, unless prior to the expiration of said time the Planning Board extends 

the time for good cause shown. A final plat meeting the requirements of 

these regulations shall be submitted least ten (10) working days prior to the 

meeting of the Planning Board at which it is to be considered.  Copies of the 

plat shall be distributed in the same manner as copies of the preliminary 

plan. 

Section 4.  What the Final Plat Shall Show. 

The final plat shall be drawn upon a reproducible material such as linen or 

mylar on sheets of 18 x 24 inches in size to a scale of not less than one inch 

equals one hundred (100) feet.  It shall contain the following: 

(A) A vicinity map showing the location of the subdivision in relation to 
the surrounding area. 

(B) The name of the recreational vehicle subdivision, the names and 
addresses of the owner(s) and the engineer or registered surveyor 

who prepared the plat. 
(C) Date, north arrow, and scale. 

(D) The boundary line of the tract with bearings and distances drawn to 
scale. 

(E) The names, location and dimensions of streets, alleys, driveways, 
entrances, exits, walkways, easements, recreation areas, parks and 

other open spaces, reservations, lot lines, lot and block numbers 
with accurate bearings and distances, and parking lines within the 

park.  The information shall be drawn accurately with details, 

computations, and fieldwork completed with all lot corners 
established on the ground with an iron pin or other permanent 

marker. 
(F) If the RV subdivision is located in a flood plain area, developer shall 

submit to the Planning Board with the final plat a workable 
evacuation plan in accordance with the Flood Damage Prevention 

regulations. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

297



264 

 

Section 5.  Approval of Final Plat by Planning Board and Recording 

Thereof. 

Upon receipt of the final plat, the Planning Board shall review it for 

compliance with the provisions of this ordinance.  The Planning Board may 

approve the plat in whole or in part, or subject to modifications.  Failure of 

the Planning Board to take formal action on the final plat after receipt of the 

plat at least ten (10) working days prior to the next regular Board meeting 

shall be deemed approval of the submitted plat.  The approval of the final 

plat by the Planning Board shall be on condition that such plat be recorded in 

the Office of the Register of Deeds within thirty (30) days after such 

approval.   

The subdivider shall pay a review fee, as determined from time to time by 
the Board of Commissioners. 

Section 6.  The Following Certificates Shall Be Shown On The Final 

Plat. 

(A) Certificate of Ownership and Dedication 

I (we) hereby certify that I am (we are) the owner(s) of the 

property shown and described hereon that I (we) hereby adopt this 

plan of subdivision with my (our) free consent, establish all lots, 

and dedicate all streets, alleys, walks parks, easements, right-of-

ways, and other open spaces to public or private use as the same 

shown herein. 

_______________                       ____________________________ 

DATE                   OWNER 

(B) Certificate of the Approval of Water and Sewage System 
I hereby certify that the water supply and sewage disposal systems 

installed to serve the subdivision entitled _____________________ 
fully meets the requirements of the AppHealthCare, and are hereby 

approved as shown. 
____________                          ______________________________ 

DATE     AppHealthCare Authorized Official 

(C) Certificate of Approval of Recording 

I hereby certify that the subdivision plat shown hereon has been 

found to comply with the Recreational Vehicle Subdivision 

Regulations of Watauga County, North Carolina, with the exception 

of such variances, if any, as noted in the minutes of the Planning 

Board and recorded on the plat and that it has been approved by 

042021 BCC Meeting

298



265 

 

the Watauga County Planning Board at their regular meeting of 

_____________________ for recording in the Office of the County 

Register of Deeds. 

_____________        _________________________________________ 

DATE   Watauga County Authorized Representative 

(D) Surveyors Certificate 

NORTH CAROLINA 
WATAUGA COUNTY 

________________________ being duly sworn says the plat 

shown hereon is in all respects correct to the best of his knowledge 

and belief and was prepared from an actual field survey supervised 

by him and completed _____________. 

__________________________________   _______________ 

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR    NO. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this the _____ day of 

__________, 20___. 

      __________________________ 

          Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

Section 7.  Appeal by Developer. 

If either a preliminary or final plat is not approved by the Planning Board the 

subdivider may appeal his case to the Superior Court of Watauga County 

within 30 days. 

Section 8.  Feasibility Plan. 

A subdivider may submit a sketch to the Ordinance Administrator prior to 

submission of a preliminary plan if s/he wishes to ascertain the feasibility of 

development of his/her property. 

Section 9.  Minor Subdivisions. 

(A) Procedures set forth herein for handling applications for approval of 
minor subdivisions are intended to simplify processing of routine 

small subdivision with due regard to protection of the public 
interest. 

042021 BCC Meeting

299



266 

 

(B) For the purpose of these regulations, a minor subdivision is defined 
as any subdivision requiring no variances and consisting of not 

more than ten (10) lots. 
(C) In lieu of the procedures set forth in this ordinance, the subdivider 

may receive preliminary approval for any minor subdivision through 
procedures set forth as follows: 

(1) The Ordinance Administrator shall review the preliminary plat 
of each minor subdivision and shall find that it either is or is 

not a minor subdivision and that it either does or does not 
meet the requirements of these regulations.  Said findings 

shall be stated in writing and recorded in the records of the 
Planning Board.  Based upon said findings the Department 

shall either approve, not approve, or approve conditionally 
the proposed minor subdivision. 

(2) A decision by the Administrator shall be made within fifteen 

(15) days of submission of the proposed minor subdivision 
and the decision of the administrator is subject to appeal in 

writing by the subdivider to the Planning Board, which must 
act on appeals at its next regular meeting provided said 

written appeal is filed with the Planning Board or their 
designee ten (10) working days prior to said meeting. 

(D) A final plat shall be submitted to the Watauga County Planning 
Board for their consideration and approval before the conveyance of 

any of the property or the recordation of the plat. 
(E) After approval, the Subdivision Plat shall be recorded with the 

Watauga County Register of Deeds within thirty (30) days. 
 

Article V  Environmental, Open Space and Access Requirements 

Section 1.  Environmental, Open Space and Access Requirements. 

(A) General Requirements.  Conditions of soil, groundwater level, 

drainage and topography shall not create hazards to the property or 
the health or safety of the occupants. 

(B) Floodplain Development.  Recreational Vehicle Subdivisions may be 
permitted to develop in designated floodplain areas but not 

permitted in the floodway.  Developer shall indicate the floodplain 
and floodway on the plat and evacuation plans shall be established 

and submitted to the Planning Board for approval consideration 
prior to approval of final plat.  Any improvements shall meet the 

applicable requirements of the Watauga County Flood Damage 
Prevention Regulations. 

(C) Soil and Ground Cover Requirements.  All ground areas in all parts 
of every Recreational Vehicle Subdivision shall be paved or covered 

042021 BCC Meeting

300



267 

 

with stone screenings or other solid material or protected with a 
vegetative growth that is capable of preventing soil erosion and of 

eliminating objectionable dust. 
(D) Required Separation Between Recreational Vehicles.  Recreational 

vehicles shall be separated from each other and from other 
structures by at least 20 feet.  Any accessory structure such as 

attached awnings or individual storage facilities shall, for the 
purposes of this separation requirement, be considered to be part 

of the recreational vehicle. 
(E) Required Recreation Area.  In all Recreational Vehicle Subdivisions 

there shall be at least one recreation area which shall be easily 
accessible from all recreational vehicle spaces.  A minimum of 

twenty percent (20%) of the total lot area of the park shall be 
dedicated for open, undeveloped recreational use. 

(F) Required Setbacks from Public Streets.  All recreational vehicles 

shall be located at least 30 feet from the right-of-way of a public 
street or highway. 

(G) RV Subdivision Street System 
(1) General Requirements.  All parking areas shall be provided 

with safe and convenient vehicular access form abutting 
public streets or roads to each recreational vehicle space.  All 

roads shall be constructed to meet the requirements of the 
county standard roads as specified in the Watauga County 

Subdivision Regulations, with the exception of the road right-
of-way which may be 30 feet. 

(2) Access.  Access to recreational vehicle subdivisions shall be 
designed to minimize congestion and hazards at their 

entrance and exit and to allow free movement of traffic on 
adjacent streets.  All traffic into and out of the parking areas 

shall be through such entrances and exits. 

(3) Off-Street Parking and Maneuvering Space.  Each lot in a 
recreational vehicle subdivision shall provide one vehicle 

parking space in addition to the space occupied by the towing 
vehicle (if any).  Sufficient maneuvering space shall be 

provided so that parking, loading or maneuvering of 
recreational vehicles incidental to parking shall not 

necessitate the use of any public street, sidewalk, or right-of-
way or any private grounds not part of the recreational 

vehicle subdivision. 
(4) Traffic Signs.  For safety purposes, traffic signs shall be 

erected designating traffic flow and speed limits.  Such signs 
shall be constructed of permanent material and shall conform 

substantially to acceptable traffic speeds and sign applications 
in semi-congested areas. 

042021 BCC Meeting

301



268 

 

Section 2.  Miscellaneous Requirements. 

(A) Supervision and Continued Maintenance.  The person to whom a 

permit is issued shall be the responsible party for operation and 
maintenance of the recreational vehicle subdivision in compliance 

with these regulations and shall further provide adequate 
supervision to maintain the recreational vehicle subdivision, its 

facilities and equipment in good repair and in a clean and sanitary 
condition at all time until at such time an Owners Association shall 

assume responsibilities as designated by the Developer. 
(B) Owners Association Agreement and Declaration of Restrictions for 

Recreational Vehicle Subdivisions.  Prior to approval of the final plat 
the subdivider/developer shall submit to the County Planning Board 

copies of an Owners Association Agreement and Declaration of 
Restrictions, Conditions, Easements, Covenants, Liens and Charges.  

Said Agreement shall provide that membership in the Owners 

Association shall be appurtenant to ownership of land in the 
subdivision and that the Association is empowered to assess the 

members for their respective portion of costs of continued 
maintenance, including but not restricted to road and all utilities, 

grounds and other improvements and property owned by the 
Association and the payment of taxes. 

 
Article VI  Effective Date. 

These regulations shall be in full force and effect from and after June 7, 

1982. 

The foregoing regulations were initially adopted at meetings of Watauga 

County Board of Commissioners at Boone, North Carolina, on May 18 and 

June 7, 1982. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

302



269 

 

CHAPTER 20  VALLE CRUCIS HISTORIC DISTRICT 

Article I  General Provisions 

Section 1.  Purposes. 

The Watauga County Board of County Commissioners, mindful of the historic 

significance of the Valle Crucis community and in furtherance of the 

protection of the public health, safety, morals and general welfare, enacts 

this chapter for the following purposes: 

(A) To preserve and protect the heritage of the Valle Crucis community 
in Watauga County. 

(B) To protect and conserve individual properties within the Valle Crucis 
community that embody important elements of Valle Crucis’ and 

Watauga County’s social, economic, cultural, political or 
architectural history. 

(C) To promote the conservation of the Valle Crucis Historic District for 

the education, pleasure and enrichment of the Valle Crucis 
community, Watauga County and the State of North Carolina. 

(D) To foster civic beauty and amenity within the Valle Crucis Historic 
District. 

(E) Contribute to the improvement of the general health and welfare of 
the residents of the Valle Crucis Historic District and Watauga 

County. 

Section 2.  Legislative Authority. 

This chapter is enacted pursuant to Chapter 160D, Article 9, Part 4 as 

amended, North Carolina General Statutes, for the purposes enunciated 

therein. 

The regulations contained in this chapter are made with reasonable 

consideration, among other things, as to the character of the District and its 

peculiar suitability for particular uses and with a view to conserving the 

value and integrity of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of 

land throughout the District. 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

303



270 

 

Article II Historic District and Historic Preservation Commission 

Section 1.  Historic District Established. 

The Valle Crucis Historic District is hereby established. 

The boundaries of the Historic District are as shown on the map entitled 

“Map of the Valle Crucis Historic District”.  This map, together with all 

lawfully adopted explanatory matters shown thereon or therewith, is hereby 

adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this chapter. 

Section 2.  Application of Regulations. 

No building, structure, or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no 

building, structure or part hereof shall be hereafter erected, reconstructed, 

moved, demolished, located or the exterior structurally altered except in 

conformity with regulations set out herein for the District. 

Section 3.   Exemption of Bonafide Farms and Public Schools.  

This ordinance shall not be applicable to bonafide farms, as set forth in 

NCGS 160D-903, but any use of farm property for non-farm purposes is 

subject to the regulation. Bona fide farm purposes include production of 

crops, fruits, vegetables, ornamental and flowering plants, dairy, poultry, 

and all other forms of agricultural products having a domestic or foreign 

market. Sections 4 and 5 shall not be applicable to public schools. 

Section 4.  Area, Height and Placement Standards. 

Standards governing minimum lot area and width, required yards and 

maximum height shall be as shown below: 

 Residential Uses All Other Uses 

Minimum Lot Size 21,780 Sq. Ft. 21,780 Sq. Ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 75’ 75’ 

Minimum Required Yards:   

Front (Edge of Pavement) 50’ 50’ 

Side 15’ 30’ 

Rear 20’ 20’ 

Maximum Building Height 30’ 30’ 

042021 BCC Meeting

304



271 

 

Additional requirements may also be applicable for some development  

(e.g. development consisting of more than one unit) 

Section 5.  Performance Standards. 

All land uses subject to this ordinance shall comply with the performance 

standards defined herein. 

(A) Buffer Zones 

Where a commercial or multi-family use is proposed adjacent to a 

single family residential use, a side yard setback of 30 feet shall be 

observed for buildings, parking, or storage.  This area is to be used 

as a buffer zone and shall be landscaped as follows.  Buffers shall 

consist of plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees spaced no 

less than thirty (30) feet apart.  Such trees shall be at least six to 

seven (6-7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-8) feet tall 

with a one and one half (1-1/2) inch caliper (trunk measured six (6) 

inches above grade) for deciduous trees at time of planting and 

shall reach a height of no less than twenty (20) feet at maturity.  In 

addition, plantings of low growing shrubs, and/or trees shall be 

placed at ten (10) foot intervals.  Plantings within buffer zones shall 

be staggered unless topography is prohibitive.  No planting shall be 

placed in the road right-of-way.  Lists of recommended plantings 

are available from the Planning and Inspections Department.  

Where commercial or multi-family use is proposed adjacent to 

commercial or multi-family use the same requirements apply with 

the exception of the low growing shrubs. 

The recipient of any permit, or his successor, shall be responsible 

for maintaining all common areas, improvements of facilities 

required by this ordinance or any permit issued in accordance with 

its provisions, except those areas, improvements, or facilities with 

respect to which an offer of dedication to the public has been 

accepted by the appropriate public authority.  As illustrations, and 

without limiting the generality of the foregoing, this means that 

private roads and parking areas, water and sewer lines, and 

recreational facilities must be properly maintained so that they can 

be used in the manner intended, and required vegetation and trees 

used for screening, landscaping, or shading must be replaced if 

they die or are destroyed. 

042021 BCC Meeting

305



272 

 

(B) Parking 

All uses other than single-family residential shall have at least two 

(2) off-street parking spaces per dwelling unit or as follows. 

(1) Parking space for commercial uses shall consist of one (1) off 
street parking space for each two hundred (200) square feet 

of gross floor area. 

(2) Bed and breakfasts, hotels, motels, or and commercial use of 
this nature shall have parking based on one and one half (1-

1/2) parking spaces per bedroom (fractions shall be rounded 
up to next whole number). 

(3) Loading/unloading space for commercial uses shall consist of 
one (1) space at least three hundred (300) square feet in size 

for each five thousand (5000) square feet of gross floor area.  
A minimum of one (1) loading/unloading space is required 

regardless of floor area square footage. 
(C) Screening of Parking 

Parking and loading/unloading areas shall be located at the rear or 

side of buildings.  (“Front” is defined as the face of the building that 

is parallel to a public road.  By this definition, buildings or multiple 

public road frontage lots would have multiple “front yards” thereby 

limiting the location of parking areas to the remaining side or rear 

yards.) Side-yard parking areas that are exposed to a public road 

shall be screened so as to eliminate visual contact from the road(s).  

Such screening shall consist of a ten (10) foot wide planting of 

evergreen trees at ten (10) foot intervals.  The trees shall be at 

least four (4) feet high at planting (2” caliper) and shall reach a 

height of no less than twenty (20) feet at maturity. 

(D) Density 

Any proposed development consisting of more than one unit shall 

comply with the Watauga County Subdivisions and Multi-Unit 

Structures regulations, Articles VIII and X as applicable as well as 

any additional or stricter requirements imposed by this ordinance.  

However, the maximum overall density shall not exceed one (1) 

unit per acre.  The goal sought by this standard is the reservation 

of perpetual open (green) space.  To that end, an impervious 

surface ratio of twelve (12) percent is established.  Impervious 

surface is defined as surfaces that do not absorb water.  They 

consist of all buildings, parking areas, driveways, road, sidewalks, 

and any areas of concrete, gravel or asphalt.  The impervious 

042021 BCC Meeting

306



273 

 

surface ratio is applicable to any new commercial building 

regardless of the number of units. 

(E) Signage 

In order to maintain the rural historic character of the District, signs 

must be limited in size and number.  Therefore, off-premises 

advertising signs are prohibited.   

On-premises signs are limited as follows:  

(1) Signs shall not be placed within a public road right-of-way. 
(2) Signs located fifteen (15) feet to twenty five (25) feet from 

the centerline of a road shall be limited to ten (10) square 
feet in size. 

(3) Signs located twenty five (25) to thirty five (35) feet from the 
centerline of a road shall be limited to twenty (20) square 

feet in size. 
(4) Signs located thirty five (35) feet or more from the centerline 

of a road shall have a maximum size of thirty two (32) square 
feet. 

(5) Each establishment is limited to a maximum of two signs (one 

(1) detached and one (1) attached).  However, in a situation 
where a detached sign is not visible from both directions due 

to topography or other obstruction, two (2) detached signs 
may be permitted and shall have a maximum size of ten (10) 

square feet each. 
(6) The maximum height of detached signs is ten (10) feet 

measured from the ground. 
(7) Signs shall not be internally illuminated – i.e. translucent 

plastic signs prohibited. 
(8) Where street or site lighting does not provide sufficient 

illumination, signs may be externally illuminated by low level, 
shielded stationary bulbs installed in compliance with North 

Carolina Statutes §136-32.2. Sign lighting shall be turned off 
by 11 pm. 

(F) Lighting 

Lighting of nonresidential land uses must be controlled in both 

height and intensity to maintain rural character.  Under no 

circumstances may the light level at the lot line exceed 0.2 foot 

candles, measured at ground level.  To achieve this, luminaries 

shall be shielded to prevent light shining beyond the lot lines onto 

neighboring properties or public roads.  Where there is a mix of 

residential and commercial uses, light standards are restricted to a 

maximum of twenty (20) feet in height.  In addition, all lighting 

(except for security purposes) should be turned off between 11 pm 

042021 BCC Meeting

307



274 

 

and 6 am.  Exceptions will be granted for those businesses that are 

operating during these hours. 

(G) Placement of Buildings 

Buildings should be sited so that obstruction of views from the 

public roads will be minimized.  This can be achieved by taking 

advantage of topographic changes or existing vegetation. 

(H) Facades 

It is particularly important that new construction meet minimum 

design criteria in order that it may blend with the surroundings.  

New construction throughout the District should be compatible with 

surrounding properties, in terms of formal characteristics such as 

height, massing, roof shapes and window proportions. 

Where new construction is contiguous with or within 100’ of existing 

historic buildings, building height and exterior materials shall be 

harmonious with those of adjacent properties.  In the interests of 

maintaining a sense of history, vertical siding shall be discouraged, 

and synthetic siding should imitate the character and dimensions of 

traditional clapboards.  Masonry block buildings should be faced in 

an appropriate material, such as horizontal wooden siding or brick 

of a consistent traditional red color (not “used” brick or any 

varieties doctored to appear old), and have pitched roofs. 

Section 6.  Historic Preservation Commission. 

There is hereby established the Valle Crucis Historic Preservation 

Commission (hereafter referred to as the Commission) to consist of five 

members appointed by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners.  

Members of the Commission shall serve without compensation. 

(A) Tenure 

Initially members shall be appointed for staggered terms with one 

member being appointed for one year, two members for two years 

and two members for three years.  Thereafter, all appointments 

shall be for a term of three years. 

(B) Qualifications 

Three (3) members of the Commission shall be resident property 

owners of the Historic District, two (2) shall be members of the 

Valle Crucis Community Council and residents of Watauga County, 

and the majority of the members shall have special interest, 

experience or education in history or architecture. 

042021 BCC Meeting

308



275 

 

(C) Meetings 
The Commission shall establish a meeting time and shall meet 

monthly and more or less often as it shall determine and require.  
All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the public and 

reasonable notice of the time and place thereof shall be given to the 
public.  All meetings shall confirm to the North Carolina Open 

Meeting Law.  (See North Carolina General Statutes 143, Article 
33C). 

(D) Attendance at Meetings 

Any member of the Commission who misses more than three 

consecutive regular meetings or more than half of the regular 

meetings in a calendar year shall lose status with the Commission 

and shall be replaced or reappointed by the Watauga County Board 

of County Commissioners. 

Absence due to sickness, death or emergencies of like nature shall 

be recognized as approved absences and shall not affect a 

member’s status on the Commission, except in the event of long 

illness or other such cause for prolonged absence a member shall 

be replaced. 

(E) Rules of Procedure 

The Commission shall adopt and publish Rules of Procedure for the 

conduct of its business. 

(F) Annual Report 

An annual report shall be prepared and submitted by February 1st of 

each year to the Board of County Commissioners.  Such report shall 

include a comprehensive review of the activities, problems, and 

actions of the Commission as well as any budget requests or 

recommendations. 

(G) Meeting Minutes 

The Commission shall keep permanent minutes of all its meetings.  

The minutes shall record attendance of its members, its resolution, 

findings, recommendations and actions. 

The minutes of the Commission shall be a public record. 

Section 7.  Commission Powers. 

The Commission shall seek to promote, enhance and preserve the character 

of the Valle Crucis Historic District, provided however that the Commission 

shall not require the reconstruction of individual or original buildings or 

structures or portion thereof.  

042021 BCC Meeting

309



276 

 

The Commission is authorized and empowered to undertake such action as is 
reasonably necessary to the discharge and conduct of its duties and 

responsibilities as outlined in this Ordinance and Chapter 160D of the 
General Statutes of the State of North Carolina including but not limited to 

the following: 
(A) Undertake an inventory of properties of historical, prehistorical, 

architectural, and/or cultural significance. 
(B) Recommend to the governing board areas to be designated by 

ordinance as "Historic Districts" and individual structures, buildings, 
sites, areas, or objects to be designated by ordinance as 

"Landmarks."  
(C) Acquire by any lawful means the fee or any lesser included interest, 

including options to purchase, to properties within established 
districts or to any such properties designated as landmarks to hold, 

manage, preserve, restore, and improve such properties, and to 

exchange or dispose of the property by public or private sale, lease 
or otherwise, subject to covenants or other legally binding 

restrictions that will secure appropriate rights of public access and 
promote the preservation of the property. 

(D) Restore, preserve, and operate historic properties.  
(E) Recommend to the governing board that designation of any area as 

a historic district or part thereof, or designation of any building, 
structure, site, area, or object as a landmark, be revoked or 

removed for cause. 
(F) Conduct an educational program regarding historic properties and 

districts within its jurisdiction. 
(G) Cooperate with the State, federal, and local governments in 

pursuance of the purposes of this Part. The governing board or the 
commission, when authorized by the governing board, may contract 

with the State, or the United States of America, or any agency of 

either, or with any other organization provided the terms are not 
inconsistent with State or federal law. 

(H) Enter, solely in performance of its official duties and only at 
reasonable times, upon private lands for examination or survey 

thereof. However, no member, employee, or agent of the 
commission may enter any private building or structure without the 

express consent of the owner or occupant thereof.  
(I) Prepare and recommend the official adoption of a preservation 

element as part of the local government's comprehensive plan. 
(J) Review and act upon proposals for alterations, demolitions, or new 

construction within historic districts, or for the alteration or 
demolition of designated landmarks, pursuant to this Part.  

042021 BCC Meeting

310



277 

 

(K) Negotiate at any time with the owner of a building, structure, site, 
area, or object for its acquisition or its preservation, when such 

action is reasonably necessary or appropriate. 

Section 8.  Certificate of Appropriateness. 

(A) Required 

No exterior portion of any building or other structure (including 

masonry walls, fences, light fixtures, steps and pavement or other 

appurtenant features) nor above ground utility structure shall be 

erected, altered, restored, moved or demolished within the Valle 

Crucis Historic District until after an application for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness as to exterior features has been submitted to and 

approved by the Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission. 

For purposes of this chapter, “exterior features” include the 

architectural style, general design, and general arrangement of the 

exterior of a building or other structure, including the kind and 

texture of the building material, the size and scale of the building, 

and the type and style of all windows, doors, light fixtures, signs, 

and other appurtenant fixtures.  In the case of outdoor advertising 

signs, “exterior features” mean the style, material, size, and 

location of all such signs.  Such “exterior features” may include 

important landscape and natural features of the District.  Such a 

Certificate of Appropriateness must be issued by the Commission 

prior to the issuance of a building permit intended for the purposes 

of constructing, altering, moving or demolishing structures. 

The Certificate of Appropriateness may be issued subject to 

reasonable conditions necessary to carry out the purposes of this 

chapter. 

A Certificate of Appropriateness shall be required whether or not a 

building permit is required. 

Any building permit or other such permit not issued in conformity 

with this chapter shall be invalid. 

(B) Required Procedures 

The following procedures shall be observed in the submission, 

review, action and administration of applications for approval of 

Certificates of Appropriateness: 

042021 BCC Meeting

311



278 

 

(1) Applications Submitted to Department of Planning and 
Inspections 

An application for a Certificate of Appropriateness shall be 

obtained from and, when completed, filed with the County 

Department of Planning & Inspections. 

Application for Certificates of Appropriateness shall be 

considered by the Commission at its next regular meeting 

provided they have been filed, complete in form and content, 

at least twenty eight (28) calendar days before the regularly 

scheduled meeting; otherwise consideration shall be deferred 

until the following meeting. 

(2) Contents of Application 

The Commission shall require data as are reasonably 

necessary to determine the nature of the application.  An 

application for a Certificate of Appropriateness shall not be 

considered complete until all required data are submitted. 

Nothing shall prevent the applicant from filing with the 

application additional relevant information bearing on the 

application. 

(3) Notification of Commission 

Upon the receipt of an application, the Department of 

Planning & Inspections shall notify the Commission at least 

fourteen calendar days before its regularly scheduled meeting 

of the contents of the application and its conformance to the 

provisions of this chapter. 

(4) Notification of Property Owners and Commission Action on 
Application 

Decisions on Certificates of Appropriateness are quasi-judicial 

and shall follow the procedure of NCGS 160D-406, including 

notification of property owners and conduct of an evidentiary 

hearing. The Commission shall apply the Review Criteria 

contained in this chapter as well as the “Rural Historic District 

Standards for Valle Crucis, NC” to aid in making the decision. 

(5) Reasons for Commission Actions to Appear in Minutes and 

Written Decision 

The Commission shall cause to be entered into the minutes of 

its meeting the reasons for its actions whether it be approval, 

approval with modifications or denial. A written decision shall 

042021 BCC Meeting

312



279 

 

be prepared and signed by the Commission Chair and 

delivered to the applicant within a reasonable time. 

(6) Time for Review 

All applications for certificates of appropriateness shall be 

reviewed and acted upon within a reasonable time, not to 

exceed 180 days from the date the application for a certificate 

of appropriateness is filed, as defined by the commission's 

rules of procedure. As part of its review procedure, the 

commission may view the premises and seek the advice of 

the Division of Archives and History or such other expert 

advice as it may deem necessary under the circumstances. 

(7) Submission of New Applications 

If the Commission determines that a Certificate of 

Appropriateness should not be issued, a new application 

affecting the same property may be submitted only if 

substantial changes are made in plans for the proposed 

construction, reconstruction, alteration, restoration or 

moving. 

(8) Interior Arrangement Not Considered 

The Commission shall not consider interior arrangement, 

except as set forth in N.C.G.S. 160D-947(b). 

(9) Certain Changes Not Prohibited 

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prevent the 

ordinary maintenance or repair of any exterior architectural 

feature in the Valle Crucis Historic District which does not 

involve a substantial change in design, material, or outer 

appearance thereof nor to prevent the construction, 

reconstruction, alteration, restoration or demolition of any 

such feature which the Watauga County Building Inspector 

shall certify in writing to the Commission as required by 

his/her duty to protect the public safety because of its unsafe 

or dangerous condition. 

(10) Delay in Demolition of Buildings Within the District 

(a) An application for a certificate of appropriateness 
authorizing the relocation, demolition, or 

destruction of a designated landmark or a 
building, structure, or site within the district may 

not be denied, except as provided in subsection 
(b) of this section. However, the effective date of 

such a certificate may be delayed for a period of 

042021 BCC Meeting

313



280 

 

up to 365 days from the date of approval. The 
maximum period of delay authorized by this 

section shall be reduced by the preservation 
commission where it finds that the owner would 

suffer extreme hardship or be permanently 
deprived of all beneficial use of or return from 

such property by virtue of the delay. During such 
period, the preservation commission shall 

negotiate with the owner and with any other 
parties in an effort to find a means of preserving 

the building or site. If the preservation 
commission finds that a building or site within a 

district has no special significance or value toward 
maintaining the character of the district, it shall 

waive all or part of such period and authorize 

earlier demolition or removal. If the preservation 
commission or planning board has voted to 

recommend designation of a property as a 
landmark or designation of an area as a district, 

and final designation has not been made by the 
governing board, the demolition or destruction of 

any building, site, or structure located on the 
property of the proposed landmark or in the 

proposed district may be delayed by the 
preservation commission or planning board for a 

period of up to 180 days or until the governing 
board takes final action on the designation, 

whichever occurs first. 
(b) An application for a certificate of appropriateness 

authorizing the demolition or destruction of a 

building, site, or structure determined by the 
State Historic Preservation Officer as having 

statewide significance as defined in the criteria of 
the National Register of Historic Places may be 

denied except where the preservation commission 
finds that the owner would suffer extreme 

hardship or be permanently deprived of all 
beneficial use or return by virtue of the denial.  

(11) Appeal of Decision 

An appeal may be taken to the Superior Court of Watauga 

County, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160D-1402. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

314



281 

 

(12) Compliance 

Compliance with the terms of the Certificate of 

Appropriateness shall be enforced by the Watauga County 

Department of Planning and Inspections. 

Failure to comply with a Certificate of Appropriateness shall 

be a violation of this chapter. 

To ensure continued compliance with the provisions of this 

chapter, each approved Certificate of Appropriateness shall 

expire 12 months from the date on which final action was 

taken to approve the application, unless otherwise identified 

in the certificate, if the alteration, construction, demolition, 

relocation, or removal has not been initiated. Time extensions 

may be granted in accordance with the Commission’s Rules of 

Procedure.  

Nothing contained in this chapter shall prohibit, impair or limit 

in any way the power of Watauga County to prevent the 

construction, reconstruction, alteration, or removal of building 

structures, appurtenant fixtures or outdoor signs in the 

Historic District in violation of the provisions of this chapter. 

(13) Review Criteria 
(a) Intent 

It is the intention of these regulations to insure, in so 

far as possible, that buildings or structures in the Valle 

Crucis Historic District shall be in harmony with other 

buildings or structures located therein.  However, it is 

not the intention of the regulations to require the 

reconstruction or restoration of individual or original 

buildings or prohibit demolition or removal of the same 

or to impose architectural styles of particular historic 

periods.  In considering new construction, the 

Commission shall encourage contemporary design that 

is harmonious with the character of the District. 

In granting a Certificate of Appropriateness, the 

Commission shall take into account the historic or 

architectural significance of the structure under 

consideration and the exterior form and appearance of 

any proposed additions or modifications to that 

042021 BCC Meeting

315



282 

 

structure, as well as the effect of such changes or 

additions upon other structures in the vicinity. 

(b) Exterior Form and Appearance 

The following criteria should be considered, when 
relevant, by the Commission in reviewing applications 

for Certificates of Appropriateness: 
(i.) New construction and alteration should 

reflect the atmosphere, existing landscape 
characteristics and appearance of the 

District. 
(ii.) New buildings should have a definite 

relationship to existing buildings; that is, 
they should be compatible but not imitative. 

(iii.) Wood, brick and stone are traditional 
building materials in the District and should 

be employed whenever possible, as should 

metal roofs. 
(iv.) Remodeling and alterations to buildings 

should be in the style of the existing 
building and be compatible in size, scale, 

color and material. 
(v.) Double-wide mobile homes are preferred.  

All mobile homes should be placed on 
permanent solid masonry foundations, un-

pierced except for required access and 
ventilation openings.  The chassis and 

towing bar should be removed. 
(vi.) If cinder blocks are used in the foundations, 

the surface should be treated with masonry 
paint or other suitable material. 

(vii.) Outbuildings should be compatible with the 

main building and with the rural atmosphere 
of the District. 

(viii.) Native plant materials should be used in 
landscaping around buildings. 

(ix.) Signs should reflect good taste in size and 
materials. 

Article III  Nonconformities 

Section 1.  Classification. 

Any building, structure or use of land existing at the time of enactment of 

this ordinance or any amendment thereto which was lawful but would be 

042021 BCC Meeting

316



283 

 

prohibited, regulated or restricted by such enactment or amendment is a 

nonconformity. 

Section 2.  Repair, Reconstruction, Expansion, Reinstatement. 

It is the intent of this chapter to permit nonconformities to continue until 

they are removed or cease.  Such continuance shall include routine 

maintenance and repair, reconstruction in case of total or partial destruction, 

and expansion, provided that such expansion meets all other requirements 

of this chapter (yard requirements, Certificate of Appropriateness, etc.).  A 

nonconforming use shall not be reinstated after discontinuance for a period 

of one (1) year unless the Historic Preservation Commission finds that such 

reinstatement will not have a detrimental effect upon the District. 

Section 3.  Nonconforming Lots. 

In the District, structures may be erected, occupied and used on separate, 

nonconforming lots of record, in accord with all other requirements applying 

in the District. 

Article IV  Public Buildings 

As set forth in N.C.G.S 160D-947(f), all of the provisions of Article 2, Section 

8 are hereby made applicable to construction, alteration, moving, and 

demolition by the State of North Carolina, its political subdivisions, agencies, 

and instrumentalities, provided, however, they shall not apply to interiors of 

buildings or structures owned by the State of North Carolina. The State and 

its agencies shall have a right of appeal to the North Carolina Historical 

Commission or any successor agency assuming its responsibilities under 

N.C.G.S. 121-12(a) from any decision of a local preservation commission.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

317



284 

 

Chapter 21  Watershed Protection (Winkler’s Creek, 
Howards Creek, Norris Branch, Flat Top Branch, South Fork 

New River, and Pond Creek) 
 

Article I  Authority and General Regulations 

Section 1.  Authority and Enactment. 

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has, in Chapter 160D, Zoning 

Authority; and in Chapter 143, Article 21, Watershed Protection Rules, 

delegated the responsibility or directed local governmental units to adopt 
regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general 

welfare of its citizenry. The Watauga County Board of Commissioners enacts 
into law the following chapter as the Watershed Protection Zoning 

Regulations of Watauga County. 

Section 2. Jurisdiction. 

The provisions of this chapter shall apply within the area designated as a 
Public Water Supply Watershed by the N.C. Environmental Management 

Commission and shall be defined and established on the most recent 
officially adopted by the NC Environmental Commission version of the map 

entitled, "Watershed Protection Map of Watauga County North Carolina" 
("the Watershed Map"), which is adopted simultaneously herewith. The 

Watershed Map and all explanatory matter contained thereon accompanies 
and is hereby made a part of this chapter.  

Section 3.  Exceptions to Applicability. 

(A) Nothing contained herein shall repeal, modify, or amend any 
Federal or State law or regulation, or any ordinance or regulation 

pertaining thereto except any ordinance which these regulations 
specifically replace; nor shall any provision of this chapter amend, 

modify, or restrict any provisions of the Code of Ordinances of 
Watauga County however, the adoption of this chapter shall and 

does amend any and all ordinances, resolutions, and regulations in 
effect in the county at the time of the adoption of this chapter that 

may be construed to impair or reduce the effectiveness of this 
chapter or to conflict with any of its provisions. 

(B) It is not intended that these regulations interfere with any 
easement, covenants or other agreements between parties. 

However, if the provisions of these regulations impose greater 
restrictions or higher standards for the use of a building or land, 

then the provision of these regulations shall control. 

042021 BCC Meeting

318



285 

 

(C) Existing development, as defined in this ordinance, is not subject to 
the requirements of this ordinance.  Expansions to structures 

classified as existing development must meet the requirements of 
this ordinance. However, the built-upon area of the existing 

development is not required to be included in the density 
calculations. 

(D) A pre-existing lot owned by an individual prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance, regardless of whether or not a vested right has 

been established, may be developed for single family residential 
purposes without being subject to the restrictions of this ordinance. 

Section 4. Applicability to Agricultural Uses. 

This chapter shall not affect bona fide farms, as cited in Chapter 6 of this 

Title and N.C.G.S. 160D-903. 
 

The following paragraph is provided for information only. Agricultural 

activities are regulated by the Watershed Protection Act (NCGS 143, Chapter 
21) as follows: 

 
“Agriculture is subject to the provisions of the Food Security Act of 1985 and 

the Food, Agriculture, Conservation and Trade Act of 1990. Agricultural 
activities conducted after January 1, 1993 shall maintain a minimum ten 

(10) foot vegetative buffer, or equivalent control as determined by the Soil 
and Water Conservation Commission, along all perennial waters indicated on 

the most recent versions of U.S.G.S. 1:24,000 (7.5 minute) scale 
topographic maps or as determined by local government studies.” 

 
Article II  Subdivision Regulations 

Section 1.  General Provisions. 

(A) No subdivision plat of land within the Public Water Supply 

Watershed shall be filed or recorded by the Register of Deeds until 

it has been approved in accordance with the provisions of this 
Article.  Likewise, the Clerk of Superior Court shall not order or 

direct the recording of a plat if the recording of such plat would be 
in conflict with this Article. 

(B) All subdivisions of land within Watauga County are subject to the 
provisions of the Watauga County Subdivisions and Multi-Unit 

Structures regulation and shall be reviewed pursuant to that 
chapter.  Subdivisions within Public Water Supply Watersheds shall 

comply with the provisions of both chapters except where the two 
(2) conflict.  In that case, the more restrictive provisions shall 

apply. 

042021 BCC Meeting

319



286 

 

(C) Compliance with this chapter shall be indicated on both copies of 
the plat by the following certificate and signed by the authorized 

representative: 
 

Certificate of Approval for Recording 
 

I certify that the plat shown here on complies with the Watershed 
Protection Regulations and is approved by the Watauga County 

Planning Board for recording in the Register of Deeds office. 
 

___________    _____________________________________ 
Date                  Watauga County Authorized Representative 

 
NOTICE: This property is located within a Public Water Supply 

Watershed – development restrictions may apply. 

 
Or, for minor subdivisions as defined by the Watauga County 

Subdivisions and Multi-Unit Structures regulations, the following 
certificate shall be used: 

 
Certificate of Approval for Recording 

 
I certify that the plat shown here on complies with the Watershed 

Protection Regulations and is approved for recording in the Register 
of Deeds office. 

 
___________     ____________________________________ 

Date                  Watauga County Authorized Representative 
 

NOTICE:  This property is located within a Public Water Supply 

Watershed –  development restrictions may apply. 
 

*NOTE:  Those certificates may be combined with similar 
certificates required by the subdivision regulations. 

 
(D) Roads constructed in critical areas and watershed buffer areas. 

Where possible, roads should be located outside of critical areas 
and watershed buffer areas. Roads constructed within these areas 

shall be designed and constructed so to minimize their impact on 
water quality. 

(E) All lots shall provide adequate building space in accordance with the 
development standards contained in Article III. Lots which are 

smaller than the minimum required for residential lots may be 

042021 BCC Meeting

320



287 

 

developed using built-upon area criteria in accordance with Article 
III or cluster development criteria in accordance with Section 3. 

(F) For the purpose of calculating built-upon area, total project area 
shall include total acreage in the tract on which the project is to be 

developed. 
(G) Storm Water Drainage Facilities.  The application shall be 

accompanied by a description of the proposed method of providing 
storm water drainage. The subdivider shall provide a drainage 

system that diverts stormwater runoff away from surface waters 
and incorporates best management practices to minimize water 

quality impacts. 
(H) Erosion and Sedimentation Control.  The application shall, where 

required, be accompanied by a written statement that a 
sedimentation and erosion control plan will be submitted to and 

approved by Watauga County. 

 
Article III  Development Regulations 

Section 1.  Establishment of Watershed Areas. 

For purposes of this chapter, the following watershed areas are established: 

 
 WS-II-CA (Critical Area) 

 WS-II-BW (Balance of Watershed) 
WS-III-(Balance of Watershed) 

 WS-IV-CA (Critical Area) 
 WS-IV-PA (Protected Area) 

Section 2.  Watershed Areas Described. 

(A) WS-II Watershed Areas - Critical Area (WS-II-CA).   

In order to maintain a predominantly undeveloped land use 
intensity pattern, single family residential uses shall be allowed at a 

maximum of one dwelling unit per two acres. All other residential 

and non-residential development shall be allowed at a maximum six 
percent (6%) built upon area. New residuals application sites and 

landfills are specifically prohibited. 
(1) Allowed Uses: 

(a) Agriculture. (See Article I Section 4) 
(b) Silviculture, subject to the provisions of the Forest 

Practices Guidelines Related to Water  Quality (15 NCAC 
II 6101-0209). 

(c) Residential development, including both single family 
and all other residential. 

042021 BCC Meeting

321



288 

 

(d) Non-residential development, excluding: 1) landfills, 
and 2) sites for land application of residuals or 

petroleum contaminated soils. 
(2) Density and Built-upon Limits: 

(a) Single Family Residential development shall not exceed 
one dwelling unit of single family detached residential 

development per two (2) acres (or 80,000 square foot 
lot excluding area within  road right of way) on a 

project by project basis. No residential lot shall be less 
than two (2) acres (or 80,000 square feet excluding 

area within road right of way), except within an 
approved cluster development. 

(b) All Other Residential and Non-Residential development 
shall not exceed six percent (6%) built-upon area on a 

project by project basis. For the purpose of calculating 

built-upon area, total project area shall include total 
acreage in the tract on which the project is to be 

developed.  Stormwater runoff from the development 
shall be transported by live vegetative ground cover to 

the maximum extent practicable. 
(B) WS-II Watershed Areas - Balance of Watershed (WS-II-BW).  

In order to maintain a predominantly undeveloped land use 
intensity pattern, single family residential uses shall be allowed at a 

maximum of one dwelling unit per acre.  All other residential and 
non residential development shall be allowed a maximum of twelve 

percent built-upon area.  Projects must minimize built-upon surface 
area, direct storm water away from surface waters and incorporate 

Best Management Practices to minimize water quality impacts.  
Non-discharging landfills and sludge application sites are allowed. 

(1) Allowed Uses: 

(a) Agriculture.  (see Article I Section 4) 
(b) Silviculture, subject to the provisions of the Forest 

Practices Guidelines Related to Water  Quality (15 NCAC 
II.6101-.0209). 

(c) Residential development. 
(d) Non-residential development excluding discharging 

landfills. 
(2) Density and Built-upon Limits: 

(a) Single Family Residential - development shall not 
exceed one dwelling unit of single family detached 

residential development per one (1) acre (or 40,000 
square foot lot excluding area within road right of way) 

on a project by project basis. No residential lot shall be 
less than one (1) acre (or 40,000 square feet excluding 

042021 BCC Meeting

322



289 

 

area within road right of way), except within an 
approved cluster development. 

(b) All Other Residential and Non-Residential - development 
shall not exceed twelve percent (12%) built-upon area 

on a project by project basis. For the purpose of 
calculating built- upon area, total project area shall 

include total acreage in the tract on which the project is 
to be developed.  Stormwater runoff from the 

development shall be transported by live vegetative 
ground cover to the maximum extent practicable. 

(c) 10%-70% provisions - a maximum of 10% of the 
balance of the watershed outside the critical area may 

be developed with up to 70% built-upon surface area on 
a project-by-project basis. No site can exceed 70% built 

upon area. For expansions to existing development, the 

existing built-upon surface area is not counted toward 
the allowed 70% built-upon surface area. 

(C) WS-III Watershed Areas - Balance of Watershed (WS-III- BW). 
In order to maintain a predominantly undeveloped land use 

intensity pattern, single family residential uses shall be allowed at a 
maximum of two dwelling units per acre.  All other residential and 

non residential development shall be allowed a maximum of 
twenty-four percent (24%) built-upon area.  Projects must 

minimize built-upon surface area, direct storm water away from 
surface waters and incorporate Best Management Practices to 

minimize water quality impacts.  Non-discharging landfills and 
sludge application sites are allowed. 

(1) Allowed Uses: 
(a) Agriculture, (see Article I Section 4) 

(b) Silviculture, subject to the provisions of the Forest 

Practices Guidelines Related to Water Quality (15 NCAC 
II.6101-.0209). 

(c) Residential development. 
(d) Non-residential development excluding discharging 

landfills. 
(2) Density and Built-upon Limits: 

a) Single Family Residential-development shall not exceed 
two dwelling units per acre on a project by project 

basis.  No residential lot shall be less than one-half 
(1/2) acre, except within an approved cluster 

development. 
b) All Other Residential and Non-Residential - development 

shall not exceed twenty-four percent (24%) built-upon 
area on a project by project basis.  For the purpose of 

042021 BCC Meeting

323



290 

 

calculating built-upon area, total project area shall 
include total acreage in the tract on which the project is 

to be developed.  Stormwater runoff from the 
development shall be transported by live vegetative 

ground cover to the maximum extent practicable. 
c) 10%-70% provisions--a maximum of 10% of the 

balance of the watershed outside the critical area may 
be developed with up to 70% built-upon surface area on 

a project-by-project basis.  No site can exceed 70% 
built upon area.  For expansions to existing 

development, the existing built-upon surface area is not 
counted toward the allowed 70% built-upon surface 

area. 
(D) WS-IV Watershed Areas - Critical Area (WS-IV-CA). 

In order to address a moderate to high land use intensity pattern, 

single family residential uses are allowed at a maximum of two (2) 

dwelling units per acre. All other residential and non-residential 

development shall be allowed at a maximum of twenty-four percent 

(24%) built-upon area. New residuals application sites and landfills 

are specifically prohibited. 

(1) Allowed Uses: 
(a) Agriculture (see Article I Section 4) 

(b) Silviculture, subject to the provisions of the Forest 
Practices Guidelines Related to Water Quality (15 NCAC 

1I.0101-.0209). 
(c) Residential. 

(d) Non-residential development, excluding: 1) landfills and 
2) sites for land application of residuals or petroleum 

contaminated soils. 
(2) Density and Built-upon Limits: 

(a) Single Family Residential - development shall not 
exceed two dwelling units per acre on a project by 

project basis. No residential lot shall be less than one-

half (1/2) acre (or 20,000 square feet excluding 
roadway right-of-way), except within an approved 

cluster development. 
(b) All Other Residential and Non-Residential - development 

shall not exceed twenty four percent (24%) built-upon 
area on a project by project basis. For the purpose of 

calculating the built-upon area, total project area shall 
include total acreage in the tract on which the project is 

to be developed. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

324



291 

 

(E) WS-IV Watershed Areas - Protected Area (WS-IV-PA). 
In order to address a moderate to high land use intensity pattern, 

single family residential uses shall develop at a maximum of two (2) 
dwelling units of single family detached residential development or 

one duplex per acre. All other residential and non-residential 
development shall be allowed at a maximum of twenty-four percent 

(24%) built-upon area. A maximum of thirty-six percent (36%) 
built upon area is allowed for projects without a curb and gutter 

system. Stormwater runoff from the development shall be 
transported by live vegetative ground cover to the maximum extent 

practicable. 
(1) Allowed Uses: 

(a) Agriculture. (see Article I Section 4) 
(b) Silviculture, subject to the provisions of the Forest 

Practices Guidelines Related to Water  Quality (15 NCAC 

II, 6101-0209). 
(c) Residential development. 

(d) Non-residential development.  
(2) Density and Built-upon Limits: 

(a) Single Family Residential - development shall not 
exceed two (2) dwelling units per acre, as defined on a 

project by project basis. No residential lot shall be less 
than one-half (1/2) acre, except within an approved 

cluster development. 
(b) All Other Residential and Non-Residential - development 

shall not exceed twenty-four percent (24%) built-upon 
area on a project by project basis. For projects without 

a curb and gutter system, development shall not exceed 
thirty-six percent (36%) built-upon area on a project-

by-project basis.  For the purpose of calculating built-

upon area, total project area shall include acreage in 
the tract on  which the project is to be developed. 

(c) 10%-70% provisions - a maximum of 10% of the 
balance of the watershed outside the critical area may 

be developed with up to 70% built-upon surface area on 
a project-by-project basis. No site can exceed 70% built 

upon area. For expansions to existing development, the 
existing built-upon surface area is not counted toward 

the allowed 70% built-upon surface area. 
(E) In accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 143-214.5, an 

applicant may average development density on up to two 
noncontiguous properties in order to achieve compliance with the 

watershed development standards set forth in this Section. 

042021 BCC Meeting

325



292 

 

Section 3.  Cluster Development. 

Clustering of development is allowed under the following conditions: 

(A) Minimum lot sizes are not applicable to single family cluster 
development projects; however, the total number of lots shall not 

exceed the number of lots allowed for single family detached 
developments in Section 2.  Built-upon area or stormwater control 

requirements of the project shall not exceed that allowed for the 
critical area or balance of watershed, whichever applies. 

(B) All built-upon area shall be designed and located to minimize 
stormwater runoff impact to the receiving waters and minimize 

concentrated stormwater flow, maximize the use of sheet flow 
through vegetated areas, and maximize the flow length through 

vegetated areas. 
(C) Areas of concentrated density development are located in upland 

areas and away, to the maximum extent practicable, from surface 

waters and drainage ways. 
(D) If common open space is the method used to meet the standards of 

Section 2, the remainder of the tract not included in individual lots 
shall remain in a vegetated or natural state. The title to the open 

space area shall be conveyed to an incorporated homeowners 
association for management; to a local government for preservation 

as a park or open space; or to a conservation organization for 
preservation in a permanent easement. Where a property 

association is not incorporated, a maintenance agreement shall be 
filed with the property deeds. 

(E) In reviewing and approving a development plan for a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) or mixed use development, the County shall 

have the option of determining built-upon area for the entire 
development or for each type of land-use within the development. 

Section 4.  Buffer Areas Required. 

(A) A minimum one hundred (100) foot vegetative buffer is required for 
all new development activities under the 10%-70% provision; 

otherwise a minimum thirty (30) foot vegetative buffer for 
development activities is required along all perennial waters 

indicated on the most recent versions of U.S.G.S.  1:24,000 (7.5 
minute) scale topographic maps or as determined by local 

government studies.  Desirable artificial streambank or shoreline 
stabilization is permitted. 

(B) No new development is allowed in the buffer except for water 
dependent structures or other structures such as flag poles, signs, 

and security lights which result in only minimal increases in 

042021 BCC Meeting

326



293 

 

impervious surface, and public projects such as road crossings and 
greenways where no practical alternative exists. These activities 

should minimize built-upon surface area, direct runoff away from 
the surface waters and maximize the utilization of stormwater Best 

Management Practices. 

Section 5.  Rules Governing the Interpretation of Watershed Area 

Boundaries. 

(A) Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of the watershed 

areas, as shown on the Watershed Map, the following rules shall 
apply: 

(B) Where area boundaries are indicated as approximately following 
either street, alley, railroad or highway lines or centerlines thereof, 

such lines shall be construed to be said boundaries. 
(C) Where area boundaries are indicated as approximately following lot 

lines, such lot lines shall be construed to be said boundaries. 

However, a surveyed plat prepared by a registered land surveyor 
may be submitted to the county as evidence that one or more 

properties along these boundaries do not lie within the watershed 
area.  

(D) Where the watershed area boundaries lie at a scaled distance more 
than twenty-five (25) feet from any parallel lot line, the location of 

watershed area boundaries shall be determined by use of the scale 
appearing on the watershed map.  

(E) Where the watershed area boundaries lie at a scaled distance of 
twenty-five (25) feet or less from any parallel lot line, the location 

of watershed area boundaries shall be construed to be the lot line. 
(F) Where other uncertainty exists, the Watershed Administrator shall 

interpret the Watershed Map as to location of such boundaries. This 
decision may be appealed to the Board of Adjustment. 

Section 6.  Application of Regulations. 

(A) No building or land shall hereafter be used and no development 
shall take place except in conformity with the regulations herein 

specified for the watershed area in which it is located. 
(B) No area required for the purpose of complying with the provisions 

of this ordinance shall be included in the area required for another 
building. 

(C) Every residential building hereafter erected, moved or structurally 
altered shall be located on a lot which conforms to the regulations 

herein specified, except as permitted in Section 7. 
(D) If a use or class of use is not specifically indicated as being allowed 

in a watershed area, such use or class of use is prohibited. 

042021 BCC Meeting

327



294 

 

Section 7.  Existing Development. 

Any existing development as defined in this Article may be continued and 

maintained subject to the provisions provided herein. Expansions to 
structures classified as existing development must meet the requirements of 

this chapter; however, the built-upon area of the existing development is not 
required to be included in the density calculations. 

(A) Vacant Lots. This category consists of vacant lots for which plats or 
deeds have been recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of 

Watauga County. A lot may be used for any of the uses allowed in 
the watershed area in which it is located, provided that where the 

lot area is below the minimum specified in this ordinance the 
Watershed Administrator is authorized to issue a watershed 

protection permit. 
(B) Occupied Lots.  This category consists of lots, occupied for 

residential purposes at the time of the adoption of this ordinance. 

These lots may continue to be used.  
(C) Uses of Land.  This category consists of uses existing at the time of 

adoption of this ordinance where such use of the land is not 
permitted to be established hereafter in the watershed area in 

which it is located. Such uses may be continued except as follows: 
(1) When such use of land has been changed to an allowed use, it 

shall not thereafter revert to any prohibited use. 
(2) Such use of land shall be changed only to an allowed use. 

(3) When such use ceases for a period of at least one year, it 
shall not be reestablished. 

(D) Reconstruction of Buildings or Built-upon Areas. Any existing 
building or built-upon area not in conformance with the restrictions 

of this chapter that has been damaged or removed may be repaired 
and/or reconstructed, except that there are no restrictions in single 

family residential development, provided: 

(1) Repair or reconstruction is initiated within twelve (12) months 
and completed within two (2) years of such damage. 

(2) The total amount of space devoted to built-upon area may not 
be increased unless stormwater control that equals or 

exceeds the previous development is provided. 

Section 8.  Watershed Protection Permit. 

(A) Except where a single family residence is constructed on a lot 
deeded prior to the effective date of this chapter, no building or 

built-upon area shall be erected, moved, enlarged or structurally 
altered, nor shall any building permit be issued nor shall any 

change in the use of any building or land be made until a 

042021 BCC Meeting

328



295 

 

Watershed Protection Permit has been issued by the Watershed 
Administrator. No Watershed Protection Permit shall be issued 

except in conformity with the provisions of this chapter. 
(B) Watershed Protection Permit applications shall be filed with the 

Watershed Administrator. The application shall include a completed 
application form and supporting documentation deemed necessary 

by the Watershed Administrator. 
(C) Prior to issuance of a Watershed Protection Permit, the Watershed 

Administrator may consult with qualified personnel for assistance to 
determine if the application meets the requirements of this chapter. 

(D) A Watershed Protection Permit shall expire if a Building Permit or 
Watershed Occupancy Permit (when no building permit is required) 

for such use is not obtained by the applicant within twelve (12) 
months from the date of issuance. 

Section 9.  Building Permit Required. 

Except for a single family residence constructed on a lot deeded prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance, no permit required under the North Carolina 

State Building Code shall be issued for any activity for which a Watershed 
Protection Permit is required until that permit has been issued. 

Section 10.  Watershed Protection Occupancy Permit. 

(A) The Watershed Administrator shall issue a Watershed Protection 

Occupancy Permit certifying that all requirements of this chapter 
have been met prior to the occupancy or use of a building hereafter 

erected, altered or moved and/or prior to the change of use of any 
building or land. 

(B) A Watershed Protection Occupancy Permit, either for the whole or 
part of a building, shall be applied for coincident with the 

application for a Watershed Protection Permit and shall be issued or 
denied within ten (10) days after the erection or structural 

alterations of the building. 

(C) When only a change in use of land or existing building occurs, the 
Watershed Administrator shall issue a Watershed Protection 

Occupancy Permit certifying that all requirements of this chapter 
have been met coincident with the Watershed Protection Permit. 

(D) If the Watershed Protection Occupancy Permit is denied, the 
Watershed Administrator shall notify the applicant in writing stating 

the reasons for denial. 
(E) No building or structure which has been erected, moved, or 

structurally altered may be occupied until the Watershed 
Administrator has approved and issued a Watershed Protection 

Occupancy Permit. 

042021 BCC Meeting

329



296 

 

Article IV  Public Health Regulations 

Section 1.  Public Health, in general. 

No activity, situation, structure or land use shall be allowed within the 
watershed which poses a threat to water quality and the public health, 

safety and welfare.  Such conditions may arise from inadequate on-site 
sewage systems which utilize ground absorption; inadequate sedimentation 

and erosion control measures; the improper storage or disposal of junk, 
trash or other refuse within a buffer area; the absence or improper 

implementation of a spill containment plan for toxic and hazardous 
materials; the improper management of stormwater runoff; or any other 

situation found to pose a threat to water quality. 

Section 2.  Abatement. 

(A) The Watershed Administrator shall monitor land use activities within 
the watershed areas to identify situations that may pose a threat to 

water quality. 

(B) The Watershed Administrator shall report all findings to the Board 
of Commissioners.  The Watershed Administrator may consult with 

any public agency or official and request recommendations. 
(C) Where the Board of Commissioners finds a threat to water quality 

and the public health, safety and welfare, the Board shall institute 
any appropriate action or proceeding to restrain, correct or abate 

the condition and/or violation. 
 

Article V  Administration, Enforcement and Appeals 

Section 1.  Watershed Administrator and Duties thereof. 

The county shall appoint a Watershed Administrator, who shall be duly 
sworn in. It shall be the duty of the Watershed Administrator to administer 

and enforce the provisions of this chapter as follows: 
(A) The Watershed Administrator shall issue Watershed Protection 

Permits and Watershed Protection Occupancy Permits as prescribed 

herein. A record of all permits shall be kept on file and shall be 
available for public inspection during regular office hours of the 

Administrator. 
(B) The Watershed Administrator shall serve as staff to the Board of 

Adjustment for cases involving this chapter. 
(C) The Watershed Administrator shall keep records of all amendments 

to the local Water Supply Watershed Protection Regulations and 
shall provide copies of all amendments upon adoption to the 

042021 BCC Meeting

330



297 

 

Watershed Protection Section of the Division of Energy, Mineral and 
Land Resources. 

(D) The Watershed Administrator is granted the authority to administer 
and enforce the provisions of this chapter, exercising in the 

fulfillment of his responsibility the full police power of the county. 
The Watershed Administrator, or his duly authorized representative, 

may enter any building, structure, or premises, as provided by law, 
to perform any duty imposed upon him/her by this chapter. 

(E) The Watershed Administrator shall keep a record of variances to the 
local Water Supply Watershed Protection Regulations. This record 

shall be submitted to the Watershed Protection Section of the 
Division of Energy, Mineral and Land Resources. on or before the 

1st of January every calendar year and shall provide a description 
of each project receiving a variance and the reasons for granting 

the variance. 

 
Article VI  Appearance Standards 

Multi-family and non-residential uses are subject to the standards described 
in this section. The standards do not apply to bona fide farming operations, 

which are exempt from this ordinance, or to temporary uses which are not 
required to be connected to a permanent wastewater disposal system. 

Compliance with the standards shall be determined through a site plan 
review by the Watershed Administrator. Standards are as follows. 

Section 1. Buffer Areas. 

Buffer areas shall be established in order to create the impression of spatial 

separation between adjacent land uses. The purpose of this separation is to 
lessen possible adverse effects of land uses upon each other and to provide 

within development planted/green areas so as to maintain the rural 

character of the community.  Buffer requirements are as follows: 

(A) Where a commercial or multi-family use is proposed adjacent to 

single family residential use, side and rear yard setback of 30 feet 
shall be observed for buildings, parking, or storage. This area is to 

be used as a buffer and shall be landscaped as follows. Buffers shall 
consist of plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees spaced no 

more than thirty (30) feet apart. Such trees shall be at least six to 
seven (6-7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-8) feet tall 

with a one and one half (1-1/2) inch caliper (trunk diameter 6 
inches above grade) for deciduous trees at time of planting and 

shall reach a height of no less than twenty (20) feet at maturity.  
Where utility easements conflict with this height requirement, the 

requirement may be lessened at the discretion of the Watershed 

042021 BCC Meeting

331



298 

 

Administrator. In addition, plantings of low growing shrubs, and/or 
trees shall be placed at ten (10) foot intervals. Plantings within 

buffer zones shall be staggered unless topography is prohibitive. No 
planting shall be placed in the road right-of-way. Lists of 

recommended plantings are available from the Planning and 
Inspections Department. 

(B) Where a commercial or multi-family use is proposed adjacent to a 
commercial or multi-family use side and rear yard setback of 15 

feet shall be observed for buildings, parking, or storage. This area 
is to be used as a buffer and shall be landscaped as follows. Buffers 

shall consist of plantings of evergreen and/or deciduous trees 
spaced no more than thirty (30) feet apart. Such trees shall be at 

least six to seven (6-7) feet tall for evergreens and six to eight (6-
8) feet tall with a one and one half (1-1/2) inch caliper for 

deciduous trees at time of planting and shall reach a height of no 

less than twenty (20) feet at maturity, except as described in 
subsection (A). In addition, permanent ground cover such as 

grasses shall be established. 
(C) Walls, fences, earthen berms, or other natural features may be 

used in combination with or in lieu of planted buffers if approved as 
part of a permit. Considerations include but are not limited to: 

(1) Any existing significant vegetation within the buffer(s) may be 
preserved and credited towards meeting the standard for the 

required buffer. Existing fences, berms, and/or walls within 
the buffer(s) may be used to fulfill the standards set forth for 

the buffer providing these elements are healthy and in a 
condition of good repair. Chain link fencing is not acceptable 

in meeting the performance criteria of this ordinance. 
(2) Installation of supplemental vegetation and/or site features 

may be required at the time of site plan review, if existing 

vegetation and/or site features within the buffer do not meet 
or exceed the requirements of this ordinance. 

(D) Open storage areas, exposed machinery and outdoor areas used for 
the storage and collection of rubbish must be visually screened 

from roads and surrounding land uses. Suitable types of screening 
include opaque wood fences and dense evergreen hedges of six (6) 

feet or more in height. 
(E) The recipient of a Watershed Occupancy Permit, or his successor, 

shall be responsible for maintaining all common areas, 
improvements, or facilities required by the ordinance or any permit 

issued in accordance with its provisions, except those areas, 
improvements, or facilities with respect to which an offer of 

dedication to the public has been accepted by the appropriate public 
authority. As illustrations, and without limiting the generality of the 

042021 BCC Meeting

332



299 

 

foregoing, this means that private roads and parking areas, water 
and sewer lines, and recreational facilities must be property 

maintained so that they can be used in the manner intended, and 
required vegetation and trees used for screening, landscaping, or 

shading must be replaced if they die or are destroyed. 

Section 2.  Location and Buffering of Parking. 

In order to preserve the rural environment, developers are encouraged to 
place parking and loading/unloading areas at the rear or side of buildings. 

("Front" is defined as the face of the building which is parallel to a public 
road. By this definition, buildings on multiple public road frontage lots would 

have multiple "front yards"). In any event, parking areas which are exposed 
to a public road shall include a ten (10) foot buffer strip along the front. At a 

minimum, such strips shall be grassed and/or mulched and shall be planted 
with low growing trees or shrubs no more than twenty (20) feet apart. 

 

Article VII  Changes and Amendments to the Watershed Protection 
Regulations 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners may, on its own motion or on 
petition, after public notice and hearing, amend, supplement, change or 

modify the watershed regulations and restrictions as described herein. 
 

Under no circumstances shall the Board of Commissioners adopt such 
amendments, supplements or changes that would cause this ordinance to 

violate the watershed protection rules as adopted by the N.C.  
Environmental Management Commission. All amendments must be filed with 

the N.C. Division of Energy, Mineral, and Land Resources, N.C. Division of 
Environmental Health, and other State of NC agencies as required. 

 
Article VIII Variances 

The Board of Adjustment shall have the power to authorize, in specific cases, 

minor variances from the terms of this chapter as will not be contrary to the 

public interests where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of 

this chapter will result in unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of this 

chapter shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial 

justice done. In addition, the county shall notify and allow a reasonable 

comment period for all other local governments having jurisdiction in the 

designated watershed where the variance is being considered. 

If an applicant requests a major variance as defined in this Article, and if the 

Board of Adjustment decides in favor of granting the variance, the Board 

042021 BCC Meeting

333



300 

 

shall prepare a preliminary record of the hearing with all deliberate speed.  

The preliminary record of the hearing shall include: 

(A) The variance application; 
(B) The hearing notices; 

(C) The evidence presented; 

(D) Motions, offers of proof, objections to evidence, and rulings on 
them; 

(E) Proposed findings and exceptions; 
(F) The proposed decision, including all conditions proposed to be 

added to the permit. 
The preliminary record shall be sent to the NC Environmental Management 

Commission for its review as follows: 
(A) If the Commission concludes from the preliminary record that the 

variance qualifies as a major variance and that (1) the property 
owner can secure no reasonable return from, nor make any 

practical use of the property unless the proposed variance is 
granted, and (2) the variance, if granted, will not result in a serious 

threat to the water supply, then the Commission shall approve the 
variance as proposed or approve the proposed variance with 

conditions and stipulations.  The Commission shall prepare a 

Commission decision and send it to the Watershed Review Board. If 
the Commission approves the variance as proposed, the Board shall 

prepare a final decision granting the proposed variance.  If the 
Commission approves the variance with conditions and stipulations, 

the Board shall prepare a final decision, including such conditions 
and stipulations, granting the proposed variance. 

(B) If the Commission concludes from the preliminary record that the 
variance qualifies as a major variance and that (1) the property 

owner can secure a reasonable return from or make a practical use 
of the property without the variance or (2) the variance, if granted, 

will result in a serious threat to the water supply, then the 
Commission shall deny approval of the variance as proposed.  The 

Commission shall prepare a Commission decision and send it to the 
Watershed Review Board.  The Board shall prepare a final decision 

denying the variance as proposed.     

The Watershed Administrator shall notify in writing each local government 
having jurisdiction in the watershed. Such notice shall include a description 

of the variance being requested. Local governments receiving notice of the 
variance request may submit comments to the Watershed Administrator 

prior to a decision by the Board of Adjustment. Such comments shall 

become a part of the record of proceedings of the Board. 

  

042021 BCC Meeting

334



301 

 

CHAPTER 22  WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS 

Article I  Authority and Purpose. 

Inasmuch as Watauga County has determined that single wind power 

turbines are exempt from the North Carolina Mountain Ridge Protection Act, 

and pursuant to the authority granted to counties by NC General Statute 

153A-121 et seq. and other pertinent statutes and amendments thereto, it is 

the purpose of this ordinance to regulate the use of wind energy systems 

and to describe the conditions by which a permit for installing a system 

could be obtained. 

Article II  Findings. 

Wind power is a clean, inexhaustible, reliable, and economical source of 

energy that can help us reduce our dependence on fossil fuels, help to 

preserve and protect the environment, and help to create new jobs and 

sustainable forms of development. As a result of these benefits, wind power 

has become the fastest growing energy source in the world and is helping to 

satisfy the growing demand for electricity cleanly and affordably. 

The State of North Carolina has enacted a number of laws and programs to 

encourage the use of small-scale renewable energy systems including a 

state tax credit, net metering law, property tax exemptions, and a state 

wide green power program. 

Article III  Small Wind Energy Systems. 

Small wind energy systems shall be a permitted use by right subject to the 

requirements set forth in this section: 

Section 1.  Wind Turbine Height. 

Height shall be limited to 135 feet. 

Section 2.  Setback. 

The base of the wind turbine shall not be closer to surrounding property lines 

than the height of the wind turbine unless a NC Registered Professional 

Engineer certifies the fall zone of the wind turbine and appurtenances will be 

within the setback area proposed. In addition, no wind turbine shall be 

located closer to an inhabited structure on adjacent property than 1.5 times 

042021 BCC Meeting

335



302 

 

the height of the wind turbine. Relief from this section may be granted if the 

applicant can secure a permanent easement from the adjoining property 

owner(s) providing for a fall zone. 

Section 3. Building Permit Requirements. 

A building permit shall be required and building permit applications for small 

wind energy systems shall be accompanied by standard drawings of the wind 

turbine structure, including the tower, base, and footings. An engineering 

analysis of the tower certified by a licensed professional engineer including 

standards for ice/wind loading shall also be submitted. This analysis may be 

supplied by the manufacturer. Wet stamps shall not be required. 

Section 4. Compliance with FAA Regulations. 

Small wind energy systems must comply with applicable FAA regulations, 

including any necessary approvals for installations close to airports. Evidence 

of compliance or non-applicability shall be submitted with the application. 

Section 5.  Utility Notification. 

No small wind energy system shall be installed until evidence has been given 

that the utility company has been informed of the customer's intent to install 

an interconnected customer-owned generator. Off-grid systems shall be 

exempt from this requirement. 

Section 6.  Appearance. 

Small wind energy towers shall maintain a galvanized finish or be painted to 

conform the tower color to the surrounding environment to reduce visual 

obtrusiveness. No wind tower should have any signage, or writing or pictures 

that may be construed as advertising placed on it at any time. In addition no 

flags, streamers or decorative items may be attached to the wind energy 

system tower or turbine. 

Section 7.  Removal of Defective or Abandoned Wind Energy 

Systems. 

Any wind energy system that is not functional shall be repaired by the owner 

or removed. In the event that the County becomes aware of any wind 

energy system that is not operated for a continuous period of 6 months, the 

County will notify the landowner by registered mail and provide 45 days for 

042021 BCC Meeting

336



303 

 

a written response. In such a response, the landowner shall set forth 

reasons for the operational difficulty and provide a reasonable timetable for 

corrective action. If the County deems the timetable for corrective action as 

unreasonable, the County shall notify the landowner and such landowner 

shall remove the turbine with 120 days of receipt of said notice. 

Article IV  Large Wind Energy Systems 

Large wind energy systems shall be a use permitted by review subject to the 

requirements of this Article IV as well as Article III, except that the height 

limits in Article III Section 1 may be increased if approved as necessary by 

the Board of Adjustment. 

Section 1.  Permit Application. 

(A) A person seeking a site permit for a wind turbine over 20 KW shall 
file an application with the County for review. The application must 

provide the following background information regarding the 
applicant: 

(1) A letter of transmittal signed by an authorized representative 
or agent of the applicant. 

(2) The complete name, address, telephone number, and e-mail 

address of the applicant and any authorized representative. 
(3) The signature of the person who prepared the application, if 

prepared by an agent or consultant of the applicant. 
(4) The role of the permit applicant in the construction and 

operation of the wind power project. 
(5) The identity of any other wind power project located in the 

State in which the applicant, or a principal of the applicant, 
has an ownership or other financial interest; the operator of 

the wind power project if different from the applicant; and 
the name of the person or persons to be the permittee if a 

site permit is issued. 
(B) The applicant shall state in the application whether a certificate of 

public convenience and necessity for the system is required from 
the North Carolina Utilities Commission and, if so, the anticipated 

schedule for obtaining the certificate. The County may ask the 

Utilities Commission to determine whether a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity is required for a particular wind power 

project for which the County has received a site permit application. 
The County shall not approve a project requiring a certificate unless 

and until such certificate is issued by the Utilities Commission. If a 
certificate is not required from the Utilities Commission, the permit 

042021 BCC Meeting

337



304 

 

applicant shall include with the application a discussion of what the 
applicant intends to do with the power that is generated. 

(C) The applicant shall describe in the application how the proposed 
wind power project furthers State policy to site such projects in an 

orderly manner compatible with environmental preservation, 
sustainable development, and the efficient use of resources. 

(D) The permit applicant shall include the following information about 
the site proposed for the wind power project and any associated 

facilities: 
(1) The surveyed boundaries of the site proposed for the wind 

power project. 
(2) The location of other wind turbines in the general area of the 

proposed wind power project. 
(3) The applicant's land rights within the boundaries of the 

proposed site. 

(E) The permit applicant shall provide the following information 
regarding the design of the proposed wind power project: 

(1) A project layout, prepared by a design professional, including 
a map showing the proposed location of the turbine(s). 

(2) A description of the turbine(s) and tower(s) and other 
equipment proposed to be used in the wind power project, 

including the name of the manufacturers of the equipment. 
(3) A description of the project electrical system, including 

transformers at both low voltage and  medium voltage. 
(4) A description and location of associated facilities. 

(F) An applicant for a site permit shall include with the application an 
analysis of the potential impacts of the wind power project, 

proposed mitigative measures, and any adverse environmental 
effects that cannot be avoided, in the following areas: 

(1) Demographics, including people, homes, and businesses. 

(2) Noise. 
(3) Visual impacts. 

(4) Public services and infrastructure 
(5) Cultural and archaeological impacts. 

(6) Recreational resources. 
(7) Public health and safety, including air traffic, electromagnetic 

fields, and security and traffic. 
(8) Hazardous materials. 

(9) Land-based economics, including agriculture, forestry, and 
mining. 

(10) Tourism and community benefits. 
(11) Topography. 

(12) Soils. 
(13) Geologic and groundwater resources. 

042021 BCC Meeting

338



305 

 

(14) Surface water and floodplain resources. 
(15) Wetlands. 

(16) Vegetation. 
(17) Avian, impact assessment that includes an indication of the 

type and number of birds that are known or suspected to use 
a project site and the area surrounding that site. 

(18) Wildlife. 
(19) Rare and unique natural resources. 

(G) The permit applicant shall describe all of the following: 
(1) The manner in which the wind power project, including 

associated facilities, will be constructed. 
(2) How the wind power project will be operated and maintained 

after construction, including a maintenance schedule. 
(3) The anticipated schedule for completion of the wind power 

project, and shall identify the expected date of commercial 

operation. 
(4) The energy expected to be generated by the wind power 

project. 
(H) The permit applicant shall include the following information 

regarding decommissioning of the wind power project and restoring 
the site: 

(1) The anticipated life of the wind power project. 
(2) The estimated decommissioning costs in current dollars. 

(3) The method and schedule for updating the costs of 
decommissioning and restoration. 

(4) The method of ensuring that funds will be available for 
decommissioning and restoration. 

(5) The anticipated manner in which the wind power project will 
be decommissioned and the site restored. 

(I) The permit applicant shall include in the application a list of all 

known federal, state, and local agencies or authorities, and titles of 
the permits they issue that are required for the proposed wind 

power project. 
(J) Blue Ridge Parkway: If a proposed wind energy site is within the 

Blue Ridge Parkway viewshed the applicant shall inform the 
National Park Service of the proposed wind turbine sitting. Park 

Service recommendations shall be given reasonable consideration 
and documentation of this consideration shall be provided to the 

County. The Park Service shall be afforded 30 days to respond to 
the applicant’s written intention to erect a wind turbine. No answer 

to the notification within the 30 days shall be considered as an 
affirmation of the site as proposed. Viewshed shall be determined 

by the County using maps and documents prepared for that 
purpose by the Design Research Laboratory at NC State University 

042021 BCC Meeting

339



306 

 

and the Blue Ridge Parkway Division of Resource Planning and 
Professional Services. 

 

Section 2.  Special Use Permit Required. 

Prior to granting or denying a permit for a large wind energy system, the 

Board of Adjustment shall conduct a hearing as set forth in Chapter 3.  

  

042021 BCC Meeting

340



307 

 

CHAPTER 23  WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

Article I Purpose and Legislative Intent 

The purpose of this Wireless Telecommunications chapter is to provide for 
the public health, safety and welfare by ensuring that residents, businesses 

and public safety operations in Watauga County have reliable access to 
telecommunications networks and state of the art mobile broadband 

communications services while also minimizing adverse impacts created by 

wireless facilities and structures. To accomplish the above stated objectives 
and to ensure that the placement, construction or modification of wireless 

telecommunications facilities complies with all applicable federal and state 
laws, including without limitation Section 6409 of the federal Middle Class 

Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012, 47 U.S.C. 1455(a), and NCGS 
§160D, Article 9, Part 3, Watauga County enacts these single comprehensive 

wireless telecommunications regulations. This chapter is enacted pursuant to 
the general police powers granted by NCGS §153A-121. By enacting this 

chapter it is the County’s intent to: 

(A) Minimize external impacts (i.e. visual impacts and generator noise) 

on surrounding areas;  
(B) Encourage cooperation among carriers and joint use of new and 

existing wireless structures in an effort to minimize the necessity 
for new structures;   

(C) Encourage use of existing buildings and suitable alternative 

structures for wireless facility use in an effort to minimize the 
number of new structures;  

(D) Encourage concealed wireless structures; 
(E) Encourage concealed antenna designs; 

(F) Encourage concealed cables and feed lines; 
(G) Minimize visual impacts on Major Mountain Ridges to the greatest 

extent possible.  
 

Article II  Approvals Required for Wireless Facilities and Wireless 
Support Structures 

Section 1.  Administrative Review and Approval.  

The following types of applications are subject to the review process as 

provided in Article III. No other type of site plan review is necessary:  

(A) New wireless support structures that are 60 feet or less in height. 

(B) New wireless support structures that are 100 feet or less in height 

and separated from residential dwellings by a distance of 300 feet 

or more. 

042021 BCC Meeting

341



308 

 

(C) New wireless support structures that are 140 feet or less in height 
located within commercial or industrial areas and separated from 

residential dwellings by a distance of 300 feet or more.    
(D) Concealed wireless facilities that are 140 feet or less in height and 

separated from residential dwellings by a distance of 300 feet or 
more.      

(E) Monopoles or replacement poles located on public property or within 
utility easements or rights-of-way.   

(F) COWs, if the use of the COW is either not in response to a 
declaration of an emergency or disaster by the Governor, or will last 

in excess of one hundred-twenty (120) days.   
(G) Substantial modifications. 

(H) Collocations.  

Section 2.  Board Review and Approval. 

 Any application for wireless facilities and/or wireless support structures not 

subject to administrative review and approval pursuant to this chapter shall 
be permitted upon the granting of a Special Use Permit by the Watauga 

County Board of Adjustment.   

Section 3.  Exempt from Review and Approval. 

The following are exempt from all County approval processes and 

requirements:  

(A) Removal or replacement of transmission equipment on an existing 
wireless tower or base station that does not result in a substantial 

modification as defined in this ordinance.  
(B) Ordinary maintenance of existing wireless facilities and wireless 

support structures, as defined in this Article.  
(C) Wireless facilities placed on utility poles.  

(D) COWs placed for a period of not more than one hundred twenty 
(120) days at any location within the County or after a declaration 

of an emergency or a disaster by the Governor.  

(E) Antennas or antenna support structures of amateur radio operators 
90 feet or less in height. 

(F) New and existing wireless support structures and facilities owned by 
governmental agencies and designed for non-commercial 

emergency communications. 

042021 BCC Meeting

342



309 

 

Article III  Administrative Review and Approval Process 

Section 1.  Content of Application Package for New Sites. 

All administrative review application packages must contain the following:  

(A) Administrative review application form signed by the owner, or the 

applicant in accordance with item (B) below;  
(B) Non-owner applicants must provide a copy of a lease or letter of 

authorization from the property owner evidencing applicant's 
authority to pursue the application. Such submissions need not 

disclose financial lease terms; and  
(C) Site plans detailing proposed improvements which comply with this 

ordinance. Drawings must depict improvements related to the 
applicable requirements including property boundaries, setbacks, 

topography, elevation sketch, and dimensions of improvements.  
(D) Documentation from a North Carolina licensed professional engineer 

including calculation of the fall zone and certification that the 

wireless support structure has sufficient structural integrity to 
accommodate the required number of additional users as provided 

in this ordinance. Design of the support structure shall be in 
accordance with the latest ANSI/EIA/TIA-222 standards. Tower 

foundation design shall be in accordance with Chapter 18 of the NC 
Building Code. Grounding and electrical service equipment shall be 

in accordance with the National Electric Code. Watauga County is 
located within a Special Wind Region that will impact structural 

design of wireless structures and foundations.  

Section 2.  Content of Application Package for Other Sites/Facilities. 

All administrative review application packages must contain the following:  

(A) Administrative review application form signed by the owner, or the 

applicant in accordance with item Section 1 (B) above;  
(B) For collocations and substantial modifications, written verification 

from a North Carolina licensed professional engineer certifying that 

the host support structure is structurally and mechanically capable 
of supporting the proposed additional antenna or configuration of 

antennas. Watauga County is located within a Special Wind Region 
that will impact structural design of wireless structures and 

foundations. 
(C) For substantial modifications, drawings depicting the improvements 

along with their dimensions.  

042021 BCC Meeting

343



310 

 

Section 3.  Fees.  

Permit fees are pursuant to the Planning & Inspections Fee Schedule. The 

fees for Collocation, Substantial Modifications, New Wireless Support 
Structures and Special Use permit applications include the Building 

Inspector’s review and approval of structural and electrical systems that are 
subject to the North Carolina State Building Code and the National Electric 

Code respectively.  

Section 4.  Procedure and Timing.  

(A) Applications for Collocation, Monopole or Replacement Pole, Concealed 
Wireless Facility, Non-exempt COW or Substantial Modification. Within 

thirty (30) days of the receipt of an application for a collocation, a 
monopole or replacement pole, a concealed wireless facility, a non-

exempt COW or a substantial modification, the Administrator will:  
(1) Review the application for conformity with this chapter. An 

application under this Section D.1 is deemed to be complete 

unless the Administrator notifies the applicant in writing, 
within fourteen (14) calendar days of submission of the 

application of the specific deficiencies in the application which, 
if cured, would make the application complete. Upon receipt 

of a timely written notice that an application is deficient, an 
applicant may take fourteen (14) calendar days from 

receiving such notice to cure the specific deficiencies. If the 
applicant cures the deficiencies within ten fourteen (14) 

calendar days, the application shall be reviewed and 
processed within thirty (30) calendar days from the initial 

date the application was received. If the applicant requires a 
period of time beyond fourteen (14) calendar days to cure the 

specific deficiencies, the thirty (30) calendar days deadline for 
review shall be extended by the same period of time;  

(2) Make a final decision to approve the collocation application or 

approve or disapprove other applications under Section 4 (A); 
and  

(3) Advise the applicant in writing of the final decision. If the 
Administrator denies an application, written justification of the 

denial, which must be based on substantial evidence of 
inconsistencies between the application and this chapter, 

must be provided.  
(4) Failure to issue a written decision within thirty (30) calendar 

days shall constitute an approval of the application.  
 

042021 BCC Meeting

344



311 

 

(B) Applications for New Wireless Support Structures That Are Subject to 
Administrative Review and Approval. Within forty five (45) calendar 

days of the receipt of an application for a new wireless support 
structure that is subject to administrative review and approval under 

this chapter, the Administrator will:  
(1) Review the application for conformity with this chapter. An 

application under Section 4 (B) is deemed to be complete 
unless the Administrator notifies the applicant in writing, 

within fifteen (15) calendar days of submission of the 
application of the specific deficiencies in the application which, 

if cured, would make the application complete. Upon receipt 
of a timely written notice that an application is deficient, an 

applicant may take fifteen (15) calendar days from receiving 
such notice to cure the specific deficiencies. If the applicant 

cures the deficiencies within fifteen (15) calendar days, the 

application shall be reviewed and processed within forty five 
(45) calendar days from the initial date the application was 

received. If the applicant requires a period of time beyond 
fifteen (15) calendar days to cure the specific deficiencies, the 

forty five calendar days deadline for review shall be extended 
by the same period of time;  

(2) Make a final decision to approve or disapprove the 
application; and  

(3) Advise the applicant in writing of the final decision. If the 
Administrator denies an application, written justification of the 

denial, which must be based on substantial evidence of 
inconsistencies between the application and this chapter, 

must be provided.  
(4) Failure to issue a written decision within forty five (45) 

calendar days shall constitute an approval of the application. 

(C) Building Permits associated with (A) and (B) above. A Building 
Inspector shall issue a building permit following approval of the 

application under administrative review in accordance with the 
process and standards of this chapter and the North Carolina State 

Building Code.   

Article IV  Special Use Permit Process.  

Section 1.  Special Use Permit. 

Any wireless facility or wireless support structures not meeting the 

requirements of Article II Section 1 or 3 may be permitted upon the granting 

of a Special Use permit, subject to:  

(A) The submission requirements of Section IV.B below; and  

042021 BCC Meeting

345



312 

 

(B) The applicable standards of Section V below; and  

(C) The requirements of the Special Use permit approval.   

Section 2.  Content of Special Use Permit Application Package. 

All Special Use permit application packages must contain the following:  

(A) Special Use Permit application form signed by the owner, or the 
applicant in accordance with (B) below;  

(B) Non-owner applicants must provide a copy of lease or letter of 
authorization from the property owner evidencing applicant's 

authority to pursue the application. Such submissions need not 
disclose financial lease terms;  

(C) Written description and scaled drawings of the proposed wireless 
support structure or wireless facility, including structure height, 

ground and structure design, and proposed materials;  
(D) Number of proposed antennas and their height above ground level, 

including the proposed placement of antennas on the wireless 

support structure;  
(E) Line-of-sight diagram or photo simulation, showing the proposed 

wireless support structure set against the skyline and viewed from 
at least four (4) directions within the surrounding areas;  

(F) A statement that the proposed wireless support structure will be 
made available for collocation to other service providers at 

commercially reasonable rates, provided space is available and 

consistent with Article V Section 1 (A) of this chapter.   

Section 3.  Fees. 

The total fees for reviewing a Special Use permit application with proposed 

wireless facilities shall be considered together as one application requiring 

only a single application fee.  

Section 4.  Procedure and Timing. 

Within one hundred fifty (150) calendar days of the receipt of an application 

under Article IV of this chapter, the Administrator and Board of Adjustment 

will:  
(A) Complete the process for reviewing the application for conformity 

with this chapter. An application under this Article IV. is deemed to 
be complete unless the Administrator notifies the applicant in 

writing, within thirty (30) calendar days of submission of the 
application of the specific deficiencies in the application which, if 

cured, would make the application complete. Upon receipt of a 
timely written notice that an application is deficient, an applicant 

042021 BCC Meeting

346



313 

 

may take thirty (30) calendar days from receiving such notice to 
cure the specific deficiencies. If the applicant cures the deficiencies 

within thirty (30) calendar days, the application shall be reviewed 
and processed within one hundred fifty (150) calendar days from 

the initial date the application was received. If the applicant 
requires a period of time beyond thirty (30) calendar days to cure 

the specific deficiencies, the one hundred fifty (150) calendar days 
deadline for review shall be extended by the same period of time;  

(B) Conduct a quasi-judicial hearing pursuant to Chapter 3; 
(C) Make a final decision to approve or disapprove the application; and  

(D) Advise the applicant in writing of its final decision.  
(E) Failure to issue a written decision within one hundred fifty (150) 

calendar days shall constitute an approval of the application.  

Article V  General Standards and Design Requirements.  

Section 1.  Design.  

(A) Wireless support structures:    
(1) Shall be engineered and constructed to accommodate a 

minimum number of collocations based upon their height as 
follows: 

(a) Support structures 60 to 100 feet in height shall 
support at least two (2) telecommunications providers;  

(b) Support structures greater than 100 feet shall support 
at least three (3) telecommunications providers;  

(2) The equipment compound area surrounding the wireless 
support structure must be of sufficient size to accommodate 

accessory equipment for the appropriate number of 
telecommunications providers in accordance with Article V 

Section 1(A)(1).  
(B) Concealed wireless facilities are required on Major Mountain Ridges. 

Concealed wireless facilities shall be designed to accommodate the 

collocation of other antennas whenever economically and 
technically feasible. Antennas must be enclosed, camouflaged, 

screened, obscured or otherwise not readily apparent to a casual 
observer.  

(C) Upon request of the applicant, the Board or Administrator may waive 
the requirement that new wireless support structures accommodate 

the collocation of other service providers if it finds that collocation 
at the site is not essential to the public interest, or that the 

construction of a shorter support structure with fewer antennas will 
promote community compatibility.  

042021 BCC Meeting

347



314 

 

(D) A monopole or replacement pole shall be permitted within utility 
easements or rights-of-way, in accordance with the following 

requirements:  
(1) The utility easement or right-of-way shall be a 

minimum of one hundred (100) feet in width.  
(2) The easement or right-of-way shall contain overhead 

utility transmission and/or distribution structures that 
are eighty (80) feet or greater in height.  

(3) The height of the monopole or replacement pole may 
not exceed by more than thirty (30) feet the height of 

existing utility support structures.  
(4) Monopoles and the accessory equipment shall be set 

back a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from all boundaries 
of the easement or right-of-way.  

(5) Single carrier monopoles may be used within utility 

easements and rights-of-way due to the height 
restriction imposed by Subsection (3) above.  

(6) Poles that use the structure of a utility tower for 
support are permitted. Such poles may extend up to 

twenty (20) feet above the height of the utility tower.  
(E) Generators shall be located within equipment shelters or enclosed 

to limit noise levels.   

Section 2.  Setbacks. 

Unless otherwise stated herein, each wireless support structure shall be set 

back from all property lines a distance equal to its engineered fall zone.  

Section 3.  Height. 

Substantial Modifications and newly erected Wireless Support Structures shall 

not exceed the permitted height except by Special Use Permit granted by the 

Board of Adjustment.   

Section 4.  Aesthetics. 

(A) Lighting and Marking. Wireless facilities or wireless support 
structures shall not be lighted or marked unless required by the 

Federal Communications Commission (FCC) or the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA).  

(B) Signage. Signs located at the wireless facility shall be limited to 
ownership and contact information, FCC antenna registration 

number (if required) and any other information as required by 
government regulation. Commercial advertising is strictly 

prohibited. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this chapter 

042021 BCC Meeting

348



315 

 

shall prohibit signage that is approved for other uses on property on 
which wireless facilities are located (e.g., approved signage at 

locations on which concealed facilities are located).  

Section 5.  Accessory Equipment. 

Accessory equipment, including any buildings, cabinets or shelters, shall be 
used only to house equipment and other supplies in support of the operation 

of the wireless facility or wireless support structure. Any equipment not used 

in direct support of such operation shall not be stored on the site.  

Section 6.  Fencing. 

(A) Ground mounted accessory equipment and wireless support 

structures shall be secured and enclosed with a fence not less than 
six (6) feet in height as deemed appropriate by the Board or 

Administrator.  
(B) The Board or Administrator may waive the requirement of Article V 

Section 6 (A) if it is deemed that a fence is not appropriate or 

needed at the proposed location.  

Section 7.  Landscaping. 

The equipment compound shall be screened with landscaping native to the 
area and suitable for planting in USDA Hardiness Zone 6a. All plants, 

including the root ball dimensions or container size to trunk caliper ratio, 
shall conform to ANSI Z60.1 “American Standard for Nursery Stock” latest 

edition. Quantity, ratio and minimum sizes of trees and shrubs shall be as 

follows:  

(A) Deciduous and/or Evergreen trees – twenty (20) feet maximum 
spacing. Trees shall have a minimum height of six (6) feet upon 

planting. Deciduous trees shall have a minimum two (2) inch 
caliper.   

(B) Shrubs – six (6) feet maximum spacing. Shrubs shall be a minimum 

height of eighteen (18) inches upon planting.  

Article VI Miscellaneous Provisions.  

Section 1.  Abandonment and Removal. 

If a wireless support structure is abandoned, and it remains abandoned for a 

period in excess of twelve (12) consecutive months, the County may require 
that such wireless support structure be removed only after first providing 

written notice to the owner of the wireless support structure and giving the 
owner the opportunity to take such action(s) as may be necessary to reclaim 

042021 BCC Meeting

349



316 

 

the wireless support structure within sixty (60) days of receipt of said 
written notice. In the event the owner of the wireless support structure fails 

to reclaim the wireless support structure within the sixty (60) day period, 
the owner of the wireless support structure shall be required to remove the 

same within six (6) months thereafter. The County shall ensure and enforce 
removal by means of its existing regulatory authority, with costs of removal 

charged to the owner. 

Section 2.  Multiple Uses on a Single Parcel or Lot. 

Wireless facilities and wireless support structures may be located on a parcel 
containing another principal use on the same site or may be the principal 

use itself.  

Article VII Wireless Facilities and Wireless Support Structures in 

Existence on the Date of Adoption of this Ordinance.  

Section 1.  Existing Wireless Facilities. 

Wireless facilities and wireless support structures that were legally permitted 

on or before the date this chapter was enacted shall be considered a 
permitted and lawful use as long as they remain compliant with the permit 

issued.  

Section 2.  Activities at Non-Conforming Wireless Support 

Structures. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter:  

(A) Ordinary maintenance may be performed on a non-conforming 
wireless support structure or wireless facility.  

(B) Collocation of wireless facilities on an existing non-conforming 
wireless support structure shall not be construed as an expansion, 

enlargement or increase in intensity of a non-conforming structure 
and/or use and shall be permitted through the administrative 

approval process defined in Article II; provided that the collocation 
does not substantially modify the size of the equipment compound 

at that location or otherwise substantially modify the existing non-

conformity.  
(C) Substantial modifications may be made to non-conforming wireless 

support structures utilizing the Special Use permit process defined 

in Article IV of this chapter. 

042021 BCC Meeting

350



317 

 

Article VIII  Jurisdiction 

The provisions of this chapter shall be applicable only to unincorporated 

areas of Watauga County which are not included in the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of a municipality.  

Article IX  National Park Service Review 

When new wireless support structures or substantial modifications are 

proposed within one mile of the Blue Ridge Parkway centerline and within 
the Parkway viewshed, the applicant shall inform the National Park Service 

and seek recommendations. Park Service recommendations shall be given 
reasonable consideration and documentation of this consideration shall be 

provided to the Administrator. The Park Service shall be afforded thirty (30) 

days to respond to the applicant’s initial request.  

Article X  Valle Crucis Historic District   

Wireless support structures shall be prohibited within the Valle Crucis 

Historic District. 

 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

351



Blank Page 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

352



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE PATROL VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PURCHASE REQUEST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Sheriff’s Office will request to utilize the North Carolina Sheriff’s Association bid for new 
equipment and installation for six (6) new patrol vehicles.  The North Carolina Sheriff’s 
Association awarded Dana Safety Supply the bid for equipment and installation. The cost for 
accessory equipment and installation per vehicle is $4,414.82.     
 
Adequate funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget to cover the expenditure.  Board 
action is required to award the bid to Dana Safety Supply in the amount of $26,488.92 for 
accessory equipment and installation for six (6) new vehicles. 
 
Board action is required to award the bid.    
 
 
 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

353



WATAUGA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

(828) 264-3761 •FAX (828) 263-5345 

To: Deron Geouque- Watauga County Manager 

From: Major Kelly Redmon 

Ref: Purchase of police equipment for patrol cars 

LEN D. HAGAMAN, JR. 

SHERIFF 

The Watauga County Sheriff's Office is seeking Board approval to purchase the emergency equipment to 

outfit newly purchase patrol vehicles from Dana Safety Supply. 

Dana Safety Supply has the bid on the North Carolina Sheriff's Association's Procurement program. 

The cost of the equipment is $26,488.92 and will outfit 6 marked patrol vehicles. 

042021 BCC Meeting

354



DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I 
01/31/21 I GROUND SHIPMENT I PPAY & ADD TO TNVOICEI 

Entered By I Salesperson I 
Dempsey Owens I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I 

Sales Quote 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Customer No. WAT AU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
ATT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Customer PO Number Payment Method 

Net 30 
Ordered By Resale Number 

MAJOR REDMON 

Order Approve 
Tax Item Number I Description 

Unit Extended 
Quantity Quantity Price Price 

6 6 y 5201WHD 

GOR 2019 DURANGO HD WRAPS 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
INCLUDED IN EVP 
DODGE DURANGO 
HEADLIGHT WRAPS 

**FR O:JGHTWILL E EADD :D TO THE INVOICE*** 

Print Date 04/09/21 
Print Time 05:50:23 PM 

Page No. 7 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

Approved By: 

D Approve All Items & Quantities 

Quote Good for 30 Days 

Subtotal 
Freight 

6.750 % Sales Tax 

Orde1· Total 

0.0000 0.00 

26,488.92 
0.00 

1,788.00 

28,276.92 

042021 BCC Meeting

355



Sales Quote 
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I 
01/31/21 I GROUND SHIPMENT I PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE I 

Entered By I Salesperson I 
Dempsey Owens I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Customer No. WA TAU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
ATT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Customer PO Number Payment Method 
Net 30 

Ordered By Resale Number 
MAJOR REDMON 

Order Approve 
Tax Item Number I Description 

Unit Extended 
Quantity Quantity 

6 

6 

6 

6 

Print Date 
Print Time 

Page No. 

6 N 

6 y 

6 y 

6 y 

04109121 
05:50:23 PM 
I 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

Price Price 

INFO 0.0000 0.00 
VEHICLE JNFORMA TION 2021 DODGE DURANGO 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
2020 DODGE DURANGO 

EVP 1,600.1000 9,600.60 
WEC EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS NCSA #38 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
EVP PACKAGE INCLUDES: NC SHERIFF'S CONTRACT# 37 

a. Whelen - Inner Edge XP Front Full-Width Interior LED System with 

2 LED Takedown Lights PT# IX44UFZ 

b. Whelen - Rear Full-Width Interior LED System PT# DP603300 

c. Whelen - Four IONS Instead the VTX-609 
d. Whelen - 295SLSA6 WHELEN integrated siren and light controller with 

PA 

e. Whelen - SA3 I 5P Speaker 

f. Whelen - SAK54 Speaker Bracket 

TX44UFZ 0.0000 0.00 
WEC JNNEREDGE 2 PC WI TD 2013-19 DURANGO 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
INCLUDED IN EVP SPEC# 38 

BLUE WITH WHITE TAKEDOWN 

DP603300 0.0000 0.00 

WEC DOMINATOR PLUS 3 BLUE, 3 AMBER 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
INCLUDED IN EVP SPEC# 38 

MOUNTED IN REAR OF LIFTGATE 

Continued on Next Page 

042021 BCC Meeting

356



Sales Quote 
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I 
01/31/21 I GROUND SHIPMENT I PPA Y & ADD TO INVOICE! 

Entered By I Salesperson I 
Dempsey Owens I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Customer No. WA TAU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
ATT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Customer PO Number Payment Method 

Net 30 
Ordered By Resale Number 

MAJOR REDMON 

Order Approve 
Tax Item Number I Description 

Unit Extended 
Quantity Quantity 

6 6 y 

24 24 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

Print Date 04/09/21 
Print Time 05:50:23 PM 

Page No. 2 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

Price Price 

DBKT4 0.0000 0.00 

WEC L-ANGLE MTG BRACKET KIT FOR DOMINATOR(2 
BRKTS) 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

INCLUDED IN EVP SPEC # 38 

USED TO MOUNT THE DP603300 

WEC-JON 0.0000 0.00 

Whelen ION Led. Black Housing & Universal Mount 

Blue 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

INCLUDED IN EVP SPEC# 38 

Whelen 

Blue IONS 

2 Mounted in the Grill 

2 Mounted in Cargo Windows 

WEC-295SLSA6 0.0000 0.00 

Whelen I 00/200W Scan-Lock Self-Contained Siren/Switch 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

SA315P 0.0000 0.00 

Whelen I OOW Compact Black Composite I 22DB Speaker 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

SAK54 0.0000 0.00 

WEC SA315P SPEAKER BRACKET - 2013+ DURANGO 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
INCLUDED JN EVP SPEC# 38 

Continued on Next Page 

042021 BCC Meeting

357



I 
I 

Sales Quote 
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Customer No. WATAU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 

184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3 761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

A TT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly. Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I Customer PO Number Payment Method 
01/31/21 I GROUND SHIPMENT I PPA y & ADD TO INVOICE I 

Entered By 
Dempsey Owens 

Order Approve 
Tax 

Quantity Quantity 

12 12 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

Print Date 04/09/21 
Print Time 05:50:23 PM 

Page No. 3 

I Salespe1·son I Ordered By 

I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I MAJOR REDMON 

Item Number I Description 

WEC-ION 

WEC ION LED w/UNIVERSAL MOUNT 

Blue 
Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

~ Mounted Near the License Plate 

C-VS-2300-DUR 
HAY 23" CONSOLE, 2021+ DURANGO 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING EQUIPMENT BRACKETS: 
(I) C-EB30-APR-IP 

(I) C-EB40-WS2-1P 
(I) 
(1) 

AND WHATEVER OTHER FILLER PLATES NECESSARY 
TO COMPLETE THE INSTALLATION 
*******************************************~** 

C-ARM-103 

HAV FLIP-UP ARMREST, ATTACHES TO CONSOLE 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

CL'P2-1001 
HAY Selt~Adjusting Double Cup Holder 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

Net 30 
Resale Number 

Unit Extended 
Price Price 

72.0000 864.00 

368.2400 2,209.44 

94.7500 568.50 

41.8200 250.92 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

Continued on Next Page 

042021 BCC Meeting

358



Sales Quote 
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Customer No. WAT AU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 

184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

A TT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I Customer PO Numbe1· Payment Method 
01/31/21 I GROUND SHIPMENT I PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE I 

Entered By 
Dempsey Owens 

Order Approve 
Tax 

Quantity Quantity 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

Print Date 04/09/21 
Print Time 05:50:23 PM 

Page No. 4 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

I Salesperson I Orde1·ed By 

I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I MAJOR REDMON 

Item Number I Description 

PKG-PSM-145 

HA VIS DURANGO/CHEROKEE COMPUTER BASE PACKAGE 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
VEHICLE YEAR, MAKE, & MODEL---2021 DURANGO 

***************************************** 
C-ADP-101 

HA V MUL Tl MANUFACTURER LAPTOP ADAPTER PLATE 
Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

7160-0250 

GJ NOTEPAD-5 UNIVERSAL COMPUTER CRADLE 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
WILL ADJUST FOR COMPUTERS WITH THE FOLLOWING 

WIDTH - 10.62 TO 16.5 INCHES 

THICKNESS - UP TO 1.50 INCHES 

DEPTH - 9.00 TO 12.38 INCHES 

***************************************************** 
WK0514DURI I 

SMC VERTICAL STEEL BAR WINDOW BARRIERS201 I+ 
DURANGO 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
VEHICLE YEAR- 2021 DURANGO 

********************************* 
NCSA CONTRACT# 59 

Continued on Next Page 

Net 30 
Resale Number 

Unit Extended 
Price Price 

228.5500 1,371.30 

32.9700 197.82 

203.9800 1,223.88 

133.5000 801.00 

042021 BCC Meeting

359



Sales Quote 
DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Custome1· No. WATAU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 

184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

ATT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I Customer PO Number Payment Method 

01/3 I /21 I GROUND SHIPMENT I PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE! 
Entered By 

Dempsey Owens 

Order Approve 
Tax 

Quantity Quantity 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

Print Date 04/09/21 
Print Time 05:50:23 PM 

Page No. 5 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

I Salesperson I Ordered By 

I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I MAJOR REDMON 

Item Number I Description 

PK0123DURI 12ND 

SMC 12VS VINYL CTD EXP MTL CARGO BARRIER 2011+ 
DURANGO 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
VEHICLE YEAR - 2021 DURANGO 

************************** 
NCSA CONTRACT #59 

PK! 126DURI I 
SMC IOXL-RP CTD POLY PARTITION WEXP MTL WINDOW 
COVER 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
VEHICLE - DODGE DURANGO 
YEAR-2021 

HORIZONTAL SUDTNG WINDOW WITH EXPANDED 

METAL COVER OVER THE OPENING---

INCLUDES 2 PIECE LOWER PANELS 

EXTRA LEGROOM ON PASSENGER SIDE 

**************************************** 

NC SHERIFF'S CONTACT #59 

GKI0271UHKSVSCA 
SMC SINGLET RAIL MT UNIV XL, H/C KEY OVERRIDE 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
ATTACH COMPLETED GUN LOCK ORDER FORM 

TO ORDER 

*************************************** 
NCSA CONTRACT# 59 

Continued on Next Page 

Net 30 
Resale Number 

Unit Extended 
Price Price 

254.0000 1,524.00 

488.5000 2,931.00 

190.0000 1,140.00 

042021 BCC Meeting

360



DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC 
4809 KOGER BLVD 
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 

Telephone: 800-845-0405 

Bill To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-264-3761 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org 

Quote Date I Ship Via I F.O.B. I 
01/3 I /21 I GROUND Sl-IIPMENT I PPA Y & ADD TO INVOICE I 

Entered By I Salesperson I 
Dempsey Owens I Dempsey Owens - Greensboro I 

Sales Quote 

Sales Quote No. 375532-B 

Customer No. WA TAU 

Ship To 

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
ATT: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
BOONE, NC 28607 
USA 

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON 
Telephone: 828-265-7607 

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgoY.org 

Customer PO Number Payment Method 

Net 30 
Ordered By Resale Number 

MAJOR REDMON 

Order Approve 
Tax Item Number I Description 

Unit Extended 
Quantity Quantity Price Price 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

6 6 y 

Print Date 04/09/21 
Print Time 05:50:23 PM 

Page No. 6 

Printed By: Dempsey Owens 

75456 107.9400 647.64 

SL! STINGER OS HL W/12VDC CHGR (NMH BATTERY) 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
640 LUMEN LIGHT OUTPUT 

*********************** 
Bl-BR-930-USB 27.5000 165.00 

Brooking 3 Hole Outlet with USB 
Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

EVP 498.9700 2,993.82 

EMERGENCY VEl-IICLE PACKAGE (GO RHINO) 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 
NC SHERIFF CONTRACT# 81 
PT# 5201-2L61 PUSHBUMPER (2 IONS NOT INCLUDED) 

PT# 5201WHD DURANGO HEALIGHT WRAPS 

5201-2L6 l 0.0000 0.00 

GOR PB 2 IONS 

Warehouse: GBKO Vin#: 

INCLUDED IN EVP 
DODGE DURANGO 
PUSH BUMPER 

2 LIGHT MODEL 
WHELEN IONS 

Continued on Next Page 

042021 BCC Meeting

361



Blank Page 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

362



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

363



042021 BCC Meeting

364



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

365



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      1
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1730449 A HOLDEN DESIGNS LLC                    PP 2020      876 03/31/2021               0 G01                       72.94
PO BOX 2288                             357                     C03 G01L                       7.29
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7741 _______________
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  OWNER DECEASED                                    80.23

 
  1764275 AUMILLER PROPERTIES, INC                RE 2020    17928 03/31/2021               0 F02                        4.38

8404 SEAGATE DR                         2901-35-7361-000        F02 G01                       29.42
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7720 _______________
RALEIGH, NC 27615                       PROPERTY WAS MERGED AND BILLED UNDER              33.80
                                        PARCEL NUMBER 2901-35-7169-000          

 
  1760536 BEECHLER, KYLE D.                       PP 2020     1448 03/31/2021               0 F02                         .30

780 OLD BRISTOL RD                      1651                    F02 G01                        2.02
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7716 F02L                        .03
BOONE, NC 28607                         sold in 2019                            G01L                        .20
                                                                                _______________

           2.55
 

  1581875 BLUE RIDGE BUSINESS GROUP LLC           PP 2020      103 03/31/2021               0 G01                      420.97
SUBWAY #790 AT ASU                      581875999               C02 C02                      428.29
C/O JOHN B BARRY CPA PA                 TAX RELEASES                  7692 _______________
PO BOX 329                              BUSINESS CLOSED                                  849.26
BOONE, NC 28607                                                                 

 
  1641842 BORUM, SCOTT                            PP 2018     3618 03/31/2021               0 SWF                       80.00

2373 BIG HILL RD                        641842999               F02 G01                       25.45
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7713 C02                       29.56
BOONE, NC 28607                         Owner passed away-sold in 2018 to Eddie G01L                       2.55
                                        Dyer                                    C02L                       2.96

_______________
         140.52

 
  1641842 BORUM, SCOTT                            PP 2019     3787 03/31/2021               0 SWF                       80.00

2373 BIG HILL RD                        641842999               F02 G01                       28.17
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7714 C02                       28.66
BOONE, NC 28607                         owner passed away-sold to eddie dyer2018 G01L                       2.82
                                                                                C02L                       2.87

_______________
         142.52

 
  1641842 BORUM, SCOTT                            PP 2020     1467 03/31/2021               0 SWF                       80.00

2373 BIG HILL RD                        641842999               F02 G01                       27.32
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7715 C02                       27.80
BOONE, NC 28607                         owner passed away-sold to eddie dyer2018 G01L                       2.73
                                                                                C02L                       2.78

_______________
         140.63

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

366



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      2
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2011      421 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .34
CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.54
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7686 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 3.88
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2012      635 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .57

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.54
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7685 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 4.11
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2013      648 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .57

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.54
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7684 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 4.11
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2014     1142 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .57

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.54
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7683 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 4.11
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2015     1169 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .57

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.54
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7682 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 4.11
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2016     1372 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .57

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.54
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7681 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 4.11
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2016     1372 03/31/2021               0 SWF                       80.00

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7687
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE      
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2017     1544 03/31/2021           1,130 F09                         .57

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.99
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7680 _______________
                                        STORAGE UNIT ONLY, NOT A RESIDENCE                 4.56
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854                                                     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

367



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      3
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2018     1480 03/31/2021           1,080 F09                         .54
CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.81
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7677 _______________
                                        SOLD MH TO FATHER -SHE WAS MADE                    4.35
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854             AWARE OF OUTSTANDING BILL IN 2018       

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2019     1751 03/31/2021           1,030 F09                         .77

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        6.17
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7678 _______________
                                        SOLD MH TO FATHER-VICKIE WAS MADE AWARE            6.94
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854             OF OUTSTANDING BILL IN 2018             

 
  1519433 CANTER, JEFFREY LEE                     PP 2020     2824 03/31/2021             980 F09                         .49

CANTER, VICKIE WATSON                   128744100               F09 G01                        3.95
104 DRY GULLEY LANE                     TAX RELEASES                  7679 _______________
                                        SOLD MH TO FATHER-VICKIE WAS AWARE OF              4.44
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29575-8854             OUTSTANDING BILL                        

 
  1760605 CAROLINA TRANSPORT LOGISTICS INC        PP 2016      951 03/31/2021               0 F08                         .40

654 APPALOOSA RIDGE RDD                 1739                    F08 G01                        2.50
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7746 _______________
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    business closed in 2015                            2.90

 
  1760605 CAROLINA TRANSPORT LOGISTICS INC        PP 2017      866 03/31/2021               0 F08                         .40

654 APPALOOSA RIDGE RDD                 1739                    F08 G01                        2.82
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7747 F08L                        .04
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    business closed in 2015                 G01L                        .28
                                                                                _______________

           3.54
 

  1760605 CAROLINA TRANSPORT LOGISTICS INC        PP 2018      800 03/31/2021               0 F08                         .36
654 APPALOOSA RIDGE RDD                 1739                    F08 G01                        2.54
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7748 F08L                        .04
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    business closed in 2015                 G01L                        .25
                                                                                _______________

           3.19
 

  1760605 CAROLINA TRANSPORT LOGISTICS INC        PP 2019      721 03/31/2021               0 F08                         .33
654 APPALOOSA RIDGE RDD                 1739                    F08 G01                        2.62
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7749 _______________
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    business closed in 2015                            2.95

 
  1760605 CAROLINA TRANSPORT LOGISTICS INC        PP 2020     2732 03/31/2021               0 F08                         .30

654 APPALOOSA RIDGE RDD                 1739                    F08 G01                        2.38
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7750 F08L                        .03
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    business closed in 2015                 G01L                        .24
                                                                                _______________

           2.95
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

368



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      4
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1767013 CARROLL NC PROPERTIES LLC               RE 2020    18861 03/31/2021               0 F02                      112.44
PO BOX 1549                             2921-51-5855-000        F02 G01                      755.22
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7700 _______________
BOONE, NC 28607                         PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED              867.66

 
  1742806 CATHERINE CHILES REVOCABLE TRUST        RE 2020    44637 03/09/2021               0 F12                      388.30

103 ARMORY ST                           1897-86-6971-000        F12 G01                    3,129.70
                                        REFUND RELEASE                7702 SWF                       80.00
HAMDEN, CT 06517                        PARCEL WAS MERGED AND PAYMENT           _______________
                                        APPLIED TO 1897866983000                       3,598.00

 
  1799264 COATES, MARK                            PP 2020     2842 03/31/2021               0 F09                        1.22

1229 LAUREL PARK TRL                    3102                    F09 G01                        9.79
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7753 SWF                       80.00
MOUNT PLEASANT, SC 29466                REMOVED FROM WATERWHEEL FEB 2019        F09L                        .12
                                                                                G01L                        .98

_______________
          92.11

 
  1534079 COMBS, TERESA LORAINE                   PP 2019     1283 03/31/2021               0 F06                       10.99

P O BOX 213                             2853                    F06 G01                       88.58
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7751 SWF                       80.00
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698                     OWNED BY ASHELY HOPE DAVILA             _______________
                                                                                         179.57

 
  1534079 COMBS, TERESA LORAINE                   PP 2020     2239 03/31/2021               0 F06                       10.66

P O BOX 213                             2853                    F06 G01                       85.92
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7752 SWF                       80.00
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698                     OWNED BY ASHLEY HOPE DAVILA             F06L                       1.07
                                                                                G01L                       8.59

_______________
         186.24

 
  1034842 COOK, ROBERT CARTER                     RE 2020    44850 03/31/2021               0 F12                      101.83

1946 BLACKBERRY RD                      2827-59-9025-000        F12 G01                      820.71
                                        REFUND RELEASE                7744 SWF                       80.00
BOONE, NC 28607                         PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED     _______________
                                                                                       1,002.54

 
  1642636 CORDELL, WILLARD LIFE ESTATE            RE 2020    26234 03/31/2021          25,000 F03                       12.50

CORDELL, SUSIE LIFE ESTATE              1951-07-4188-000        F03 G01                      100.75
380 WIEDEMANNS RD                       TAX RELEASES                  7701 _______________
                                        EXEMPTION DID NOT CALCULATE ON BILL              113.25
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                                                            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

369



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      5
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1750902 CORRELL, CARROLL B SR                   RE 2020    32904 03/31/2021               0 F07                       35.70
1068 LAUREL BRANCH RD                   1973-99-4680-000        F07 G01                      287.74
                                        REFUND RELEASE                7709 SWF                       80.00
VILAS, NC 28692                         PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED     _______________
                                                                                         403.44

 
  1040294 DAVANT, HARRIETT B                      PP 2020      943 03/31/2021               0 G01                      113.40

P O BOX 186                             510                     C03 G01L                      11.34
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7674 _______________
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605-0186                                                              124.74

 
  1636230 FRANTZ, ROBERT J                        RE 2020    33220 03/31/2021               0 F07                       78.10

FRANTZ, POLLYANNE S                     1992-11-6107-000        F07 G01                      629.49
215 DOGSKIN RD                          TAX RELEASES                  7697 SWF                       80.00
                                        PROPERTY BILLED UNDER NEW OWNER         _______________
VILAS, NC 28692                                                                          787.59

 
  1636230 FRANTZ, ROBERT J                        RE 2020    33221 03/31/2021               0 F07                        3.20

FRANTZ, POLLYANNE S                     1992-11-7115-000        F07 G01                       25.79
215 DOGSKIN RD                          TAX RELEASES                  7698 _______________
                                        PROPERTY BILLED UNDER NEW OWNER                   28.99
VILAS, NC 28692                                                                 

 
  1636230 FRANTZ, ROBERT J                        RE 2020    33222 03/31/2021               0 F07                       25.75

FRANTZ, POLLYANNE S                     1992-21-0911-000        F07 G01                      207.55
215 DOGSKIN RD                          TAX RELEASES                  7699 _______________
                                        PROPERTY BILLED UNDER NEW OWNER                  233.30
VILAS, NC 28692                                                                 

 
  1606478 FUELLING, BEVERLY M                     RE 2020    14440 03/31/2021               0 F01                      125.40

PO BOX 1635                             1898-48-0394-000        F01 G01                    1,010.72
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7691 SWF                      160.00
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED     _______________
                                                                                       1,296.12

 
  1606478 FUELLING, BEVERLY M                     RE 2020    14441 03/31/2021               0 F01                       51.95

PO BOX 1635                             1898-48-0441-000        F01 G01                      418.72
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7689 SWF                       80.00
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  RELEASE AND REBILL TO 1898480299000     _______________
                                                                                         550.67

 
  1606478 FUELLING, BEVERLY M                     RE 2020    14443 03/31/2021               0 F01                       81.15

PO BOX 1635                             1898-48-1242-000        F01 G01                      654.07
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7690 SWF                       80.00
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  RELEASE AND REBILL TO 1898480299000     _______________
                                                                                         815.22

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

370



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      6
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1794134 GREER, NOAH                             PP 2020     1637 03/31/2021               0 F02                        3.20
437 WILLIAM HOOPER CIRCLE               3013                    F02 G01                       21.52
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7742 SWF                       80.00
HILLSBOROUGH, NC 28607                  SOLD TO THOMAS BROWN 7/19/19            F02L                        .32
                                                                                G01L                       2.15

_______________
         107.19

 
  1768503 HARRIS, J THOMAS                        RE 2020    45647 03/31/2021               0 F12                         .20

7320 RIVER RUN CT                       2828-51-8296-000        F12 G01                        1.61
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7711 _______________
LEWISVILLE, NC 27023                    PROPERTY MERGED AND BILLED UNDER                   1.81
                                        2828610178000                           

 
  1768503 HARRIS, J THOMAS                        RE 2020    45648 03/31/2021               0 F12                      199.65

7320 RIVER RUN CT                       2828-61-0106-000        F12 G01                    1,609.18
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7710 SWF                       80.00
LEWISVILLE, NC 27023                    PROPERTY MERGED AND BILLED UNDER        _______________
                                        2828610178000                                  1,888.83

 
  1784388 JAMES, BARBARA MAST                     RE 2020    33871 03/01/2021               0 F07                       26.85

JAMES, W. SCOTT III                     1973-92-7691-000        F07 G01                      216.41
619 AIKEN AVE                           TAX RELEASES                  7675 _______________
                                        MUNIS BILLED A DEACTIVATED PARCEL                243.26
ROCK HILL, SC 29730                                                             

 
  1784388 JAMES, BARBARA MAST                     RE 2020    33872 03/01/2021               0 F07                       27.50

JAMES, W. SCOTT III                     1983-02-4669-000        F07 G01                      221.65
619 AIKEN AVE                           TAX RELEASES                  7676 _______________
                                        MUNIS BILLED A DEACTIVATED PARCEL                249.15
ROCK HILL, SC 29730                                                             

 
  1793958 KETTHIYA IVES, LLC                      PP 2020      464 03/31/2021               0 C02                      250.43

178 HOWARD ST                           2969                    C02 G01                      246.15
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7694 C02L                      25.04
BOONE, NC 28607                         business closed                         G01L                      24.62
                                                                                _______________

         546.24
 

  1813930 MARTINEZ, ANASTACIO                     PP 2020     1756 03/31/2021               0 F02                        3.00
110 BECK CT                             3429                    F02 G01                       20.15
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7712 SWF                       80.00
BOONE, NC 28607                         listed under account#1591967            F02L                        .30
                                                                                G01L                       2.02

_______________
         105.47

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

371



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      7
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1736209 MILLER, BOBBY                           PP 2019      297 03/31/2021               0 F01                         .05
MILLER, TRAVIS                          860                     F01 G01                         .40
PO BOX 3616                             TAX RELEASES                  7755 SWF                       80.00
                                        OWNERS WERE EVICTED 11/30/2018          F01L                        .33
BOONE, NC 28607                         PER NATHAN MILLER                       G01L                       2.67

_______________
          83.45

 
  1736209 MILLER, BOBBY                           PP 2020     1340 03/31/2021               0 F01                         .05

MILLER, TRAVIS                          860                     F01 G01                         .40
PO BOX 3616                             TAX RELEASES                  7756 SWF                       80.00
                                        OWNERS WERE EVICTED 11/30/2018          F01L                        .01
BOONE, NC 28607                         PER NATHAN MILLER                       G01L                        .04

_______________
          80.50

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2014    43429 03/31/2021               0 F02                       42.80

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      267.93
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7731 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVER SCH           310.73
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2014    43435 03/31/2021               0 F02                       62.10

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      388.75
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7738 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          450.85
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2015    43437 03/31/2021               0 F02                       42.80

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      267.93
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7730 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          310.73
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2015    43444 03/31/2021               0 F02                       62.10

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      388.75
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7737 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          450.85
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2016    43432 03/31/2021               0 F02                       51.36

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      267.93
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7729 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          319.29
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

372



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      8
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2016    43439 03/31/2021               0 F02                       74.52
12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      388.75
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7736 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          463.27
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2017    43914 03/31/2021               0 F02                       51.36

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      302.17
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7728 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          353.53
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2017    43921 03/31/2021               0 F02                       74.52

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      438.43
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7735 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          512.95
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2018    44124 03/31/2021               0 F02                       51.36

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      302.17
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7727 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          353.53
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275-(46)                 

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2018    44131 03/31/2021               0 F02                       74.52

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      438.43
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7734 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          512.95
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2019    44648 03/31/2021               0 F02                       51.36

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      344.97
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7726 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          396.33
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2019    44655 03/31/2021               0 F02                       74.52

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      500.53
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7733 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          575.05
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2020    22913 03/31/2021               0 F02                       51.36

12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-4836-001        F02 G01                      344.97
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7725 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          396.33
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

373



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      9
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1747832 MODULAR SPACE CORPORATION               RE 2020    22914 03/31/2021               0 F02                       74.52
12603 COLLECTIONS CENTER DR             2921-81-8651-001        F02 G01                      500.53
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7732 _______________
CHICAGO, IL 60693-0126                  MOBILE CLASSROOM UNITS FOR 2 RIVERS SCH          575.05
                                        EXEMPT PER 105-275(46)                  

 
  1782297 PARKER, BENJAMIN R + PARKER, ELIZABETH B RE 2020    46669 03/31/2021               0 F12                      154.90

237 ROCKY GLEN LN                       2818-30-8908-000        F12 G01                    1,248.49
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7695 SWF                       80.00
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED     _______________
                                                                                       1,483.39

 
  1782297 PARKER, BENJAMIN R + PARKER, ELIZABETH B RE 2020    46671 03/31/2021               0 F12                       33.25

237 ROCKY GLEN LN                       2818-31-8099-000        F12 G01                      268.00
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7696 _______________
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED              301.25

 
  1773651 PIETER JOOST VAN WATTUM REVOCABLE TRUST RE 2020    46772 03/09/2021               0 F12                       44.55

CATHERINE CHILES REVOCABLE TRUST        1897-86-5739-000        F12 G01                      359.07
103 ARMORY ST                           REFUND RELEASE                7703 _______________
                                        PARCEL WAS MERGED AND PAYMENT                    403.62
HAMDEN, CT 06517                        APPLIED TO 1897866983000                

 
  1799532 RAMSEY&SON TRUCKING                     PP 2020     2354 03/31/2021               0 F06                       21.60

116 SUNNIE LANE                         3120                    F06 G01                      174.10
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7705 F06L                       2.16
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698                     TRUCK WAS SOLD                          G01L                      17.41
                                                                                _______________

         215.27
 

  1628247 RAMSEY, LUCAS RICHARD                   PP 2019      958 03/31/2021               0 F06                       40.50
RAMSEY, MIRANDA JOY                     2142                    F06 G01                      326.43
116 SUNNIE LN                           TAX RELEASES                  7707 F06L                       4.05
                                        ALSO BILLED UNDER RAMSEY & SON TRUCKING G01L                      32.64
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698                                                             _______________

         403.62
 

  1628247 RAMSEY, LUCAS RICHARD                   PP 2020     2355 03/31/2021               0 F06                       36.45
RAMSEY, MIRANDA JOY                     2142                    F06 G01                      293.79
116 SUNNIE LN                           TAX RELEASES                  7706 F06L                       3.65
                                        ALSO BILLED UNDER RAMSEY & SON TRUCKING G01L                      29.38
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698                                                             _______________

         363.27
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

374



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     10
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1147065 SIMMONS, WILLIAM EDWARD (ESTATE)        PP 2011      262 03/26/2021               0 G01                       38.78
SIMMONS, WILLIAM CHARLES                58465100                F02 F02                        4.96
3159 NE RICHMOND CT                     TAX RELEASES                  7743 GB                        25.00
                                        MH TORN DOWN                            LF                        62.00
BEND, OR 97701-7607                                                             _______________

         130.74
 

  1629628 SMITH, ERLE ALAN                        PP 2020     1131 03/31/2021               0 G01                       61.42
SMITH, SOPHIA KUSTAS                    656                     C04 
103 SUNSET CREEK CIR                    TAX RELEASES                  7719
                                        sold property 2019                      
CHAPEL HILL, NC 27516-4626                                                      

 
  1581375 SPITLER, LYDIA F                        PP 2020     2381 03/31/2021               0 F06                        3.44

1701 TOMBERLIN ROAD                     540788300               F06 G01                       27.69
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7708 SWF                       80.00
SANFORD, NC 27330                       sold in 2019                            F06L                        .34
                                                                                G01L                       2.77

_______________
         114.24

 
  1793991 STEAD, JOHN                             PP 2020     3614 03/31/2021               0 F12                         .97

9555 SW 54TH COURT                      2975                    F12 G01                        7.82
                                        REFUND RELEASE                7693 SWF                       80.00
OCALA, FL 34476                         MH SOLD IN 2019 AND REMOVED FROM CAMPGRO _______________
                                        UND.                                              88.79

 
  1748827 THE NEW PUBLIC HOUSE INC                PP 2020     1090 03/31/2021               0 G01                      311.96

PO BOX 1419                             1205                    C03 
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7740
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  CLOSED                                  

 
  1730472 WA REALTY INC                           PP 2019      117 03/31/2021               0 G01                        6.41

PO BOX 1603                             371                     C03 G01L                        .64
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7723 _______________
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  CLOSED 2019                                        7.05

 
  1730472 WA REALTY INC                           PP 2020     1104 03/31/2021               0 G01                        5.72

PO BOX 1603                             371                     C03 G01L                        .57
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7724 _______________
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605                  CLOSED 2019                                        6.29

 
  1223023 WALL, DANIEL J TRUSTEE                  PP 2019     3925 03/31/2021               0 G01                       12.09

WALL, VIRGINIA TRUSTEE                  942638400               F12 F12                        1.50
8040 SOUTH TROPICAL TRAIL               TAX RELEASES                  7721 G01L                       1.21
                                        SOLD HOME IN 2018                       F12L                        .15
MERRITT ISLAND, FL 32952-6710                                                   _______________

          14.95
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

375



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     11
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1223023 WALL, DANIEL J TRUSTEE                  PP 2020     3632 03/31/2021               0 G01                       12.09
WALL, VIRGINIA TRUSTEE                  942638400               F12 F12                        1.50
8040 SOUTH TROPICAL TRAIL               TAX RELEASES                  7722 G01L                       1.21
                                        SOLD HOME IN 2018                       F12L                        .15
MERRITT ISLAND, FL 32952-6710                                                   _______________

          14.95
 

  1617508 WATSON, ANNAMAE                         PP 2019     1435 03/31/2021               0 F01                        5.55
WATSON, ROGER                           3019                    F01 G01                       44.73
154 GILLIS RD                           TAX RELEASES                  7717 SWF                       80.00
                                        old mh listed on 1517659                F01L                        .56
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                                                            G01L                       4.47

_______________
         135.31

 
  1617508 WATSON, ANNAMAE                         PP 2020     1394 03/31/2021               0 F01                        5.39

WATSON, ROGER                           3019                    F01 G01                       43.44
154 GILLIS RD                           TAX RELEASES                  7718 SWF                       80.00
                                        old mh listed 1517659                   F01L                        .54
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                                                            G01L                       4.34

_______________
         133.71

 
  1764684 WHITE, JOHN RAMSEY III                  RE 2020    30102 03/31/2021               0 F05                      117.81

PO BOX 352                              2858-89-9250-000        F05 G01                      558.56
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7704 SWF                       80.00
BABSON PARK, FL 33827                   PARCEL SHOULD HAVE BEEN DEACTIVATED     _______________
                                                                                         756.37

 
  1507736 WHITTLE, CHESTER E. JR                  PP 2020     3750 03/31/2021               0 C02                       21.48

756 W KING ST                           507736999               MS1 G01                       21.12
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7739 MS1                       11.00
BOONE, NC 28607                         OWNER DECEASED                          C02L                       2.15
                                                                                G01L                       2.11

MS1L                       1.10
_______________
          58.96

 
  1743897 WILLARD, DAVID R                        RE 2020    17480 03/26/2021               0 F01                       37.50

681 HAMEL AVE                           1879-84-1735-000        F01 G01                      302.25
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7745 _______________
GLENSIDE, PA 19038                      MUNIS BILLED A DEACTIVATED PARCEL                339.75

 
DETAIL SUMMARY COUNT: 81    RELEASES - TOTAL          36,000       26,441.45

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

376



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     12
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

2011 PP F02   BOONE FIRE PP                            4.96
2011 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .34
2011 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       42.32
2011 PP GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
2011 PP LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00

_______________
2011 TOTAL          134.62

 
2012 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
2012 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54

_______________
2012 TOTAL            4.11

 
2013 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
2013 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54

_______________
2013 TOTAL            4.11

 
2014 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          104.90
2014 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      656.68
2014 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
2014 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54

_______________
2014 TOTAL          765.69

 
2015 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          104.90
2015 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      656.68
2015 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
2015 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54

_______________
2015 TOTAL          765.69

 
2016 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
2016 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      656.68
2016 PP F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .40
2016 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
2016 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        6.04
2016 PP SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
2016 TOTAL          869.57

 
2017 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
2017 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      740.60
2017 PP F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .40
2017 PP F08L  SHAWNEEHAW FIRE LATE LIST                 .04
2017 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
2017 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        6.81
2017 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .28

_______________
2017 TOTAL          874.58

 
2018 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
2018 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      740.60
2018 PP C02   BOONE PP                                29.56
2018 PP C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                          2.96
2018 PP F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .36

042021 BCC Meeting

377



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     13
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

2018 PP F08L  SHAWNEEHAW FIRE LATE LIST                 .04
2018 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .54
2018 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       31.80
2018 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 2.80
2018 PP SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
2018 TOTAL        1,014.54

 
2019 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
2019 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      845.50
2019 PP C02   BOONE PP                                28.66
2019 PP C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                          2.87
2019 PP F01   FOSCOE FIRE PP                           5.60
2019 PP F01L  FOSCOE FIRE LATE LIST                     .89
2019 PP F06   ZIONVILLE FIRE PP                       51.49
2019 PP F06L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST                 4.05
2019 PP F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .33
2019 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .77
2019 PP F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                     1.50
2019 PP F12L  BLOWING ROCK FIRE LATE LIST               .15
2019 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      515.60
2019 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                44.45
2019 PP SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    320.00

_______________
2019 TOTAL        1,947.74

 
2020 RE F01   FOSCOE FIRE RE                         296.00
2020 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          242.70
2020 RE F03   FALL CREEK FIRE DISTRICT                12.50
2020 RE F05   STEWART SIMMONS FIRE RE                117.81
2020 RE F07   COVE CREEK FIRE RE                     197.10
2020 RE F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE RE                   922.68
2020 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                   13,700.60
2020 RE SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    880.00
2020 PP C02   BOONE PP                               728.00
2020 PP C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                         29.97
2020 PP F01   FOSCOE FIRE PP                           5.44
2020 PP F01L  FOSCOE FIRE LATE LIST                     .55
2020 PP F02   BOONE FIRE PP                            6.50
2020 PP F02L  BOONE FIRE LATE LIST                      .65
2020 PP F06   ZIONVILLE FIRE PP                       72.15
2020 PP F06L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST                 7.22
2020 PP F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .30
2020 PP F08L  SHAWNEEHAW FIRE LATE LIST                 .03
2020 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                        1.71
2020 PP F09L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST                  .12
2020 PP F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                     2.47
2020 PP F12L  BLOWING ROCK FIRE LATE LIST               .15
2020 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                    1,986.06
2020 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST               117.99
2020 PP MS1   BOONE MUNICIPAL SERV DIST PP            11.00
2020 PP MS1L  BOONE MUNICIPAL SERV DIST LATE            1.10
2020 PP SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    720.00

_______________
2020 TOTAL       20,060.80

 

042021 BCC Meeting

378



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     14
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

SUMMARY TOTAL       26,441.45
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

379



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     15
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

C02 2020 C02   BOONE PP                               678.72
C02 2020 C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                         25.04
C02 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      667.12
C02 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                24.62

_______________
C02 TOTAL        1,395.50

 
C03 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        6.41
C03 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .64
C03 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      504.02
C03 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                19.20

_______________
C03 TOTAL          530.27

 
C04 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       61.42

_______________
C04 TOTAL           61.42

 
F01 2019 F01   FOSCOE FIRE PP                           5.60
F01 2019 F01L  FOSCOE FIRE LATE LIST                     .89
F01 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       45.13
F01 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 7.14
F01 2019 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    160.00
F01 2020 F01   FOSCOE FIRE RE                         301.44
F01 2020 F01L  FOSCOE FIRE LATE LIST                     .55
F01 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    2,429.60
F01 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 4.38
F01 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    480.00

_______________
F01 TOTAL        3,434.73

 
F02 2011 F02   BOONE FIRE PP                            4.96
F02 2011 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       38.78
F02 2011 GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
F02 2011 LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00
F02 2014 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          104.90
F02 2014 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      656.68
F02 2015 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          104.90
F02 2015 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      656.68
F02 2016 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
F02 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      656.68
F02 2017 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
F02 2017 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      740.60
F02 2018 C02   BOONE PP                                29.56
F02 2018 C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                          2.96
F02 2018 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
F02 2018 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      766.05
F02 2018 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 2.55
F02 2018 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00
F02 2019 C02   BOONE PP                                28.66
F02 2019 C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                          2.87
F02 2019 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          125.88
F02 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      873.67
F02 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 2.82
F02 2019 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00
F02 2020 C02   BOONE PP                                27.80

042021 BCC Meeting

380



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     16
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

F02 2020 C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                          2.78
F02 2020 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          249.20
F02 2020 F02L  BOONE FIRE LATE LIST                      .65
F02 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    1,701.15
F02 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 7.10
F02 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    240.00

_______________
F02 TOTAL        7,652.52

 
F03 2020 F03   FALL CREEK FIRE DISTRICT                12.50
F03 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      100.75

_______________
F03 TOTAL          113.25

 
F05 2020 F05   STEWART SIMMONS FIRE RE                117.81
F05 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      558.56
F05 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
F05 TOTAL          756.37

 
F06 2019 F06   ZIONVILLE FIRE PP                       51.49
F06 2019 F06L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST                 4.05
F06 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      415.01
F06 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                32.64
F06 2019 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00
F06 2020 F06   ZIONVILLE FIRE PP                       72.15
F06 2020 F06L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST                 7.22
F06 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      581.50
F06 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                58.15
F06 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    160.00

_______________
F06 TOTAL        1,462.21

 
F07 2020 F07   COVE CREEK FIRE RE                     197.10
F07 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    1,588.63
F07 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    160.00

_______________
F07 TOTAL        1,945.73

 
F08 2016 F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .40
F08 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        2.50
F08 2017 F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .40
F08 2017 F08L  SHAWNEEHAW FIRE LATE LIST                 .04
F08 2017 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        2.82
F08 2017 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .28
F08 2018 F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .36
F08 2018 F08L  SHAWNEEHAW FIRE LATE LIST                 .04
F08 2018 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        2.54
F08 2018 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .25
F08 2019 F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .33
F08 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        2.62
F08 2020 F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE PP                        .30
F08 2020 F08L  SHAWNEEHAW FIRE LATE LIST                 .03
F08 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        2.38
F08 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .24

_______________

042021 BCC Meeting

381



 

03/31/2021 15:19    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P     17
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 03/01/2021 TO 03/31/2021 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

F08 TOTAL           15.53
 

F09 2011 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .34
F09 2011 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54
F09 2012 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
F09 2012 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54
F09 2013 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
F09 2013 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54
F09 2014 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
F09 2014 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54
F09 2015 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
F09 2015 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54
F09 2016 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
F09 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.54
F09 2016 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00
F09 2017 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .57
F09 2017 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.99
F09 2018 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .54
F09 2018 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.81
F09 2019 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .77
F09 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        6.17
F09 2020 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                        1.71
F09 2020 F09L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST                  .12
F09 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       13.74
F09 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .98
F09 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
F09 TOTAL          216.83

 
F12 2019 F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                     1.50
F12 2019 F12L  BLOWING ROCK FIRE LATE LIST               .15
F12 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       12.09
F12 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.21
F12 2020 F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                   925.15
F12 2020 F12L  BLOWING ROCK FIRE LATE LIST               .15
F12 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                    7,456.67
F12 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.21
F12 2020 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    400.00

_______________
F12 TOTAL        8,798.13

 
MS1 2020 C02   BOONE PP                                21.48
MS1 2020 C02L  BOONE LATE LIST                          2.15
MS1 2020 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       21.12
MS1 2020 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 2.11
MS1 2020 MS1   BOONE MUNICIPAL SERV DIST PP            11.00
MS1 2020 MS1L  BOONE MUNICIPAL SERV DIST LATE           1.10

_______________
MS1 TOTAL           58.96

 
SUMMARY TOTAL       26,441.45

 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

382



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR TRANSFER STATION IMPROVEMENTS 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Rex Buck, Operations Services Director, will request Board approval for a bid in the amount 
of $163,789.97 with PADCO Excavating Inc. for Transfer Station Improvements.  Adequate funds 
have been budgeted to cover the expense. 
 
Board approval is required to accept the bid from PADCO Excavating Inc. in the amount 
$163,789.97 for Transfer Station Improvements. 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

383



042021 BCC Meeting

384



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

April 6, 2021 
 
Mr. Rex Buck, Operations Services Director 
Watauga County 
336 Landfill Road 
Boone, NC 28607 
 
RE:   Recommendation of Award 

Watauga County Transfer Station Improvements 
Watauga County, North Carolina 

   
Dear Mr. Buck 
  
On March 24, 2021, bids were received by Watauga County for the above-referenced project.  A 
total of five (4) bids were submitted and opened with the following results. 
 
 

 
 PADCO 

Excavating, 
Inc. 

The JW 
Hampton 
Company. 

Simcon 
Company, 

LLC 

Haren 
Construction 

Company, 
Inc. 

Base Bid $159,789.97 $195,669.00 $263,700.00 
 

$297,000.00 

Alternate 
Total $4,000 $7,500 $10,000 

 
$5,000 

Grand Total $163,789.97 $203,169.00 $273,700.00 
 

$302,000 

 
The low bidder for this contract is PADCO Excavating Inc.  A copy of their bid has been attached 
for your reference, as well as the certified bid tabulation.   
 
PADCO Excavating. Inc. holds an Unlimited, Highway Classification North Carolina General 
Contractors License (number 74070), so is therefore qualified to perform the scope of this project. 
Therefore, we recommend that you approve the award for this construction contract in the amount 
of $163,789.97  to PADCO Excavating. Inc. 

 
Please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions or need any additional information. 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

385



Mr. Rex Buck, Operations Services Director 
April 6, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Sincerely, 
 
MCGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A 
 

 
 
 
 

ADAM WALDROUP, EI 
Planner 
 
Attachments: PADCO Excavating Inc Bid 
   Certified Bid Tab 
 
P:\2020\20.00703-WataugaCoNC-Transfer Station Improvement\Construction\RB6April21Letter of Recommendation - 

New.docx 

042021 BCC Meeting

386



042021 BCC Meeting

387



042021 BCC Meeting

388



042021 BCC Meeting

389



042021 BCC Meeting

390



042021 BCC Meeting

391



042021 BCC Meeting

392



042021 BCC Meeting

393



042021 BCC Meeting

394



042021 BCC Meeting

395



042021 BCC Meeting

396



042021 BCC Meeting

397



042021 BC
C

 M
eeting

398



042021 BCC Meeting

399



042021 BCC Meeting

400



042021 BCC Meeting

401



042021 BCC Meeting

402



042021 BCC Meeting

403



042021 BCC Meeting

404



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

COMMUNICATION TOWER REPAIR 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Will Holt, Emergency Services Director, will request the Board approve the expenditure of 
$34,722 for repairs to the Rich Mountain Communication Tower.  Adequate funds are available 
in the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget to cover the expense.   
 
Board action is required to approve the repair work with ETS in the amount of $34,722. 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

405



Watauga County Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Rd, Suite D 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone 828-264-4235 

Fax 828-265-7617 
 

Fire Marshal ♦ Emergency Management ♦ Communications 
 

April 15, 2021 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Misty Watson, Finance Director 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
 
Subject: Remediation of deficiencies at tower sites 
 
 
Board of Commissioners, 
 
Please consider my request to authorize the remediation recommendations for the Rich Mountain 
tower in the amount of $34,722. The recommendations are the result of the inspection of the tower 
that occurred earlier this year and I have provided both the inspection results and the quote for 
remediation. This remediation work will bring our current towers up to industry standard as we prepare 
to add new radio hardware as part of the public safety radio infrastructure upgrades. Funds for these 
repairs have been budgeted within the contingency of the capital improvement plan.  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Will Holt 
ES Director 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

406



Observation

Rich Mountain

Item 1. A.4.

One safety cable grommet is properly installed on the C Leg at 35'. The 

safety cable grommets are outdated and all other grommets are not 

properly installed.

Item 2. A.4.
Surface corrosion was observed throughout the safety cable and on the 

top crosby clamp.

Item 3. A.5.

The horizontal girts (L 2" x 2" x 1/4", (2) 5/8"Ø end bolts) at guy level 2 

are not properly bolted. There are two (2) end bolt holes with one (1) 

bolt in use at each end.

Item 4. B.2. Category 1 corrosion was observed on the A anchor fan plate.

Item 5. B.2. Category 1 corrosion was observed throughout the tower.

Item 6. D.1.
No anchor head grounding is installed and guy wire grounding is 

improperly installed at each anchor.

Item 7. D.3. A lightning rod is not installed at the top of the tower.

Item 8. E.1. Unused equipment was observed on the A Leg at 46'.

Item 9. E.2. An unused mount was observed on the CA Face at 82’.

Item 10. E.3. One (1) cut 1‐1/8"Ø coax was observed at 5'.

Item 11. H.1. Guy wires throughout guy levels 1 and 2 are corroded.

Item 12. H.2.a.
The figure 8 safety cable is not properly installed and missing one (1) 

crosby clamp at each anchor.

Item 13. H.2.d.ii. No guy wire servings installed throughout guy wire tails.

Item 14. H.2.d.vi. Category 1 corrosion was observed on all cotter pins at each anchor.

Item 15. H.3.
Guy wire tensions are not within ANSI/TIA‐222‐H‐1‐2019 recommended 

limits (see Appendix A for details).

Item 16. I.1.c. No anchor compound fencing installed throughout.

Item 17. I.1.c. Trees observed along the guy paths.

Item 18. I.1.c. Vegetation observed surrounding guy anchors.

Item 19. I.1.c. Vegetation and debris were observed within the tower compound.

Item 20. I.1.c. Unused base section observed within tower compound.

Item 21. I.1.c. Multiple unused coax entry ports not sealed at shelter.

Item 22. I.3.a. The tower foundation is partially below grade.

Item 23. I.3.b. Cosmetic chips observed on the concrete foundation.

042021 BCC Meeting

407



Recommendation

Possible 

Improvement

Needs 

Repair

Replace outdated safety cable grommets with rubber grommets at a 

separation of at most 25'.
x

Monitor the condition of the safety cable for future deformation and replace

the corroded crosby clamp at the top of the system.
x

Check for proper member and install missing bolts if required. x

Clean all areas of surface corrosion with a wire brush and cover with two 

brush coats of a Zinc‐rich galvanizing compound.
x

Clean areas of surface corrosion with a wire brush and cover with two brush 

coats of a Zinc‐rich cold galvanizing compound.
x

CAD weld a #2 AWG (Min.) solid, bare, tinned copper wire to each anchor 

head and connect a #2 AWG (Min.) solid, bare, tinned copper wire to each 

guy wire flowing in a direct path from top to bottom down and away from 

the structure. Install each ground wire tail to a +/‐ 10' grounding rod buried 

at least 2' below finished grade (See Appendix C for details).

x

Install a lightning rod at least 4’ above the highest appurtenance. x

Remove the unused equipment if no future use is planned. x

Remove the unused mount if no future use is planned. x

Remove the cut coax. x

Consult EOR for further review of the existing condition. x

Install the figure 8 safety cable at each anchor in proper configuration x

Install a stainless steel lock wire serving at each guy wire tail. x

Clean all areas of surface corrosion with a wire brush and cover with two 

brush coats of a Zinc‐rich cold galvanizing compound.
x

Adjust all guy wire tensions to within the ANSI/TIA‐222‐H‐1‐2019 

recommended limits. ETS was not provided the initial tensions, the engineer 

of record should review tensions to determine if adjustments are required

x

Install chain‐linked fencing surrounding all anchors with a lock to secure all 

anchors from unauthorized access.
x

Clear trees along guy wire path to an easement of at least 10' on either side 

of the guy wires.
x

Clear vegetation around guy anchors. x

Clear vegetation and debris and treat vegetation for future growth. x

No action required. x

Seal open unused coax entry ports. x

Level grade to foundation top. x

Routine maintenance required. Repair the cosmetic 24"x29" chip in the 

concrete during the next scheduled tower maintenance.
x

042021 BCC Meeting

408



Notes Repair Price

Replace safety climb system with new approved system.

$2,375.00

Covered in Item 1. pricing. 
$0.00

Install missing A325 bolts.

$150.00

Included in Item 5 pricing. 
$0.00

Includes two days of clean and coat with zinc‐rich colding 

galvanizing.  $7,000.00

$1,250.00

Install Lightning rod and extender pipe. $2,500.00

$250.00

$500.00

$250.00

Monitor  $13,397.00

$250.00

$500.00

Replace cotter pins
$250.00

Covered in Item 11. pricing. 

$0.00

ETS will provide pricing if a fence is required. 

$1,000.00

$500.00

Clear vegetation and spray roundup.  $1,500.00

$550.00

$1,250.00

Apply SikaTop Seal 107 
$1,250.00

Sum Total = $34,722.00

042021 BCC Meeting

409



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 1 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

 
MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 

SITE NAME: Rich Mountain Tower 
SITE ID: N/A 

 
Performed By: 

 

 
Kyle P. Evans, P.E. 
Division Manager - Inspections 

 Hunter Thomas 
Trent Lunsford 

 
Prepared For: 

03/08/2021

042021 BCC Meeting

410



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 2 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

 
Will Holt 
will.holt@watgov.org 
828-434-3491 
184 Hodges Gap Rd. 
Boone, NC 28607 
 
Subject: 100-ft. Guyed Tower 
  36.23312°, -81.69870° 
  759 Fire Tower Rd. 
  Boone, NC 28607 
 
Mr. Holt, 
 
Engineered Tower Solutions, PLLC. (ETS) completed a TIA inspection on 2/23/2021 of ''Rich Mountain Tower''. 
The inspection was in accordance with the ANSI/TIA-222-H-1-2019, Annex J: Maintenance and Condition 
Assessment (Normative), the checklist is pages 3 thru 6 of this report. 
 
Observations and recommendations are listed herein.  The inspection included observation of tower members, 
bolted connections, and foundations above grade.  For the purpose of this inspection, the tower legs were recorded 
as A, B and C in a clockwise direction. 
 
Corrosion within this report is labeled from category 1 to 3. Category 1 corrosion is surface corrosion only. 
Category 2 corrosion is corrosion with beginning stages of material loss and minor pitting. Category 3 corrosion 
has material loss and delamination present. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this service for you.  If you have any questions or comments, please 
contact our office. 
 
Sincerely, 
Engineered Tower Solutions, PLLC. (ETS)

042021 BCC Meeting

411



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 3 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

1.0 - ANSI/TIA-222-H MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT (CHECKLIST) 

 SUB 
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION OK POSSIBLE 

IMPROVEMENT 
NEEDS 

REPAIR N/A TIA ITEM 
NUMBER 

A
. S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 A.1. Damaged members (legs and 

bracing) X     

A.2. Loose members X     

A.3. Missing members X     

A.4. Climbing facilities, platforms, 
catwalks secure  X   1-2 

A.5. Loose and/or missing bolts 
and/or nut locking devices   X  3 

A.6. Visible cracks in welded 
connections X     

 

B
. F

IN
IS

H
 

B.1. Paint and/or galvanizing 
condition X     

B.2. 
Rust and/or corrosion 
condition of mounts 
accessories 

 X   4-5 

B.3. FAA or ICAO color marking 
conditions X     

B.4. Water collection in members X     

 

C
. L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 

C.1. Conduit, junction boxes, and 
fasteners    X  

C.2. Drains and vents openings 
(unobstructed)    X  

C.3. Wiring Condition    X  

C.4. Light lenses    X  

C.5. Bulb condition    X  

C.6.a. Controllers functioning 
(Flasher)    X  

C.6.b. Controllers functioning 
(Photo control)    X  

C.6.c. Controllers functioning 
(Alarms)    X  

042021 BCC Meeting

412



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 4 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

 SUB 
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION OK POSSIBLE 

IMPROVEMENT 
NEEDS 

REPAIR N/A TIA ITEM 
NUMBER 

D
. G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 

D.1. Connections  X   6 

D.2. Corrosion X     

D.3. Lightning protection (secured 
to structure)  X   7 

 

E
. A

N
T

E
N

N
A

S 

E.1. Antenna condition  X   8 

E.2. Mount and/or ice shield 
condition (bent, loose)   X   9 

E.3. Feed line condition (flanges, 
seals, dents, jacket damage)  X   10 

E.4. Hanger condition (snap-ins, 
bolt on, kellum grips, etc.) X     

E.5. Secured to structure X     

 

F.
 P

LA
TF

O
R

M
S 

F.1. Condition    X  

F.2. Secured to structure    X  

 

G
. I

N
SU

L
A

T
O

R
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 G.1. Cracking and chipping    X  

G.2. Cleanliness of insulators    X  

G.3. Spark gaps set properly    X  

G.4. Isolation transformer 
condition    X  

G.5. Bolts and connection secure    X  

042021 BCC Meeting

413



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 5 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

 SUB 
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION OK POSSIBLE 

IMPROVEMENT 
NEEDS 

REPAIR N/A TIA ITEM 
NUMBER 

H
. G

U
Y

S 

H.1. Strand condition (corrosion, 
breaks, nicks, kinks, etc.)   X  11 

H.2.a. 
Guy Hardware Conditions 
(Turnbuckles or equivalent 
(secure and safety properly 
applied) 

 X   12 

H.2.b. 
Guy Hardware Conditions 
(Cable thimbles properly in 
place (if required)) 

X     

H.2.c. 
Guy Hardware Conditions 
(Service sleeves properly in place 
(if required)) 

   X  

H.2.d.i. 
Guy Hardware Conditions 
(Cable connectors (end fittings) 
(Cable clamps applied properly 
and bolts tight) 

   X  

H.2.d.ii. 
Guy Hardware Conditions (Cable 
connectors (end fittings) (Wire 
serving properly applied)) 

 X   13 

H.2.d.iii. 
Guy Hardware Conditions (Cable 
connectors (end fittings) (No signs 
of slippage or damaged strands)) 

   X  

H.2.d.iv. 
Guy Hardware Conditions (Cable 
connectors (Preformed wraps – 
properly applied, fully wrapped, 
and sleeve in place)) 

X     

H.2.d.v. 
Guy Hardware Conditions (Cable 
connectors (end fittings) (Poured 
sockets secure and showing no 
separation)) 

   X  

H.2.d.vi. 
Guy Hardware Conditions 
(Cable connectors (Shackles, 
bolts, pins, and cotter pins 
secure and in good condition)) 

 X   14 

H.3. Guy tensions   X  15 

H.4. Measure guy tensions X     

H.5. Record temperature, wind 
speed and wind direction X     

042021 BCC Meeting

414



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 6 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

 SUB 
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION OK POSSIBLE 

IMPROVEMENT 
NEEDS 

REPAIR N/A TIA ITEM 
NUMBER 

I. 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S 

I.1.a. Ground condition (Settlement, 
movement or earth cracks) X     

I.1.b. Ground condition (Erosion) X     

I.1.c. 
Ground condition (Site 
condition (standing water, 
drainage, trees)) 

 X   16-21 

I.2.a. Anchorage condition (Nuts 
and/or nut locking device) X     

I.2.b. Anchorage condition (Grout 
condition)    X  

I.2.c. 
Anchorage condition 
(Anchorage or anchor rod 
condition) 

X     

I.3.a. Concrete condition (Cracking, 
spalling, or splitting)  X   22 

I.3.b. Concrete condition (Chipped 
or broken concrete)  X   23 

I.3.c. Concrete condition 
(Honeycombing)      

I.3.d. Concrete condition (Low spots 
to collect moisture)      

 

J.
 G

U
Y

E
D

 M
A

ST
 A

N
C

H
O

R
S J.1. Settlement, movement or 

earth cracks X     

J.2. Backfill heaped over concrete 
for water shedding    X  

J.3. Anchor rod condition below 
earth X     

J.4. Corrosion control measures    X  

J.5. Anchor heads clear of earth X     

 

K
. T

&
P 

K.1. Tower Plumb and Twist X     

042021 BCC Meeting

415



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 7 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

2.0 - ANSI/TIA-222-H MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT (DETAIL) 
 

TIA ITEM 1: A.4. Climbing facilities, platforms, catwalks secure 

 

 Observation: One safety cable grommet is properly installed on the C Leg at 35'. The safety cable 
grommets are outdated and all other grommets are not properly installed. 

Recommendation: Replace outdated safety cable grommets with rubber grommets at a separation of at 
most 25'. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 2: A.4. Climbing facilities, platforms, catwalks secure 

 

 Observation: Surface corrosion was observed throughout the safety cable and on the top crosby 
clamp. 

Recommendation: Monitor the condition of the safety cable for future deformation and replace the 
corroded crosby clamp at the top of the system. 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

416



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 8 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 3: A.5. Loose and/or missing bolts and/or nut locking devices 

  Observation: The horizontal girts (L 2" x 2" x 1/4", (2) 5/8"Ø end bolts) at guy level 2 are not 
properly bolted. There are two (2) end bolt holes with one (1) bolt in use at each end. 

Recommendation: Check for proper member and install missing bolts if required. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 4: B.2. Rust and/or corrosion condition of mounts accessories 

  Observation: Category 1 corrosion was observed on the A anchor fan plate. 

Recommendation: Clean all areas of surface corrosion with a wire brush and cover with two brush 
coats of a Zinc-rich galvanizing compound. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

417



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 9 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 5: B.2. Rust and/or corrosion condition of mounts accessories 

  Observation: Category 1 corrosion was observed throughout the tower. 

Recommendation: Clean all areas of surface corrosion with a wire brush and cover with two brush 
coats of a Zinc-rich cold galvanizing compound. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 6: D.1. Connections 

 

 

Observation: No anchor head grounding is installed and guy wire grounding is improperly 
installed at each anchor. 

Recommendation: 

CAD weld a #2 AWG (Min.) solid, bare, tinned copper wire to each anchor head 
and connect a #2 AWG (Min.) solid, bare, tinned copper wire to each guy wire 
flowing in a direct path from top to bottom down and away from the structure. 
Install each ground wire tail to a +/- 10' grounding rod buried at least 2' below 
finished grade (See Appendix C for details). 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

418



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 10 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 7: D.3. Lightning protection (secured to structure) 

 

 

Observation: A lightning rod is not installed at the top of the tower. 

Recommendation: Install a lightning rod at least 4’ above the highest appurtenance. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 8: E.1. Antenna condition 

 

 

Observation: Unused equipment was observed on the A Leg at 46'. 

Recommendation: Remove the unused equipment if no future use is planned. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

419



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 11 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 9: E.2. Mount and/or ice shield condition (bent, loose) 

 

 Observation: An unused mount was observed on the CA Face at 82’. 

Recommendation: Remove the unused mount if no future use is planned. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 10: E.3. Feed line condition (flanges, seals, dents, jacket damage) 

 
 Observation: One (1) cut 1-1/8"Ø coax was observed at 5'. 

Recommendation: Remove the cut coax. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

420



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 12 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 11: H.1. Strand condition (corrosion, breaks, nicks, kinks, etc.) 

 

 Observation: Guy wires throughout guy levels 1 and 2 are corroded. 

Recommendation: Consult EOR for further review of the existing condition. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 12: H.2.a. Guy Hardware Conditions (Turnbuckles or equivalent (secure and safety 
properly applied) 

 

 
Observation: The figure 8 safety cable is not properly installed and missing one (1) crosby clamp 

at each anchor. 

Recommendation: Install the figure 8 safety cable at each anchor in proper configuration (See 
Appendix C for details). 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

421



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 13 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 13: H.2.d.ii. Guy Hardware Conditions (Cable connectors (end fittings) (Wire 
serving properly applied)) 

 

 

Observation: No guy wire servings installed throughout guy wire tails. 

Recommendation: Install a stainless steel lock wire serving at each guy wire tail. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 14: H.2.d.vi. Guy Hardware Conditions (Cable connectors (Shackles, bolts, pins, 
and cotter pins secure and in good condition)) 

 

 

Observation: Category 1 corrosion was observed on all cotter pins at each anchor. 

Recommendation: Clean all areas of surface corrosion with a wire brush and cover with two brush 
coats of a Zinc-rich cold galvanizing compound. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

422



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 14 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 15: H.3. Guy tensions 

  Observation: Guy wire tensions are not within ANSI/TIA-222-H-1-2019 recommended limits (see 
Appendix A for details). 

Recommendation: 

Adjust all guy wire tensions to within the ANSI/TIA-222-H-1-2019 recommended 
limits. ETS was not provided the initial tensions, the engineer of record should 
review tensions to determine if adjustments are required  (Reinstall safety loop per 
Appendix C for details). 

 
 

TIA ITEM 16: I.1.c. Ground condition (Site condition (standing water, drainage, trees)) 

  Observation: No anchor compound fencing installed throughout. 

Recommendation: Install chain-linked fencing surrounding all anchors with a lock to secure all anchors 
from unauthorized access. 

 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

423



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 15 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 17: I.1.c. Ground condition (Site condition (standing water, drainage, trees)) 

 

 Observation: Trees observed along the guy paths. 

Recommendation: Clear trees along guy wire path to an easement of at least 10' on either side of the 
guy wires. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 18: I.1.c. Ground condition (Site condition (standing water, drainage, trees)) 

  
Observation: Vegetation observed surrounding guy anchors. 

Recommendation: Clear vegetation around guy anchors. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

424



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 16 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 19: I.1.c. Ground condition (Site condition (standing water, drainage, trees)) 

  Observation: Vegetation and debris were observed within the tower compound. 

Recommendation: Clear vegetation and debris and treat vegetation for future growth. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 20: I.1.c. Ground condition (Site condition (standing water, drainage, trees)) 

 

 

Observation: Unused base section observed within tower compound. 

Recommendation: No action required. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

425



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 17 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 21: I.1.c. Ground condition (Site condition (standing water, drainage, trees)) 

 
 Observation: Multiple unused coax entry ports not sealed at shelter. 

Recommendation: Seal open unused coax entry ports. 

 
 

TIA ITEM 22: I.3.a. Concrete condition (Cracking, spalling, or splitting) 

  Observation: The tower foundation is partially below grade. 

Recommendation: Level grade to foundation top. 

 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

426



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 18 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

TIA ITEM 23: I.3.b. Concrete condition (Chipped or broken concrete) 

  Observation: Cosmetic chips observed on the concrete foundation. 

Recommendation: Routine maintenance required. Repair the cosmetic 24"x29" chip in the concrete 
during the next scheduled tower maintenance. 

 

042021 BCC Meeting

427



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 19 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

APPENDIX A (GUY TENSIONS) 
 
Guy 
Line 

Guy 
Size 
(in.) 

Guy 
Elevation 

(ft) 

Tension at 
Ambient 

Temp (lbs) 

Tension 
Converted to 
60 Deg F (lbs) 

I.T.s (% 
BS) 

Allowable 
Range (lbs) Result 

A1  5/8 45 3000.00 2781.77 10.00% 3816 - 4664 LOW 
A2  3/4 85 2570.00 2448.60 10.00% 5247 - 6413 LOW 
B1  5/8 45 3720.00 3485.85 10.00% 3816 - 4664 LOW 
B2  3/4 85 2220.00 2062.28 10.00% 5247 - 6413 LOW 
C1  5/8 45 4710.00 4447.30 10.00% 3816 - 4664 PASS 
C2  3/4 85 2020.00 1799.65 10.00% 5247 - 6413 LOW 

042021 BCC Meeting

428



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 20 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

APPENDIX B (TOWER TWIST AND LATERAL DEFLECTION MEASUREMENTS) 
 

Twist with Respect to Base (Degrees) Twist with Respect to next lowest elevation (Degrees) 
 Actual Allowable Result Actual  Allowable  Result  

45’ 0.00 2.00 PASS 0.00 2.00 PASS 
85’ -0.29 4.00 PASS -0.29 2.00 PASS 

100’ -1.43 5.00 PASS -1.14 1.00 PASS 
 
 

Plumb Deviation with respect to base (in) Plumb Deviation with respect to next lowest elevation (in) 
 Actual   Allowable   Result   Actual    Allowable    Result    

45’ 0.00 1.20 PASS 0.00 1.20 PASS 
85’ 0.24 2.40 PASS 0.24 1.20 PASS 

100’ 0.24 3.00 PASS 0.24 0.60 PASS 

042021 BCC Meeting

429



MAINTENANCE AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
Rich Mountain Tower, 100-ft. Guyed Tower 

Site ID: N/A 
ETS#: 21089650.Ins.4032 

3/8/2021 
Page 21 of 21 

3227 Wellington Court, Raleigh, NC  27615 O) 919.782.2710 
www.engineeredtowersolutions.com 

 

APPENDIX C (RECOMMENDED GUY ANCHOR GROUNDING AND FIGURE EIGHT SAFETY WIRE) 
 

 
Figure 1 - Guy Anchor Grounding and Figure Eight Safety Wire Installation 

042021 BCC Meeting

430



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Boards and Commissions  

 
Workforce Development Board 
 

Mr. Keith Deveraux, Director of High Country Council of Governments Work Force Development 
Board, has requested the reappointment of Ms. Tara Brossa for a two-year term ending on June 
30, 2023.   This is a first reading. 
  
 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

431



 

 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM  

 
To:  Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Watauga County Board of Commissioners  

 

From:  Keith Deveraux, Director  

 

Subject: Request reappointment of Tara Brossa to the High Country Workforce 

Development Board  

 

Date:  April 5, 2021  

 

Anita Fogle, I spoke with Tara Brossa and she would like to be reappointed to the High Country 

Workforce Development Board. Her business is in Watauga County in the High Country Region. 

Please start the reappointment process to have Tara Brossa reappointed/confirmed to serve on the 

High Country Workforce Development Board. Please let me know if I can be of further 

assistance during this process.  

 

 

1. Tara Brossa, General Manager  

Hampton Inn & Suites 

1252 US Highway 421 South 

Boone, NC 28607  

Phone: (828)386-6464 

Email: tara.brossa@hilton.com 

Role (Seat): Watauga County  

Private Sector Seat  

Term Ends: 6/30/2023  

 

Note: New appointment, I recommend that Tara Brossa be appointed to the High-Country 

Workforce Development Board.       

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

432



 

 
 
 
The following are excerpts pertaining to board membership from the High 
Country Workforce Development Board Bylaws as amended July 11, 2019 by the 
HCWDB and adopted by the High Country Workforce Development Consortium 
July 19, 2019. 
 
Article II – Membership 
 

I. Section 1 – Appointment 
 
The High Country Workforce Development Board shall consist of a 
minimum of twenty-three (23) voting members: 

• Fourteen (14) private sector members, having optimum policy-
making authority, who are appointed by Boards of County 
Commissioners or their Consortium representatives (two (2) 
appointments per County Consortium Representative) in 
accordance with the WIOA; and  

• A minimum of nine (9) and no more than thirteen (13) public sector 
members, having optimum policy-making authority, who are 
appointed by the Consortium by a vote of a majority of the total 
number of members of the Consortium. 

It is allowable for an individual to be appointed as a representative on the 
WDB for more than one entity (or more than one seat) if the individual 
meets all of the criteria for representation (WIOA Title I, 20 CFR 679.320 (h)). 

 
II. Section 2 – Board Membership Composition 

 
Private Sector/Business Member Seats (14):  There shall be two (2) private 
sector/business member seats from each county with one seat expiring in 
an odd-numbered year and the other in an even-numbered year 
beginning July 1.  Representation of businesses in the Local Area shall be 
no less than fifty-one percent (51%) of total board composition and meet 
the following criteria (WIOA Section 107(b)): 

 
• At a minimum, two (2) seats must represent small business as 

defined by the US Small Business Administration; 
• Member must be an owner, chief executive officer, chief operating 

officer, manager, human resources manager, or other individual 
with optimum policy-making or hiring authority; 

• Business provided employment opportunities in in-demand industry 
sectors or occupations, as those terms are defined in WIOA section 
3(23); and  

042021 BCC Meeting

433



 

 
 
 

• Members are appointed from among individuals nominated by 
local groups such as chambers of commerce; economic 
development commissions; business trade associations; education 
agencies; vocational education institutions; community-based 
organizations; higher educational institutions; private/proprietary 
schools; state and/or local labor organizations; and other interested 
organizations.   

 
Public Sector Seats (9-13):  Public Sector member seats shall be regional 
representatives with optimum policy-making authority and shall be 
appointed through a majority vote of the HCWDB Consortium.  There shall 
be a minimum of nine (9) seats with a maximum of thirteen (13) seats with 
a term of two (2) years.  All public sector seats shall be in accordance with 
WIOA Section 107(b) and shall include the following: 

 
• Not less than 20% of the members must be workforce 

representatives.  These representatives: 
1. Must include two (2) or more representatives of labor 

organizations.  If none exists in the HCWDB Local Area, 
representatives must be selected from other employee 
representative groups: 

2. Must include one or more representatives of a joint labor-
management, or union affiliated, registered apprenticeship 
program within the area who must be a training director or a 
member of a labor organization.  If no union affiliated 
registered apprenticeship programs exist in the area, a 
representative of a registered apprenticeship program with 
no union affiliation must be appointed if one exists; 

3. May include one or more representatives of community-
based organization that have demonstrated experience and 
expertise in addressing employment, training, or education 
needs of individuals with barriers to employment, including 
organizations that serve veterans and provide or support 
competitive integrated employment for individuals with 
disabilities;  

4. May include one of more representatives of organizations 
that have demonstrated experience and expertise in 
addressing the employment, training, or education needs of 
eligible youth, including representatives of organizations that 
serve out-of-school youth. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

434



 

 
 

• The WDB also must include the following representatives of 
education and training: 

 
1. At least one eligible training provider administering adult 

education and literacy activities under WIOA Title II [The 
regional adult education and literacy program directors shall 
nominate a representative to serve in this role]; 

2. At least on representative from an institution of higher 
education provided workforce investment activities; including 
community colleges [The regional post-secondary education 
institutions shall nominate a representative to serve in the role]; 
and  

3. At least one representative from each of the following 
governmental and economic and community development 
entities: 

i. Economic and community development entities [The 
nomination of a regional representative will be done in 
coordination with the local economic development 
commissions/offices.]; 

ii. The State Employment Service office under the 
Wagner-Peyser Act serving the High Country; and 

iii. The programs carried out under Title I of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, other than section 112 or 
part C of that title. 

 
III. Section 3 – Tenure 

 
All appointments and reappointments will be for a two-year (2) period 
with alternating terms, unless filling a seat mid-term. Members may renew 
their appointments at the end of the term with approval by the 
Consortium. 
 
Vacancies shall be filled by the procedures prescribed for all other 
appointments and shall be for the remainder of the term. The Consortium 
representative responsible for the vacant seat’s appointment will be 
notified by the WDB staff to appoint a representative to fill the vacancy as 
soon as the seat is declared vacant. Every effort will be made to fill 
vacancies within ninety (90) days. 
 
 
 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

435



 

 
 

IV. Section 4 – Resignation 
 
Letters of resignation must be submitted to the High Country Workforce 
Development Board Chair. Three consecutive absences without 
justification will be considered defacto resignation. Justification must be 
submitted in writing. The Board Chair has the authority to accept or deny 
justification. 
 

 
Article VI – Board Meetings 
 
Section 12 - Participation and Attendance 
 
It is the duty and responsibility of each member to attend Board meetings and 
Committee meetings. Regular meetings of the WDB shall be announced 
electronically and be held as scheduled unless otherwise determined by the 
Chair in conjunction with the Director. 

 
In addition, a calendar of regular Board and Committee meetings shall be 
made available to all members in a timely manner. As WDB meetings are 
considered public meetings, Board members are encouraged to participate in 
person; however, teleconferencing will be made available to those members 
who request access at least one day prior to the meeting. 
 
Positions of WDB members, or their designated alternate representatives, who 
incur three (3) absences within a year shall be declared vacant. However, the 
Board Chair in conjunction with the WDB Director can consider undue 
circumstances for absences. The Consortium representative responsible for the 
vacant seat’s appointment will be notified by the WDB staff to appoint a 
representative to fill the vacancy as soon as the seat is declared vacant. Every 
effort will be made to fill vacancies within ninety (90) days. 
 

042021 BCC Meeting

436



Job Description 
Local Workforce Development Board Member 

The purpose of the Workforce Development Board (WDB) is to be the region’s expert and 
leader in workforce development, by identifying workforce issues and concerns and by 
bringing together the necessary assets to facilitate solutions that foster prosperity.  
Activities of the board include gathering and disseminating information about the area’s 
labor market and businesses’ employment needs; building a strong area-wide workforce 
development system; convening groups of businesses, schools, and other organizations to 
develop solutions to workforce development challenges; and overseeing the network of 
NCWorks Career Centers as described in the federal Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act. 

Qualifications 
• Desire to make a positive contribution to the region’s economy by helping shape a

workforce development system that meets the needs of employers and individuals.
• Commitment to devote time and talent to working with other board members, staff,

businesses, public officials, and public and private sector partner organizations to
improve the quality of the workforce.

• Position as a senior-level decision-maker in your organization.

Expectations 
• Regularly attend board meetings (six each).
• Notify the board chair or the director when you are unable to attend meetings.
• Be prepared for board meetings by staying informed about board matters and

reviewing materials sent in advance of the meetings.
• Get to know and respect other board members, building collegial relationships that

contribute to effective decision making.
• Act and vote on behalf of the long term interests of the board and the community

and not on the interest of a single constituency.
• Avoid conflicts of interest.  If a conflict on a particular issue is unavoidable, disclose

the conflict and follow board policies for removing oneself from discussion and/or
vote on that issue.

• Understand and observe the respective roles of the WDB, board staff, the NCWorks
Career Center Operators, service providers, and the Chief Elected Officials.

• Take advantage of opportunities to become more educated about the Workforce
Development Board and the region’s workforce development system.

• Act as an ambassador of the board with community groups and businesses.

Time Requirements 
• The board meets bimonthly with meetings normally lasting from one (1) to two (2)

hours.  Mileage expenses may be reimbursed by the board.
• Committees are established on an as-needed basis and will set its meeting schedule

as appropriate.
• Individuals are appointed for two-year staggered terms.

042021 BCC Meeting

437



Board Committees 
• Executive Committee – comprised of the WDB Chair, Vice Chair, past WDB 

Chair, and chairs of all committees.
• Ad-hoc committees established on an as-needed basis.

Details 
• The High Country WDB region includes Alleghany, Ashe, Avery, Mitchell, Watauga, 

Wilkes, and Yancey counties.
• Meeting location: High Country Council of Governments in Boone; however, due to 

the pandemic all meetings are currently being held via Zoom.
• All board meeting materials are sent out to board members prior to the scheduled 

board meeting. 
• Upcoming meeting schedule (meeting start time is 2:30pm):

o July 8, 2021
o September 9, 2021
o November 2021 (TBD due to Veteran's Day holiday)
o January 13, 2022
o March 10, 2022
o May 12, 2022

Contact: 
Keith Deveraux, Director 
High Country Workforce Development Board 
keith.deveraux@highcountrywdb.com 
828-265-5434, ext. 130
www.highcountrywdb.com

Equal Opportunity Employer/Program • Dial 711 for Relay NC 

042021 BCC Meeting

438

mailto:keith.deveraux@highcountrywdb.com
http://www.highcountrywdb.com/


AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A Ribbon Cutting Ceremony is scheduled for the new Community Recreation Center on April 23, 
2021, at 1:30 P.M. 
 
The Community Recreation Center is scheduled to open on Monday, April 26, 2021. 
 
The North Carolina Department of Transportation’s (NCDOT) Litter Sweep program is ongoing 
from April 10-24, 2021.  For more information, please click the following link:  
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/environmental/litter-management/Pages/litter-
sweep.aspx  
 
 
 
  

042021 BCC Meeting

439

https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/environmental/litter-management/Pages/litter-sweep.aspx
https://www.ncdot.gov/initiatives-policies/environmental/litter-management/Pages/litter-sweep.aspx


AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

042021 BCC Meeting

440


	Electronic Meeting Notice
	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the April 20, 2021, Agenda
	Coronavirus (COVID-19) Community Update
	Proposed Planning and Development Ordinance
	Sheriff’s Office Patrol Vehicle Equipment Purchase Request
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases

	Bid Award Request for Transfer Station Improvements
	Communication Tower Repair
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Boards and Commissions
	B.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



